VL.

VII.

VIII.

Xl.

METROPOLITAN DISTRICT 303-979-1876

info@keranch.org

&@ KEN-CARYL RANCH | [ o et
7 \ /-

ken-carylranch.org

Metropolitan District Board of Directors Regular Meeting Agenda
Tuesday, December 12, 2023 — 6:00 PM
Ranch House, Bradford Room, 7676 S. Continental Divide Rd, Littleton, CO 80127

Please click the link below to join the webinar:
https://usO6web.zoom.us/j/84631421266
+1 408 638 0968
Webinar ID: 846 3142 1266

Call to Order

Pledge of Allegiance
Approval of Agenda
Conflict of Interest

Approval of Minutes
a. Approval of October 17, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Minutes

Financial Report and Staff Updates
a. Monthly Financial Update

b. Staff Updates

c. Capital Project Updates

2024 Proposed Budget Public Hearing

a. 2024 Budget Presentation

b. Motion to Open the Public Hearing on the Proposed 2024 Budget

c. Public Comment

d. Motion to Continue the Public Hearing on the Proposed 2024 Budget Until the January 8, 2024
Meeting

Communication and Discussion Topics

Lease for Copier Services

Audit Engagement Letter with Haynie & Company, Inc.

2024 Employee Handbook

Reciprocal Employee Benefits Policy with the Master Association
Records Retention Policy

Appointment of Community Planning Committee Members

S 0T W

Public Comment
State your full name. You will have a three minute time limit. Raise your hand to participate via Zoom.

Action Items - Resolution(s)
a. MD 23-107 A Resolution Adopting the 2024 Ken-Caryl Ranch Metropolitan District Employee
Handbook

Action Item - Motion(s)
a. Motion to Approve Lease for Copier Services
b. Motion to Approve Audit Engagement Letter with Haynie & Company, Inc.


https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84631421266

c. Motion to Approve 2024 Reciprocal Employee Benefits Policy with the Master Association
d. Motion to Appoint Members to the Community Planning Committee
e. Motion on any other matter that arises during the meeting

Xll. Board Comments

Xlll.  Adjourn

Announcements and Next Meeting

Individuals who require special accommodation to attend and/or participate in the meeting should call 303-
979-1876 x136 to advise the ADA Compliance Officer of their specific need(s) prior to the meeting. The next
regular Board meeting is scheduled for January 23, 2024 with a special meeting also scheduled on January 8,
2024.



MINUTES

METROPOLITAN DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING
KEN-CARYL RANCH METROPOLITAN DISTRICT

A Ken-Caryl Ranch Metropolitan District Board of Directors Regular Meeting was held on Tuesday, October
17, 2023 at the Ranch House, Bradford Room, 7676 S. Continental Divide Rd, Littleton, CO 80127.

ATTENDANCE

Board Members Present:

Jim Conzelman, Vice-President
Kayla Kirkpatrick, Director

Joe Levy, President

Mike Miro, Treasurer

John Ostrom, Secretary

Board Members Absent:
None.

Others Present:

Traci Wieland, District Manager
Lauren Feeney, Finance Director
Richard Plack, Parks Director
Scott Babich, Facilities Director
Dino Ross, Attorney (virtual)

Audience Present (Approximate):
In-Person: 2
Via Telephone/Zoom: 1

I.  Call to Order
Chairperson Levy called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.

II.  Pledge of Allegiance
Chairperson Levy led the Pledge of Allegiance.

Ill.  Approval of Agenda

Director Levy made a motion to approve the agenda as presented. Director Ostrom seconded
the motion, which passed 5-0.

IV. Conflict of Interest
None.

V. Approval of Minutes
a. Approval of September 26, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Minutes

Director Levy made a motion to approve the September 26, 2023 Regular Board Meeting
minutes as presented. Director Conzelman seconded the motion, which passed 5-0.

VI.  Financial Report and Staff Updates
a. Monthly Financial Update
Finance Director Feeney presented the September financials noting that the District's financial
position will be discussed more in depth during the 2024 Budget presentation.

5307196.2



b. Staff Updates
Finance Director Feeney presented information on the first Employee of the Month for the
District, Michelle Brinkley-Dewig. The first-ever Benefits Palooza will be held on October 18 to
provide a more personalized approach to employee benefits. Finance Director Feeney thanked HR
Analyst, Brea Edson, for her efforts to spearhead this event. District Manager Wieland announced
a Colorado Water Conservation Board planning grant for the ongoing landscape vision project,
and the South Valley Road trail replacement project has been recommended for approval by
Jeffco Open Space. The application requires future approval from the Jeffco Open Space
Committee and the Board of County Commissioners before being finalized.

c. Capital Project Updates
District Manager Wieland provided an update on the remaining capital items and the two under
consideration next on the agenda.

VII.  Communication and Discussion Topics
a. Unbudgeted Capital Project Request
District Manager Wieland provided information regarding two 2023 maintenance projects that
require Board approval of unspent capital funds. The Board will consider a revision to the fiscal
policies in December or January to increase the limit for a capital project from $5,000 to $10,000
to account for the rising cost of materials and services.

b. 2024 Draft Budget Discussion
District Manager Wieland provided an introduction to the 2024 Budget process and the
philosophy that drove the development. District Manager Wieland also provided information
regarding the process staff uses to provide projected and budget figures. Finance Director Feeney
provided information about a proposed transfer of $2.25 million from the fund balance of the
General Fund to the Capital Reserve Fund, which will assist with capital improvements into 2025
while still providing financial security for operations. District Manager Wieland described general
ledger accounts that would be impacted by the continued increase in the cost of doing business
and those expenses the District has been able to manage or even decrease. The new design
options for Community Park were highlighted, and additional research was provided regarding the
youth program/early childhood transportation options. The Board supported the modified effort
to complete design development for the full project and construction documents completed for
only the baseball, restroom, and pickleball phases. Director Miro was involved in review of the
proposal and felt it provides an advantageous approach. Finance Director Feeney described the
final payment of principal and interest for the Debt Service Fund and the goal to end with a small
negative fund balance. District Manager Wieland described efforts to create a total rewards
program for staff which includes compensation and other tools used to attract, retain, and
motivate employees.

VIII.  Public Comment
Rilla Reinsma inquired about contract labor involved in winterizing the irrigation system in the Valley.

IX. Action Item - Motion(s)
a. Approval of Unbudgeted Capital Projects
Director Miro made a motion to approve the use of unspent capital funds on unbudgeted capital
projects including the retaining wall at the Ranch House and the concrete project on the Dakota
Lodge patio. Director Ostrom seconded the motion, which passed 5-0.

XI.  Board Comments
Directors Conzelman and Ostrom expressed appreciation for staff and the work on the 2024 Budget.

5307196.2



XIl.  Executive Session
a. Executive Session pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-402(4)(f) to discuss a personnel matter regarding
the performance evaluation of the District Manager and an employment contract with the
District Manager.

Director Levy made a motion to enter executive session at 7:16 p.m. pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-402(4)(f) to
discuss a personnel matter regarding the performance evaluation of the District Manager and an
employment contract with the District Manager. Director Conzelman seconded the motion, which
passed 5-0.The Board took a brief break and began the Executive Session at 7:23 p.m. The District
Manager exited the Executive Session at 7:57 p.m. and returned at 8:20 p.m.

Director Levy made a motion to exit Executive Session at 8:22 p.m. Director Conzelman
seconded the motion, which passed 5-0.

X, Possible Action on Items Discussed in Executive Session
Director Levy made a motion to approve a 7% increase to the District Manager’s annual
compensation effective January 1, 2024. Director Miro seconded the motion, which passed 5-0.
Director Conzelman made a motion to assign a sub-committee to lead the 2024 District Manager
performance appraisal process. Director Ostrom seconded the motion. Director Conzelman amended
his original motion to table the discussion to the January 2024 Board meeting. Director Kirkpatrick
seconded, which passed 5-0.

XIV. Adjourn

Director Levy made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 8:28 p.m. Director Conzelman seconded,
which passed 5-0.

5307196.2



Ken-Caryl Ranch Metropolitan District
KCRMD Balance Sheet
As of November 30, 2023

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents- unrestricted
Cash and cash equivalents- restricted
Accounts and grants receivable
Due from KCRMA
Due from other funds
Prepaid expenditures
Property taxes receivable
Total Assets
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Fund Balances (Deficits)
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Refunds and deposits payable
Due to other funds
Unearned revenue
Total Liabilities
Deferred Inflow of Resources
Deferred property tax revenues
Total Deferred Inflow of Resources
Total Fund Balances (Deficits)
Assigned (Operating Reserve)
Nonspendable
Restricted (TABOR)
Restricted (Other Funds)
Unassigned
Total Fund Balances (Deficits)
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Fund Balances (Deficits

Conservation Trust & Grant

Plains Metropolitan Dist

General Fund Fund Debt Service Fund Settlement Fund Community Garden Fund ~ Veterans Monument Fund Capital Reserve Fund All Locations
Year To Date Year To Date Year To Date Year To Date Year To Date Year To Date Year To Date Year To Date
11/30/2023 11/30/2023 11/30/2023 11/30/2023 11/30/2023 11/30/2023 11/30/2023 11/30/2023

4,312,034 - - - - - - 4,312,034

- 143,780 - 474,238 - - - 618,018

763 - - - - - - 763

45,247 - - - - - - 45,247

- - (809) - 36,860 5,525 219,366 260,942

172,122 - - - - - - 172,122

9,424 - 2,466 - - - - 11,890

4,539,590 143,780 1,657 474,238 36,860 5,525 219,366 5,421,016

107,291 - - - - - - 107,291

26,625 - - - - - - 26,625

260,942 - - - - - - 260,942

120,689 - - - - - - 120,689

515,547 - - - - - - 515,547

9,424 - 2,466 - - - - 11,890

9,424 - 2,466 - - - - 11,890

300,000 - - - - - - 300,000

172,122 - - - - - - 172,122

187,800 - - - - - - 187,800

- 143,780 (809) 474,238 36,860 5,525 219,366 878,960

3,354,697 - - - - - - 3,354,697

4,014,619 143,780 (809) 474,238 36,860 5,525 219,366 4,893,679

4,539,590 143,780 1,657 474,238 36,860 5,525 219,366 5,421,016




Ken-Caryl Ranch Metropolitan District
KCRMD Budget to Actual
As of November 30, 2023

Property Tax Revenue
Specific Ownership Taxes
General & Administration
Facilities - RH

Facilities - DL

Facilities - CC

Parks

Wellness

General Recreation Programs
Aquatics

Events

Tennis

School Age Youth Programs
Preschool

Total Revenue

General & Administration

Facilities - RH

Facilities - DL

Facilities - CC

Parks

Recreation Management
Wellness

General Recreation Programs
Aquatics

Events

Tennis

School Age Youth Programs
Preschool

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balanct

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year

Fund Balance - End of Period

01/01/2023 Through Year Ending
11/30/2023 12/31/2023
3,505,829 3,496,225 9,605 100 % 3,615,253
269,699 275,000 (5,302) 98 % 300,000
461,189 315,413 145,775 146 % 341,395
42,975 47,667 (4,690) 90 % 52,000
21,637 31,167 (9,531) 69 % 34,000
2,114 - 2,114 0% -
79,738 59,655 20,083 134 % 60,655
131,075 127,603 3,472 103 % 139,058
97,956 69,011 28,944 142 % 69,970
104,646 50,725 53,921 206 % 50,725
37,588 31,325 6,263 120 % 36,575
712,815 642,635 70,180 111 % 681,070
627,433 639,069 (11,637) 98 % 674,756
212,876 187,526 25,351 114 % 205,203
6,307,569 5,973,021 334,549 106% 6,160,660
1,057,248 1,318,728 (261,480) 80 % 1,424,873
286,064 298,707 (12,643) 96 % 324,581
32,618 44,114 (11,496) 74 % 47,828
275,954 295,561 (19,607) 93 % 321,499
1,723,821 1,900,515 (176,693) 91 % 2,057,399
202,928 207,993 (5,066) 98 % 227,320
87,148 93,337 (6,188) 93 % 101,822
49,733 36,021 13,711 138 % 39,038
385,752 376,249 9,503 103 % 403,005
57,944 54,422 3,522 106 % 61,480
400,555 418,261 (17,707) 96 % 454,458
440,211 455,621 (15,409) 97 % 494,414
186,629 193,865 (7,236) 96 % 210,983
5,186,605 5,693,394 (506,789) 91% 6,168,700
1,120,964 279,627 - - (8,040)
(1,126,010) - - - -
(5,046) 279,627 - - (8,040)
4,019,665 -
4,014,619 (8,040)




KCRMD Accounts Payable Analysis for the year:

Phil Long Ford

/- Colorado Employer Benefit Trust (CEBT)

Colorade Special Districts Property & Liability

‘Commercial Fitness Solutions

Ken-Caryl Ranch Water & Sanitation District

X¥cel Energy

Iredand Stapleton Pryor & Pascoe, PC

Churchich Recreation
Denver Janitorial Company

ThermaCoat, LLC
Anchor Network Sclufions, Inc

Wermeer Sales and Service



2023 Capital Fund Projects

2023 EOY
2023 Budget 2023 YTD Projected

1065850 | 933984] 963992] 0000000000000 |




2023 Conservation Trust Fund Capital Projects

Project

2023 Budget

87,585

2023 YTD

89,489

2023 EOY
Projected |Notes

89,489

10



T 5

a
:
32
1
< 2

2024 Budget




Table of Contents

BUAGEE MESSAQE ... eeveeie ettt sttt ettt st et et e e se e te e st e e be e te e st e eneenteeseeaneenteentenneenes 3
[ To T I o] =T (o] €TSS 3
Budget Development Process and Community PartiCipation............ccccvevveieiieeseenesiese e 3
Basis of Accounting and Budget Management............cceoueiirieiienieiiesee e 3
DiStrict PIans and POHICIES .....c..oviiiiiiiiiieiieiee sttt 4
2021 COMMUNILY SUMVEY ...ttt ettt e bbb b ne s 4
2023 - 2027 SErateQiC PlaN.......ccviiieiee ettt re et raere s 4
INVESTMENT POLICY ......eiieieiice ettt sttt re e be e e 4
FISCAI POLICIES ...ttt bbbttt ettt ettt 5
Emergency Reserve REQUITEMENT. ........ccuiiiiiieieieie e 5
State or Federal LEVEI POIICIES .........ccooiiiiiiie e 5
BUAGet HIGNIIGNTS ... 7
BUdget PRIlOSOPNY ......ooiiee et et 7
General FUNG REVENUES ........ocviiiiieiieie ettt sttt e ae e ste e te st e ste e e aneesreeaeeneesneeneeas 8
PrOPErtY TaX TTENAS ....eouviiviitiieiiteeie ettt bbbt bbb 9
2024 Capital Project DESCIPLIONS .......ccviieiieriecieiie ettt sre e 11
SPECIal REVENUE FUNGS ...ttt bbbttt bbb 12
Conservation Trust and Grant FUNG...........cccoveiiiiiiiiiieiee e 12
Plains Metropolitan District Settlement FUNd............ccoooiiiiiiniiie e 12
Capital RESEIVE FUNG..........coiiiie et re e nre e 12
=] o] S T=) Y ot T OSSPSR 13
Community Garden FUNG .........couiiiiiieie et sre e 13
Veterans MoNUMENT FUNG.........ooiiiiie et nee e 13
FUNd Balance FOrECASING.......ccviieiieie ettt et reesre e sreenee s 13
SEATTING . et bbbttt bbbt 14
Classification and Compensation Chart.............cccceiiiiiieiiieeiece e 17
Organizational CRAIT............ooiiiiiie e 19
Development of Fees and FEe SChedUIE ...........ccooviiieiicc e 20
Cost ReCOVErY PhilOSOPRNY ......ccuiiiiiiiiiieece e 20

FEE SCNEUUIE ... ettt ettt st sbesbeeneeneas 21
Community Group Facility Rental POIICY .........ccccoviiiiiiieee e 25

Sub Association and Ken-Caryl Ranch Business Facility Rental Policy ............c.ccccccueneee. 25
2024 Budget and BUdget DY FUNG .......c.ooiiiiiiie e 27-38
2|Page

Mission Statement: To strengthen Ken-Caryl Ranch quality of life and connections by providing
exceptional park, recreation, and outdoor educational experiences.

12



Budget Message
The purpose of this budget is to provide a complete financial plan of all District activities for the
following fiscal year. The budget document serves several purposes:
e As a policy document - the budget indicates what services the District will provide during the
next year.
e As an operations guide - the budget indicates how departments and funds are organized to
provide services to the community.
e As a financial plan - it summarizes the services to the community and how they will be funded.
e As a communications tool - the budget is designed to be user-friendly with summary
information for the community, Board, and staff to utilize.

This proposed budget includes all anticipated revenues and estimated expenditures for the year 2024.
The State of Colorado budgetary law requires that the budget be balanced with all available revenue
sources equal to or exceeding planned expenditures.

Board of Directors

The Ken-Caryl Ranch Metropolitan District is governed by a five-member Board of Directors. Board
members are elected to four-year terms by registered voters who reside or own property within the
Ken-Caryl Ranch Metropolitan District. The Board of Directors is elected to establish policies. The Board
meets on the fourth Tuesday of every month and has a joint study session with the Master
Association the first Tuesday of every other month, with some modifications for budget and holidays.

Jim Conzelman, Vice President, jimc@kcranch.org, term expires May 2025

Kayla Kirkpatrick, Director, 303-999-1993, kaylak@kcranch.org, Term Expires, May 2025
Joe Levy, President, 720-256-4480, joel@kcranch.org, Term Expires, May 2027

Mike Miro, Treasurer, 720-407-1037, mikem@kcranch.org, term expires May 2027
John Ostrom, Secretary, 303-717-3662, johno@kcranch.org, term expires May 2027

Budget Development Process and Community Participation
The annual budget process is the culmination of months of forecasting, preparing, evaluating, and
compiling. The following is a general timeline of the important components of the process.

e August: 10-year capital plan update

e September: capital priority discussions; departmental staff, revenue, and expense development;

fee schedule development
e October: draft budget distributed; continuation of Board discussions
e December: open the public hearing and continue until special meeting in January

e January 2024: close public hearing; approve budget

Basis of Accounting and Budget Management

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as
they are both measurable and available. Revenues are available when they are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the
government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the

3|Page

Mission Statement: To strengthen Ken-Caryl Ranch quality of life and connections by providing
exceptional park, recreation, and outdoor educational experiences.

13


mailto:jimc@kcranch.org
mailto:kaylak@kcranch.org
mailto:joel@kcranch.org
mailto:mikem@kcranch.org
mailto:johno@kcranch.org

current fiscal period. The major sources of revenue susceptible to accrual are property taxes and
program generated revenues. Expenditures, other than interest on long-term obligations, are recorded
when the liability is incurred or the long-term obligation paid. All other revenue items are measurable
and available only when cash is received by the District. This information can be found in the 2022
Annual Financial Report.

District Plans and Policies

2021 Community Survey

The Master Association and District conducted a joint community-wide survey in June 2021 with a 51%
response rate. The Community Planning Committee (CPC) was the body responsible for analyzing the
results and making recommendations for future budget years. The CPC recommended numerous
consensus topics related to the District budget, which have been completed. The 2024 budget will
address the following and remaining Community Survey-supported projects that would be addressed by
the District: South Hogback Open Space land management plan to address the need for sensitive
resource and recreation management plans and the Community Park design completion to address
updates to the park. Other updates, such as playground renovations and shade structures in parks, will
be addressed by the Master Association.

2023 - 2027 Strategic Plan

The Ken-Caryl Ranch Metropolitan District Strategic Plan emanated from the 2021 Community Survey
and builds upon the goals established by the Board of Directors in 2017. The strategic plan provides
goals, strategies, and action steps for the next three to five years. The intent is for this plan to be
reviewed and updated annually and to serve as a roadmap for the District. As part of the process, the
Board revised its mission statement to the following:

To strengthen Ken-Caryl Ranch quality of life and connections by providing exceptional park, recreation,
and outdoor educational experiences.

In addition, staff revised the core values and created the following to integrate into the daily work of
staff as well as ongoing goal development, performance reviews, and strategies:
e Respect
e Engagement
e Accountability
Integrity
Continuous improvement
e Building relationships

Investment Policy

District funds shall be invested prudently, with the safety of principal being the Board's foremost
objective. Investments shall be selected in a manner that seeks to obtain market rates of return,
consistent with constraints imposed by the foregoing safety objective, cash flow considerations, and
State laws that restrict the placement of certain public funds. All investments must be in current
compliance with Part 6, Article 75 of Title 24 of the Colorado Revised Statutes (legal investments of
public funds) and Article 10.5 of Title 11 of the Colorado Revised Statutes (Public Deposit Protection
Act).

4|Page

Mission Statement: To strengthen Ken-Caryl Ranch quality of life and connections by providing
exceptional park, recreation, and outdoor educational experiences.

14


https://ken-carylranch.org/download/2022-audit-kcrmd/?wpdmdl=10512&refresh=64e8ac0b2bb181692969995
https://ken-carylranch.org/download/2022-audit-kcrmd/?wpdmdl=10512&refresh=64e8ac0b2bb181692969995
https://ken-carylranch.org/download/md-strategic-plan-2023-2027/?wpdmdl=11008&refresh=6525ab383067f1696967480

Fiscal Policies

The Fiscal Policies were created by the District to establish rules, policies, and procedures for developing
the District's financial goals and objectives; making financial decisions; reporting the District's financial
status; and managing District funds. The Fiscal Policies have been developed pursuant to the Special
District Act, C.R.S. § 32-1-101, et seq.; the Local Government Budget Law, C.R.S. § 29-1-101, et seq.; the
Local Government Audit Law, C.R.S. § 29-1-601, et seq.; the Public Deposit Protection Act, C.R.S. § 11-
10.5-101, et seq.; the Taxpayers' Bill of Rights (TABOR), Section 20 of Article X of the Colorado
Constitution; and all other laws, rules, and regulations governing the District's financial management.
The Fiscal Policies were updated in February of 2022 to include consideration of periodically changing
auditing firms at least every five years to enhance the integrity of the audit process and financial
reporting.

Emergency Reserve Requirement

As required by Article X, Section 20 of the State Constitution (TABOR Amendment), the District has
established an Emergency Reserve Fund that requires the District to reserve 3% of fiscal year spending.
The District shall strive to maintain, at a minimum, this amount equal to three months of general
operating expenditures as financial reserves to sustain District operations and to protect the District
against unforeseen circumstances and events. Local governments are not allowed to use the emergency
reserves to compensate for economic conditions, revenue shortfalls, or salary or benefit increases. The
District created an operating reserve, different from the TABOR reserve, that is equal to 5% of budget
expenditures.

State or Federal Level Policies

Following the voter defeat of Proposition HH, a property tax reduction proposal, at the November 7,
2023 election, Governor Polis recalled the Colorado state legislature for a special session that started on
November 17 and ended on November 20. The purpose of the special session was to develop legislation
that would provide property tax relief in the current year but would not significantly undermine the
public services of governmental entities that rely on property taxes for their operation. The state
legislature approved Senate Bill 23B-001, called "SB001" in this document. A summary of SBO01 follows.

First, SBOO1 retains in effect all property tax reductions for 2023 that were enacted as part of the last
legislative session’s Senate Bill 22-238. SB001 also retains in effect the state "backfill" (i.e.,
reimbursement) provisions that will go to certain local governments under Senate Bill 22-238in order to
compensate them for tax revenue lost as the result of the property tax reductions. However, parks and
recreation special districts and metropolitan districts that provide parks and recreation services are not
eligible for the state backfill through Senate Bill 22-238.

Second, SB001 adds additional property tax reductions for the 2023 assessment year over and above
what Senate Bill 22-238 provides. Specifically, for 2023, SBO01 decreases the residential assessment rate
from 6.765% to 6.7%, and increases the residential property exempt amount from $15,000 to $55,000.

Because the county assessors had significant work to do in preparing the final certifications of assessed
valuation using the new residential assessment rate and residential property exempt amount, following
the passage of SB001, the deadlines for completing the 2024 budget process were changed. For the
2024 budget year only:

5|Page

Mission Statement: To strengthen Ken-Caryl Ranch quality of life and connections by providing
exceptional park, recreation, and outdoor educational experiences.

15



e The deadline for the Assessor to provide final certifications of values was extended from
December 10, 2023 to January 3, 2024;

e The deadline for special districts to certify their mill levies was extended from December 15,
2023 to January 10, 2024; and

e The deadline for special districts to adopt their budget was extended from December 31, 2023
to January 10, 2024.

Finally, like Senate Bill 22-238, SBO01 also adds an additional backfill formula to compensate some local
governments for the additional tax revenue losses caused by SB001. The backfill formula entails:

e Taxrevenue losses are calculated based on 2022 general operating mill levy rates;

e For Jefferson County, a county with more than 300,000 in population:

o There is a 100% backfill for library districts, sanitation districts, water districts, and
municipalities if Jefferson County has less than a 10% AV increase;

o There is a 90% backfill for library districts, sanitation districts, water districts, and
municipalities if Jefferson County has a 10-15% AV increase;

o There is a 65% backfill for all other local governments if Jefferson County has less than a
15% AV increase, except for the already provided-for districts/municipalities above and
fire districts, ambulance districts, and health districts; and

o There is a 100% backfill for all fire districts, ambulance districts, and health districts, as
well as all other governmental entities that provide fire protection services.

e The total amount of backfill that the state will pay is capped at $54 million. Accordingly, if the
total amount of backfill claims exceeds $54 million, then backfills are paid in this order:

o First, the 100% backfills of fire districts, ambulance districts, health districts, and other
fire-providing governmental entities;

o Second, the backfill amounts of governmental entities in counties that had no AV
increase; and

o Third, proportionately to other eligible governmental entities of any amount of the $54
million that is remaining.

e |tis important to note that the backfill formulas described above do not include special districts
that provide parks and recreation services. Throughout the 2023 regular legislative session and
the special legislative session, providers of parks and recreation services were never included
in_conversations or consideration of backfill opportunities. As a critical component of all
communities, it has become imperative that providers engage with lawmakers and partners to
elevate the importance of parks and recreation as a component of healthy communities.

On November 29, 2023, all property tax administrators, including the District, received a letter from the
Governor urging property tax administrators to provide a voluntary, temporary mill levy reduction for
collection in 2024 to go beyond property tax relief already provided in SBOO1. SB23-108 revised 39-1-
111.5 C.R.S. clarifying that a local government can use a temporary mill levy reduction/temporary
property tax credit to provide temporary property tax relief and later eliminate the credits if needed.
This request has been rigorously scrutinized by staff, and staff does not recommend a voluntary mill levy
reduction for several reasons. As called out in the letter, the Governor’s focus for reduction was on
property owners that experienced more than a 20% increase in property valuation. The average increase
in Ken-Caryl Ranch based on preliminary valuation was estimated at 27% before the special legislative
session and is now estimated at 17% due to the additional impacts of SBO01. The next reason staff does

6|Page

Mission Statement: To strengthen Ken-Caryl Ranch quality of life and connections by providing
exceptional park, recreation, and outdoor educational experiences.

16



not recommend a reduction is due to the uncertainty that surrounded the 2023 legislative session, the
November election, and the special legislative session. That uncertainty continues into 2024 as there are
already two ballot initiatives on the November 2024 ballot to reduce and/or limit property taxes, a
newly formed Commission on Property Tax will be developing options for long-term property tax
changes for the legislature’s consideration, and the Governor may also propose a separate issue. The
last reason staff does not recommend a reduction is due to the community’s desire for the District to
maintain and improve its infrastructure. In order to accomplish the community’s desire, the District
must maintain and sustain funding in the Capital Reserve Fund. A reduction in the District’s mill levy will
directly impact that ability.

Budget Highlights
Budget Philosophy
The general philosophy for the 2024 budget is to tie the District’s operations to the Strategic Plan while
continuing to improve levels of service via:
e An aggressive approach to making aesthetic improvements for all public spaces.

o Continuation of discussions regarding a potential bond mill levy. Board discussions
occurred throughout the winter and spring of 2023. The Board determined it would
delay further conversations until 2024.

o A $100,000 increase to Parks Department contract services to assist with tree removal,
tree maintenance, and parks maintenance. The Master Association is providing a
$50,000 contribution for related urban forestry projects.

o Addition of a full-time Facilities Technician creating capacity for higher level staff to
complete ongoing and regularly scheduled inspections, project management, and
administrative functions. Position will also assume responsibilities previously filled by
two variable part-time employees.

e Creating new recreation programming to fill programming gaps.

o Expanded programming opportunities in senior programming, early childhood, and all-
age contract programs.

o Continuation of contracted swim lessons to provide higher quality program options
during the summer.

o Expansion of existing and new special events.

o Expansion of early childhood enrichment programming.

o The continuation of Sunday hours at the Community Center, which started October 1,
2023. These hours were eliminated during COVID.

o Continued analysis of existing school-age programming to align with school start/end
times as well as current and anticipated participation.

e Completing necessary capital improvement projects.
o Approximately $1.3 million in capital improvement projects.
e Creating and sustaining highly competitive total rewards for staff.

o Salary range adjustment of 3.6% to match Front Range organizations. An increase of the
hourly minimum pay grade from $14.04 to $16.01. A 4% cost of living adjustment along
with a 0-3% merit increase for 2024.

o Creation of total rewards, which are the tools available to the employer that may be
used to attract, retain, and motivate employees.

7|Page

Mission Statement: To strengthen Ken-Caryl Ranch quality of life and connections by providing
exceptional park, recreation, and outdoor educational experiences.

17



General Fund Revenues

The State of Colorado budgetary law requires that the budget be balanced with all available revenue

sources equal to or exceeding planned expenditures. Property tax revenues are higher than 2023 levels

and include a 27% increase in assessed value for Jefferson County homeowners based on the

preliminary certification of valuation notice received at the end of August. Based on the outcome of the

special legislative session, that increase drops to 17%. Currently, the 2024 operating mill levy for the

District is 15.209 mills. The final 2024 assessed valuation provided by the Jefferson County Assessor’s

Office is due to the District by January 3, 2024. The following depicts notable changes for 2024:

e Interest income continues to increase from the nearly negligible amounts in 2021 due to the

rising interest rates. The District is currently investing at an average monthly yield rate of
5.5601% on November 30, 2023.

Interest Income

300,000.00
250,000.00
200,000.00
150,000.00
100,000.00

50,000.00

2021 2022 2023YTD

0.00

e Grant revenues are anticipated to increase in the Capital Reserve Fund with potential funds
awarded from the Colorado Water Conservation Board, Jeffco Open Space, and Colorado Parks
and Wildlife. Other smaller grants may impact the General Fund.

e In order to meet the cost recovery philosophy, program revenue is anticipated to increase for
youth programs and early childhood programs to account for the rising cost of staffing.

Revenue Total by Category

B Property Tax Revenue

B Specific Ownership
Taxes

m Other (General &
Administration)

Program & Facility Fees

8|Page

Mission Statement: To strengthen Ken-Caryl Ranch quality of life and connections by providing
exceptional park, recreation, and outdoor educational experiences.

18



Property Tax Trends

Special Districts in Colorado continue to be impacted by legislative actions that affect property tax

collections. The District has experienced varied property tax collections over the last two decades.

Total
Prior Year Assessed Property % Year

Year End  Valuation for Current Taxes Over Year Dollar Year Over

December Year Property Tax Collected - Increasein  Year Increase in
31, Levy Operating  Collections Collections
1994 97,678,070 $1,458,485 - S -
1995 99,959,430 $1,489,631 2.14% S 31,146
1996 105,177,210 $1,562,599 4.90% S 72,968
1997 107,624,860 $1,597,157 2.21% S 34,558
1998 112,701,760 $1,655,886 3.68% S 58,729
1999 111,458,530 $1,663,473 0.46% S 7,587
2000 121,478,580 $1,811,055 8.87% S 147,582
2001 121,881,950 $1,759,045 -2.87% S (52,010)
2002 148,012,010 $2,179,870 23.92% S 420,825
2003 147,078,030 $2,153,742 -1.20% S (26,128)
2004 147,806,287 $1,972,930 -8.40% S (180,812)
2005 146,490,300 $2,105,363 6.71% S 132,433
2006 154,445,800 $2,220,206 5.45% S 114,843
2007 155,245,130 $2,210,448 -0.44% S (9,758)
2008 186,432,440 $2,351,652 6.39% S 141,204
2009 181,810,400 $2,785,023 18.43% S 433,371
2010 182,926,380 $2,784,186 -0.03% S (837)
2011 189,705,940 $2,887,763 3.72% S 103,577
2012 174,144,901 $2,650,780 -8.21% S (236,983)
2013 159,481,779 $2,431,992 -8.25% S (218,788)
2014 157,215,944 $2,394,032 -1.56% S (37,960)
2015 157,047,445 $2,391,136 -0.12% S (2,896)
2016 178,471,735 $2,713,161 13.47% S 322,025
2017 177,947,187 $2,710,843 -0.09% S (2,318)
2018 191,319,473 $2,901,068 7.02% S 190,226
2019 193,370,882 $2,955,173 1.86% S 54,104
2020 213,211,049 $3,241,419 9.69% S 286,247
2021 215,656,617 $3,247,977 0.20% S 6,558
2022 234,190,989 $3,594,942 10.68% S 346,966
2023 230,856,600 $3,511,829 -2.31% S (83,113)
204 TBD  TBD  TBD  TBD

Average % Increase Over Life of Mill 3.32%

Projected at December 12, 2023

- TBD based on final assessment due January 3, 2024

9|Page

Mission Statement: To strengthen Ken-Caryl Ranch quality of life and connections by providing
exceptional park, recreation, and outdoor educational experiences.



General Fund Expenditures

As a service provider, it is expected that employee and employee-related expenses make up the largest
part of expenditures for the District. Expenditures have incurred steady growth since 2022 as salary
adjustments continue to be a critical component given the tight labor market. Other costs, including the
general costs of carrying out District business, have increased steadily as well.

Expenditure Total by Category

H General & Administration
M Facilities
Parks

Recreation

Annual capital expenditures are required to maintain the quality and condition of the District’s assets
and to promote a safe, enjoyable, and positive experience for all participants and community members.
A long-term capital improvement plan was first developed as part of the 2022 budget process and will
be updated annually. The plan includes 10 years of capital projects for District owned or leased
properties and equipment. Although the plan includes 10 years of projects, the Board only approves the
2024 projects as part of the budget adoption process. Using current forecasting models, the available
resources are not sufficient to meet the 10-year capital and infrastructure needs. The District will need
to prioritize future projects while working with the community to establish priorities for spending and
creative revenue sources.

10|Page

Mission Statement: To strengthen Ken-Caryl Ranch quality of life and connections by providing
exceptional park, recreation, and outdoor educational experiences.

20



2024 Ca

ital Project Descriptions

2024 2024
Location 1 Location 2 Project 2024 2024 CRF CTF PMD PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND NOTES
Data was collected in a three-week period
Hard-Surface in the summer of 2022, and average daily
Open South Valley Trail use of the path is 60 users per day.
Space Road Replacement 666,412 666,412 Possible 50% cost share with Jefferson
P County and possible 25% cost share with
CPW.
Z Project Vehicles 248,000 248,000 Two transit vans and two trucks.
Design Further iterations of the design process
. Development . . )
Community park and need to occur prior to implementation of
Park . 250,000 260,000 improvements from the Community Park
Construction
Master Plan.
Docs
Ranch ook Baseball Field Complfete .renova:jtlon o: tthe infield with
House ar Renovation 50,000 50,000 §ome Encing and spectator
improvements.
Based on feedback from the South
Resource ) .
Open South Management Hogback Task Force and Board direction, a
Space Hogback g 43,000 43,000 resource management plan is necessary
Plan - SHOS
for South Hogback Open Space.
Ranch Pool Pool Feature Inclusion of a climbing wall. Currently
House 40,000 40,000 negotiating with possible sponsors.
Z Project Equipment 36,000 36,000 Trailer, UTV, and truck bed insert.
Repair, scrape, prime, caulk and repaint
. the entire exterior of the building. Building
Community Buildin Exterior Paint was last painted in 2016. Project will also
Center g 20,000 20,000 _ P ol :
include trim and underhang of tennis
building.
HVAC Heat exchanger cracked, motherboard
Community Buildin Replacement needs to be replaced and 24 volt
Center s in Rainbow 20,000 20,000 transformer needs replacement. Unit is 20
Room years old.
Community | Rainbow Flooring Replacement of tile with more durable
Center Room replacement 14,000 14,000 material for program use.
Light replacement would be rated for
PR A
Center Tennis Courts Replacements | 13,500 13,500 X X pp v oV : d
includes fixture replacements of 1, 2, 5
and 6. Estimate includes lift rental.
Project includes enclosure of the north
Yoga Room side patio off of the yoga room. Current
Community Buildin Patio area is not used or usable as any type of
Center & Enclosure 10,000 10,000 public or programming space. Enclosure
Planning would increase usable space by 400
square feet.
TOTALS Totals 1,410,912 | 1,330,912 | 40,000 | 50,000

I1|Page

Mission Statement: To strengthen Ken-Caryl Ranch quality of life and connections by providing
exceptional park, recreation, and outdoor educational experiences.

21



Special Revenue Funds

The Ken-Caryl Ranch Metropolitan District maintains six Special Revenue Funds that are used to account
for its special or non-routine operations. Each of the Special Revenue Funds is designated for specific
purposes and each maintains their own separate fund balance.

Government Funds

I
\ [ [ \ [ | |
. Plains Metropolitan . )
General Fund Conservation Trust District Settlement Capital Reserve Debt Service Fund Community Garden Veterans
and Grant Fund Fund Fund Fund Monument Fund

Requires Legal
Separation

Conservation Trust and Grant Fund

The Conservation Trust and Grant Fund is used to account for revenues and expenditures related to the
State of Colorado Conservation Trust (lottery) funds, local government grant or partnership awards
(Great Outdoors Colorado and Jefferson County), and joint venture grants. Lottery funds are dispersed
on a per capita, quarterly basis. This fund requires separation from the General Fund.

Plains Metropolitan District Settlement Fund

The Plains Metropolitan District Settlement Capital Projects Fund was created in 2017 to account for
proceeds from the Stipulated Supplemental Judgment stemming from the District’s litigation with the
Plains Metropolitan District. Pursuant to the Stipulated Supplemental Judgement, the funds are
restricted to the “design and construction of one or more new, refurbished, or renovated swimming
pools, tennis courts, or ball fields.”

| 2024 budget process | Future budget processes |
12/31/2024 12/31/2025 12/31/2026
Beginning Fund Balance $ 473,743 S 737,681 S 1,048,134
Legal Settlement Proceeds S 300,000 $ 300,000 $ 52,000
Interest Income $ 13,938 S 10,453 S 5,227
Capital Outlay S (50,000)
Ending Fund Balance $ 737,681 S 1,048,134 S 1,105,361

Capital Reserve Fund

The Capital Reserve Fund was created to account for capital project activity. The fund had not been
utilized for several years due to lack of funding; however, the Board requested utilization for the 2023
Budget process to provide better segregation from the General Fund and transparency for project
tracking. The District will transfer $2.25 million from the General Fund existing fund balance, which
includes positive projected end-of-year excess revenue over expenditures. The recommended transfer
would include $1.4 million of projected 2024 capital projects leaving a balance of approximately S1
million in the Capital Reserve Fund for future capital projects. The fund balance will be positively
impacted by any potential grant revenues received. The Capital Reserve Fund is financed by the General
Fund and grant revenues.

12|Page

Mission Statement: To strengthen Ken-Caryl Ranch quality of life and connections by providing
exceptional park, recreation, and outdoor educational experiences.

22



Debt Service Fund

The Debt Service Fund was created in 2014 to account for activity associated with the May 6, 2014 voter
approved $7.9 million in tax-free municipal bonds to fund improvements to the facilities and
infrastructure of the community. On September 30, 2014, the District completed the sale of $7.9 million
in tax-free municipal bonds with a ten-year repayment schedule. The bonds are exempt from both
federal and State of Colorado income tax and have been used for improvements to the Ranch House,
the Community Center, Dakota Lodge, entrance signage, park, landscaping, and irrigation
improvements. This voter-approved debt authorization is the first long-term debt the District has had
since its inception in 1988. This fund accounts for the annual principal and interest payments on the
bonds as well as the expenditures for the capital improvements funded from the bond issuance. The
2024 proposed mill levy for debt service is based on final assessed valuation due January 3, 2024. The
debt service fund will expire in December, so the District will certify a mill levy that will result in a small
negative fund balance to be paid off with funds from the general fund.

Bond Payment Schedule

Principal Interest Total Maturity Date

2023 860,000.00 52,500.00 912,500.00 12/15/2023

2024 890,000.00 26,700.00 916,700.00 12/15/2024
1,750,000.00 79,200.00 1,829,200.00

*Semiannual bond payment: Interest ($26,250) paid May 2023.
*Semiannual bond payment: Principal ($860,000) and Interest ($26,250) paid November 2023

Community Garden Fund

The Community Garden Fund was created in 2011 to account for activity for the community garden
project at the Community Center. This fund continues to account for donations, user fees, and annual
operating costs of the Community Garden. Within the Community Garden Fund, there is a $13,000
reserve balance meant to restore the premises to the original condition if the Community Garden Fund
were to cease to exist.

Veterans Monument Fund

The Veterans Monument Fund was created in 2013 and is used to account for monies collected and
planned expenditures for a monument on Ken-Caryl Ranch to honor United States military veterans.
Construction of the Veterans Monument was completed in 2017. The Veterans Monument Fund is not a
legally separate fund; however, it was approved via board resolution. There are currently no bricks
available for purchase, so there are no future revenues forecasted. Because of the lack of revenues, staff
anticipates expending the fund balance in the next two years and retiring the fund at that point. All
maintenance activities will then move into the Parks Department maintenance fund.

Fund Balance Forecasting

The District’s fund balance grew between 2018 - 2022. The District’s positive fund balance was utilized in
2023 for the completion of capital projects. Staff recommends utilizing positive fund balance to further
capital project completion in 2024. 2023 General Fund ending fund balance is projected at

13|Page

Mission Statement: To strengthen Ken-Caryl Ranch quality of life and connections by providing
exceptional park, recreation, and outdoor educational experiences.

23



approximately $3.5 million. The 2024 General Fund ending fund balance would be $1.6 million after a
transfer to the Capital Reserve Fund, which would provide financial security for 2024 operations.

Following the voter defeat of Proposition HH at the November 7, 2023 election, Governor Polis recalled
the state legislature for a special session that started on November 17 and ended on November 20. The
state legislature approved Senate Bill 23B-001. Forecasts based on this information
follows.

Assumptions:  General Fund Property Tax Revenue increase 2% assessed year, 0% otherwise
General Fund Other Revenue {excludes Property Tax) increase 3% annually

General Fund Other Expenses increase 3% annually
Capital average $1M per year

Estimated Financial Forecast 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031
Beginning of Year Fund Balance 4,019,665 3,573,321 1,611,967 785,641 (76,685)  (1,041,047)  [1,965,166)  (3,028,135)  (4,139,579)
General Fund Property Tax Revenue 3,511,820 4,121,048 4121048 4203469 4203460 4287538 4287538 4373280 4373280
General Fund Other Revenue (excludes Property Tax) 3,050,476 2,788,109 2,871,752 2,957,905 3,046,642 3,138,041 3,232,182 3,329,148 3429022
Land Development Revenue - - 288,185 296,831 325,675 416,652 416,652 425,442 425,442
General Fund Other Expenses  (5,855,289)  (6,620,511)  (6,819,126)  (7,023,700)  (7,234,411)  (7,451,443)  (7674,987) (7,905,236)  (8,142,393)
Capital Transfers  (1,153,350)  (2,250,000)  (1,000,000) (1,000,000  (1,000,000)  (1,000,000)  {1,000,000) {1,000,000)  (1,000,000)
Land Development Expense - - [288,185) (296,831) (305,736) (314,908) [324,355) (334,086) (344,108)
Excess Revenues Over Expenditures  (446,344)  (1,961,354) (826,326) (862,326) (964,361) (924120) (1,062,959) (1,111,443)  (1,258749)
End of Year Fund Balance (projected) 3,573,321 1,611,967 785,641 (76,685)  (1,041,047)  (L965,166)  (3.028135)  (4,139,579)  (5.398,327)

Other Funding Sources:
Conservation Trust Fund approximately 570K annual
Plains Metropolitan District approximately 51.1M by the end of 2026
Grants TBD

Staffing

Staff engaged Employers Council, an employer’s association focused on human resources, training, and
employment law, to complete this process of creating a high-quality, audited, and specialized pay
structure in 2022. The objectives of the analysis were to determine competitiveness with the labor
market, ensure financial prudence and flexibility, align the District’s reward system with mission and
values, and establish a consistent approach to pay decisions. The District achieved a credible, consistent,
and data-driven methodology for employee compensation that is sustainable from year to year while
aiding in attracting and retaining employees. The District plans to conduct that same analysis in 2024 for
financial impacts included in the 2025 Budget. This would be a task completed every other year to
ensure the District’s pay plan is still meeting its objectives. The following are tasks completed in 2023
and those tasks to be completed in 2024:

Development and/or Review of Salary Grades and Ranges

Due to the ongoing challenges of hiring entry level positions and to remain competitive in the market,
the District made mid-season adjustments to several seasonal positions. This exacerbated the problems
with the already compressed lower wage grades, so salary grades 10 — 30 were reviewed for market
competitiveness with all the range spreads reducing from 35% to 25% or 20% to create a higher
minimum for recruitment advantages. This also resulted in lower maximum; however, typical tenure in
these entry positions is less than three years, which does not impact the maximum rates. In addition,
Employers Council surveyed Denver/Boulder organizations and determined the average salary range
adjustment was 3.6%, so the District’s ranges were adjusted accordingly. Staff recommends increasing
the hourly minimum for Grade 10 to $16.01 from $14.04 beginning January 1, 2024.

l4|Page

Mission Statement: To strengthen Ken-Caryl Ranch quality of life and connections by providing
exceptional park, recreation, and outdoor educational experiences.

24



Performance Evaluations and Merit-Based Pay Development

Staff continues to improve the newly implemented merit-based pay structure along with a formal
review process. The process was implemented with a new computerized process through the District’s
payroll provider. Enhancement of the online program and tools for employee development will continue
into 2024. Staff has included a 4% cost of living adjustment along with a 0-3% merit increase for 2024.

Total Compensation Versus Total Rewards

As the need for critical skills continues, along with the tight labor market, the District is searching for
ways to achieve competitive advantage. Pay structure and other reward programs will help create an
environment, culture, and practices that will engage and retain great employees. Total rewards can be
thought of as all the tools available to the employer that may be used to attract, retain, and motivate
employees. The following examples are ways the District will make additional strides in addressing a
total rewards strategy for employee compensation as part of the 2024 Budget:

e Ongoing refinement of the work by the Employee Appreciation Team (EAT) who is committed to
creating a workplace culture where core values are recognized, and staff feels empowered to
celebrate each other's successes through meaningful and intentional practices. EAT created a
Recognition Program that was rolled out in the 4th quarter of 2023. That program will include
tiers of recognition including Employee of the Month, Employee of the Quarter, and Employee
of the Year.

e Asalary range adjustment of 3.6% to match other Front Range organizations. An increase of the
hourly minimum pay grade from $14.04 to $16.01. A 4% cost of living adjustment along with a 0-
3% merit increase for 2024.

e Creation of separate general leader accounts for recognition and teambuilding so that each
department and workgroup have the necessary funding to reward behaviors that demonstrate
the District’s core values and contribute to the District’s mission as well as facilitate necessary
teambuilding activities that enhance collaboration.

e Annual hosting of the District’s Benefits Palooza in coordination with open enrollment. This fall
2023 event was the first in District history. The event will showcase the plethora of benefit
programs, educate employees on how to take full advantage of the programs, and improve
communication between benefit providers and employees.

e Development of a District-wide wellness program, empowering individuals to make positive
lifestyle choices. Program will include optional biometric screening for benefit-eligible
employees to provide critical proactive steps to improve employee health. The tests provide
personalized health feedback and recommendations based on screening results and provide a
baseline for tracking health progress over time.

e Ongoing District-wide training programs through third-party consulting and coaching based on
position.

e Continuation of Leadership 101 program for those employees transitioning from individual
contributor to leader or those in front-line leadership positions. The program will expand in
2024 to continue efforts to prepare those employees who want to be leaders or improve skills
for those that are currently supervising.

e Educational efforts to promote, encourage, and incentivize programs included in the District’s
current benefits structure that are at no direct cost to the District and the employee (e.g.,
Surgery Plus, Healthcare BlueBook, Triad EAP, Omada, etc.).

I5|Page

Mission Statement: To strengthen Ken-Caryl Ranch quality of life and connections by providing
exceptional park, recreation, and outdoor educational experiences.



e Seasonal employee scholarship program for three employees that exemplify the values of the
District while employed during the summer of 2024. Staff anticipates Board assistance in
selection of winners. Scholarship awards are for higher education or technical schooling and are
$500 each.

16|Page

Mission Statement: To strengthen Ken-Caryl Ranch quality of life and connections by providing
exceptional park, recreation, and outdoor educational experiences.

26



Classification and Compensation Chart

Range Range Range
Minimum Midpoint Maximum

Salary Grade 10 Grade $33,300 $37,489 $41,600
Base $16.01 $18.02 $20.00
Rental Facilities Representative Non-Exempt 10 $16.01 $18.02 $20.00
Seasonal Aquatics Guest Services Non-Exempt 10 $16.01 $18.02 $20.00
Salary Grade 20 Grade $35,000 $39,368 $43,800
Base $16.83 $18.93 $21.06
Before and After School Program Aide Non-Exempt 20 $16.83 $18.93 $21.06
Community Center Representative Non-Exempt 20 $16.83 $18.93 $21.06
Early Childhood Program Aide Non-Exempt 20 $16.83 $18.93 $21.06
Seasonal Program Aide Non-Exempt 20 $16.83 $18.93 $21.06
Seasonal Aquatics Lifeguard Non-Exempt 20 $16.83 $18.93 $21.06
Seasonal Parks Maintenance Non-Exempt 20 $16.83 $18.93 $21.06
Tennis Assistant Non-Exempt 20 $16.83 $18.93 $21.06
Salary Grade 25 Grade $37,600 $41,336 $45,100
Base $18.08 $19.87 $21.68
Before & After School Instructor Non-Exempt 25 $18.08 $19.87 $21.68
Early Childhood Assistant Teacher Non-Exempt 25 $18.08 $19.87 $21.68
Seasonal Aquatics Lead Lifeguard Non-Exempt 25 $18.08 $19.87 $21.68
Seasonal Summer Camp Counselor Non-Exempt 25 $18.08 $19.87 $21.68
Salary Grade 30 $39,700 $46,620 $53,600
Base $19.09 $22.41 $25.77
Events Assistant Non-Exempt 30 $19.09 $22.41 $25.77
Lead Before and After School Instructor Non-Exempt 30 $19.09 $22.41 $25.77
Seasonal Aquatics Pool Manager Non-Exempt 30 $19.09 $22.41 $25.77
Seasonal Lead Summer Camp Counselor Non-Exempt 30 $19.09 $22.41 $25.77
Seasonal Recreation Lead Instructor - Teens Non-Exempt 30 $19.09 $22.41 $25.77
Salary Grade 35 $42,000 $50,350 $58,800
Base $20.19 $24.21 $28.27
Early Childhood Teacher Non-Exempt 35 $20.19 $24.21 $28.27
Salary Grade 40 $43,200 $51,800 $60,500
Base $20.77 $24.90 $29.09
Accounting Clerk | Non-Exempt 40 $20.77 $24.90 $29.09
Assistant Preschool Director Non-Exempt 40 $20.77 $24.90 $29.09
Fitness Instructor Non-Exempt 40 $20.77 $24.90 $29.09
Guest Services Specialist Non-Exempt 40 $20.77 $24.90 $29.09
Seasonal Fitness Instructor - Water Non-Exempt 40 $20.77 $24.90 $29.09
Staff Supervisor - Aquatics Non-Exempt 40 $20.77 $24.90 $29.09
Technician - Parks Non-Exempt 40 $20.77 $24.90 $29.09
Tennis Pro Associate Non-Exempt 40 $20.77 $24.90 $29.09

17|Page

Mission Statement: To strengthen Ken-Caryl Ranch quality of life and connections by providing
exceptional park, recreation, and outdoor educational experiences.



Salary Grade 50

Base

Accounting Clerk Il Non-Exempt
Event Coordinator Non-Exempt
Fitness Coordinator Non-Exempt
Personal Trainer Non-Exempt
Recreation Coordinator Exempt
Technician Il - Fleet Non-Exempt
Technician Il - Forestry Non-Exempt

Salary Grade 60

Base

Administrative Analyst Non-Exempt
Parks Foreman Non-Exempt
Facilities Foreman Non-Exempt
HR Analyst Non-Exempt
Preschool Director Exempt

Salary Grade 70

Base
Recreation Supervisor Exempt

Salary Grade 80

Base
Parks Supervisor Exempt
Tennis Pro Exempt

Salary Grade 90
Base
Grade Placeholder

Salary Grade 100

Base

Finance Director Exempt
Facilities Director Exempt
Parks Director Exempt
Recreation Director Exempt

Salary Grade 200
Base
District Manager Exempt

60
60
60
60
60

70

80
80

90

100
100
100
100

200

$47,500
$22.84
$22.84
$22.84
$22.84
$22.84
$22.84
$22.84
$22.84

$51,200
$24.62
$24.62
$24.62
$24.62
$24.62
$24.62

$59,200
$28.46
$28.46

$67,700
$32.55
$32.55
$32.55

$78,700
$37.84
$37.84

$95,300
$45.82
$45.82
$45.82
$45.82
$45.82

$120,200
$57.79
$57.79

$56,980
$27.39
$27.39
$27.39
$27.39
$27.39
$27.39
$27.39
$27.39

$62,678
$30.13
$30.13
$30.13
$30.13
$30.13
$30.13

$72,520
$34.87
$34.87

$82,880
$39.85
$39.85
$39.85

$98,420
$47.32
$47.32

$119,140
$57.28
$57.28
$57.28
$57.28
$57.28

$150,220
$72.22
$§72.22

$66,500
$31.97
$31.97
$31.97
$31.97
$31.97
$31.97
$31.97
$31.97

$74,200
$35.67
$35.67
$35.67
$35.67
$35.67
$35.67

$85,800
$41.25
$41.25

$98,200
$47.21
$47.21
$47.21

$118,100
$56.78
$56.78

$143,000
$68.75
$68.75
$68.75
$68.75
$68.75

$180,300
$86.68
$86.68

18| Page

Mission Statement: To strengthen Ken-Caryl Ranch quality of life and connections by providing
exceptional park, recreation, and outdoor educational experiences.

28



Organizational Chart

Board of
Directars

District Manager

Ken-Caryl Ranch Metropolitan District -
Organizational Chart 2024

Parks Director

———

Parks Supervisor | Parks Supervisor|

Technician Il
Irrigation

Technidian Il

Horticulture

Technician Il
Irrigation

Technidian Il
Tur

Technician Il
Maintenance

Technician Il
Turf

Technician Il
Maintenance

Technician |
Turf

Technician| JMll Technidan |
Turf Maintenance

Technician II
Forestry

Technidan |
Maintenance

Technician Il
Fleet

Technician |
Forestry

M Technicianli
Fleet

Facilities Director
|| Facilities
Foreman

HR Analyst

Guest Services
Specialist

| GuestServices
Specialist

| GuestServices
Specialist

Administrative
Analyst

Recreation
Director

Tennis Director

g Tennis Pro

—  TennisPro

—  Tennis Pro

|
Recreation

@
=
B
B
H
<]
S

n Re jon
Coordinator Coordinator

|

Preschool
Director

19|Page

Mission Statement: To strengthen Ken-Caryl Ranch quality of life and connections by providing
exceptional park, recreation, and outdoor educational experiences.

29



Development of Fees and Fee Schedule

Cost Recovery Philosophy

The Board discussed and supported the use of a cost recovery philosophy to aid in the development of a
fee structure for the District’s programs and facilities. Cost recovery represents the District’s decision to
generate revenues by charging fees for some, or all, of its programs and services to offset
the expenses of providing those programs or services. A cost recovery philosophy does not equate to an
exact figure for all programs because there are significant uncontrollable factors that impact actual
program performance. Instead, a cost recovery philosophy is a guiding objective that directs program
development and fee structures. Several factors need to be considered and evaluated concurrently to
determine cost recovery:

e Number of Participants: Program participation ranges from those that provide greater
community benefit or those that provide specialized programming for greater benefit to
individuals.

e Direct+ Costs: All direct costs of offering the program should be included in the computation,
which includes staff leading the program, supplies/materials that are used only for that
program, rentals, contract labor, etc. Indirect costs, such as administration, facility overhead,
marketing, etc., should be included in the cost recovery calculation as costing allows. Those
indirect costs that can be identified, tracked, and assigned with relative administrative ease
should be included.

e Market: Comparison of similar programs and providers is critical to developing the fee structure
due to the proximity of the District to neighboring districts. Underpricing and overpricing are
considerations.

Several minor changes were made to the philosophy below including reordering programs/areas from
highest to lowest within classifications and renaming of several program areas to account for the
expansion of programming.

Y
S %
R

ISPS CRACA

PO Q x O

T Q;Q Z (8 ©
& o¥ / Contract Programs 02 oy

Before & After School

Early Childhood Programs
Summer Camps

Middle School Sports
Community Center

Enrichment Programs

Field Use  Facility Rentals

Special Events

Parks (Forestry, Turf, Irrigation, O¢.

Horticulture, Fleet, etc.)

Aquatics -~

20|Page

Mission Statement: To strengthen Ken-Caryl Ranch quality of life and connections by providing
exceptional park, recreation, and outdoor educational experiences.

30



Fee Schedule

As part of the annual budget process, the District adopts a resolution to approve the schedule of fees
and charges for some of its services, programs, and facility access, with the purpose of generating
sufficient revenue to recover some or all the District's direct costs in providing the services, programs,
and facilities. Below is a summary of significant comments and/or changes.

e The 2024 fee structure continues to reflect a priority of resident access to facilities and programs and
includes a range of non-resident fee differentials between 20-30%, depending on program, which
was Board direction from discussions in 2023.

e The bottom three grades of the District’s pay structure continue to be heavily impacted by
market competition. In order to recruit employees to work in youth programs, fees will be
adjusted accordingly to maintain cost recovery and stay current with market pricing.

e Staff recommends a spring re-evaluation of rates for the before and after school programming
and break camps as these programs are heavily dependent upon participation between now and
the 2024/2025 school year start in August of 2024. Staff will plan to bring a mid-year
recommendation to the Board for discussion.

21|Page

Mission Statement: To strengthen Ken-Caryl Ranch quality of life and connections by providing
exceptional park, recreation, and outdoor educational experiences.

31



2024 Fee Schedule

Change from 2023

Re-evaluate in Spring

2023 2023 Non 2024 2024 Non
District District District District
Aquatics Rate Rate Differential Per Rate Rate Differential Per
Summer Pass 0 N/A NA person 0 N/A NA person
Summer Pass Household N/A N/A N/A person N/A N/A N/A person
Additional Family Member N/A N/A N/A person N/A N/A N/A person
Daily Fee wiout Summer Pass 5 10 50% day 10 10 0% day
Nanny Pass|  N/A 25 N/A person N/A 25 N/A person
Grandchild Pass N/A 25 N/A person N/A 25 N/A person
Swim Lessons 56 79 20% session *Varies *Varies *Varies session
Ranch House Deck Rentals 77 100 30% 4 hour 77 100 30% 4 hour
Pool Rental-RH 368 479 30% 2 hour 368 479 30% 2 hour
Pool Rental-CC 342 444 30% 2 hour 342 444 30% 2 hour
Pool Rental-BRD 289 375 30% 2 hour 289 375 30% 2 hour
*Fees range based on contractor; final rate includes a cut of gross revenue
23/24 23/24 24/25 24/25
School School School School
Year Year Non Year Year Non
District District District District
Before & After Care PRE-REGISTERED: Rate Rate Per Differential Rate Rate Differential Per
Before School Only (Bradford) 21 27 Day 30% 21 27 30% Day
After School (Bradford) 21 27 Day 30% 21 27 30% Day
After School (Shaffer) 24 31 Day 30% 24 31 30% Day
Both Before & After (Bradford) 34 44 Day 30% 34 44 30% Day
Full Day/Break Camp 55 72 Day 30% 55 72 30% Child
Enrollment Fee - single 85 111 Child 30% 85 111 30% Child
Enrollment Fee - additional children 15 20 Child 30% 15 20 30% Child
23/24 23/24 24/25 24/25
School School School School
Year Year Non Year Year Non
District District District District
Before & After Care DROP IN: Rate Rate Per Differential Rate Rate Differential Per
Before School Only (Bradford) 24 30 Drop In Day 25% 24 30 25% Drop In Day|
After School (Bradford) 24 30 Drop In Day| _ 25% 24 30 25% Drop In Day
After School (Shaffer) 27 34 Drop In Day|  25% 27 34 25% Drop In Day
Both Before & After (Bradford) 37 46 Drop In Day 25% 37 45 25% Drop In Day
Full Day/Break Camp 58 73 Drop In Day 25% 65 81 25% Drop In Day|
23/24 23/24 24/25 24/25
School School School School
Year Year Non Year Year Non
District District District District
Preschool Care Options Rate Rate Differential Per Rate Rate Differential Per
Enrichment Program| See Note | See Note | See Note Child See Note | See Note | See Note Child
Enrollment Fee - single 125 156 25% Child 125 156 25% Child
Enrollment Fee - additional children 55 69 25% Child 55 69 25% Child
Rainbow Room M-F 753 941 25% Month 700 875 25% Month
Rainbow Room M, W, F 496 620 25% Month 450 563 25% Month
Rainbow Room T, TH| 331 114 25% Month 300 375 25% Month
Ranch House M-F 510 638 25% Month 546 683 25% Month
Ranch House M, W, F 328 410 25% Month 351 439 25% Month
Ranch House T, TH 218 273 25% Month 234 293 25% Month
Before Care or After Care MN/A N/A N/A Day N/A N/A N/A Day
Before Care or After Care - Drop In N/A N/A N/A Day N/A N/A N/A Day
Before Care and After Care MN/A N/A N/A Day N/A N/A N/A Day
Before Care and After Care - Drop In MN/A N/A N/A Day N/A N/A MN/A Day
24/25 24/25
School School
2023 2023 Non Year Year Non
District District District District
Summer Camps Rate Rate Differential Per Rate Rate Differential Per
Teen Camp Fees range from $150 - $500 per camp and are based on content
School Aged Contracted Camp Fees range based on contractor; final rate includes 30% cut of gross revenue
RH, DL: M-F 240 312 30% week 250 377 30% week
Preschool: M-F 240 312 30% week 200 260 30% week

Mission Statement: To strengthen Ken-Caryl Ranch quality of life and connections by providing

exceptional park, recreation, and outdoor educational experiences.




2023 2023 Non 2024 2024 Non
District District District District
Enrichment & Contracted Programs Rate Rate Differential Per Rate Rate Differential Per

Contracted Programs

Fees range based on contractor; final rate includes 20-30% cut of gross revenue

MS Sports

Fees range from $115 - $200 and are based on sport

Nature Enrichment

Fees range based program duration and whether it is a single program or session based

2023 2023 Non 2024 2024 Non
District District District District
Facility and Park Rentals Rate Rate Differential Per Rate Rate Differential Per
RH Shaffer Room: M-TH 110 143 30% hour 110 143 30% hour
RH Shaffer Room: F-Sun 140 182 30% hour 140 182 30% hour
RH Bradford Room: M-TH 70 91 30% hour 70 91 30% hour
RH Bradford Room: F-Sun 95 124 30% hour 95 124 30% hour
Dakota Lodge: M-TH 90 117 30% hour 95 117 30% hour
Dakota Lodge: F-Sun 115 150 30% hour 115 150 30% hour
RH Colorow Room 40 52 30% hour 40 52 30% hour
CC Mastodon Room 40 52 30% hour 40 52 30% hour
Dakota Lodge: Conference Room 30 39 30% hour 30 39 30% hour
Sunshine Room (Monday - Thursday) 40 52 hour hour 40 52 hour hour
Sunshine Room (Friday - Sunday) 60 78 hour hour 60 78 hour hour
Sunshine Room Patio 50 65 hour 2 hour blocH 50 65 hour 2 hour block]
Ranch House Picnic Area 55 69 25% 5 hr block 55 69 25% 5 hr block
Bradford Fire Pit 65 N/A N/A 24 hr block 65 N/A N/A 24 hr block
Community Park Picnic Area 55 69 25% 5 hr block 55 69 25% 5 hr block
Baseball Field 65 65 N/A day 65 65 N/A day
Soccer Field 45 45 N/A day 45 45 N/A day
Flag Football] 45 a5 NIA day a5 a5 NIA day
Facmty Rental Deposit 200 200 N/A deposit 200 200 N/A deposit
Facility Rental Deposit (with alcohol) 200 200 N/A deposit 500 500 N/A deposit
2023 2023 Non 2024 2024 Non
District District District District
Tennis Rate Rate Differential Per Rate Rate Differential Per
Junior Interclub 250 325]  30% season 250 325]  30% season
In-house Leagues 17 22 30% each play 17 22 30% each play
Vary by league;
exploring
changes to non-
resident fee
USTA Leagues] 350 -450 | See Note N/A team 350 - 450 approach N/A team
Outdoor Court Fees 0 7 N/A hour 0 8 N/A hour
Indoor Court Fees 34 44 30% hour 34 44 30% hour
Permanent Court Time 30 39 30% hour 30 39 30% hour
Class/Group Tennis Lesson-1 hour-6 people 18 23 30% hour 18 23 30% hour
Class/Group Tennis Lesson-1 hour-5 people 21 27 30% hour 21 27 30% hour
Class/Group Tennis Lesson-1 hour-4 people 27 35 30% hour 27 35 30% hour
Class/Group Tennis Lesson-1 hour-3 people 36 A7 30% hour 36 A7 30% hour
Private Tennis Lesson-1 hour-1 person 68 a8 30% hour 68 a8 30% hour
Class/Group Tennis Lesson-75 Min-6 people 22 29 30% 75 min 22 29 30% 75 min
Class/Group Tennis Lesson-75 Min-5 people 26 34 30% 75 min 26 34 30% 75 min
Class/Group Tennis Lesson-75 Min-4 people 32 42 30% 75 min 32 42 30% 75 min
Class/Group Tennis Lesson-90 min-6 people 26 34 30% 90 min 26 34 30% 90 min
Class/Group Tennis Lesson-90 min-5 people 31 40 30% 90 min 31 40 30% 90 min
Class/Group Tennis Lesson-90 min-4 people 38 49 30% 90 min 38 49 30% 90 min
Private Tennis Lesson-45 min-1 person 53 69 30% 45 min 53 69 30% 45 min
Private Tennis Lesson-30 min-1 person 38 49 30% 30 min 38 49 30% 30 min
Private Tennis Lesson-(semi-private) 1 hour| 38 49 30% hour 38 49 30% hour
Cardio Tennis (public) 14 18 30% hour 14 18 30% hour
Cardio Tennis (private), 18 23 30% 90 min 18 23 30% 90 min
High School Court Rental 500 500 N/A Season 500 500 N/A season
Ball Machine Rental 15 20 30% usage 15 20 30% usage
23|Page

Mission Statement: To strengthen Ken-Caryl Ranch quality of life and connections by providing
exceptional park, recreation, and outdoor educational experiences.



2023 2023 Non 2024 2024 Non
District District District District
Community Center and Fitness Rate Rate Differential Per Rate Rate Differential Per
Daily gym usage 7 9 20% day 7 9 20% day
Daily class usage 15 18 20% day 13 18 20% day
Monthly gym only usage - Adult 44 53 20% month 44 53 20% month
Monthly gym only - Junior (17 & under) & Senior 39 47 20% month 39 47 20% month
Monthly gym & class usage - Adult 61 73 20% month 61 73 20% month
Monthly gym & class-Junior (17 & under) & Sr 95 66 1 20%: maonth 29 66 20% month
Adult Pass - gym only 315 378 :20% year 315 378 20% year
Junior (17 & under) & Senior Pass - gym only 252 302 20% year 252 302 20% year
Adult Pass - premier 441 529 20% year 441 529 20% year
Junior (17 & under) & Senior Pass - premier 353 424 20% year 353 424 20% year
Weight certification - Junior (16 & under) 21 25 20% class 21 25 20% class
Specialty Classes Fees range based on contractor; final rate includes 20-30% of gross revenues
Single Session - 1 person 53 64 20% 45 min 53 64 20% 45 min
Single Session - 2 people 70 70 20% 45 min NA NA 20% 45 min
Four Sessions - 1 person 190 228 20% 45 min 190 228 20% 45 min
Four Sessions - 2 people 255 306 20% 45 min MNA MNA 20% 45 min
Eight Sessions - 1 person 335 402 20% 45 min 335 402 20% 45 min
Eight Sessions - 2 people 467 560 20% 45 min NA MNA 20% 45 min
Single Session - 1 person 66 79 20% 60 min 66 79 20% 60 min
Single Session - 2 people 86 103 20% 60 min NA MNA 20% 60 min
Four Sessions - 1 person 242 290 20% 60 min 242 250 20% 60 min
Four Sessions - 2 people 322 386 20% 60 min MNA MNA 20% 60 min
Eight Sessions - 1 person 440 528 20% 60 min 440 528 20% 60 min
Eight Sessions - 2 people 599 719 20% 60 min NA MNA 20% 60 min
24|Page

Mission Statement: To strengthen Ken-Caryl Ranch quality of life and connections by providing
exceptional park, recreation, and outdoor educational experiences.

34



Reciprocal Employee Benefits with Master Association

The District and Master Association require formalization of the reciprocal benefits each organization
offers on behalf of the other organization. Staff proposes this policy be included in the annual budget
process so it can be approved for the following calendar year once it has been formally recognized and
approved, which will be at the January 8, 2024 meeting.

Community Group Facility Rental Policy
In 2018, the Board approved a community group rental policy to assist in providing spaces for
community organizations to be able to use Ken-Caryl Ranch facilities at a free or discounted rate. The
Board subsequently approved an update to that policy in September of 2020 with changes to improve
implementation. A community group is defined as a social or networking group whose members are
majority (51%) Ken-Caryl Residents and whose purpose or mission is to support and benefit the Ken-
Caryl Ranch community. Community Groups receive:
e Free use of space during regular business hours at the Ranch House with a three-hour maximum
per day and three days maximum per month.
e Discounted rates of $30 per hour during non-business hours, Monday-Thursday. Use is limited
to three hours maximum per room, per day, and three days maximum per month at the Ranch
House and Dakota Lodge.

Sub Association and Ken-Caryl Ranch Business Facility Rental Policy
The facility rental policy related to sub associations, Ken-Caryl Ranch Committees, and Ken-Caryl Ranch
Businesses was previously included in the Community Group Facility Rental Policy; however, since these
organizations do not meet the definition of a community group and receive a different category of
discounts, this fee structure should be approved independently. These groups receive:
e Sub associations receive one free meeting per month with a three-hour maximum. A $30
cancellation fee will apply for any cancellation made without 48 hours’ notice.
e Ken-Caryl Ranch businesses receive two free meetings per year during regular business hours at
the Ranch House with a three-hour maximum. A $30 cancellation fee will apply for any
cancellation made without 48 hours’ notice.

25|Page

Mission Statement: To strengthen Ken-Caryl Ranch quality of life and connections by providing
exceptional park, recreation, and outdoor educational experiences.

35



Acknowledgement

The preparation and development of the District budget has become a mode of operation throughout the year.
Staff actively reviews revenues, expenditures, and cost recoveries with the Finance Team to stay engaged at all
points during the year. This creates an environment where the District is proactive in responding to issues, giving
us the ability to react quickly, if necessary. Staff at all levels of the organization continue to be involved in the
preparation, analysis, and implementation of the budget. The fiduciary duties that go along with the care of
resident tax dollars are taken extremely seriously, down to the dollar. Leading this charge is Finance Director,
Lauren Feeney. Her continuous improvement to the processes, the systems, the forecasting, and her
empowerment of staff at all levels to engage with the Budget as a guiding document is worthy of significant
praise. | am proud to be a part of this process, and | look forward to continuously improving what we do each
year to assist the Board in planning for the future.

Respectfully submitted,

Traci Wieland, MPA
District Manager

26| Page

Mission Statement: To strengthen Ken-Caryl Ranch quality of life and connections by providing
exceptional park, recreation, and outdoor educational experiences.

36



2024 Budget and Budget by Fund

27|Page

Mission Statement: To strengthen Ken-Caryl Ranch quality of life and connections by providing
exceptional park, recreation, and outdoor educational experiences.

37



Ken-Caryl Ranch Metropolitan District

Annual Budget

Property Tax Revenue
Property Tax Revenue
Property Tax Revenue
Specific Ownership Taxes
Special Owner Tax
Specific Ownership Taxes
General & Administration
Interest Income
Grants
Utility Refunds
Miscellaneous
KCRMA Overhead & Contributions
Retiree
Facility Use Fees
Facility Rental - Miscellaneous
General & Administration
Facilities - RH
Facility Rental - Ranch House
Facilities - RH
Facilities - DL
Facility Rental - Dakota Lodge
Facilities - DL
Facilities - CC
Facility Rental - Community Center
Facilities - CC
Parks
Miscellaneous
Snow Removal Reimbursement
Field Usage
Memorial Program
Facility Rental - Picnic Area
Parks
Wellness
Facility Use Fees
Contracted Programs
Facility Use Reimbursement
Membership Passes
Fee Based Class Fees
Personal Training
Wellness
General Recreation Programs
Sponsorships
Contracted Programs
Middle School Sports
Gift Certificates
Recreation Over/Short
General Recreation Programs
Aquatics
Aquatic Resident Fee Daily
Aquatic Non-Resident Fee Daily
Aquatic Resident Swim Passes

2023 2024

Annual 2023 Annual

2022 Actual Budget Projected Budget
3,594,942 3,515,253 3,511,829 4,121,048
3,594,942 3,515,253 3,511,829 4,121,048
310,789 300,000 310,000 300,000
310,789 300,000 310,000 300,000
85,412 125,000 255,000 180,000
0 0 15,000 0
3,762 3,200 4,000 3,000
36,012 36,013 62,528 32,213
146,555 151,397 174,890 159,600
30,477 25,785 24,961 22,350
765 0 433 0
400 0 0 0
303,383 341,395 536,812 397,163
50,799 52,000 46,375 50,000
50,799 52,000 46,375 50,000
34,842 34,000 21,637 20,825
34,842 34,000 21,637 20,825
0 0 2,114 2,000
0 0 2,114 2,000
0 0 3,863 0
3,281 4,710 1,817 0
42,780 53,370 63,840 61,880
0 0 7,325 0
2,670 2,575 2,892 3,000
48,731 60,655 79,737 64,880
7,366 7,000 8,000 8,000
0 0 10 1,500
25,187 23,823 30,000 30,000
80,918 81,000 86,625 87,000
7,164 6,500 8,000 9,000
17,366 20,735 14,269 14,000
138,001 139,058 146,904 149,500
0 0 0 2,500
61,765 49,900 80,603 26,840
17,882 16,070 19,015 16,250
(50) 0 0 0
633 4,000 250 500
80,230 69,970 99,868 46,090
22,505 0 0 0
26,280 15,000 44,240 40,000
122,073 0 3,925 3,500

38



Aquatic Swim Lessons
Aquatic Swim Team Fees
Aquatic Pool Rental
Aquatic Concession
Aquatics
Events
KCRMA Overhead & Contributions
Special Events
Sponsorships
Events
Tennis
Sponsorships
Tennis Classes - Adult
Tennis Tournament
Private Lessons
Private Groups
Cardio Tennis
USTA Leagues
Tennis Classes - Junior
Junior Interclub
Indoor Court Fees
Outdoor Court Fees
Block Time
Pickleball
Product Resale
Ball Machine
Tennis
School Age Youth Programs
Grants
Enrichment Programs
Teen Services
Before & After School
Camps
School Age Youth Programs
Preschool
Grants
Enrichment Programs
Contracted Programs
Camps
Preschool Fees
Preschool
Total Revenue
General & Administration
Salaries - benefited
Salaries - non benefited
Retirement - 401a
Retirement - 457M
Retirement - 457V
Medicare
Medical
Dental
Retirement
Long Term Disability
Life Insurance

2023 2024

Annual 2023 Annual

2022 Actual Budget Projected Budget
12,774 7,000 23,997 6,000
11,310 22,750 25,906 14,400
6,854 5,500 6,520 6,350
392 475 283 300
202,189 50,725 104,871 70,550
7,061 9,000 9,000 9,000
5,391 6,525 5,046 4,700
21,350 21,050 23,980 27,600
33,802 36,575 38,027 41,300
850 850 850 850
206,421 70,000 100,000 66,000
15,128 14,100 12,696 11,300
104,745 103,750 105,000 105,500
111,148 104,000 110,000 116,500
0 0 0 37,500
60,214 64,500 67,750 66,000
0 130,000 115,498 120,000
32,908 35,000 34,480 35,000
47,552 46,300 51,512 48,200
3,230 2,100 4,326 3,500
110,810 104,000 128,930 120,000
2,916 3,000 4,000 3,300
135 420 250 240
3,221 3,050 4,103 4,000
699,277 681,070 739,394 737,890
199,800 0 0 0
5,758 10,050 9,713 12,048
12,910 12,496 20,566 17,028
209,539 318,290 285,425 305,472
303,501 333,920 351,575 408,210
731,508 674,756 667,279 742,758
83,387 0 16,327 0
500 1,350 1,782 3,855
0 0 0 2,380
36,402 40,032 41,272 22,040
147,340 163,821 170,737 136,877
267,629 205,203 230,118 165,152
6,496,122 6,160,660 6,534,965 6,909,157
333,937 452,478 349,584 381,979
0 0 75,707 70,050
0 0 30,114 26,584
0 0 7,697 11,544
0 0 210 0
4,511 6,561 6,167 6,554
50,074 45,408 44,797 47,002
2,046 1,866 1,826 1,866
32,050 39,673 0 0
1,246 1,397 1,353 1,329
1,094 1,224 1,186 1,296

39



Vision

Workers Compensation

Unemployment Expense & Administration

Short Term Disability

Retiree

FAMLI

Training, Conferences & Education

Mileage Reimbursement

Cell Phone

Dues, Subscriptions, Publications

Employee Recognition, Meetings, Teambuilding

Hiring & Onboarding

Recognition

Meetings

Teambuilding

Wellness

Contract Services

Director Fees

Accounting & Audit

Legal

Elections

Computer Hardware

Computer Support Services

Computer Software & Licenses

Outsourced Expense

Building Compliance

Facility Furnishings

Rolloff Trash Service

Supplies

Postage

Miscellaneous

Capital Outlay

Liability/Property Insurance

Contingency

Insurance Deductible

Bank Service Charges

Treasurer's Fees

Chargeback

Sales Tax Clearing
General & Administration
Facilities - RH

Salaries - benefited

Salaries - non benefited

Retirement - 401a

Retirement - 457M

Medicare

Medical

Dental

Retirement

Long Term Disability

Life Insurance

Vision

Short Term Disability

FAMLI

2023 2024

Annual 2023 Annual

2022 Actual Budget Projected Budget
232 241 235 240
37,770 24,732 41,427 49,806
681 1,000 445 570
1,852 2,076 2,010 0
29,880 25,279 24,472 21,912
58 4,073 7,234 4,068
15,425 12,500 19,121 22,062
87 0 0 0
2,010 2,040 2,186 2,280
12,384 12,403 15,029 16,463
6,057 6,000 9,499 0
41 0 0 0
0 0 0 725
0 0 0 3,300
0 0 0 4,400
0 0 0 3,000
43,429 74,080 70,046 87,769
4,000 5,100 3,400 4,800
13,400 19,000 18,999 21,000
117,320 118,000 76,000 90,000
43,072 80,000 50,643 53,500
26,536 23,600 28,739 45,667
100,670 110,000 101,972 106,707
18,357 37,545 21,811 23,898
17,811 30,000 23,242 26,593
32 0 0 0
0 0 3,594 0
9,058 9,330 9,420 9,892
6,638 4,000 4,000 4,000
118 472 200 450
16,833 0 1,150 0
643,530 0 0 0
90,447 98,707 101,085 113,768
0 100,000 0 85,000
0 20,000 20,000 25,000
2,577 3,060 1,136 1,200
53,924 52,729 52,729 61,919
446 0 0 0
(234) 300 300 300
1,739,398 1,424,873 1,228,766 1,438,491
164,530 151,660 145,514 184,098
0 0 12,661 13,336
0 0 14,551 18,410
0 0 785 827
2,222 2,199 2,294 2,863
12,299 14,650 11,353 18,800
903 960 744 945
16,697 14,926 0 0
602 563 563 641
529 493 494 625
105 120 93 113
894 836 837 0
30 1,365 1,423 1,777

40



Training, Conferences & Education
Mileage Reimbursement
Cell Phone
Recognition
Teambuilding
Telephone Service & Equipment
Facility Maintenance Contractors
Facility Operations
Building Compliance
Safety
Janitorial Contractors
Gas
Electricity
Printing/Copying
Facilities - RH
Facilities - DL
Salaries - benefited
Salaries - non benefited
Retirement - 457M
Medicare
Retirement
FAMLI
Telephone Service & Equipment
Facility Maintenance Contractors
Facility Operations
Building Compliance
Janitorial Contractors
Gas
Electricity
Printing/Copying
Facilities - DL
Facilities - CC
Salaries - benefited
Salaries - non benefited
Retirement - 401a
Retirement - 457M
Medicare
Medical
Dental
Retirement
Long Term Disability
Life Insurance
Vision
Short Term Disability
FAMLI
Cell Phone
Telephone Service & Equipment
Facility Maintenance Contractors
Facility Operations
Building Compliance
Safety
Janitorial Contractors
Gas
Electricity

2023 2024

Annual 2023 Annual

2022 Actual Budget Projected Budget
0 0 0 2,000
0 100 400 500
840 0 1,050 1,320
0 0 0 500
0 0 0 500
21,038 18,812 18,534 18,440
21,931 23,500 23,500 24,000
18,218 21,000 21,000 24,000
1,345 2,750 2,750 3,000
(134) 400 764 800
22,286 23,982 23,982 28,800
15,367 16,542 12,886 13,530
22,108 22,160 22,026 23,128
9,759 7,564 8,323 5,438
331,569 324,581 326,527 388,391
6,506 13,344 0 0
0 0 2,470 0
0 0 153 0
95 193 36 0
403 828 0 0
1 120 22 0
1,869 1,925 2,201 1,931
2,803 5,350 5,350 6,000
4,003 6,000 6,000 8,000
1,287 1,750 1,467 1,950
10,582 12,075 12,075 14,520
2,670 2,279 3,030 3,182
2,444 2,857 2,400 2,520
444 1,107 1,006 1,056
33,107 47,828 36,210 39,158
86,814 100,606 80,695 51,346
0 0 20,805 76,019
0 0 0 0
0 0 6,293 7,897
1,310 1,459 1,471 1,847
0 7,325 6,593 16,665
0 442 912 923
5,448 6,238 0 0
0 295 312 329
0 260 274 320
0 180 114 104
0 439 464 0
16 906 913 1,146
404 0 630 720
9,711 10,084 10,065 8,971
22,866 26,650 26,650 26,700
15,634 17,000 17,000 23,000
3,678 5,400 5,400 5,600
41 0 0 0
34,177 37,108 37,000 46,224
42,629 39,000 40,875 42,918
59,690 64,996 60,366 63,385

41



Printing/Copying
Facilities - CC
Parks
Salaries - benefited
Salaries - non benefited
Retirement - 401a
Retirement - 457M
Medicare
Medical
Dental
Retirement
Long Term Disability
Life Insurance
Vision
Short Term Disability
FAMLI
Training, Conferences & Education
Mileage Reimbursement
Cell Phone
Dues, Subscriptions, Publications
Employee Recognition, Meetings, Teambuilding
Recognition
Meetings
Teambuilding
Contract Services
Licensing & Inspections
Compliance
Telephone Service & Equipment
Staff Uniforms
Fuel & Lubricants
Chemicals
Trees & Shrubs
Flowers
Memorial Program
Facility Maintenance Contractors
Facility Operations
Building Compliance
Safety
Lighting Supplies
Facility Furnishings
Weed Control
Turf
Fencing
Signage
Drainage
Concrete
Playground Repair & Maintenance
Portable Restrooms
Water
Gas
Electricity
Vehicle Repair
Vehicle Maintenance
Equipment Repairs & Maintenance

2023 2024

Annual 2023 Annual

2022 Actual Budget Projected Budget
3,293 3,111 2,738 2,875
285,711 321,499 319,569 376,989
885,376 1,129,841 928,682 1,061,849
0 0 58,112 85,680
0 0 92,868 106,185
0 0 3,603 5,312
11,225 16,383 14,308 16,639
172,007 180,506 168,779 228,106
6,520 6,100 5,606 6,242
87,472 110,288 0 0
3,310 4,097 3,593 3,695
2,825 3,593 3,151 3,603
649 717 718 687
4,918 6,088 5,340 0
140 10,168 8,880 10,328
2,190 7,500 2,050 7,500
0 500 150 250
6,270 6,576 6,796 6,840
667 7,200 8,940 7,800
53 100 779 0
0 0 0 2,650
0 0 0 500
0 0 0 1,500
8,866 108,500 111,362 208,500
1,432 1,900 1,700 1,900
0 0 0 400
3,524 3,633 3,236 1,871
3,567 4,500 4,809 4,725
61,069 61,425 54,000 65,110
20,675 27,817 23,731 29,119
0 15,000 12,000 15,000
3,746 4,000 4,732 4,000
0 0 6,637 0
2,802 3,675 3,675 3,860
776 1,000 641 1,030
2,178 1,656 1,557 1,368
9,131 4,000 3,421 4,500
3,170 2,000 1,790 2,000
3,116 1,417 3,213 2,000
27,670 29,550 29,887 30,266
3,337 3,000 3,096 4,000
250 2,800 2,800 5,600
912 500 520 500
4,525 3,200 1,600 3,200
4,000 5,000 5,500 5,000
7,876 12,000 10,500 10,000
5,434 5,380 6,331 7,216
120,398 137,975 117,749 123,636
4,584 3,710 4,564 4,793
16,118 15,327 16,033 16,834
21,781 21,000 16,999 22,999
4,475 4,200 6,585 4,400
12,151 8,000 23,000 11,000

42



Supplies

Printing/Copying

Mowing Supplies

Trash Supplies

Snow Supplies

Small Equipment

Equipment Rent & Lease
Parks
Recreation Management

Salaries - benefited

Salaries - non benefited

Retirement - 401a

Retirement - 457M

Medicare

Medical

Dental

Retirement

Long Term Disability

Life Insurance

Vision

Short Term Disability

FAMLI

Training, Conferences & Education

Mileage Reimbursement

Cell Phone

Dues, Subscriptions, Publications

Employee Recognition, Meetings, Teambuilding

Hiring & Onboarding

Recognition

Meetings

Teambuilding

Staff Uniforms

Supplies

Credit Card Fees
Recreation Management
Wellness

Salaries - benefited

Salaries - non benefited

Retirement - 457M

Medicare

Medical

Dental

Retirement

Long Term Disability

Life Insurance

Vision

Short Term Disability

FAMLI

Training, Conferences & Education

Employee Recognition, Meetings, Teambuilding

Recognition

Meetings

Teambuilding

Contract Services

2023 2024

Annual 2023 Annual

2022 Actual Budget Projected Budget
31,734 31,090 31,873 33,233
1,297 974 756 794
14,269 10,500 10,500 10,815
7,422 8,715 8,500 9,150
4,629 6,300 6,300 6,615
13,107 15,000 15,000 15,500
1,775 3,000 2,300 3,000
1,615,418 2,057,399 1,869,254 2,229,299
93,671 105,312 105,428 112,808
0 0 0 0
0 0 10,543 11,281
0 0 0 0
1,117 1,527 1,528 1,635
14,858 0 0 0
549 453 453 453
9,589 10,531 0 0
354 407 408 393
324 358 358 382
61 59 59 60
547 606 606 0
15 948 949 1,015
3,276 6,400 150 7,500
1,262 1,500 1,000 1,200
3,685 3,720 3,644 3,720
100 100 0 110
1,125 1,500 1,300 0
0 150 0 300
0 0 0 400
0 0 0 450
0 0 0 200
289 150 100 300
2,946 3,600 4,500 2,100
88,236 90,000 95,000 98,253
222,004 227,320 226,026 242,560
66,533 76,337 50,253 53,174
0 0 21,634 23,667
0 0 4,457 4,764
980 1,106 1,042 1,114
7,010 7,325 7,325 7,584
516 480 480 480
4,284 4,733 0 0
177 206 194 185
146 181 171 180
60 60 60 60
244 307 289 0
10 687 647 691
299 400 399 400
25 0 0 0
0 0 0 400
0 0 0 120
0 0 0 625
83 0 630 700

43



Equipment Repairs & Maintenance
Supplies
Wellness
General Recreation Programs
Salaries - benefited
Retirement - 401a
Medicare
Medical
Dental
Retirement
Long Term Disability
Life Insurance
Vision
Short Term Disability
FAMLI
Hiring & Onboarding
Stipend
Contract Services
Supplies
General Recreation Programs
Aquatics
Salaries - benefited
Salaries - non benefited
Retirement - 401a
Retirement - 457M
Medicare
Medical
Dental
Retirement
Long Term Disability
Life Insurance
Vision
Short Term Disability
FAMLI
Training, Conferences & Education
Employee Recognition, Meetings, Teambuilding
Hiring & Onboarding
Recognition
Meetings
Teambuilding
Contract Services
Staff Uniforms
Aquatic Maintenance & Supplies
Aquatic Chemicals
Water
Supplies
Aquatics
Events
Salaries - benefited
Salaries - non benefited
Retirement - 401a
Retirement - 457M
Medicare
Medical

2023 2024

Annual 2023 Annual

2022 Actual Budget Projected Budget
4,084 6,000 4,000 5,500
2,333 4,000 4,000 7,000
86,784 101,822 95,580 106,645
4,905 6,290 6,297 6,737
0 0 630 674
62 91 91 98
701 733 733 758
51 48 48 48
487 629 0 0
20 24 24 23
18 21 22 23
6 6 6 6
30 36 36 0
1 57 57 61
74 203 203 414
0 0 0 2,500
32,870 28,990 43,359 10,638
2,343 1,910 3,106 2,850
41,567 39,038 54,612 24,830
223,081 289,225 143,685 68,637
0 0 185,910 235,236
0 0 13,976 6,864
0 0 11,769 14,584
3,177 4,194 4,779 4,406
4,206 3,296 7,325 9,780
310 216 480 496
15,084 20,559 0 0
122 282 556 239
108 248 488 233
36 27 60 60
182 419 826 0
9 2,603 2,966 2,734
325 900 0 900
953 1,600 1,333 0
136 150 131 200
0 0 0 2,000
0 0 0 350
0 0 0 2,000
9,643 9,673 27,914 7,100
1,721 2,000 1,533 2,000
33,959 30,000 30,000 36,000
26,357 32,000 30,740 37,000
2,893 3,038 0 0
2,014 2,675 7,969 1,680
324,315 403,005 472,439 432,499
14,899 28,304 28,336 30,320
0 0 4,300 6,250
0 0 2,834 3,032
0 0 266 387
188 411 474 530
2,103 3,296 3,296 3,413

44



Dental
Retirement
Long Term Disability
Life Insurance
Vision
Short Term Disability
FAMLI
Recognition
Teambuilding
Contract Services
Supplies
Events
Tennis
Salaries - benefited
Salaries - non benefited
Retirement - 401a
Retirement - 457M
Medicare
Medical
Dental
Retirement
Long Term Disability
Life Insurance
Vision
Short Term Disability
FAMLI
Training, Conferences & Education
Employee Recognition, Meetings, Teambuilding
Recognition
Meetings
Teambuilding
Equipment Repairs & Maintenance
Supplies
Tennis
School Age Youth Programs
Salaries - benefited
Salaries - non benefited
Retirement - 401a
Retirement - 457M
Medicare
Medical
Dental
Retirement
Long Term Disability
Life Insurance
Vision
Short Term Disability
FAMLI
Cell Phone
Dues, Subscriptions, Publications
Employee Recognition, Meetings, Teambuilding
Hiring & Onboarding
Recognition
Meetings

2023 2024

Annual 2023 Annual

2022 Actual Budget Projected Budget
155 216 216 216
1,470 2,830 0 0
62 110 110 105
53 96 96 103
18 27 27 27
91 163 163 0
1 254 293 329
0 0 0 75
0 0 0 75
30,122 17,583 16,680 25,450
8,750 8,190 13,700 10,965
57,912 61,480 70,791 81,278
300,098 339,995 311,645 274,548
0 0 26,716 59,784
0 0 18,001 20,249
0 0 9,817 8,174
4,151 4,929 4,906 4,848
45,128 47,146 47,146 47,888
2,074 1,866 1,866 1,564
25,257 28,238 0 0
1,153 1,215 1,206 955
1,015 1,065 1,058 932
238 239 239 176
1,715 1,805 1,792 0
49 3,060 3,045 3,009
1,259 1,500 1,600 1,800
278 400 450 0
0 0 0 450
0 0 0 300
0 0 0 575
5,483 5,500 4,900 10,000
13,949 17,500 18,100 18,700
401,846 454,458 452,487 453,952
315,191 364,413 181,965 194,702
0 0 182,490 254,121
0 0 18,197 19,470
0 0 11,314 15,756
4,384 5,284 5,284 6,507
16,227 31,747 31,747 32,871
1,032 1,403 1,403 1,402
20,958 29,190 0 0
609 671 704 678
536 590 618 661
181 180 180 164
904 998 1,047 0
32 3,280 3,279 4,039
537 500 522 500
5,339 5,655 6,379 5,905
0 0 44 0
3,357 7,000 3,659 6,200
0 0 0 1,725
0 0 0 1,005

45



Teambuilding

Contract Services

Staff Uniforms

Supplies

School Bus Rental Fees
School Age Youth Programs
Preschool

Salaries - benefited

Salaries - non benefited

Retirement - 401a

Retirement - 457M

Medicare

Medical

Dental

Retirement

Long Term Disability

Life Insurance

Vision

Short Term Disability

FAMLI

Training, Conferences & Education

Cell Phone

Dues, Subscriptions, Publications

Employee Recognition, Meetings, Teambuilding

Hiring & Onboarding

Recognition

Meetings

Teambuilding

Contract Services

Staff Uniforms

Facility Operations

Supplies
Preschool
Total Expenditures
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year
Fund Balance - End of Period

2023 2024
Annual 2023 Annual
2022 Actual Budget Projected Budget

0 0 0 1,875
20,829 29,065 28,593 36,036
1,644 1,529 1,544 1,573
13,039 9,660 10,581 11,536
3,251 3,250 3,052 3,500
408,050 494,414 492,603 600,225
143,670 166,424 98,104 111,042
0 0 55,362 51,964
0 0 5,686 6,085
0 0 5,989 6,334
2,038 2,413 2,225 2,363
8,935 10,625 10,625 10,884
817 960 960 960
10,976 12,487 0 0
283 381 379 386
251 334 333 377
95 120 120 120
421 566 564 0
19 1,498 1,381 1,467
5,052 2,600 120 500
51 60 0 0
3,121 3,670 3,971 4,126
186 0 0 0
872 1,095 894 900
0 0 0 250
0 0 0 220
0 0 0 275
716 1,800 708 2,866
486 500 368 500
0 0 0 0
18,075 5,450 22,646 4,575
196,064 210,983 210,435 206,194
5,743,745 6,168,700 5,855,299 6,620,511
752,377 (8,040) 679,666 288,646
7,350 0 (1,126,010) (2,250,000)
759,727 8,040 446,344 1,961,354
3,259,938 - 4,019,665 3,573,321
4,019,665 - 3,573,321 1,611,967

46



Conservation Trust & Grant Fund

General & Administration
Conservation Trust Fund Proceeds
General & Administration
Total Revenue
General & Administration
Capital Outlay
General & Administration
Total Expenditures
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year
Fund Balance - End of Period

Debt Service Fund

Property Tax Revenue
Property Tax Revenue
Property Tax Revenue
Total Revenue
General & Administration
Bank Service Charges
Treasurer's Fees
Bond Interest Expense
Bond Principal Payments
General & Administration
Total Expenditures
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year
Use of Fund Balance
Fund Balance - End of Period

Plains Metropolitan Dist Settlement Fund

General & Administration
Interest Income
Legal Settlements

General & Administration

Total Revenue

General & Administration
Capital Outlay
Cooperative Agreement Expense

General & Administration

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures

2023 Annual 2024 Annual
2022 Actual Budget 2023 Projected Budget
72,466 71,000 70,754 70,754
72,466 71,000 70,754 70,754
72,466 71,000 70,754 70,754
39,806 87,500 89,489 40,000
39,806 87,500 89,489 40,000
39,806 87,500 89,489 40,000
32,660 (16,500) (18,735) 30,754
144,855 - 177,515 158,780
177,515 - 158,780 189,534
2023 Annual 2024 Annual
2022 Actual Budget 2023 Projected Budget
928,452 919,733 918,000 928,042
928,452 919,733 918,000 928,042
928,452 919,733 918,000 928,042
363 365 363 365
13,927 13,796 13,770 13,921
77,550 52,500 52,500 26,700
835,000 860,000 860,000 890,000
926,840 926,661 926,633 930,986
926,840 926,661 926,633 930,986
1,612 (6,928) (8,633) (2,944)
6,934 - 8,546 (87)
(8,633) (2,944)
8,546 - (87) (3,031)
2023 Annual 2024 Annual
2022 Actual Budget 2023 Projected Budget
3,399 4,000 13,938 13,938
300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000
303,399 304,000 313,938 313,938
303,399 304,000 313,938 313,938
- - - 50,000
172,956 - - -
172,956 - - 50,000
172,956 - - 50,000
130,443 304,000 313,938 263,938

47



Fund Balance - Beginning of Year
Fund Balance - End of Period

Community Garden Fund

General & Administration
Garden Plot Fees
General & Administration
Total Revenue
General & Administration
Supplies
General & Administration
Total Expenditures
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year
Fund Balance - End of Period

Veterans Monument Fund

General & Administration
Supplies
General & Administration
Total Expenditures
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year
Use of Fund Balance
Fund Balance - End of Period

Capital Reserve Fund

General & Administration
Capital Outlay
General & Administration
Total Expenditures
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year
Transfer from General Fund
Fund Balance - End of Period

29,362 - 159,805 473,743
159,805 - 473,743 737,681
2023 Annual 2024 Annual
2022 Actual Budget 2023 Projected Budget
3,225 3,322 3,305 3,305
3,225 3,322 3,305 3,305
3,225 3,322 3,305 3,305
248 500 514 650
248 500 514 650
248 500 514 650
2,977 2,822 2,791 2,655
31,092 - 34,069 36,860
34,069 - 36,860 39,515
2023 Annual 2024 Annual
2022 Actual Budget 2023 Projected Budget
2,040 2,225 1,834 1,850
2,040 2,225 1,834 1,850
2,040 2,225 1,834 1,850
(2,040) (2,225) (1,834) (1,850)
9,399 - 7,359 5,525
(1,834) (1,850)
7,359 - 5,525 3,675
2023 Annual 2024 Annual
2022 Actual Budget 2023 Projected Budget
- 1,153,350 963,392 1,397,458
- 1,153,350 963,392 1,397,458
- 1,153,350 963,392 1,397,458
- (1,153,350) (963,392) (1,397,458)
- - - 189,958
1,153,350 1,153,350 2,250,000
- - 189,958 1,042,500

48



Ken-Caryl Ranch Metropolitan District
Agenda Item Executive Summary

Agenda Item: Lease for Copier Services
Meeting Date: December 12, 2023

Executive Summary:

A Request for Proposal (RFP) process was conducted in August of 2022 for five copy machines with leases set
to expire in October of 2022. Those machines were installed in January of 2023. The Ranch House has one final
machine with a lease that expired in October of 2023. Staff recommends entering into a 48-month lease
through PDS for a total lease cost of $236.20 per month plus printing so that this final machine will coincide
with the other five machines that were 60-month leases last January. The hewest machine will have the same
printing rate as the existing five machines. Usage is only charged based on what is used and there are no
overage charges. The leases include Xerox machines with all supplies and service included in the lease
payments, and this machine is a 50/50 cost share with the Master Association.

Staff requests Board approval during the action items portion of the agenda for staff to negotiate a mutually
acceptable lease agreement with PDS as approved by Staff and legal counsel for a cost not to exceed $236.20
per month for 48 months for one machine. This results in a multi-year fiscal agreement which requires Board
approval.

3802194.1

49



Ken-Caryl Ranch Metropolitan District
Regular Board Meeting Agenda Item Executive Summary

Agenda Item:  Audit Engagement Letter with Haynie & Company, Inc.
Meeting Date: December 12, 2023

Executive Summary:

Staff recommends utilization of the services of Haynie & Company, Inc. for the 2023 District audit. An approved
letter of engagement is necessary before the end of the 2023 fiscal year. The proposed letter of engagement is
attached and details the components of the audit process, which are the same as previous years. The fee for the
2023 audit will be $21,000, and the fee for the 2022 audit was $19,000. This fee has been included in the 2024
budget.

Staff met with Treasurer Miro to review the performance of Haynie & Company, Inc. and he recommends
utilization of their services in 2024 for the 2023 District audit.

3802194.1

50



Haynie & 1_221 W. Mineral Avenue, Suite 202
Com pany Littleton, CO 80120

' , 303-734-4800
i 303-795-3356

@ www.HaynieCPAs.com

Pu

November 8§, 2023

Board of Directors

Ken-Caryl Ranch Metropolitan District
7676 S. Continental Divide Rd.
Littleton, CO 80127

To the Members of the Board:

Haynie & Company (“Company”) is pleased to confirm the Company’s understanding of the services we
are to provide to Ken-Caryl Ranch Metropolitan District (“District”) for the year ended December 31,
2023. The Company and District are referred to collectively in this Agreement as the “Parties” and
individually as a “Party”.

Audit Scope and Objectives

The Company will audit the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information, and the disclosures, which collectively comprise the basic financial
statements of Ken-Caryl Ranch Metropolitan District as of and for the year ended December 31, 2023.

Accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) provide for certain
required supplementary information (RSI), such as management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A), to
supplement the District’s basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. As part of our engagement, the Company will apply certain
limited procedures the District’s RSI in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAS). These limited procedures will consist of inquiries of management
regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge the
Company obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. the Company will not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. The following RSI is required by
(GAAP) and will be subjected to certain limited procedures, but will not be audited:

1) Management’s Discussion and Analysis.

RSM
51
e

Z PrimeGlobal

An| T
An Association of RSM US Alliance

Independent Accounting Firms




Ken-Caryl Ranch Metropolitan District
November §, 2023 Page 2 of 7

The Company has also been engaged to report on supplementary information other than RSI that
accompanies Ken-Caryl Ranch Metropolitan District’s financial statements. The Company will subject
the following supplementary information to the auditing procedures applied in the Company’s audit of the
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with generally accepted
accounting standards (GAAS), and the Company will provide an opinion on it in relation to the financial
statements as a whole in a report combined with the Company’s auditor’s report on the financial
statements:

1) Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance—Budget and Actual—Debt
Service Fund

2) Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance—Budget and Actual—PMD
Settlement Capital Projects Fund

The following other information accompanying the financial statements will not be subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in our audit of the financial statements, and our auditor’s report will not
provide an opinion or any assurance on that other information.

1) Summary of Assessed Valuation, Mill Levy & Property Taxes Collected
2) Top Taxpayers Within the District
3) Assessed Valuation of Classes of Property in the District

The objectives of the Company’s audit are to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; issue an auditor’s
report that includes the Company’s opinion about whether the District’s financial statements are fairly
presented, in all material respects, in conformity with GAAP; and report on the fairness of the
supplementary information referred to in the second paragraph when considered in relation to the financial
statements as a whole. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements, including omissions, can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would
influence the judgment of a reasonable user made based on the financial statements.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

The Company will conduct the audit in accordance with GAAS and will include tests of the District’s
accounting records and other procedures the Company considers necessary to enable the Company to
express such opinions. As part of an audit in accordance with GAAS, the Company exercises professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

The Company will evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management. The Company will also evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and determine whether the financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
The Company will plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement, whether from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent financial reporting,
(3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental regulations that are attributable
to the government or to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the government.




Ken-Caryl Ranch Metropolitan District
November §, 2023 Page 3 of 7

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal control,
and because the Company will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is an
unavoidable risk that some material misstatements may not be detected, even though the audit is properly
planned and performed in accordance with GAAS. In addition, an audit is not designed to detect
immaterial misstatements or violations of laws or governmental regulations that do not have a direct and
material effect on the financial statements. However, the Company will inform the appropriate level of
management of any material errors, fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of assets that
comes to our attention. The Company will also inform the appropriate level of management of any
violations of laws or governmental regulations that come to our attention, unless clearly inconsequential.
The Company’s responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by the audit and does not extend
to any later periods for which the Company is not engaged as auditors.

The Company will also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the government’s ability to continue
as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

The Company’s procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions
recorded in the accounts, tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct confirmation of
receivables and certain assets and liabilities by correspondence with selected customers, creditors, and
financial institutions. The Company will also request written representations from the District’s attorneys
as part of the engagement.

The Company’s audit of the financial statements does not relieve the District of its financial responsibilities.
Audit Procedures—Internal Control

The Company will obtain an understanding of the government and its environment, including internal
control relevant to the audit, sufficient to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and to design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks and obtain evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for the Company’s
opinions. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentation, or
the override of internal control. An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to
identify deficiencies in internal control. Accordingly, the Company will express no such opinion.
However, during the audit, the Company will communicate to management and those charged with
governance internal control related matters that are required to be communicated under AICPA
professional standards.

The Company has identified the following significant risks of material misstatement as part of its audit
planning:

e Improper revenue recognition due to fraud

e Management override of controls
Audit Procedures—Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we will perform tests of the District’s compliance with the provisions of applicable laws,
regulations, contracts, and agreements. However, the objective of the Company’s audit will not be to
provide an opinion on overall compliance and the Company will not express such an opinion.

The Company’s audit will be in conformity with the Colorado Local Government Audit Law (C.R.S. 29-1-
601, et seq.). The scope of the audit will include the books and records of all the funds of the District.

53



Ken-Caryl Ranch Metropolitan District
November §, 2023 Page 4 of 7

Other Services

The Company will also prepare the financial statements of the District in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America based on information provided by the
District.

The Company will perform the services in accordance with applicable professional standards. The other
services are limited to the financial statement services previously defined. The Company, in its sole
professional judgment, reserves the right to refuse to perform any procedure or take any action that could
be construed as assuming management responsibilities.

The District agrees to (i) assume all management responsibilities for the financial statement preparation
services and any other nonattest services the Company provides; (ii) oversees the services by designating an
individual, preferably from senior management, with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; and (iii)
evaluate the adequacy and results of the services; and accept responsibility for that designee.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s audit will be conducted on the basis that the District acknowledges and understands its
responsibility for designing, implementing, and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, including monitoring ongoing activities; for the selection and application of accounting principles;
and for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America with the oversight of those charged with
governance.

Management is responsible for making drafts of financial statements, all financial records, and related
information available to the Company and for the accuracy and completeness of that information (including
information from outside of the general and subsidiary ledgers). The District is also responsible for providing
the Company with (1) access to all information of which it is are aware that is relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements, such as records, documentation, identification of all related
parties and all related-party relationships and transactions, and other matters; (2) additional information
that the Company may request for the purpose of the audit; and (3) unrestricted access to persons within the
government from whom the Company determines it necessary to obtain audit evidence. At the conclusion
of the audit, the Company will require certain written representations from the District about the financial
statements and related matters.

The District’s responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements
and confirming to the Company in the management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected
misstatements aggregated by the Company during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period
presented are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements of each opinion
unit taken as a whole.

The District is responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect
fraud, and for informing the Company about all known or suspected fraud affecting the government
involving (1) management, (2) employees who have significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where
the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. The District’s responsibilities include
informing the Company of the District’s knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting
the government received in communications from employees, former employees, grantors, regulators, or
others. In addition, the District is responsible for identifying and ensuring that the government complies with
applicable laws and regulations.

54



Ken-Caryl Ranch Metropolitan District
November §, 2023 Page 5 of 7

The District is responsible for the preparation of the supplementary information in conformity with
(GAAP). The District agrees to include the Company’s report on the supplementary information in any
document that contains, and indicates that the Company has reported on, the supplementary information.
The District also agrees to include the audited financial statements with any presentation of the
supplementary information that includes the Company’s report thereon. The District’s responsibilities
include acknowledging to the Company in the representation letter that (1) the District is responsible for
presentation of the supplementary information in accordance with GAAP; (2) the District believes the
supplementary information, including its form and content, is fairly presented in accordance with GAAP;
(3) the methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in the prior; and (4) the
District has disclosed to the Company any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the
measurement or presentation of the supplementary information.

Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other

The Company understands that its employees will prepare all cash or other confirmations the Company
requests and will locate any documents selected by the Company for testing.

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Haynie & Company and constitutes
confidential information. However, subject to applicable laws and regulations, audit documentation and
appropriate individuals will be made available upon request and in a timely manner to the State of Colorado
or its designee. The Company will notify the District of any such request. If requested, access to such audit
documentation will be provided under the supervision of Haynie & Company personnel. Furthermore, upon
request, the Company may provide copies of selected audit documentation to the State of Colorado or its
designee. The State of Colorado or its designee may intend or decide to distribute the copies or information
contained therein to others, including other governmental agencies.

Notwithstanding the forgoing, any audit documentation or other documentation provided by the Company
to the District may be subject to disclosure by the District pursuant to the Colorado Open Records Act,
Colorado Revised Statute § 24-72-201, et seq. ("CORA"). Any audit documentation or other
documentation provided by the Company to the District that the Company deems proprietary or trade secret
must be clearly marked as such. The District will only protect from disclosure under CORA expressly
marked proprietary or trade secret information to the extent permitted by law.

The Company’s fees for these services will be $21,000 ($18,000 for the financial statement audit and $3,000
for financial statement preparation). The fee is based on anticipated cooperation from District personnel and
the assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during the audit. If significant
additional time is necessary, the Company will discuss it with the District and arrive at a new fee estimate
before the Company incurs the additional costs. The Company’s invoices for these fees will be rendered each
month as work progresses and are payable upon presentation. In accordance with our firm policies, work may
be suspended if the District’s account becomes 60 days or more overdue and will not be resumed until the
District’s account is paid in full. Accounts in excess of 30 days will accrue finance charges at 1.5% per
month. If the Company elects to terminate its services for nonpayment, the Company’s engagement will
be deemed to have been completed upon written notification of termination, even if the Company has not
completed its report. The District will be obligated to compensate the Company for all time expended and to
reimburse the Company for all out-of-pocket expenditures through the date of termination.

Christine McLeod is the engagement partner and is responsible for supervising the engagement and signing
the report. The Company expects to begin its audit in March-April 2024 and to issue its report in May-June
2024.




Ken-Caryl Ranch Metropolitan District
November §, 2023 Page 6 of 7

Reporting

The Company will issue a written report upon completion of its audit of Ken-Caryl Ranch Metropolitan
District’s financial statements. The Company’s report will be addressed to the Board of Directors of Ken-Caryl
Ranch Metropolitan District. Circumstances may arise in which the Company’s report may differ from its
expected form and content based on the results of the Company‘s audit. Depending on the nature of these
circumstances, it may be necessary for the Company’s to modify the Company’s opinions, add a separate
section, or add an emphasis-of-matter or other- matter paragraph to the Company’s auditor’s report, or if
necessary, withdraw from this engagement. If the Company’s opinions are other than unmodified, the
Company will discuss the reasons with the District in advance. If, for any reason, the Company is unable to
complete the audit or is unable to form or has not formed opinions, the Company may decline to express
opinions or withdraw from this engagement.

General Terms

It is understood and agreed between the Parties that the status of Company shall be that of an independent
contractor retained on a contractual basis to perform the services provided herein, and it is not intended,
nor shall it be construed, that Company, or any of its employees, agents or representatives, is an employee
of the District for any other purpose whatsoever. Without limiting the foregoing, the Parties hereby
specifically acknowledge that COMPANY AND ITS EMPLOYEES AND AGENTS ARE NOT
ENTITLED TO UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE BENEFITS UNLESS UNEMPLOYMENT
COMPENSATION COVERAGE IS PROVIDED BY THE COMPANY OR SOME OTHER ENTITY
BESIDES THE DISTRICT, THAT THE COMPANY AND ITS EMPLOYEES AND AGENTS ARE
NOT ENTITLED TO WORKERS' COMPENSATION BENEFITS FROM THE DISTRICT, AND
THAT THE COMPANY IS OBLIGATED TO PAY FEDERAL AND STATE INCOME TAX ON ANY
MONEYS EARNED PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT.

This Agreement is not intended to waive, and shall not be construed as a waiver of, the limitations on
damages or any of the privileges, immunities, or defenses provided to, or enjoyed by, the District and its
current and former Directors, officers, employees and volunteers under federal or state constitutional,
statutory or common law, including but not limited to the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, C.R.S.
§ 24-10-101, et seq.

The Company agrees to indemnify, hold harmless and defend the District, and its current and former
Directors, officers, agents, employees, volunteers and representatives from and against any and all
liabilities, losses, damages, claims, lawsuits, causes of action, and expenses, including reasonable attorneys'
fees, costs and expenses, caused or asserted to have been caused, directly or indirectly, by or as a result of
the negligent acts or omissions of the Company; provided, however, that the Company shall not be held
liable for any act or omission by the Company that is based upon the Company’s good faith reliance upon
information provided by the District or its Directors, officers, employees, volunteers, agents or
representatives. The District shall have the sole right to select legal counsel to represent it in connection
with any claim, action or proceeding coming within this provision, notwithstanding the Company’s
obligation to pay for the fees and costs incurred by such legal counsel.

Upon reasonable notice, authorized Directors, officers, employees, volunteers, representatives, and
agents of the District shall have access to all records generated, received and/or maintained by the
Company in the performance of this Agreement during normal business hours.

All direct and indirect financial obligations of the District under this Agreement are subject to
appropriation, budgeting, and availability of funds to discharge such obligations. If the District's
governing body fails to appropriate funds for the District's obligations under this Agreement, this
Agreement shall terminate on January 1 of the year for which the non-appropriation occurred, and neither
Party shall have any further obligation to the other Party under this Agreement beyond the financial
obligations for which it previously appropriated funds.

56



Ken-Caryl Ranch Metropolitan District
November §, 2023 Page 7 of 7

Colorado law governs this Agreement. Jurisdiction and venue of any dispute arising under this
Agreement shall be in Jefferson County District Court. This Agreement is the entire agreement between
the Parties and there are no oral or collateral agreements or understandings. This Agreement may only
be amended by a document signed by the Parties. Course of conduct, no matter how long, shall not
constitute an amendment to this Agreement. If any provision is held invalid or unenforceable, all other
provisions shall continue in full force and effect. Waiver of a breach of this Agreement shall not operate
or be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach of this Agreement. This Agreement is not assignable
by the Company or the District without the prior written consent of the other Party. This Agreement is
not intended to, and shall not, confer rights on any person or entity not named as a party to this Agreement.
In any dispute arising from or relating to this Agreement, the prevailing Party shall be awarded its
reasonable attorneys’ fees, costs and expenses, including any attorneys’ fees, costs and expenses incurred
in collecting upon any judgment, order or award. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts
and by facsimile or electronic pdf, each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which shall
constitute one and the same instrument.

The Company appreciates the opportunity to be of service to the District and believes this letter accurately
summarizes the significant terms of the engagement. If you have any questions, please let us know. If you agree
with the Company’s terms of engagement as described in this letter, please sign the enclosed copy and return
it to us.

Sincerely,

Phpgra X Guguarvey

Accepted and agreed to:

Ken-Caryl Ranch Metropolitan District

Management signature

Title Date

Governance signature

Title Date




Ken-Caryl Ranch Metropolitan District
Agenda Item Executive Summary

Agenda Item: 2024 Employee Handbook
Meeting Date: December 12, 2023

Executive Summary:

The District approved the 2021 Employee Handbook on December 1, 2020, and it has been amended by
resolution several times since then. The 2023 legislative session implemented several new laws that require
revision to the Handbook in addition to several federal laws, which led to an opportunity for a full review of the
document. Employees were provided an opportunity to review the document and the revisions as well as listen
to a video by the District Manager highlighting several revisions. The red-lined version and final version are
included for the Board’s review as well as an explanation of several of the more important changes below. Please
note the page numbers listed below correspond to the red-lined version.

e Page 14 - Senate Bill 23-172 redefines workplace “harassment,” using a reduced standard and rejecting

the past “severe and pervasive” standard that was previously required. Actionable categories include:

e Submission to the conduct or communication is explicitly or implicitly made a term or condition of
the individual’s employment;

e Submission to, objection to, or rejection of the conduct or communication is used as a basis for
employment decisions affecting the individual; or

e The conduct or communication has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with the
individual’s work performance or creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working environment.

The District also included annual training as part of a prevention program.

e Page 17 - Accommodations of Religious Beliefs which is a new federal law that pertains to religious
beliefs and how the employee and the District would participate in an interactive process to determine
what reasonable accommodations will be allowed.

e Page 32 and 33 — New MVR Process and Driver Training Programs were described outlining information
about how the District’s program aligns with the insurance provider’s rating scale and how the District
will be implementing driver proactive and incident-based training.

e Page 33— New insurance company personal auto insurance requirements were updated.

e Page 43 and 44 — QOutlines the District’s new Content Generating Al Software use policy.

e Page 47 — Use of paid and unpaid leave section was updated to reflect how accrual will not occur while
an employee is on unpaid leave and is responsible for paying the District their benefit deductions,

including healthcare premiums.

e Page 49 — Workers’ Compensation Insurance section was updated to be more comprehensive and
include language regarding wage payments.

e Page 50 — A negative PTO policy was created. The policy will create options for those employees, likely
new employees, who have previously scheduled time off and do not have adequate PTO.

e Page 50 and 51 - Senate Bill 23-017 provides amendments to the Colorado Paid Leave Requirements. SB
23-017 expands upon those reasons for which HFWA paid sick leave may be used, to include:

3302549.1

58



o Where the employee needs to grieve, attend funeral services or a memorial, or deal with financial
and legal matters that arise after the death of a family member;

o The employee needs to care for a family member whose school or place of care has been closed due
to inclement weather, loss of power, loss of heating, loss of water, or other unexpected occurrence
or event that results in the closure of the family member’s school or place of care; and

o The employee needs to evacuate the employee’s place of residence due to inclement weather, loss
of power, loss of heating, loss of water, or other unexpected occurrence or event that results in the
need to evacuate the employee’s residence.

e Page 57 — Outlines the changes to the District’s leave program from short-term disability to the State-
run FAMLI program.

The Board will be asked to approve the Handbook as part of the action items section of the agenda and will go
into effect January 1, 2024.

3302549.1

59



- o ﬁ Style Definition: TOC 1: Tab stops: 6.99", Right,Leader: ... }

Style Definition: TOC 2 }

Photo to be added

2024 EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK

Ken-Caryl Ranch Metropolitan District

5313874.2

60



5313874.2

This page intentionally left blank.

1|Page

61



Table of Contents

JMPORTANT NOTICE ...ttt b et b bbb e bbb e s s b e sba e b be s b neanen 6 Formatted: Default Paragraph Font, Font: Not Bold, Check
spelling and grammar

JFrom the DiStrict MaBNAGET .......ccuiiiuiiiieiiiete bbb 7 Formatted: Default Paragraph Font, Font: Not Bold, Check
1.0 Definitions and GENEral STALEMENLS.........c..uuururruuererciescieeaseeesestsses st enssee s ses et 8 spelling and grammar
i L Formatted: Default Paragraph Font, Font: Not Bold, Check
1.1 History and Purpose of District spelling and grammar
1.2 EMployee COMMUNICALION ...vcviuiiiiitiiiiiiisistisiseisiessesesessssss s e sseasas e s ansssssasbassassassensssanansass 8 [F°"“atted’ Default Paragraph Font
) [ Formatted: Default Paragraph Font
1.3 Personnel Files....... e sttt es 8 F -
'ormatted: Default Paragraph Font
1.4 Release of INfOrmation.........oceuieiiinien e 9 [Formatted: Default Paragraph Font
1.5 Private Health Information..........c e 9 [Formatted: Default Paragraph Font
1.6 General Definitions... [Formatted: Default Paragraph Font
1.7 Emergency Suspension of @ District RUIe.........ccciiviiiiiininine it 12 [Formatted: Default Paragraph Font
1.8 Amendments.... [ Formatted: Default Paragraph Font
1.9 No Contractual Rights - At Will EmMployment.........c.cciviiiinininineininenesesesnesese et 12 [ Formatted: Default Paragraph Font
1.10 The Board's Reservation of Power and Authority .......ccccoovuiviniininniiniiniicincneceeeeenenn 12 [Formatted: Default Paragraph Font
1,12 Severability......ccocceeieieeeee e 12 [Formatted: Default Paragraph Font
2.0 Employee Status and ClassifiCations iieiiessssseeersssesssssssnneenneneissssssssseesnssssssssssssssnsesssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssesss 13
2.1 Employee Exempt and Non-Exempt Status ...
2.2 Administrative Classifications........coiieiiiiiiniiinc 13 [ Formatted: Default Paragraph Font
3.0 EMPIOYMENT POLICIES.......oiuiitiiitctct bbb bbb 14 Formatted: Default Paragraph Font, Font: Not Bold, Check
spelling and grammar
3.1 Equal Employment Opportunities........cccuiiiieiiiiniiniineeniinentese s se e sae s 14 [Formatted: Default Paragraph Font
3.2 Harassment and Discrimination Prohibited..........ccooiininini, 14 [Formatted: Default Paragraph Font
3.3 Sexual Harassment.... [Formatted: Default Paragraph Font
B [o] ArENT AUTNONITY.c.uiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiitetiteirertetertetetteteesetsateseesessatersasessstersnsassassnsesassassasasasee ‘'ormatted: Default Paragraph Font
3.4 No Apparent Authority 15 (F d: Default P hF
3.5 Procedure for Reporting lllegal Harassment or Discrimination.... [Formatted: Default Paragraph Font
3.6 No Sexual Activity ON DiStriCt PremiSeS......iiiiicerrereeriiiiiiiisrneneeeeieiseissssnseseessssssssssssnnessssssssssssnssasssssssss 16 [Formatted: Default Paragraph Font
3.7 Pregnancy and Related Medical Conditions ..........cccccevtiviiniininnineinisnencnenesesesesesesesessesnesneseennnn. 16 [Formatted: Default Paragraph Font
3.8 Non-Discrimination Against and Accommodation of Individuals with Disabilities..........ccccceeurvrrvernnncnne 16 ( Formatted: Default Paragraph Font
3.9 Workplace Anti-Violence POlICY ......coceeruiniintintintititctc sttt sn e sn e 17 [Formatted: Default Paragraph Font
3.10 Reporting of Child Abuse.... [ Formatted: Default Paragraph Font
3.11 Resignations and Job Separations...........ccceiiiniiiiiniiniinn 18 [ Formatted: Default Paragraph Font
3.12 Reference INQUIIES .....cciiiiuiiiintienee s sa e s sa e s 18 [Formatted: Default Paragraph Font
3.13 Hiring and Promotion........cocuieiiieeniintinitintiineesssssesnssassnsssssnssssssessssssssssssssssssesssssssssssssssssssssessess 19 [Formatted: Default Paragraph Font
3.14 Limitations on Hiring or Promotion of Close Relatives ...........ccccuvuiniiniinieiniicinccenenecceseceee, 19 [Formatted: Default Paragraph Font
3.15 Procedures for Employee Requests to Volunteer..........ccoeverveineiciiiieicniinninnninnnensessesssesesseesennnenen . 19 [Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

L 0 J 0 J 0 L J 0 0 JC I I A J L

2|Page

5313874.2

62



3.16 Inclement Weather POlICY ........coueouenieniiieec e 20
3.17 NUrsing MOThers ACt .....cuuiouiiiinieece s sa e s sa e s ae e 20
3.18 Outside or Additional EMPlOYMeNt........ccueuiiiiii e 20
3.19 Youth Employment Provision and Driving Automobiles and Trucks.........ccccevenviineiiiineiniinscnienncnnn, 21
4.0 Compensation and Work SChedules.............ociii 22
4.1 Adjustments to COMPENSALION ......eiiuiiiiiiiie e a s 22
.2 WOrK SChedUIES ......ccouiieeiiineitceeet ettt s e e ssa e s e e ne e s 22
4.3 Recording WOrK HOUFS ....cuuiiuiiiiititentectne sttt sa e st sae st s e s s s sa e s a s saesanann 22
4.4 Normal Pay ProCeAUIES......c.ccieiuententietietitet ettt ettt sttt st st sa e sa e e s e s e s snesaesn s e s n s s aanans 23

A.5 Overtime and Compensatory Time
8.6 SerVICe Calls......oeieieieeeeeece e s s a e s e e e e et e e e e saenens

A.7 Temporary Upgrade Pay.......c.cucueeeininieiniiietinientisesessessessssssessessesssessassssssassssessssssssnsssssssssssessssssens

4.8 Pay for Required Training or Travel ....
= O 111 1 U U OO 25

4.10 Cell Phone Reimbursement

A.11 Expense Reimbursement....
4.12 Mileage ReimbUrSEmMENt ......c.ueeiiiiiieictcec ettt r e s ssa e s a e ae s e ans 26
4.13 Windfall Eimination Provision...........cceuiieiiiiniiiiieiniisnnsse s sssssssssssessssssens 26

5.0 Employee Conduct...

5.1 Employee Responsibility to Comply with All Rules and Use Good Judgment .........cccceeevveenensecniennnnnnnen, 28
5.2 Code Of ELhiCS ..cueieieieiececee e s s a e n e 28
5.3 Off-Duty Conduct

5.4 Employees Charged with or Convicted of lllegal Conduct...........ccovirinininieeeeeeee 28
5.5 lllegal Drugs/Alcohol Free Workplace and Testing POliCY ........ccviertrienerentnienennntnienssienssesesessssessssennsanns 29
5.6 District's Right to Conduct Reasonable Searches

T T =1 TN 30
5B VENICIES . e a e s s r s 31
5.9 Property

5.10 Confidentiality and Conflicts of Interest..........coceivuiniiiiniinii e, 33
5.11 Personal Gain Prohibited..........coceeirnuiniininiiiniiieneenseesese st sae e 33
5.12 Attendance and Punctuality

5.13 Ability to Perform Duties After lliness, Injury or Leave of Absence.........ccccocevueneineineiienieenineinenienieiienne 34
5.14 Dress Code and HygIene .......c.cuiviiiuiiiiniiecnient ettt sa s g eae s an e 34

5.15 Smoking and Tobacco Use

5313874.2

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

[
[
[
[

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

spelling and grammar

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font, Font: Not Bold, Check

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

(
[
[
[
[
[
[Formatted: Default Paragraph Font
[
[
[
[
[
[Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

spelling and grammar

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font, Font: Not Bold, Check

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
( Formatted: Default Paragraph Font
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

e J v L J 0 J 0 0 J 0 0 )0 0 0 A JL L J L L J L J J L J 0 )0 J0C )0 0 JC A L L)L )L

63



5.16 Duty to Read Posted Items and Review Voice Mail.........ccocurinininenineinenesccccecec e 35
5.17 COMMUNICAEION ettt et e se e s s sa e s aeann 35
5.18 Use of Cell Phones and Other Audio/Video DeVICES.......cceverrreresiessrisntsessssenssssssssessssssssesssssssssnsassens 36
5.19 SOlICHAtIONS c.ueereieceeee e sa e sae s ra s 37
5.20 Online Publishing/Discussion, Letters to the Editor and Other Public Expressions of Opinion .............. 37
5.21 BOArd CONEAC....cicuiiiiteitine ittt sa e bt sa e e sa e e a e sa e st aas 37
5.22 Social Media POlICY ...cccueiiiiiiiiniiteseeteee sttt e e s n e s ae e 38
5.23 Media INQUITIES...ccciiiieiiieiece e e se e sa e e a e st ens 39
5.24 District Purchasing €ard USe.........coeeuiiiiniiniiniininictctctstss st st sa et se e s s s se e e e ane 39
5.25 District Business Accounts

5.26 Personal Use of Equipment and Supplies Prohibited ...........cccoivineneneninecee 39
5.27 Background Checks ........ccuevuiiiiiniiniiniiieneiienenene s sa s s sa e s sa e aesa e sanens 40

5.28 Public Health Emergency Whistleblower (PHEW) Policy

B0 LBAVE ... bbb b et 42

.1 FUNEIAI LEAVE ...t a e s e a e s e e a e a e e e e e e e e nea 42

6.2 Jury Duty and Witness Leave
5.3 VOlING LEAVE ...t e se e s sa e ra s 43
6.4 AdMINISErative LEAVE ......cccuiveiitiniiitiniictt ittt sae st e s e st e s e e s e s sa e s e s sae s s e s saesanesaessasnssnnans a3

6.5 Military Leave

6.6 Family and Medical Leave Act 0f 1993 ("FIMILA") .....ccivuiniinenniinnninnecntnensesnes s ssessessssssassssessesanens 43

6.7 Workers' COmpensation INSUFANCE .......ccccueeiietentinitrts ettt sa e sa st et e e aeeneas 45

6.8 Paid Time Off (PTO)

8.9 SICK LEAVE ... e a e e e e e e e e e e e n e nenen 47

6.10 Supplemental Sick Leave During a Public Health Emergency.........ccccovevininineintinicnnineieientiene e 48

6.11 Unpaid Leave

T 3 Lo LT T N 49
7.0 EMPIOYEe BENEFILS ..cvcviiiiiiiii s 50

7.1 Benefits

7-2 Benefits Continuation (COBRA) .......c.cceeueeieeteteiecete e tets st s s s s neeaeea e snesnesassa s s s snennanans 51

7.3 Flexible Spending ACCOUNTES ......c.cuiuiriiitiiiiiiiiintineneene sttt s e sas st s s e s saessassanesansanens 51

7.4 Life Insurance and Accidental Death & Dismemberment

7.5 Short Term Disability (STD)......ccccceerrentiitintirtintintestetetststst s st sa et et sse e s e s sanene 52

7.6 Long Term Disability......cccoiuiriiiiiniiinice e 52

7.7 Employee Recreational Benefits

5313874.2

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font, Font: Not Bold, Check

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
{spelling and grammar
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

spelling and grammar

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font, Font: Not Bold, Check

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font, Not Expanded by /

Condensed by

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

(
(
|
(
[ Formatted: Default Paragraph Font
(
(
(
(

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

o A A . A . L JL L L 0 J 0 0 0 0 0 A J JL J L J 0 J 0 J 0 )0 0 ) )L JL )L )L

64



7.8 Paid Family and Medical leave Insurance (FAMLI) Program .........ccccecevenenenenessenenennesnsssssssssssessssnens 53
8.0 Corrective Action and DiSCIPIINE......cccuiiiiiiiiiiiictciic e 54
8.1 COrrective ACHION ....cccuiieeiiee ittt s e e s s r e s e e s e s e e s e s snenae e 54
8.2 DiSCIPIINE ...ttt e a e e e ae s n s 54
8.3 DisCIpling ProceAUIE ..ot e e e e e e e e e ene 55
9.0 DiSPULE RESOIULION ......viitiiitiiiii bbbt bbbt 58
9.1 Dispute ReSOIULION.......cccuiiieceitece sttt s e s ssn e s aeenn 58
AAPPENIX 1ottt bbb bbb bbbttt 59
Benefit Table......oiiie e s 60

JFMLA Required POStiNG.......ccevvtentintiiitiniiittintinticteneestssaesnssaeseesssee s sssessnsssssssssssssnsssssssnsssssssssssssssssnennens 61
Healthy Families and Workplaces Act Required POStiNg ........cccevtrinininenentinesesectetcec e 62

Wage Deduction Required AZreement ........ccceveiviinitinniieenntininninieeninnnesessssessssssssssessssssssssssssssassssensess 63

[Employee Acknowledgement

5|Page

5313874.2

[ Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

spelling and grammar

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font, Font: Not Bold, Check

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font, Font: Not Bold, Check

spelling and grammar

(
(
[ Formatted: Default Paragraph Font
(

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

spelling and grammar

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font, Font: Not Bold, Check

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

(
(
[ Formatted: Default Paragraph Font
(
(

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

e U . L U A U

65



IMPORTANT NOTICE

This handbook sets forth the policies, procedures, and benefits for the Ken-Caryl Ranch Metropolitan District. The
District Board of Directors has the right to change this handbook at any time without notice. The policies,
procedures, and benefits contained in this handbook are current as of January 1, 2023 and supersede all prior
district policies, procedures, and benefits dealing with similar subject matter.

EACH DISTRICT EMPLOYEE IS AN “AT WILL” EMPLOYEE

This handbook applies to all employees. Employees of the District are “at-will,” meaning the District can terminate
employment at any time and for no reason. Similarly, employees may separate from employment at any time and
for no reason. This handbook does not continue an express or implied contract of employment. Notwithstanding
any statement to the contrary in this handbook, any representations contained in any District document (whether
in paper or electronic form), or any statement made by any District Board member, employee, agent, or
representative, any employee may be terminated at any time for any or no reason in the District’s sole discretion,
subject only to the requirements of applicable law.

6|Page
5313874.2

66



From the District Manager

Welcome to Ken-Caryl Ranch Metropolitan District! On behalf of our Board of Directors and the existing
team members, | would like to welcome you to an amazing group of creative, effective - resilient, humble;
and remarkable professionals. Our District is as unique as the skill sets of its team members. Our services,
programs, and facilities serve a community of approximately 14,000. We hawve-own nearly akmest- 900
acres of open space, maintain over 100 acres of parkland, and operate three outdoor swimming pools,
multiple tennis facilities, a community center, hundreds of recreation programs, and much more! District
employees are keenly aware of their impact in the community and take their roles as teachers|eaders,
stewards, and service providers very seriously. We strive to protect precious resources, deliver efficient
services, and adapt to the community’s changing needs.

Our culture at-the Distriet-is built upon-by a phrase | use routinely and one that guides my work as a
public servant: continuous improvement. Continuous improvement is the act of always striving to make
things better, which guides us in our work every day. Continually improving how and what we do
motivates us to progress, learn, and evolve. It also makes the quality of life of 14,000 community
members better. No matter how small the improvement may be, our pursuit of excellence is an
important objective in our service to the community. The District is also guided by the 2023 — 2027
Strategic Plan. | encourage you to familiarize yourself with its contents as it is your guiding document.

As you navigate your first few days and weeks with the District, please take time to ask questions of
other employees and myself. You will find that your workgroup is willing to share and are always
available to assist. Your success is our success!

Thank you for choosing to be part of Ken-Caryl Ranch Metropolitan District. We are confident that you
will be an amazing asset to our team. Welcome aboard!

Sincerely,
Traci Wieland, MPA
District Manager

Picture to be added <«

Mission Statement
To strengthen Ken-Caryl Ranch quality of Life and connections by
providing exceptional park, recreation, and outdoor educational experiences.

T|Page
5313874.2

[ Formatted: Centered

67


chrome-extension://efaidnbmnnnibpcajpcglclefindmkaj/https:/ken-carylranch.org/download/md-strategic-plan-2023-2027/?wpdmdl=11008&refresh=653771bfe4c981698132415
chrome-extension://efaidnbmnnnibpcajpcglclefindmkaj/https:/ken-carylranch.org/download/md-strategic-plan-2023-2027/?wpdmdl=11008&refresh=653771bfe4c981698132415

1.0 Definitions and General Statements

1.1 History and Purpose of District

Ken-Caryl Ranch Metropolitan District, established in May 1988, is a quasi-municipal corporation and political
subdivision organized pursuant to the Colorado Special District Act to provide park and recreation services. The
District levies a tax on the assessed value erof all property within its boundaries. Ken-Caryl Ranch Metropolitan
District is governed by a five-member Board of Directors elected by its citizens and serves approximately 14,000
residents within the boundaries of the District. The District works very closely with the Ken-Caryl Ranch Master
Association to serve the community in a unified and collaborative way.

Since the incorporation of the District, Ken-Caryl Ranch Metropolitan District has offered a wide range of park
recreation activities and facilities including Bradford Park, Community Park, Heirloom Park, North Ranch Park,
Ranch House Park, Saddlewood Park, Settlement Pond Park, Territory Park, the Community Center, three tennis
facilities, three outdoor aquatic facilities, 120 acres of greenbelts, and 19 miles of trails. The District also conducts
a broad program of recreation activities and special events for children and adults of all ages including school age
youth programming, wellness, preschool, and tennis.

1.2 Employee Communication

The District periodically communicates with employees on matters of common interest. These communications
may include, but are not limited to: letters mailed to the employee, bulletin board notices, email newsletters,
emails, surveys, GroupMe messages, meetings, electronic meetings, etc. Leadership strives to keep employees
informed of activities within their respective departments so that employees can perform their jobs with an
understanding of their relationship and importance to effective District-wide operations.

The District believes in an “open-door” policy that allows for communication and collaboration at all levels of the
organization. Employees are encouraged to discuss important matters with their supervisors first with problems
and inquiries concerning work being referred to the Department Director. The District Manager also welcomes
and encourages employee inquiries. If an employee is not satisfied after consulting the appropriate staff in his/her
own department and District Manager, they may utilize the dispute resolution procedure.

1.3 Personnel Files

A personnel file and a separate confidential file are maintained for each employee. Personnel files and confidential
files are kept in a locked, secure place and are kept as electronic documents as much as possible to which only the
District Manager and other authorized personnel have access for job-related purposes. Unauthorized personnel
are prohibited from reviewing the personnel files and confidential files. Employees may review their own
employee personnel file or confidential file in the presence of the District Manager or his/her designee at a time
established by the District Manager or his/her designee. No material may be removed from a personnel file or the
confidential file; provided, however, that authorized personnel may organize and transfer records between the
personnel file and the confidential file in the performance of their duties and where appropriate. This rule shall
not prohibit the disclosure of information in the employee's personnel file or confidential file when legally
required to do so.

In order to keep personnel records current, the Finance Department must be notified of any change in an
employee’s address, phone number, marital status, military status, any birth or death in any employee’s
immediate family, any change in the name or telephone number of the person to be notified in case of emergency,
any change in insurance or retirement plan beneficiary, or any other information needed to maintain accurate
records. Each employee is responsible for providing the District with records concerning any licenses or certificates

8|Page
5313874.2

68



required for the performance of his or her job, proof of insurance if receiving mileage reimbursement, proof of cell
phone coverage if receiving reimbursement, as well as any documents showing that education or training relevant
to employment has been completed.

1.4 Release of Information

The Colorado Open Records Act governs public access to District records, including personnel records. The home
address and telephone number, financial information and other information of a District employee maintained
because of the District-employee relationship may not be provided to the public without the consent of the
employee. Generally speaking, applications of past and current employees, employment agreements, performance
ratings, and wages and salaries of District employees are public records and are subject to publicreview, subject
to certain requirements of applicable law.

Employees may examine their own personnel records by contacting the Finance Department. Employees may
authorize the release of specified personnel records by executing a written request designating the record(s) to
be released and the person or entity to which they may be released. No personal information on former or current
District employees shall be provided via telephone inquiries except to confirm or deny past or present
employment status and dates of employment. A copy of any written information sent to a third party concerning
a former or current employee may also be provided to that employee upon the employee’s written request. The
District may charge the employee for the cost of such records subject to applicable law.

1.5 Private Health Information

Information regarding the health of any District employee is generally personal to that employee unless the
employee voluntarily makes this information available to management or other staff members or such
information is readily observable.

Under some circumstances provided by law or applicable regulation, the District will receive individual health
information. When received by the District all private health information will be kept confidential and—aceessand
access to such information will be provided to only those persons who have a legitimate need to know.

Any employee requesting sick leave, disability leave, or FMLA leave may be required to provide some health
infermationhealth information requested on the respective leave form. The District Manager, at the District’s
option and subject to applicable law, may request the employee to provide an appropriate certification from the
employees’ medical health careprovider.

1.6 General Definitions

Action Plan. The stages that may be followed when discipline is deemed reeessarynecessary, or performance
requires improvement.

Applicable Law. A Federal, State, or local constitution, charter, law, rule, ordinance, code, or regulation that
applies directly or indirectly to the District and/or its directors, officers, employees, agents, or representatives.
At-Will Employment. This handbook applies to all employees. This handbook does not continue an express or
implied contract of employment. Notwithstanding any statement to the contrary in this handbook, any
representations contained in any district document (whether in paper or electronic form), or any statement made
by any district Board member, employee, agent or presentative, any employee may be terminated at any time for
any or no reason in the District’s sole discretion, subject only to the requirements of applicable law.

Board. The District's Board of Directors, which is made up of five elected officials,—are-which, serves as the
District's governing body.

Business Day. Monday thruthrough Friday of every calendar week, not including holidays for which the District's
operations are closed.

9|Page
5313874.2

69



Communications Systems. The District's computer, telephone, internet and messaging systems, including but not
limited to, personal desktop and laptop computers, electronic media, servers, telephones, copy machines,
facsimiles, cell phones, radios, hand-held electronic devices, electronic storage devices, and the local area
network.

Comp Time. Under certain prescribed conditions and with Supervisor approval, employees may receive
compensatory time off, at a rate of not less than one and one-half hours for each overtime hour worked, instead
of cash overtime pay, in accordance with the policies outlined in this Handbook.

Corrective Action. Corrective action is intended to notify employee of conduct that is not in conformance with
the District’s rules or otherwise is inappropriate or deficient, so the employee can promptly take appropriate
action to ensure the conduct does not occur again. Corrective Actions are not discipline, although it can form the
basis for a disciplinary action.

Designee. An employee or other person to whom the Board or the District Manager has delegated or assigned a
specific duty, responsibility, or activity.

District. The legal entity known as the Ken-Caryl Ranch Metropolitan District, a political subdivision of the State
of Colorado.

District Manager. The District's District Manager, hired by, serving at the pleasure of, and acting under the
direction of, the Board.

District Premises. All buildings, offices, recreation facilities or areas, real property, parks, parking lots, places,
District vehicles, and equipment that the District owns, leases, manages or controls.

District Vehicle. All vehicles or other motorized machinery capable of movement that the District owns, leases or
controls.

Electronic Transmissions. All forms of electronic transmissions, including communications, that are created,
stored, received or sent on the District's communications systems (whether imbedded in software or otherwise),
including but not limited to, e-mail, text messages, instant messages, voicemails, access to internet websites, and
any other internet or electronic transmissions.

Employee(s). An individual hired by the District on a regular full-time, variable full-time, regular part-time,
variable part-time, seasonal, or variable temporary basis. The term "employee" does not include Board of
Directors, independent contractors, volunteers, or consultants.

Exempt Employee(s). An employee whose job assignments meet specific tests established by the federal Fair
Labor Standards Act (FLSA) and state law and who are exempt from minimum wage and/or overtime pay
requirements. These exemptions include administrative, executive/supervisor, and professional. Administrative
employees regularly exercise independent judgement and discretion in matters of significance and their primary
duty is non-manual in nature and directly related to management policies or general business operations.
Supervisory employees supervise the work of employees and have the authority to hire and fire, or effectively
recommend such action. Professional employees have knowledge of an advanced type in a field or science
customarily acquired by a prolonged course of specialized intellectual instruction and study. Exempt employees
are expected to work the hours necessary to satisfactorily complete the job duties and to be in the office and
available to employees and the public during normal business hours.

Family Member. An employee’s immediate family member including any person related by blood, marriage, civil
union, or adoption; a child to whom the employee stands in loco parentis or a person who stood in loco parentis
to the employee with the employee was a minor; or a person for whom the employee is responsible for providing
or arranging health- or safety-related care.

FLSA. The federal Fair Labor Standards Act, 29 U.S.C. § 201 et seq., and the federal regulations interpreting and
implementing the FLSA, 29 C.F.R., Part 500, et seq.

FMLA (Family Medical Leave Act). FMLA entitles eligible employees to take unpaid, job-protected leave in a
defieddefined 12-month period for specified family and medical reasons. Under the FMLA, eligible employees are
entitled up to 480 hours of family medical leave.

lllegal Drug(s). Any substance that is illegal in the United States under any applicable law, or any substance defined
as a controlled substance in C.R.S. § 18-18-101, et seq. and/or the Controlled Substances Act, 21 U.S.C. § 801, et

10|Page
5313874.2

70



seq., and the federal regulations interpreting and implementing the Controlled Substances Act, which is being
possessed, sold or used illegally. Marijuana, whether used for medical or recreational purposes, and psilocybin is
a controlled substance under Federal law and constitutes an illegal drug.

May. Optional; not required.

Must. Mandatory; required.

Non-Exempt Employee(s). Employees whose job positions do not meet FLSA or applicable regulations, and who are
not exempt from minimum wage and overtime pay requirements. Nonexempt employees are eligible to receive
overtime pay or Comp Time for hours worked more than 40 hours in a given workweek, or as otherwise required by
applicable law.

Paid Time Off (PTO). The amount of PTO that was earned by the employee in a previous year and carried over by
the employee to the current year pursuant to the District's PTO carry-over allowance.

Posts. Messages sent through or placed on Social Media websites by users, whether in the form of emails, "status
updates"”, "wall" messages, tweets, diary entries, instant messages, blog entries, photographs, videos, etc.

Public Health Emergency. An act of bioterrorism, a pandemic influenza, or an epidemic caused by a novel and highly
fatal infections agent for which an emergency is declared by a federal, state, or local public health agency; a disaster
emergency is declared by the governor; or a highly infectious illness or agent with epidemic or pandemic potential for
which a disaster emergency is declared by the governor.

Regular Full-Time Employee. An employee scheduled to work between 37 and 40 hours per week on an annual basis.
Employee is eligible to receive full health care benefits and full benefits package.

Regular Part-Time Employee. An employee scheduled to work between 20 and 29 hours per week on an annual
basis. Regular Part-Time Employees are not eligible to receive health care benefits but are eligible to receive a
prorated benefits package.

Rule. A written or oral District rule, policy, practice, or procedure, whether or not physically incorporated into
this Handbook.

Safety Sensitive Position A position whose duties or use of dangerous or heavy equipment may require additional
considerations as outlined in this HandbeekHandbook.

Seasonal Employee. An employee hired for a specific operational season, such as summer. There are no minimum
or maximum hours per week the employee may or shall work during the season. Seasonal employees are not
eligible to receive health care benefits but are eligible to receive a prorated benefits package.

Shall. Mandatory. Same as must. Contrast with “may”.

Social Media. Websites hosted by individuals or entities on which individuals and entities communicate by posting
information, sending emails and/or otherwise sharing data including, but not limited to, all forms of on-line
community activities, such as on-line social networks, message boards, conversation pages, photo sharing
websites, and chat rooms, Wikis such as Wikipedia and any other site where text can be posted, Facebook,
Snapchat, personal blogs (i.e., BlogSpot, CafePress, etc.), Photobucket, Flickr, Instagram, GroupMe, Twitter, Vine,
Yahoo, Google (including Google Docs, Gmail and other applications). This definition also applies to new forms of
communication that may arise the future.

Variable Full-Time Employee. An employee scheduled to work between 30 and 36 hours per week on an annual
basis. Variable Full-Time Employees are eligible to receive full health care benefits and a prorated benefits package.
Variable Part-Time Employee. An employee scheduled to work 19 or less hours per week on an annual basis.
Variable Part-Time Employees are not eligible to receive health care benefits but are eligible to receive a prorated
benefits package.

Variable Temporary Employee: An employee hired to work on an as-needed basis with no regular or reoccurring
work. Variable Temporary Employees are not eligible to receive health care benefits but are eligible to receive a
prorated benefits package.

Workweek. A period of seven consecutive days established by the Board for the purpose of calculating and paying
overtime to non-exempt employees in accordance with the FLSA. The District's workweek begins on Sunday at
12:01 a.m. and ends on the following Saturday at 12:00 midnight.

11|Page
5313874.2

71



1.7 Emergency Suspension of a District Rule
The Board, the District Manager or a Designee may suspend or modify any District rule, including any provision of
this Handbook, to meet the demands of an emergency, subject only to the requirements of applicable law.

1.8 Amendments

The Board may amend this Handbook any time in its sole discretion. Regardless whether an amendment is
physically incorporated into this Handbook, it is effective immediately upon adoption, unless the Board indicates
otherwise.

1.9 No Contractual Rights - At Will Employment

This Handbook does not constitute an express or implied employment contract with any employee.
Notwithstanding any statement to the contrary in this Handbook, any representations contained in any District
document (whether in paper or electronic form), or any statements made by any District Board member,
employee, representative or agent, any employee may be terminated at any time, with or without cause, subject
only to the requirements of applicable law.

1.10 The Board's Reservation of Power and Authority

Nothing in this Handbook shall constitute an irrevocable delegation of any express or implied power or authority
of the Board. The Board expressly reserves to itself all express and implied powers or authority vested in it by law.
The Board may at any time take any action required or permitted by this Handbook, including but not limited to
hiring, terminating, and imposing disciplinary action against the District Manager or any other employee.

1.11 Severability
If any part of this Handbook is held by judicial review to be invalid, every other part of this Handbook not
specifically held to be invalid shall continue in full force and effect.

12|Page
5313874.2

72



2.0 Employee Status and Classifications

2.1 Employee Exempt and Non-Exempt Status

Employees of the District are classified as either exempt or nonexempt under federal and state wage and hour laws,
and are further classified for administrative purposes, such as the administration of benefits like paid vacation or
holidays. These classifications do not determine eligibility for participation in the District’s group health plan.
Eligibility for participation in the District’s group health plan is governed by the terms of the plan documents as
well as applicable law. The following classifications are used throughout this Handbook.

Exempt and Non-Exempt Status

A.

Exempt Employees. An employee whose job assignments meet specific tests established by the federal
Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) and state law and who are exempt from minimum wage and/or overtime
pay requirements. These exemptions include administrative, executive/supervisor, and professional.
Administrative employees regularly exercise independent judgement and discretion in matters of
significance and their primary duty is non-manual in nature and directly related to management policies
or general business operations. Supervisory employees supervise the work of employees and have the
authority to hire and fire, or effectively recommend such action. Professional employees have knowledge
of an advanced type in a field or science customarily acquired by a prolonged course of specialized
intellectual instruction and study. Exempt employees are expected to work the hours necessary to
satisfactorily complete the job duties and to be in the office and available to employees and the public
during normal business hours.

Non-Exempt Employees. Employees whose job positions do not meet FLSA or applicable regulations, and
who are not exempt from minimum wage and overtime pay requirements. Nonexempt employees are eligible
to receive overtime pay or Comp Time for hours worked more than 40 hours in a given workweek, or as
otherwise required by applicable law.

2.2 Administrative Classifications
Employee Administrative Classifications

A.

5313874.2

Regular Full-Time Employee. An employee scheduled to work 40 hours per week on an annual basis.
Employee is eligible to receive full health care benefits and full benefits package.

Variable Full-Time Employee. An employee scheduled to work between 30 and 36 hours per week on an
annual basis. Variable Full-Time Employees are eligible to receive full health care benefits and a prorated
benefits package.

Regular Part-Time Employee. An employee scheduled to work between 20 and 29 hours per week on an
annual basis. Regular Part-Time Employees are not eligible to receive health care benefits but are eligible
to receive a prorated benefits package.

Variable Part-Time Employee. An employee scheduled to work 19 or less hours per week on an annual
basis. Variable Part-Time Employees are not eligible to receive health care benefits but are eligible to
receive a prorated benefits package.

Seasonal Employee. An employee hired for a specific operational season, such as summer. There are no
minimum or maximum hours per week the employee may or shall work during the season. Seasonal
employees are not eligible to receive health care benefits but are eligible to receive a prorated benefits
package.

Variable Temporary Employee. An employee hired to work on an as-needed basis with no regular or
reoccurring work. Variable Temporary Employees are not eligible to receive health care benefits but are
eligible to receive a prorated benefits package.

13|Page

73



3.0 Employment Policies

3.1 Equal Employment Opportunities

The District provides equal employment opportunities to all employees without regard to race, hair texture, hair
type, protective hairstyles, color, religion, creed, national origin, ancestry, sex, gender, marital status, military
status, veteran status, age, physical or mental disability, pregnancy, sexual preference or orientation, gender
identity or expression, transgender status, genetic information, membership or non-membership in a labor
organization or other status in any other group protected by applicable law. This policy applies to all terms and
conditions of employment, including but not limited to hiring/appointment, transfer, promotion, demotion,
termination, benefits, lay-off, compensation and training. Employees are responsible for supporting these
objectives and implementing this policy. Employee must assist in promoting a workplace environment free of
illegal harassment or discrimination. No employee shall be coerced, intimidated, harassed or retaliated against
for reporting a violation of the policies stated in this section.

3.2 Harassment and Discrimination Prohibited
The District expressly prohibits any form of harassment or discrimination of an employee based on race, hair <
texture, hair type, protective hairstyles, color, religion, creed, national origin, ancestry, sex, gender, sexual
preference or orientation, gender identity or expression, transgender status, genetic information, age, physical
or mental disability, pregnancy, military status, veteran status, marital status, or membership or non-
membership in a labor organization or status in any other group protected by applicable law. The District’s
directors, officers, supervisors, managers, and employees are prohibited from engaging in unlawful harassment
or discrimination while performing their duties or engaging in any District-related activity, including District-
related activities occurring off the District Premises. Harassment includes, but is not limited to, unwelcome
conduct such as:

e \erbal, physical, or written abuse or threats.

e Offensive comments, slurs, jokes, or epithets.

e Displaying offensive materials, pictures, or objects.

e Unwanted sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, or other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual

nature.
e Bullying or cyberbullying. «
3.3 Harassment and Discrimination Prevention Program “

The District has established a comprehensive program designed to prevent harassment, discrimination, retaliation
and other unfair employment practices; deter future harassers; and protect employees from harassment. The
program’s objectives include:
e Preventing Harassment and Discrimination: The District is committed to creating a workplace free from
harassment and discrimination, fostering a culture of respect and inclusion.
e Deterrence of Harassment: The program aims to deter future harassers by setting clear expectations and
consequences for inappropriate behavior.
e Protection of Employees: The District prioritizes the protection of employees from harassment and
discrimination, ensuring their physical and emotional well-being.
e Annual Training: As part of this program, all Supervisors and Staff are required to undergo annual<
harassment awareness and prevention training to raise awareness, promote understanding, and
emphasize the importance of preventing harassment and discrimination.

14|Page
5313874.2

Formatted: Space Before: 0 pt, After: 0 pt, Border: Top:
(No border), Bottom: (No border), Left: (No border), Right:
(No border)

( Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 11 pt )
( Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 11 pt )
( Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 11 pt )

Formatted: Space Before: 0 pt, After: 0 pt, Outline
numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: Bullet + Aligned at:
0.25" + Tab after: 0.5" + Indent at: 0.5", Border: Top: (No
border), Bottom: (No border), Left: (No border), Right: (No
border)

[ Formatted: Heading 2, Left ]

Formatted: List Paragraph,Style 15,Style 34, Bulleted +
Level: 1 + Aligned at: 0.25" + Indent at: 0.5"

74



3.3 Sexual Harassment
The District prohibits sexual harassment. No one at the District, including directors, officers, managers,
supervisors, employees, customers, independent contractors, vendors or any other person, may make sexual
advances or requests for sexual favors, or engage in any other verbal/physical conduct of a sexual or gender-based
nature, or based upon an individual's sexual orientation or transgender status where:
e Such advances, requests or conduct have the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an
employee's work performance or creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive work environment; or
e Itis obvious or implied that tolerating or submitting to the conduct is a condition of employment, or will
be used for the basis of any employment decision, including but not limited to, hiring, firing, performance
appraisals, salary, benefits, position, job transfers, promotions or any other decision affecting any term or
condition of employment with the District (all such conduct is defined in this policy as "sexual
harassment").

An employee shall not be subjected to sexual requests or insulting behavior or language based on gender or sexual
orientation. An employee shall not be led to believe any employment opportunity or benefit will in any way
depend on his/her cooperation with sexual demands or that he/she must tolerate a sexually offensive
environment.

Employees must always conduct themselves in a professional and business-like manner and must refrain from
inappropriate sexual conduct that could lead to a claim of sexual harassment. Such conduct includes, but is not
limited to:

e Sexually implicit or explicit communications whether in written form (such as cartoons, posters, calendars,
magazines, publications, notes, letters, email, words or designs on clothing) or oral form (such as
comments, jokes, foul or obscene language of a sexual nature, gossiping or questions about another's sex
life, or repeated unwanted requests for dates); and,

e Physical gestures and other non-verbal behavior (such as unwelcome touching, grabbing, fondling, kissing,
massaging, or brushing up against another's body).

Even "innocent" conduct may constitute sexual harassment. Regardless of an employee’s intent, conduct that a
reasonable person would find offensive may constitute sexual harassment and is prohibited.

3.4 No Apparent Authority

Regardless of title or position, no District employee, including but not limited to managers and supervisors, and
no District director has the authority (express, actual, apparent or implied) to harass or discriminate against an
employee or any other person. This policy applies while on the job or during any District-related activity.

3.5 Procedure for Reporting lllegal Harassment or Discrimination

Required Reporting. Employees must immediately report any unlawful harassment or discrimination to which
they are subjected, which they observe, or of which they are aware. Employees must report any unlawful
harassment or discrimination directly to supervisor, manager, Human Resources, or any trusted member of
management. If the supervisor is the subject of the complaint, employees should report the incident to the next
level of management.Bistrict-Manager, except that: (a) if the report involves the District Manager or Board
member other than the Board President, employees must report the harassment or discrimination to the Board
President; and (b) if the report involves the Board President, employees must report the harassment or

15|Page
5313874.2

 Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 11 pt

75



discrimination to another Board member. If the report concerns sexual harassment, employee may request that
a person of the same gender be provided to receive employee report.

Confidentiality. Information concerning a complaint of illegal harassment or discrimination will be treated as
confidentially as possible under the specific circumstances.

Investigation. Once a report of harassment or discrimination is made, the District Manager or his/her Designee,
will promptly investigate it in a manner the District Manager or Designee deems appropriate. If the reportinvolves
the District Manager, the investigation will be conducted by a Board member committee, an outside human
resources consultant, or in such other manner as the Board deems appropriate in its sole discretion. If the report
involves a Board member, the investigation will be conducted by an outside human resources consultant or in
such other manner as the Board deems appropriate in its sole discretion.

Resolution. After the facts have been determined, the complaining party and the accused will be advised of the
results of the investigation. If the investigation substantiates the complaint, appropriate action will be taken
against those involved in the inappropriate conduct.

No Retaliation. An employee shall not be harassed, intimidated, or subjected to retaliation for reporting illegal
harassment or discrimination, or for cooperating with or participating in any investigation of illegal harassment or
discrimination. Employees must report retaliation in the same manner as a complaint of illegal harassment or
discrimination.

3.6 No Sexual Activity on District Premises
Sexual activity on District Premises or while performing any District duty or activity is prohibited, regardless
whether the sexual activity is consensual.

3.7 Pregnancy and Related Medical Conditions

The District treats pregnant employees the same as all other employees. Disabilities caused or contributed to by
pregnancy, childbirth, or related medical conditions, for all job-related purposes, shall be treated the same as
disabilities caused or contributed to by other medical conditions. As with any other employee, a pregnant
employee will be permitted to work if she can perform the essential functions of the job. If a pregnant employee's
physician determines she is unable to perform the essential functions of the job, the District will treat the
employee in the same manner as it treats other temporarily disabled employees.

In order to ensure that a pregnant employee in a safety sensitive position is capable of performing the essential
functions of the job, and does not pose a risk to herself, the public or a co-worker in the performance of her duties,
the District will require a pregnant employee in a safety sensitive position to provide medical certification from
her physician, on a regular basis but no less than every 30 days (and may require it more frequently during the
later stages of pregnancy, to the extent permitted by applicable law), that the employee is capable of fully
performing the essential functions of the safety sensitive position. If at any time the pregnant employee's
physician advises the District that she is not capable of fully performing the essential functions of the job, the
District will treat the employee in the same manner as it treats other temporarily disabled employees. Further, if
at any time the District has an objective basis to believe the employee is not capable of fully performing the
essential functions of the safety sensitive position, the District may require the employee to submit to a fitness
for duty examination by the District's medical advisor. The employee may be required to submit a physician's
statement that she is fit for duty before returning to her safety sensitive position.

5313874.2 16|Page

76



Upon request of a pregnant employee following the procedures outlined in Section 3.8 below, the District will
make all reasonable accommodations for health conditions related to pregnancy or physical recovery from
childbirth unless such accommodations would impose an undue burden on the District.

3.8 Non-Discrimination Against and Accommodation of Individuals with Disabilities

Generally. In accordance with applicable law, the District will provide reasonable accommodation to a qualified
individual with a disability. If an employee believes they have been discriminated against or that the District has
failed to provide reasonable accommodation, that employee must file a complaint in accordance with Section 3.5,
above.

Procedure to Request Accommodation. If an employee believes they are a qualified individual with a
disability, the employee may make a written request for reasonable accommodation to the District Manager. If
necessary, and in accordance with the ADA, the District may also request information from the employee’s
physician, or its own provider, relating to the request for accommodation and limitations. The District Manager
or his/her designee will meet with the employee to discuss and identify the precise limitation(s) resulting from
the disability and the potential accommodation the District might make to help overcome those limitation(s). The
District Manager or a Designee (and, if necessary, other District representatives identified as having a need to
know) will determine the feasibility of the requested accommodation, considering various factors, including, but
not limited to, the nature and cost of the accommodation, the availability of tax credits and deductions, outside
funding, the District's overall financial resources and organization, and the accommodation's impact on District
operations, including its impact on other employees to perform their duties and the District's ability to conduct
its business and fulfill its purpose.

Retaliation Prohibited. An employee shall not be retaliated against as a result of reporting or cooperating in
the investigation of an alleged violation of any District rule or applicable law, including but not limited to the FLSA,
Title VII of the Civil Rights Act, the Americans With Disabilities Act (ADA), the Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA),
the Age Discrimination in Employment Act (ADEA), the Pregnancy Discrimination Act (PDA), the Colorado Anti-
Discrimination Act (CADA), the Healthy Families and Workplaces Act (HFWA), and the Public Health Emergency
Whistleblower Act (PHEW). If employee believes he/she employee-havehas been retaliated against, employee
must file a complaint of retaliation in accordance with the procedures set forth in Section 3.5, above.

3.9 Accommodations of Religious Beliefs

The District will provide reasonable accommodations for those with sincerely held religious beliefs, observances,+
or practices. In order to request religious accommodations, please contact your immediate supervisor [or another
supervisory employee]. The District is not required to provide the employee’s preferred accommodation, and both
parties must participate in the interactive process to determine what reasonable accommodations will allow the
employee to perform the essential functions of their position without undue burden on the District.

3.910 Workplace Anti-Violence Policy

The District's goal is to maintain a workplace free from intimidation, threats, and violence. This includes, but is
not limited to physically, psychologically or emotionally intimidating or threatening behavior, physical or verbal
mistreatment or injury, vandalism, sabotage, use of weapons, openly carrying weapons onto the District Premises
or during any District duty or activity, or any other act that in the District's opinion is inappropriate in the
workplace.

The use of District property, including but not limited to the District's communications systems, in a physically,
psychologically, or emotionally threatening, intimidating or violent manner is prohibited. All employees are
prohibited from bringing a weapon onto District Premises or possessing a weapon while performing any District

17|Page
5313874.2

[ Formatted: Font: Bold

[ Formatted: Font color: Auto

[ Formatted: Normal, Justified

[ Formatted: Default Paragraph Font, Font: Not Bold

77



duty or activity, except for the following individuals: Law enforcement officials; and an individual authorized under
Colorado law to carry a concealed weapon in a public place. Under current Colorado law, the District cannot
prohibit an employee who possesses a valid concealed carry permit from carrying a concealed weapon in the
public portions of the District Premises; however, as an employer, the District can and does prohibit employees
from carrying or storing a concealed weapon in any non-public portion of the District Premises. Further,
employees are hereby notified that carrying, storage or use of a concealed weapon in the performance of any
District duty or activity is expressly prohibited and not within the scope of employment. As such, if employees
carry, store, or use a concealed weapon while performing a District duty or activity, employees do so without
District authority and will be individually responsible for such actions. If employees intend to store or carry a
concealed weapon in a public portion of the District Premises, employees must provide the District Manager or a
Designee with a copy of a valid state permit before taking such action.

For purposes of this policy, a "weapon" shall include firearms of any type, whether loaded or unloaded, or any
other object or substance designed, or which the possessor intends to use, to inflict psychological or emotional
harm, bodily injury, or death upon another individual. The term "weapon" includes knives, except knives with a
blade less than 3 inches in length that employees routinely carry to assist them in performing their duties, unless
such a knife is brought onto the District Premises with the intent to cause psychological or emotional harm, bodily
injury, or death.

If an employee feels he or she has been subjected to workplace violence, has witnessed workplace violence, or
knows an individual who has engaged in workplace violence, that employee must immediately report it in
accordance with the reporting procedure set forth in Section 3.5. If there is an immediate threat to an employee’s
health/safety or the health/safety any other individual, or to District property, employees must immediately call
911. The District will investigate all reports of workplace violence and take such action as it deems appropriate.
Any employee who engages in workplace violence may be subjected to discipline, up to and including immediate
termination. The District also may report any incident of workplace violence to the appropriate law enforcement
agency. Retaliation against an employee for making or participating in the investigation of a complaint of
workplace violence is prohibited.

3.181 Reporting of Child Abuse

An employee who, in the course of performing his/her duties to the District, observes a child being subjected to
circumstances that reasonably indicate child abuse or neglect, or who otherwise has reasonable cause to believe
that a child has been subjected to abuse or neglect, shall immediately report the suspected child abuse or neglect
to their supervisor.

NOTHING IN THIS SECTION RELIEVES ANY EMPLOYEE WHO MAY BE A MANDATORY REPORTER BY VIRTUE OF THEIR
EMPLOYMENT OR POSITION OF HIS/HER OBLIGATION TO REPORT THE SUSPECTED CHILD ABUSE OR NEGLECT
DIRECTLY TO THE COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES OR LOCAL LAW ENFORCEMENT. AN EMPLOYEE
WHO IS BE A MANDATORY REPORTER BY VIRTUE OF OTHER EMPLOYMENT OR POSITION IS EXPECTED TO COMPLY
WITH HIS/HER MANDATORY REPORTING OBLIGATIONS.

An employee shall not be retaliated against for reporting suspected child abuse pursuant to this Section.

3.124 Resignations and Job Separations

Generally. When possible, employees are requested to provide advance written notice to their supervisor of an
employee’s intent to resign. The supervisor is responsible for immediately forwarding the original letter of
resignation to the Finance Department. If necessary or appropriate in the District Manager's discretion, the
employee may use any available PTO during the notice period.

5313874.2 18|Page

78



Return of District Property - Failure to Return Reduces Final Paycheck. Employees must return all
District property, including keys, uniform items, logo apparel, purchasing card, computers, and District
identification materials, on or before their last day of work. By a separate written agreement, employees and
volunteers who do not return District property must reimburse the District in the amount necessary to replace
the property. The District may take all appropriate action to recover any District property not returned on or
before an employee’s last day of work (or the value of such property), and all associated costs, including but not
limited to deducting the cost of such property from the employee’s final pay, subject to applicable law.

Final Pay. Final pay will be processed in accordance with the District's normal payroll procedures. Upon
separation, employees will be paid out for one half of their accrued and unused PTO. Banked sick leave, if any, will
be forfeited when an employee resigns or is terminated. The District may withhold the amount of outstanding
obligations (i.e. negative PTOunearned-butused-PTO, medical/dental coverage, education reimbursement, etc.)
of the employee from his or her paycheck, when appropriate and as permitted by law, unless the employee has
made other arrangements with the Finance Department.

Exit Procedures. An employee who has resigned, been terminated, or is retiring will be required to meet with
the District Manager, Department Director, or Designee to discuss various items relating to the separation of
employment, including but not limited to final pay and available PTO payout, provide the employee's current
address for mailing final pay and tax information, return all District property, and make arrangements for the
continuation of health benefits, if applicable.

3.132 Reference Inquiries

The District does not furnish open letters of recommendation or provide letters of reference addressed to "Whom
it May Concern". In response to inquiries from prospective employers, the District will give only dates of
employment and verify the position(s) worked. The District will not answer any specific questions, nor will it give
references, with respect to former employees. If employees receive a call inquiring about a former employee,
they must refer it to the District Manager or Finance Department. The only exception to this policy are official
letters of experience required by the State of Colorado for childcare certification purposes.

3.143 Hiring and Promotion

The District hires and promotes individuals based upon their skills, experience, qualifications, attitude, and
aptitude for the position to be filled, regardless of whether they are District employees or outside candidates. All
qualified employees are potential candidates for hire or promotion to a new or vacant position. The District will
make reasonable efforts to announce, post, or otherwise make known all opportunities for promotion to all
current employees on the same day as external postings. Such announcements or postings must be made prior to
making a promotional decision. Postings shall include the hourly or salary compensation, or a range of the hourly
or salary compensation, for the position and a general description of all the benefits and other compensation that
will be offered to the person hired for the position. If an employee is hired or promoted to a position but is unable
to satisfactorily perform the duties of the position, the employee is not guaranteed an alternative position or
continued employment with the District. State law prohibits a District Director from also being a District employee.
Accordingly, employees must resign from their employment upon being elected to a District Director position. In
addition, a Director is not eligible for employment with the District, unless the Director resigns from his/her
elected position.

The Board has sole discretion in determining how to fill a vacancy in the District Manager position, including
whether to promote from within or solicit applicants from within and outside the District, and all rules with respect
to the promotion or hiring process, in accordance with applicable law.

5313874.2 19|Page

79



3.154 Limitations on Hiring or Promotion of Close Relatives
The District may decline to hire or promote, or may limit the hiring or promotion of, an individual or employee if
it would result in close relatives serving in supervisor/subordinate positions, and:
A. One would directly or indirectly exercise supervisory, appointment, dismissal, or disciplinary authority
over the other;
B. One would audit, verify, receive, or be entrusted with money received or handled by the other in the
course of employment; or
C. One would have access to the other's confidential information, including payroll and personnel records.

When employees become close relatives and their working relationship falls within this policy, one employee may
be required to transfer to another available position or to resign. If neither employee voluntarily transfers or
resigns, the District Manager may terminate or transfer one of the two employees, in his/her discretion. For
purposes of this section, "close relative" means (i) natural or step-family relationships equal to or closer than first
cousin, including all descendants of the individual's grandparents; and (ii) an individual's spouse or partner in a
civil union, and anyone descended from that spouse's or partner's grandparents.

3.165 Procedures for Employee Requests to Volunteer

The procedures for employee requests to volunteer are intended to accommodate those employees who desire
to volunteer as District athletic coaches, at District events, or otherwise to fill volunteer positions available at the
District. An employee may voluntarily, and of his/her own free will and discretion, request to volunteer for the
District pursuant to these procedures. Employees are not required to request to volunteer, and the District does
not take any position with respect to whether an employee requests to volunteer. Rather, employees who request
to volunteer do so voluntarily, at their own discretion, and for their own benefit.

Pursuant to the federal Fair Labor Standards Act, employees will be considered for volunteer service only if the
duties of the volunteer service are different than the duties of the employee's paid position. Employee requests
to volunteer will be denied if the volunteer service involves the same types of duties as the employee's paid
position.

Employees who wish to request to volunteer must have the volunteer work approved the District Manager in
advance of the volunteer work. Volunteer requests will be reviewed on a case-by-case basis to determine: (a) the
actual duties and responsibilities performed by the employee in his/her paid position; (b) the actual duties and
responsibilities that would be performed as part of the requested volunteer service; and (c) whether the paid and
volunteer duties are the same or different type. District Manager or director will notify the requesting employee
whether the request to volunteer is approved or denied.

3.176 Inclement Weather Policy

The District is committed to a year-round operating schedule in pursuit of its mission to provide exceptional services
to our community. It is the intent of the District to remain open and adhere to full operations, when possible. However,
the District does not advise employees to take unwarranted risks when traveling to work in the event of inclement
weather. Employees should exercise their best judgment regarding road conditions and other safety concerns.

Under exceptional circumstances when the District officially closes or has modified work hours, the District will excuse
employees from work for all or a portion of the day. The District Manager will determine whether such time off is
paid, unpaid and/or employees may need to use available PTO for such time where the employee is not required to
work. If the District remains open, it is expected that staff work or utilize PTO to cover hours of the program closing.
Supervisors may approve work hours if the employee can work from home. It is anticipated that the need to excuse

20|Page
5313874.2

80



any employee from work will be rare and that snowfall, other inclement weather, or emergencies will not normally
be cause for an employee's absence. If the supervisor does excuse an employee, then pay for the time taken will come
from the employee's available PTO.

The designated contact(s) will inform the appropriate pre-determined website, email, social media, and phone
system contacts so that information regarding District facilities may be disseminated quickly to all concerned
patrons. Youth programs and preschool will follow the Jefferson County Public School Snow Day Policy. Employees
are not paid for inclement weather cancellations; however, eligible employees can use available PTO for hours not
worked.

3.187 Nursing Mothers Act

The District will provide reasonable unpaid break time or allow an employee to use break time, meal time or both,
each day to allow the employee to express breast milk for her nursing child for up to two years after the child's
birth. The District will make reasonable efforts to provide a room or other location in close proximity to the work
area, other than a toilet stall, where an employee may express breast milk in privacy. An employee who desires
time in which to express milk is asked to make her request to her supervisor at least one week in advance of her
anticipated need. This notice period will allow adequate time to identify an appropriate space. Upon receipt of
the request, the supervisor must contact and coordinate with facilities.

3.198 Outside or Additional Employment

Employees may be employed by other entities or run a personal business outside of their employment with the
District. However, the District requires that an employee’s activities away from the job must not compromise the
District’s interest or adversely affect the employee’s job performance and ability to fulfill their responsibilities.
Employees are cautioned to carefully consider the demands that additional work activity will create before seeking
or accepting outside employment. Outside employment will not be considered an excuse for poor job performance,
absenteeism, tardiness, leaving early, or refusal to work overtime or different hours. If outside work activity does
cause or contribute to job-related problems, the employee may be asked to terminate the outside employment if
he/she wishes to remain with the District.

Any use of District property for outside employment is prohibited. Conducting business for outside employment or
an employee’s own personal business during their scheduled work hours is prohibited. This includes, but is not
limited to, use of District equipment such as cell phones, District vehicles, or purchasing any items under District
accounts with outside vendors.

3.2049 Youth Employment Provision and Driving Automobiles and Trucks

DRIVING - Under 17-Years of Age. No employee under 17 years of age may drive a motor vehicle on public
roads as part of his or her job.

DRIVING - 17 Years of Age. Seventeen-year-olds may drive on public roadways as part of their employment,
but ONLY if all of the following requirements are met:

1. The driving is limited to daylight hours;

2. The 17-year-old holds a state license valid for the type of driving involved in the job performed;

3. The 17-year-old has successfully completed a state approved driver education course and has no record of
any moving violations at the time of hire;

4. The driving does not involve towing of vehicles, route deliveries or route sales, transportation for hire of
property, goods, or passengers, urgent, time-sensitive deliveries, or the transporting at any one time of
more than three passengers, including the employees of the employer;

21|Page
5313874.2

81



5. The driving performed by the minor does not involve more than two trips away from the primary place of
employment in any single day for the purpose of delivering goods of the minor's employer to a customer
(except urgent, time-sensitive deliveries which are completely banned);

6. The driving performed by the minor does not involve more than two trips away from the primary place of
employment in any single day for the purpose of transporting passengers (other than the employees of the
employer);

7. The driving takes place within a thirty (30) mile radius of the place of employment;

The automobile or truck does not exceed 6,000 pounds gross vehicle weight;

9. The automobile or truck is equipped with a seat belt for the driver and any passengers and the employer
has instructed the youth that the seat belts must be used when driving the vehicle; and

10. The driving is only occasional and incidental to the 17-year-old's employment. This means that the youth
may spend no more than one-third of his or her workday and no more than 20 percent of his or her work
time in any workweek driving.

©

All employees must comply with applicable traffic and driving laws, including by wearing a seatbelt and complying« [Formatted: Justified, Line spacing: single

with posted speed limits, while driving in the course of performance of their duties for the District. An employee’s
failure to comply with such traffic and driving laws, or engaging in reckless or intentional misbehavior, while driving
may preclude an employee’s ability to obtain workers’ compensation or other disability benefits if the employee is
involved in an accident while performing their duties for the District.

22|Page
5313874.2



4.0 Compensation and Work Schedules

4.1 Adjustments to Compensation

The District evaluates employee compensation as part of its annual budgeting process. Upon development of a
pay plan structure, each position will be assigned to an occupation group or job family based on similarity of work
functions. Also, each position is assigned a pay range that defines minimum and maximum rates of pay.

Pay ranges may be adjusted for various reasons, including but not limited to changes in market conditions,
minimum wage, or internal value of a position. Market value of a position is determined through survey(s) that
compare the District pay range(s) for selected positions to those of other employers in the market defined by the
District. Internal value is measured through a job evaluation process, which assesses the value of a position
relative to other District positions.

4.2 Work Schedules

Employees will work the schedules and hours established by their supervisor, manager, or the District Manager.
The District may change work schedules from time to time in its sole discretion to meet its business needs. The
District is not subject to the Colorado Wage Claims Act (“CWCA”) and has no legal obligation to provide breaks or
meal periods to any employee. Each department may decide, based upon its business needs, whether to provide
breaks and/or a bona fide meal period for employees. If provided, the meal period is unpaid for non-exempt
employees, unless the employee is required to remain "on duty" on the premises during the lunch period.

4.3 Recording Work Hours

General Policy. Non-exempt employees are responsible for submitting the employee’s time sheet to a
supervisor through the electronic timekeeping system on a biweekly basis for approval and submittal to payroll.
Full-time, non-exempt employee hours are rounded to the nearest quarter of an hour. If an employee is unable
to clock in or out because of a computer issue, accidental oversight, or the employee is at an off-site location, it is
the employee’s responsibility to notify his/her supervisor who will manually correct the issue. Non-exempt
employees are generally prohibited from performing work-related duties outside of their normal work schedule.
Non-exempt employees should limit performing work-related duties outside their normal work schedules to
emergency situations and should notify their immediate supervisor if the work causes them to go into overtime.
Work-related duties include checking and responding to emails, text messages and phone calls during off hours.

Discrepancies in Time Records. If employee believes there is a discrepancy between his/her personal records
and the electronic timekeeping system, he/she must immediately report this information to his/her supervisor.
Reports of discrepancies will be promptly investigated. If it is determined that an employee’s time sheet
incorrectly reflects the employee’s time worked, the employee’s pay will be promptly adjusted accordingly.

Falsification of Time Sheets or Other District Documents or Records Prohibited. Actual hours worked,
and PTO or other time off taken, must be recorded accurately by each non-exempt employee, and reported to
each employee’s supervisor or manager. Managers must verify all hours reported. Employees must not complete
the time sheet of any other employee. Falsification of any District document or record, including time sheets, is
prohibited, and may result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination.

Arrival and Departure Time. Employees should report to work no more than five minutes prior to their
scheduled starting time and stay no more than five minutes after their scheduled stopping time, without express,
prior authorization from his or her supervisor.

23|Page
5313874.2

83



4.4 Normal Pay Procedures

Pay Day. Employees will be paid every other Thursday for work performed in the prior work period. If the regular
pay day falls on a holiday, employee will be paid on the last day that the bank office is open for business before
the holiday.

Payroll Deductions. The District is required by law to make certain deductions from employee pay, including
deductions for Federal, State, and District taxes, Medicare, and ICMA contributions. In accordance with Section 7,
the District also will deduct the employee’s portion of the cost of health, dental and vision insurance premiums
from the paychecks of those employees who choose to participate in the District's health benefit program. Other
deductions can only be made upon an employee’s specific request and agreement. Payroll deductions also may
be made from an employee’s paycheck for court-ordered garnishments, or upon termination of an employee’s
employment pursuant to a separate written agreement with the District for certain items, including but not limited
to the failure to return District property or the repayment of unearned PTO that such employee used before that
employee earned it, in accordance with Section 6.

Direct Deposit. As a political subdivision of the State, the District is exempt from the requirement in the CWCA
of obtaining an employee's voluntary authorization for direct deposit. As a result, the District requires all
employees to participate in direct deposit as a condition of employment.

4.5 Overtime and Compensatory Time

Employees are expected to work scheduled and unscheduled hours as necessary to meet the District's services
needs and to maintain the District's efficient and effective administration and operation. Exempt employees are
required to work all hours necessary to satisfactorily perform their job; they are not entitled to, and do not receive,
overtime compensation, regardless of how many hours in a workday, or days or hours in a workweek, they work.

The fact that a non-exempt employee is asked or required to work additional hours does not mean such hours are
automatically overtime or comp time. Whether actual hours worked are overtime is determined by the detailed
regulations interpreting and implementing the FLSA. All non-exempt employees are prohibited from working
unscheduled hours, unless:
A. asupervisor or manager orders or asks employee to work the unscheduled hours; or,
B. anemployee asks and receives prior approval from their supervisor or manager to work the unscheduled
hours.

Non-Exempt Employees. In general, a non-exempt employee will be paid overtime at 1% times his/her regular
hourly rate of pay for all hours actually worked in excess of 40 hours in a workweek. Mandatory employee
attendance at lectures, meetings, and training is counted as time actually worked for purposes of calculating
whether overtime wages are due. Meal periods, if provided, holidays, PTO, personal time, and any leave of
absence are not counted as time actually worked for purposes of calculating overtime. Overtime will be computed
on actual minutes worked, rounded to the smallest increment capable of being recorded by the District's
electronic timekeeping system. Overtime will normally be paid in the pay period in which it is earned. All overtime
must be pre-approved by a supervisor or manager. Employees who work unauthorized overtime may be subject
to discipline. The District may, in its sole discretion, provide for compensatory time off (“Comp Time”) for non-
exempt employees in lieu of overtime payment. For a non-exempt employee, one hour of overtime is converted
to 1% hours of Comp Time. (For example, an employee who works two hours of overtime would receive three
hours of Comp Time).The maximum amount of Comp Time that any employee may accrue is 60 hours for a regular
full-time employee, 45 hours for a variable full-time employee, and 30 hours for a regular part-time employee.
Anything in excess of these maximums will be paid out as overtime on the next pay period.

24|Page
5313874.2

84



Exempt Employees. Exempt employees are not required to fill out time sheets for days and hours worked and
do not receive overtime compensation. Exempt employees are responsible for working the days and hours
necessary to satisfactorily perform their duties and responsibilities. While the District supports flexible work
schedules and locations, all exempt employees are expected to work primarily at the District's office during normal
business hours to be readily available to constituents, customers, supervisors, and other employees.

Non-Exempt to Exempt. Non-exempt employees who are reclassified or promoted to an exempt position will
be paid for all unused compensatory time. Payment for the compensatory time will be at the regular rate earned
by the employee in their non-exempt position.

Upon Separation. Compensatory time earned but not used by non-exempt employees will be paid at the
employee’s regular hourly rate of pay upon separation.

Two Payrates. In the situation of an employee who works two different jobs at two different rates of pay, the
method of computing the regular rate of overtime will be the overtime rate for the job hours that resulted in the
employee earning overtime. Holidays and PTO are computed at the employee’s default department rate of pay.

4.6 Service Calls
The service call fees will be paid in a manner approved by the District.

4.7 Temporary Upgrade Pay

In situations where the Department Director has determined that a vacant or temporary position must be filled
in order to maintain operation of the department, and that the employee to be assigned will be temporarily
performing duties which require a higher level of skill than that required of the employee’s regular classification,
the Department Director may request, in writing, that the employee receive temporary upgrade pay.

Temporary upgrade pay is intended for upgrades lasting a minimum of two consecutive weeks. In cases where an
upgrade is ongoing, the Department Director will follow procedures to request a reclassification or a position
addition. Temporary upgrade to a vacant position will be limited to six (6) months, unless otherwise approved in
writing by the District Manager.

A request for temporary upgrade pay will be recommended by the supervisor, approved by the appropriate
Department Director, and reviewed by the District Manager.

Employees who are temporarily upgraded for at least one full pay period or 80 consecutive hours will be
compensated within the pay range of the higher level job class at the greater of the entry rate or their base rate
plus five- to ten percent (5-10%) unless another rate is recommended by the Department Director and approved
by the District Manager due to extraordinary circumstances or performance of the upgraded employee. A
supervisor may recommend a rate less than five percent (5%) above the employee’s base rate, but not less than
the entry rate of the range. The hiring supervisor’'s recommendation will require approval by the appropriate
Department Director and review by the District Manager.

4.8 Pay for Required Training or Travel
Training. A non-exempt employee who is required to attend training will be compensated for time in attendance
if the following are met: 1) the required training occurs during the employee’s regular working hours; 2) the

5313874.2 25|Page

85



training is initiated and mandated by the employee’s supervisor or Department Director; and 3) the training is
directly related to the employee’s job.

Time spent by non-exempt employees in voluntary training will not be considered hours worked. All of the
following must be met for the training to be considered voluntary: 1) attendance must occur outside the
employee’s regular working hours; 2) the employee is not required to attend as a condition of their employment;
3) the employee does not perform any productive work while attending; and 4) the training is not directly related
to the employee’s job or does not aid the employee in handling their present job. With the approval of the
supervisor and Department Director, voluntary training may occur during work hours or may be considered hours
worked.

If the training or continuing education is not directly job related, attendance at such training will not be considered
working time.

Travel Time. All time in travel by non-exempt employees as a passenger or driver to attend required training
will be considered work time regardless of when it occurs. Such travel time will include all time in travel to and
from training, but not time spent in traveling from home to ground transportation or the plane terminal or time
spent eating while traveling.

4.9 Uniforms

Required Uniforms. Designated employees are required to wear designated uniforms. Uniforms are not
allowed to be worn outside of work hours and are collected at the end of a season or upon separation.

Uniform Allowance. All designated personnel will be furnished with uniforms, clothing, clothing allowance, or
equipment in accordance with the regulations established by the District. All uniforms, clothing and equipment
are the property of the District and must be returned upon separation from employment. All designated Parks
and Facilities regular full-time, variable full-time, and regular part-time employees will receive a $200 allowance
to purchase boots. Allowance occurs upon hire and annually thereafter. All other classifications including seasonal
employees will receive a $50 allowance to purchase boots. Allowance occurs upon hire and annually thereafter.
Seasonal allowance occurs on or after August 1. Boots must be appropriate safety-related boots for job duties, as
determined by Supervisor. Options for boot purchase include:
e Employee personal credit card from a vendor of employee choice. Payroll reimbursement policies apply.
Employee is not reimbursed for taxes.
e Employee utilizes District purchasing card from a vendor of employee choice. Purchasing card policies
apply. Purchase must be tax exempt. Any amount over the maximum allowance will result in a payroll
deduction.

4.10 Cell Phone Reimbursement

Designated personnel will be paid reimbursement to cover the cost of the use of those employees’ personal cell
phones and service for District business. The reimbursement will be determined by the employee’s job duties in
relation to the need to access/communicate with the employee for work related reasons. The employee’s
Department Director will determine the amount of the reimbursement based on one of three categories of usage.
The reimbursement is intended to reimburse for a portion of the cost of equipment, accessories, and service. The
District will periodically review the reimbursement amounts considering the prevailing prices of voice and data
plans.

Because the employee’s cell phone does not belong to the District and the District is not paying for the entire cost
of the service, personal use is expected. The reimbursement is not taxed as income or considered earnings. The

5313874.2 26|Page

86



employee is not required to track business usage; however, the employee will be required to provide a copy of
their cell phone bill on an annual basis for purposes of verifying that the reimbursement does not exceed the total
cost of the employee’s cell phone service.

Employees receiving a reimbursement must maintain active cell phone service and agree to carry his/her cell
phone, keep it charged and operational as required by his/her department. Significant (non-de minimis) time
spent by FLSA non-exempt employees using electronic devices, including cell phones, for District businesses
outside of their regular work hours is considered compensable time worked and must be reported to and
approved by the employee’s supervisor.

An employee receiving a cell phone reimbursement agrees to use his/her cell phone in a safe and lawful manner.
Misuse of a cell phone will result in the revocation of the cell phone reimbursement and may subject an employee
to discipline.

Employees who are reimbursed for the business use of their personal cell phones have no reasonable expectation
of privacy in information or data related to the District or District business created, stored, sent, or received on
the cell phone pursuant to C.R.S. § 24-72-203. The District has the right to and may monitor the District Cell Phone
Information at any time, including without limitation voicemail, text messages, email, photographs, etc.

Access to District Data and/or Storage Systems. When personal cell phones are used to access District data
and/or systems, regardless of whether or not an employee is receiving a cell phone reimbursement, all data
transmitted from or to, or stored on the employee’s cell phone, is not privileged and may be subject to discovery
under the Colorado Open Records Act. Employees using personal cell phones for District business should ensure
that the phone is password or PIN protected and protect their phone from being lost or stolen.

4.11 Expense Reimbursement

Generally, District expenses should be paid for using a District issued purchasing card. In the rare event a
purchasing card cannot be utilized, expenses will be reimbursed by the District. These include those pre-approved
as reasonable and necessary to properly conduct District business. Employees request reimbursement by filing an
Expense Report with supporting receipts. Expense reports should be turned in within one week from the time the
expense is incurred.

4.12 Mileage Reimbursement

Employees authorized to travel by personal car for business purposes are reimbursed at the Internal Revenue
Service’s allowable rate per mile. Tolls and parking fees are also reimbursable. Travel advances may be authorized
when it is expected an employee may be incurring significant cash expenses. Employees request reimbursement
by filing a mileage reimbursement form on a monthly basis.

4,13 Windfall Elimination Provision

Employee earnings from this job are not covered under Social Security. The Windfall Elimination Provision (WEP)
is a provision in United States law that changes the way employee U.S. Social Security benefits are calculated.
WEP can reduce employees’ U.S. retirement or disability benefits if such employees receive a pension based
on work and did not pay U.S. Social Security taxes on those earnings. An employee’s noncovered pension may
affect the employee’s benefits as spouse or widow/widower.

27|Page
5313874.2

87



If an employee receives a pension from a government job in which the employee did not pay Social Security
taxes, some or all of the employee’s Social Security spouse's, widow's, or widower's benefit may be offset due
to receipt of that pension.

4.14 Holiday Observance
The District’s Administrative operations observe the following holidays:

e New Year’s Day (January 1st)

e Martin Luther King Day (Third Monday in January)
Presidents’ Day (Third Monday in February)
Memorial Day (Last Monday in May)

e Independence Day (July 4th)

e Labor Day (First Monday in September)
Thanksgiving Day (Fourth Thursday in November)
Day after Thanksgiving

e Christmas Eve (December 24th)

e Christmas Day (December 25th)

Some program areas or critical operations will occur on holidays. If a holiday falls on a Saturday or Sunday, it will
be observed either the Friday before or the Monday after.

4.15 Incentive/Bonus Pay

Jn support of the District’s mission to provide superior service to the community, the District may utilize incentive
pay programs to aid in recruitment and retention efforts. Eligibility is based on department and its specific needs.
To adopt an incentive pay policy, an employee’s direct supervisor must initiate an incentive policy request which
is approved by the Department Director and processed by Human Resources. The amount and form of incentive
pay will be determined by department on a case-by-case basis. Incentive awards will be subject to taxation in
accordance with federal and state regulations. This program may be modified or terminated at any time. Incentive
pay policies are adopted entirely at the discretion of the District Manager, and the program is not intended to be
a binding contract between employees and the District. Questions about incentive pay should be directed to the
employee’s supervisor or to human resources.

28|Page
5313874.2

[Formatted: Font color: Auto

88



5.0 Employee Conduct

5.1 Employee Responsibility to Comply with All Rules and Use Good Judgment

Employees are responsible for knowing and complying with this Handbook and demonstrating good judgment at
all times. If an employee has a question about a rule, the employee must ask their supervisor for clarification
before taking any action that could violate the rule.

If a rule applies, it must be followed. If there is no rule, an employee must ask their supervisor how to proceed, if
time permits. If time does not permit asking a supervisor, employees must use good judgment (i.e., "do what is
right and do it the right way."). A rule must not be applied to a situation in a manner that causes another District
rule or applicable law to be ignored or violated.

5.2 Code of Ethics

Ethics is defined as "standards of conduct and moral judgment in dealing with duties and obligations to the
community." The following standards are in addition to, and not in derogation of, any standards of conduct or
code of ethics imposed by applicable law. Employees must:

A. Demonstrate the highest standards of personal integrity, truthfulness, honesty, and fortitude so as to
warrant public confidence and trust and serve in such a way as to not realize undue personal gain from
the performance of District duties.

B. Exercise whatever discretionary authority to promote the public good. Act always to serve the public
interest and show responsibility and restraint in the generation and use of power.

C. Manage and protect the District's property and assets.

Avoid any personal interest or activity that conflicts with their performance of District duties.

E. Serve customers, both internal and external, with respect, courtesy, honesty, and responsiveness,

recognizing that service to internal and external customers is beyond service to oneself.

Strive for excellence and competence, encouraging the professional development of co-workers.

G. Respect and protect the privileged information to which employees have access while performing District
duties.

H. Accept the responsibility to keep abreast of emerging issues and administer the public's business with
professional competence, fairness, impartiality, efficiency, and effectiveness.

I. Demonstrate equality to all members of the public in dealing with the District business and issues.

o

m

5.3 Off-Duty Conduct
The District has the right to take appropriate action, including termination, in response to an employee’s off-duty
conduct that:
A. relates to a bona fide occupational requirement or is rationally related to the employee’s
employment/service activities and responsibilities; or
B. is necessary to avoid a conflict of interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest; or
C. is damaging to the District.

5.4 Employees Charged with or Convicted of Illegal Conduct

Because of the employees' close and daily contact with members of the public, any employee who is charged with
or convicted of criminal conduct must report the charges to the District Manager prior to his/her next scheduled
shift, regardless of whether the conduct giving rise to the charges occurred while employee were on the job or
engaged in District business, or occurred off the job on personal time. The District will not take employment action
against an employee because the employee has been charged with or convicted of criminal conduct. Rather, the
District will consider the nature and seriousness of the offense, the relationship of the offense to the employee's

29|Page
5313874.2

89



job duties, the amount of time that has elapsed since the offense, and any other factors relevant to an internal
investigation the District may conduct into the charges or conviction to determine whether any employment
action is necessary.

5.5 lllegal Drugs/Alcohol Free Workplace and Testing Policy

Prohibited Illegal Drug/Alcohol Use and Restricted Prescription Drug Use. While performing any
District duty or activity, while on the District Premises, or while engaged in District business or activities off the
District Premises, employees are prohibited from:

e Buying, selling, soliciting to buy or sell, transporting, dispensing, manufacturing, promoting, possessing,
using or being under the influence of illegal drugs;

e Buying, selling, soliciting to buy or sell, transporting, dispensing, manufacturing, promoting, possessing,
or using illegal drug paraphernalia;

e Buying, selling, possessing, using or being under the influence of any amount or type of alcohol (including
medications or over-the-counter remedies containing alcohol).

e The foregoing illegal drugs/alcohol related conduct also is prohibited during non-working hours to the
extent that, in the District's opinion, it impairs the employee’s ability to perform the essential functions
of the employee’s job.

e Aprescription drug must only be brought on the District Premises by the person for whom it is prescribed.
Prescription drugs must be used only in the manner, combination and quantity prescribed. Employees are
prohibited from using or being under the influence of a legal drug whose use can adversely affect the
employee’s ability to perform the essential functions of employee job. If, for medical reasons, employees
are required to take prescription or over-the-counter drugs that could affect the employee’s ability to
perform the employee’s duties, the employee must notify their supervisor immediately.

e Marijuana, whether used for medical or recreational purposes, and psilocybin is a controlled substance and
illegal under federal law. Medical or recreational marijuana will be treated the same as an illegal drug under
this policy.

Upon Hire/Promotion. The District has the right to perform pre-employment tests on all employees prior to
commencing work with the District.

Random Testing. The District has the right to perform random drug/alcohol tests on all employees in safety
positions.

Reasonable Suspicion Testing. Employees must submit to an illegal drugs and/or alcohol test when the District
has reasonable suspicion to believe an employee has used illegal drugs or alcohol in violation of the District's illegal
drug and alcohol policy. Reasonable suspicion exists when an employee’s appearance, behavior, speech, odors (of
breath), or other physical or mental symptoms indicate illegal drug or alcohol use.

All diagnostic drug screenings and alcohol tests based on reasonable suspicion must have the prior approval of
the District Manager or a Designee. If an employee is notified of reasonable suspicion to be tested, the employee
must be transported immediately to the District's designated illegal drugs/alcohol testing and screening service
provider.

If an employee fails or refuses to submit to an illegal drugs/alcohol test based upon reasonable suspicion, the
employee may be subject to discipline, up to and including termination. The employee will not be permitted to
transport themselves home or elsewhere. The District will allow the employee to call a friend or relative to pick
the employee up, or if no such friend or relative is available, the District will offer to have a District staff member

5313874.2 30|Page

90



transport the employee home. If the employee refuse these options and nonetheless attempt to transport
themselves, the District may contact law enforcement.

Positive Drug or Alcohol Test. A positive, confirmed drug or alcohol test or failure or refusal to submit to a
test may result in immediate termination even for a first offense.

lllegal Drugs or Alcohol Related Convictions - Duty to Notify District. As a condition of continued
employment, an employee must within 24 hours notify the District if the employee is convicted, or plead guilty or
no-contest, to an illegal drug or alcohol related charge. If an employee fails to so notify the District, the employee
may be subject to termination, up to and including immediate termination.

5.6 District's Right to Conduct Reasonable Searches

Employees are required, without further notice and upon the District's request, to submit to a search of any
District Vehicle or District Premises, such as a desk, locker or other container provided by the District. All spaces
on the District Premises or under the District's control remain subject to search even though employees use such
spaces or consider the space to be private. The District's communication systems and all information and data,
including electronic transmissions, on the District's communications systems, always remain District property.
Employees have no right to privacy to any information and data, including electronic transmissions, received, sent,
generated, or stored on the District's communications systems.

Employee refusal to submit to a search may result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination, or may
be considered by the District as a voluntary resignation. The District may contact appropriate law enforcement
authorities if it has reasonable suspicion to believe an employee may have illegal drugs or other illegal items on
the District Premises.

5.7 Safety Policy

It is the District's policy that the safety of its employees and the public is of chief importance. The prevention of
accidents and injuries takes precedence over expedience. In the conduct of the District's business, the District
strives to prevent accidents from occurring. The District requires that its employees, as a condition of
employment, comply with all applicable safety regulations as listed department specific safety plans.

The District Manager is the designated safety coordinator for the District and is the primary contact for safety-
related matters. All employees will receive an orientation to the safety policy and rules upon initial employment
and must immediately bring to the attention of their supervisor or manager any unsafe conditions or practices.
Supervisors will communicate these concerns to the District Manager or a Designee. The District will strive to
respond to these concerns within 24 hours.

Managers will be actively involved with employees in establishing and maintaining an effective safety program.
The District's safety coordinator, the District Manager, and other members of the District’s leadership team will
participate with ongoing safety and health program activities.

In addition to the other safety responsibilities identified in this section, the District is responsible for:
e Promoting a safe workplace;
e Providing safety and health education and training; and
e Annually reviewing and updating workplace safety rules.

In addition to the other safety responsibilities identified in this section, employees are responsible for:
e Reporting all unsafe conditions;
e Immediately reporting all work-related injuries;
e Wearing the required personal protective equipment; and

5313874.2 31|Page

91



Following the District's safety rules.

5.8 Vehicles

If employees operate a District Vehicle or their own personal vehicles to conduct District business, they must obey
the following rules:

A.

o

5313874.2

Used Only for District Business. District Vehicles may only be used for District business. Only authorized
employees or registered recreation program participants shall ride in a District Vehicle, or a personal
vehicle used to conduct District business, unless approved in advance by the District Manager or a
Designee.

Use of a Personal Vehicle. Any use of a personal vehicle to conduct District business also must be
preapproved by the District Manager.

Valid Driver's License. A valid Colorado driver's license, unrestricted except for corrected vision or other
restriction(s) that can reasonably be accommodated, is a condition of employment and continued
employment with the District for those employees whose job descriptions require use of a District vehicle
or use of a personal vehicle for District business.

Motor Vehicle Record. Motor vehicle records will be obtained for all potential new hires whose job

descriptions require use of a District vehicle or use of a personal vehicle for District business. No employee
will be hired with a major violation or a poor or borderline driving history. The District participates in a

program to contlnuouslv monitor all ellglble employees motor vehlcle records. A-Hﬂaa-l-l»,«—a—met—er—veh&ele

a—pe;senal—vehmle—ﬁer—&&trmt—busme&s—Any eX|st|ng employee W|th excegtlon or —peer—epbeaﬁée;—lme
histery-willactivity will be reviewed to determine if remedial training or other actions areis necessary,
including removal or restriction of driving responsibilities. MVRs will be made part of the employee’s file.
Definitions are included below, and all violations are scored for three years unless otherwise noted:

1. Exception (Red); MVR Point Threshold of 15 or more points:

a. Any current invalid, suspended or expired license status (15 points) “
b. Any drug or alcohol offense (DUI) in the past 5 years (15 points)
c.__Any non-drug or alcohol disqualifying offense (15 points)
d. Three or more violations of any type (violations groupings scored from 4-12 points in weight)
e. Two or more accidents
f. _Two or more non-drug or alcohol severe violations (scored at 8 or 12 points; iei.e.: reckless
driving, distracted driving)
2. Activity (Yellow); MVR Point Threshold of 1-14 points: “
a. Current valid license status
b. Accidents (scored at 8 points) «

a. Non-drug or alcohol low and medium severity violations (speeding, non-moving violations, and <
standard moving violations like failure to yield)
b. Non-drug or alcohol severe violations (i.e.: reckless driving scored at 8 points)

3. (lear (Green); MVR Point Threshold of 0 points:
a. Zero violations over the past three years «
b. Zero DUIs over the past five years

32|Page

[ Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 3 + Numbering
Style: a, b, c, ...
0.75" + Indent at: 1"

+ Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:

[ Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: List Paragraph,Style 15,Style 34, Outline
numbered + Level: 2 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, ... + Start

at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 0.5" + Indent at: 0.75"

[ Formatted: Font:

)

""" [ Formatted: Font:

)

Formatted: List Paragraph,Style 15,Style 34, Outline
numbered + Level: 3 + Numbering Style: a, b, c, ... + Start
at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 0.75" + Indent at: 1"

[ Formatted: Font:

Formatted: List Paragraph,Style 15,Style 34, Numbered +
Level: 2 + Numbering Style: a, b, c, ... + Start at: 1 +
Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 0.75" + Indent at: 1"

Formatted: Font:

Formatted: Font:

Formatted

(
(
[ Formatted: Font: Bold
(
[ Formatted: Font:

(D W W

Formatted: Normal, Left, No bullets or numbering, Don't
keep with next, Don't adjust space between Latin and Asian
text, Don't adjust space between Asian text and numbers

92



E. Driver Training and Intervention Programs. All employees benefit from frequent driver training. The< [Formatted: Font: Bold ]
constant review of important defensive driving skills and best practices ensures that District employees {Formatted: List Paragraph,Style 15,Style 34, Space After: 0 }
keep safe driving top of mind every time they get behind the wheel. The District supports this proactive pt, Keep with next
approach to reduce crashes and violations. If an employee operating a District Vehicle or their own
personal vehicles to conduct District business receives a violation, the employee will be assigned targeted
training. This corrective training will be incident-based. Certain infractions may result in action such as
disqualification of driving abilities or other actlons based on the posmon

E-F.Insurance. } ;
5ent—te—the—D+smet—s—msuFenee+amer—qua4e4y—ln order to drlve a personal vehicle for Dlstrlct busmess,
employees must maintain insurance as required by District’s insurance carrier on the vehicle and must
annually provide a copy of their insurance card to the Finance Department_ upon hire or annually. Personal
auto insurance minimums are as follows: $100,000 in liability coverage per person for bodily injury,
including death caused to others; $300,000 in total liability coverage for bodily, injury per accident; and
property damage up to $100,000.

£-G.Vehicle Inspections. Prior to and after operating a District vehicle or a personal vehicle to conduct District
business, employees must complete a pre- and post-damage checklist for both the interior and exterior
of the vehicle. Failure to complete a pre- and/or post-damage checklist may result in disciplinary action,
up to and including termination.

G-H. Obeying All Traffic Laws — Violations. All traffic laws must be strictly observed, including wearing
seatbelts and never driving a vehicle at a rate of speed greater than can be maintained with safety. All
citations for moving violations and any driver's license revocation, confiscation, or suspension must be
reported to the District Manager or a Designee immediately, regardless of when or where the citation

33|Page
5313874.2

93



occurred. Failure to comply with this reporting requirement or being convicted or pleading no contest to
a citation, may result in discipline up to and including termination.

H:1. Cell Phones and Other Distractions. Employees shall not engage in distracting activities while operating a

k.

K.

L.

5313874.2

District Vehicle or a personal vehicle to conduct District business, including but not limited to:

a) Using a cell phone to send or receive calls, text message, or engage in similar forms of data entry
or transmission;

b) Using a tablet, computer, or other electronic device;

c) Eating or drinking beverages; and,

d) Searching for objects out of sight, such as dropped items, coins, CDs, etc.

If it is necessary for an employee to engage in an activity that would otherwise distract the employee from
driving, the employee must safely stop, obeying all traffic laws, and complete the activity. After the
activity is completed, the employee may resume driving the vehicle.

Accidents. All accidents involving a District vehicle, or a personal vehicle used to conduct District business,
no matter how minor, must be reported immediately to the District Manager or a Designee. If the
accident occurred in a personal vehicle used to conduct District business, the employee is responsible for
reporting the accident to the employee’s personal insurance provider. If an employee is involved in a
moving accident with a District vehicle, or a personal vehicle used to conduct District business, and an
employee is cited in the accident or the District reasonably believes or suspects, in the determination of
the District Manager or a Designee, that the employee’s conduct may have contributed to the accident,
the employee must submit to an illegal drugs/alcohol test. Employees must be transported immediately
to the District's designated illegal drugs/alcohol testing and screening service provider. If an employee
fails or refuses to submit to a test, the employee may be subject to discipline, up to and including
termination.

No Unauthorized Passengers. Only authorized employees shall ride in a District Vehicle, unless approved
in advance by the District Manager or a Designee.

Drivers Under 18. No employee under 17 years of age may drive a motor vehicle on public roads as part
of his or her job. Seventeen-year-olds may drive on public roadways as part of their employment, but
ONLY if all of the following requirements are met:

a) The driving is limited to daylight hours;

b) The 17-year-old holds a state license valid for the type of driving involved in the job performed;

¢) The 17-year-old has successfully completed a state approved driver education course and has no
record of any moving violations at the time of hire;

d) The driving does not involve towing of vehicles, route deliveries or route sales, transportation
for hire of property, goods, or passengers, urgent, time-sensitive deliveries, or the transporting
at any one time of more than three passengers, including the employees of the employer;

e) The driving performed by the minor does not involve more than two trips away from the
primary place of employment in any single day for the purpose of delivering goods of the
minor's employer to a customer (except urgent, time-sensitive deliveries which are completely
banned);

f) The driving performed by the minor does not involve more than two trips away from the
primary place of employment in any single day for the purpose of transporting passengers
(other than the employees of the employer);

g) The driving takes place within a thirty (30) mile radius of the place of employment;

h) The automobile or truck does not exceed 6,000 pounds gross vehicle weight;

i) The automobile or truck is equipped with a seat belt for the driver and any passengers and the
employer has instructed the youth that the seat belts must be used when driving the vehicle;
and

34|Page

94



j)  Thedriving is only occasional and incidental to the 17-year-old's employment. This means that
the youth may spend no more than one-third of his or her workday and no more than 20
percent of his or her work time in any workweek driving.

5.9 Property

Care and Use of District Property. Employees are responsible for the reasonable care of all District property.
District property is to be used only for official District business, in an appropriate manner, and in accordance with
all applicable rules and operating procedures. Employees must not remove District property or the property of
any other employee without proper authorization. Any employee stealing District property or another employee's
property, or who abuses, misuses, damages, or destroys District property, shall be subject to discipline, up to and
including immediate termination. Employees must use District equipment, facilities, and tools only to perform
District duties. District equipment, facilities, and tools must not be used or loaned for any personal purpose.

Lost or Damaged Property. Loss of or damage to District property, including District vehicles, must be reported
immediately to an employee’s department head. A written report must be made to the District Manager by the
department head within 24 hours. Failure to comply with these reporting requirements may result in disciplinary
action, up to and including termination.

Personal Property. Employees are responsible for their own personal property while at work. The District is
not responsible for any loss or damage to vehicles or any other personal property of its employees.

5.10 Confidentiality and Conflicts of Interest

Employees must not disclose to any individual or entity outside the District any confidential information or use
confidential information for personal benefit. Confidential information includes, without limitation: competitive
bid data, personnel information, and information that would be against public interest or the interest of the
District, its employees, or the citizens it serves. Confidential information does not include public records within
the meaning of the Colorado Public (Open) Records Act.

Any employee engaged in outside business, employment, or other activities must not allow such activities to
conflict with his/her District employment. Employees are required to meet the same job performance and
scheduling expectations regardless of each employee’s outside activities. Employees must not use confidential
information learned through employment with the District to promote competitive outside activities. Employees
must immediately disclose an outside conflict in writing to their supervisor. The District Manager, in his/her
discretion, shall determine what effect, if any, the conflict of interest will have on employee relationship with the
District. Upon the District Manager's order, an employee must immediately cease the outside activity(ies) that
create a conflict of interest.

5.11 Personal Gain Prohibited

Employees must not request or accept pay or other reward for services rendered as a District employee. Employee
must not accept any gifts or gratuity of $53 or more unless the gift or gratuity is reported to the District Manager,
who shall determine whether the employee may retain the gift or gratuity, or whether it should be turned over
to the District. Even if a gift is less than $53, employees must report it to the District Manager if the total amount
the employee receives from any one individual or entity in a year is $250. Employees must not engage in any
activity with any other state or local government official or employee that would violate Amendment 41 to the
Colorado Constitution.

5313874.2 3B|Page

95



5.12 Attendance and Punctuality

Employees must report for duty at the scheduled start time. If an employee will be absent, the employee must
notify their supervisor or manager at least two hours before their scheduled start time, unless the circumstances
do not permit advance notice to the supervisor or manager, in which case the employee must notify their
supervisor or manager as soon as the employee can. Employees must state the reason for and probable duration
of the absence. Absent satisfactory justification, if an employee fails to report for duty at the scheduled start time
without first notifying their supervisor, the employee will be subject to discipline, up to and including termination.

5.13 Ability to Perform Duties After lliness, Injury or Leave of Absence

The District Manager or a Designee, at his/her discretion, may require an employee who has been on leave for
four or more consecutive days as a result of illness, injury or other medical condition, to submit a doctor's
statement confirming the illness, injury or medical condition, and/or releasing the employee to return to work.
The District Manager or a Designee also may require the employee to complete a fitness for duty examination, at
the District's expense, to determine the employee's ability to perform the essential functions of his/her position.

In addition to the above, the District has adopted separate return-to-work procedures for any employee returning
to work on modified duty following leave for four or more days as the result of an iliness, injury, or other medical
condition. Specific information regarding the procedures for employees returning to work on modified duty are
available from the District Manager. Any employee anticipating returning to work on modified duty must contact
the District Manager prior to returning to work, and obtain the appropriate forms for submitting a doctor's
statement confirming the illness, injury, or other medical condition, releasing the employee to return to work,
and describing the proposed modified duty.

5.14 Dress Code and Hygiene

Hygiene. Employees are expected to maintain a professional, business-like appearance. A daily regimen of good
grooming and hygiene is expected of everyone. While at work, employees are required to be clean, dressed
appropriately, and free from offensive body odor.

Dress. Within reason, non-uniformed employees are allowed to use their own discretion with respect to their
work attire; however, all work attire must be neat, clean, in good taste, and appropriate to the employee's job
duties. Torn, soiled, frayed, er—+reveatingor revealing clothing is not appropriate. All employees must wear
footwear appropriate to the employee's job duties. Closed-toed and closed-heeled shoes are required for all
employees other than lifeguards. Lifeguards may wear sandals appropriate to their duties, including Crocs and
flip-flop shoes. Jewelry must not be worn that would interfere with the operation of District tools or equipment,
or that would jeopardize employee safety or the safety of other District personnel.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, while engaged in District business or activities off the District Premises, employees
must wear District logo apparel, an official District nametag, or other attire identifying the employee as a District
employee. Employees are permitted, at their option, to wear District logo apparel while off-duty. However,
wearing logo apparel while off-duty places the employee in a position of great responsibility, as such employees
may be perceived as representing the District. If employees wear District logo apparel while off-duty, employees
are required to exercise good judgment and to comply with this Handbook.

Employees required to wear uniforms must wear a uniform during all work hours. Uniforms may not be worn
while off-duty. In addition to the above requirements, specific dress standards will be established in each
department, with the prior approval of the District Manager.

36|Page
5313874.2

96



5.15 Smoking and Tobacco Use

In order to provide customers and employees with a tobacco-free environment, smoking and tobacco use is
prohibited in all District buildings and within 15 feet of any public entrance into a District building. This prohibition
also applies to any vaping product. Employees may smoke and use tobacco in outdoor areas beyond 15 feet of a
public entrance into a District building during approved breaks and meal periods, if breaks and meal periods are
provided; except that employees may not smoke or use tobacco in any outdoor area in the presence of a District
customer or visitor, or in any outdoor area frequented by District customers or visitors and where a District
customer or visitor may reasonably be expected to appear without notice.

District employees shall use common courtesy and cleanliness when smoking or using tobacco, including proper
disposal of cigarette butts and spit cups/containers.

5.16 Duty to Read Posted Items and Review Voice Mail

Employees are responsible for keeping apprised of information posted on, or sent through, the District's bulletin
boards, employee mailboxes, and e-mail network. Employees are responsible for reviewing employee voice mail
messages in a timely fashion.

5.17 Communication

General. Data and information, including electronic transmissions, created, stored, received, or sent on the
District's communication systems are District property, and are subject to review and inspection at any time.
Each department may establish, with approval of the District Manager, a policy for checking out communications
systems items, such as laptops, for those employees who have a need to take such items off the District Premises.
Communications systems items may be removed from the District Premises only in accordance with the applicable
department policy.

Software. The District has numerous licenses to utilize computer software. The license agreements contain
restrictions concerning the software use, duplication, and federal copyright protection. Each employee using the
District's communications systems assumes the following responsibilities:
A. Only software authorized or purchased by the District shall be used on a District computer.
B. Do not duplicate or reproduce District or vendor software and software manuals.
C. District software must not to be altered in any manner, including but not limited to, decompiling,
dissembling, cross-compiling, reverse engineering or drafting derivative works.
D. Computer software or documentation must not be removed from the District Premises without prior
approval from the District Manager or a Designee.
E. Upon termination of employment, all computer software and manuals must be returned to the District.
F. Tampering with computer hardware or violating any of the preceding provisions is prohibited and may
result in disciplinary action up to and including termination.

Personal Use of District's Communication Systems. In general, the District's communications systems are
to be used only for District business. The District recognizes that the internet, voice mail and e-mail are commonly
used for personal convenience and communication. Accordingly, brief, and occasional personal use of the
District's communications systems, including e-mail and the internet, may be permitted so long as it is not
excessive or inappropriate, does not violate any other District policies, and does not result in expense to the
District. Use of the District's communications systems is a privilege; abuse of this privilege may result in its
revocation and will be handled by appropriate disciplinary action up to and including termination. Employees may
be held individually liable for claims or damages resulting from violations of this policy.

Personal use of the District's communications systems will be considered "excessive" if it interferes with the
performance of job duties, appropriate interactions with the public, employee responsiveness, or the availability

5313874.2 37/Page

97



of the communications systems for District business. Applicable department policies also may establish rules
regarding excessive or inappropriate personal use of the District's communications systems, given the unique
needs and responsibilities of each department.

Prohibited Use. Employees must not use the District's communications systems for any inappropriate or illegal
activity, including but not limited to, accessing the internet through the District's computer system for the purpose
of accessing sexually oriented, pornographic, racial or similarly inappropriate websites, or sending, receiving, or
otherwise disseminating sexually oriented, racial or other inappropriate materials or information.

No Expectation of Privacy. Employees have no reasonable expectation of privacy in any District property,
including the District's communications systems and all data and information, including electronic transmissions,
created, stored, sent, or received on the District's communications systems. All data and information, including
electronic transmissions, created, stored, sent, or received on the District's communications systems (whether
imbedded in software or otherwise) are subject to review and inspection at any time. The District has the right
to, and may, monitor at any time employee use of the District's communications systems and employee electronic
transmissions. Pursuant to C.R.S. § 24-72-203, employees are advised that all electronic transmissions may be
deemed a public record and subject to disclosure under the Colorado Public (Open) Records Act.

5.18 Use of Cell Phones and Other Audio/Video Devices.

Personal Use of Cell Phones And Other Audio/Video Imaging/Recording Devices for Personal
Purposes Prohibited During Work Hours. As with use of internet, voicemail, and e-mail, the District
recognizes that cell phones are commonly used for personal convenience as well as communication. Brief and
occasional personal use of cell phones may be permitted so long as it is not excessive or inappropriate, does not
violate any other District policies, and does not disturb other District employees or patrons. Use of cell phones for
personal purposes while at work is a privilege; abuse of this privilege may result in its revocation and will be
handled by appropriate disciplinary action up to and including termination. Employees may be held individually
liable for claims or damages resulting from violations of this policy.

"Excessive" use of cell phones for personal purposes is as defined in Section 5.17 above. Applicable department
policies also may establish rules regarding excessive or inappropriate personal use of cell phones, given the unique
needs and responsibilities of each department. Using cell phones to access personal social media or networking
sites, to engage in personal or private chat rooms or instant messaging, or to sell or solicit products or services
unrelated to the District is limited to approved breaks and lunch periods, as is using cell phones to place or receive
calls or access audio files, except in emergencies. Any cell phone used to connect to the internet must connect to
public Wi-Fi or personal hot spot and shall not be connected to the District's secured network. Lifeguards,
employees operating machinery, and other employees engaged in safety-sensitive duties, including being on-deck
at the pool for any reason, are prohibited from using cell phones for any purpose whatsoever while performing
the safety-sensitive duties.

Employees are prohibited from using audio/video imaging and/or recording devices for personal purposes during
work hours or while engaged in any District activity, including but not limited to camera phones, digital cameras,
camcorders, tape/digital recorders, or any other form of device capable of recording sound or generating an
image. Employees are prohibited at any time from possessing or using any audio/video imaging and/or recording
device of any kind in any locker room, restroom, changing room or any other area on the District Premises where
an employee, patron or other person would have a reasonable privacy expectation.

5313874.2 38|Page

98



Use of Cell Phones to Conduct District Business. When using a cell phone to conduct District business or
engage in any activity on behalf of the District, employees must be considerate of other people while using the
cell phone, including but not limited to:

e avoid using the cell phone in the presence of other people whenever possible;

e keep the call as short as possible;

e do not discuss confidential information during the call that could be overheard by another person;

e do not speak in a loud voice or otherwise disturb other people; and,

e use appropriate language.

Use of Audio/Video Imaging and/or Recording Devices to Conduct District Business. If employees are
using audio/video imaging and/or recording devices to conduct District business or engage in any activity on behalf
of the District, employees must limit such use to the District authorized duty or activity, and must comply with all
rules, instructions and orders of their supervisors regarding the use of such devices.

5.19 Solicitations

Solicitations and distribution of literature for any purpose are prohibited on the District Premises or while on duty,
unless approved in advance by the District Manager or a Designee. No employee shall be compelled to contribute
money to any political party, club, union, or association.

5.20 Online Publishing/Discussion, Letters to the Editor and Other Public Expressions of Opinion
Whether employees choose to create or participate in any form of online publishing or discussion, send a letter
to the editor, or engage in any other form of public expression of personal opinion (collectively, "public
expressions of opinion") is each employee’s own decision; however, employees must be careful not to violate any
District rule, their duty of loyalty to the District or any other applicable law. In addition, employees may be
disciplined, up to and including termination, for:
A. Conducting activities related to public expressions of opinion during work hours or at any time using the
District's communications systems;
B. Representing any opinion or statement as the policy or view of the District, or its directors, officers,
employees, or representatives (unless it is required by the employee’s job description);
C. Making defamatory comments about the District, or its directors, officers, employees, vendors, customers,
or services; or,
D. Engaging in any hate speech, inciting violence, or making statements that would be viewed as
inappropriate and contrary to the employee’s position with the District;
E. Nothing in this section is intended to restrict or limit in any manner whatsoever employee constitutional or
common law right to comment upon matters of public concern, to the extent protected by, and consistent
with, applicable law.

5.21 Board Contact

All issues an employee wishes to bring to the Board's attention shall be processed through the chain of command.
An employee shall not contact any Board member directly on any District matter relating in any manner to the
employee’s employment with the District. An employee may exercise his/her rights as a citizen to comment on
matters of public concern during the public comment portion of a Board meeting.

39|Page
5313874.2

99



5.22 Social Media Policy

Before reading this policy, please read the definitions of "Posts" and "Social Media" contained in the Definitions
section of this Handbook. Employees should ask their supervisors or the District Manager if they have any
questions regarding these definitions.

The District understands employees may maintain or contribute to Social Media and/or engage in Posts outside
of employment with the District and may periodically engage in Posts containing information about their
employment with the District or District activities on Social Media. If employees engage in such activities,
employees are required to exercise good judgment, and comply with this Handbook.

The District has the right to monitor and review Social Media Posts made by employees while on-duty and, from
time to time, those made while off-duty by employee as it deems as necessary and appropriate for the efficient
and effective administration and operation of the District. To that end, employees have no expectation of privacy
while using District-owned or District-leased equipment, even when employees are merely using the equipment to
access their personal email account or other Social Media. Pursuant to C.R.S. § 24-72-203, employees are advised
that Posts, e-mails, and text messages to/from District employees may be deemed public records and subject to
disclosure under the Colorado Public (Open) Records Act.

EMPLOYEE USE OF DISTRICT LEASED OR OWNED EQUIPMENT CONSTITUTES EMPLOYEE CONSENT FOR THE DISTRICT
TO MONITOR AND INTERCEPT EMPLOYEE COMMUNICATIONS WHILE IN TRANSIT, AFTER RECEIPT OR WHILE STORED
ON DISTRICT LEASED OR OWNED EQUIPMENT UNDER TITLE | AND Il OF THE ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS PRIVACY
ACT OF 1986.

Employees may not disclose confidential information of the District or its directors or employees, or confidential
information of third parties who have provided information to the District, including personnel information. In
maintaining or contributing to Social Media or engaging in Posts, employees must not use the District's name in
their identity (e.g., username, "handle" or screen name). Employees also must not speak as a representative of
the District or the Board, unless expressly authorized by the District.

Mutual respect and teamwork are essential to effective and efficient District administration and operation.
Employees must be courteous, respectful, and thoughtful about how the District and other employees may be
affected by Posts. Incomplete, inaccurate, inappropriate, threatening, harassing or poorly worded Posts may be
harmful to other employees, damage employee relationships, undermine the District's efforts to encourage
teamwork, violate this Handbook, and harm the District, which may result in disciplinary action up to and including
termination.

Employees bear full responsibility for information contained in their Posts and their Social Media. Employees must
make certain that their Posts are accurate and must correct any inaccurate statements they make. Employees
must not reference District directors, other employees, or District customers without obtaining their express
permission to do so. Most Social Media sites require that users, when they sign up, agree to abide by a Terms of
Service document. Employees are responsible for reading, knowing, and complying with the Terms of Service of
the Social Media sites they use. Stated simply, an employee’s decision to use a different medium does not excuse
recklessness in public communication or limit the District's ability to regulate the employee’s Social Media and
Posts as it could any other communication. The District supports employees’ rights to engage in discourse about
matters of public concern, to discuss the terms and conditions of employment with the District and supports
employees’ First Amendment rights. However, the District prohibits actions that violate this policy, any other
District policy relating to social networking, Posts and Social Media, or any other form of public expression.

40|Page
5313874.2

100



5.23 Media Inquiries

All media inquiries should be referred to the District Manager, Board of Director’s Chairperson, or the
Communications & Marketing Supervisor. In addition, these individuals must approve, in advance, all press releases,
publications, speeches, or other official declarations. Only designated agents are authorized spokespersons for the
District.

5.24 District Purchasing Card Use
A purchasing card may be issued to an employee based on position and identified need. All requests for an agency
purchasing card must be approved by a supervisor and should be submitted to the Finance Director. Purchasing
cards may be used only for approved business purposes. All purchasing card purchases must be for budgeted
expenditures. Unbudgeted items require pre-approval from the employee’s supervisor and may also require
Finance Director approval. Acceptable purchases include primarily:

e Materials and equipment required for normal and emergency operation of District business.

e Membership dues.

e Travel, training, and all associated expenses related to pre-approved District training

Unacceptable uses primarily include:

e Personal use. Employee should not use or permit the use of purchasing cards for personal items.

e Cash advances, traveler's checks, or the use of ATM machines.

e Fuelfor personal vehicles. Reimbursement for District approved travel shall be made on an expense report
at the current mileage reimbursement rate.

e Merchandise, product, or service considered to be inappropriate use of District funds. Questions should
be directed to a supervisor in advance of the purchase.

e Purchases made by other individuals or staff. Cardholders are not allowed to "give out" his/her purchasing
card or their purchasing card number to a different individual. Employees must personally run the charge
each time the card is presented. Only the employee whose name is embossed on the card may use the
card.

e The card is not to be issued to or used by contractors working for the District.

Under no circumstances should personal purchases be charged to a District purchasing card. Under no circumstances
should the District’s tax exemption number be used for personal purchases.

5.25 District Business Accounts
The District may hold business accounts or memberships to numerous vendors such as Costco, Sam’s Club, and
Amazon; however, these business memberships or accounts may not be utilized for personal purchases.

5.26 Personal Use of Equipment and Supplies Prohibited

The use of District equipment, supplies, or vehicles for personal use is prohibited. District property consists of, but
is not limited to, items such as power tools, hand tools, facility/shop areas, vehicles, computers, telephones,
cellular phones, copying machines, supplies, furniture, etc.

41|Page
5313874.2

101



5.27 Background Checks

The District conducts background checks on certain job candidates, independent contractors, and volunteers, which
may include a review of criminal history, DMV records, reference checks or other review as determined in the
discretion of the District.

When a background check is required by the District, employees must complete the District’s authorization forms.
Failure to timely complete authorization may result in discipline, up to and including termination, or rejection of an
application or job offer.

A. New Hires: A background check is required for all safety sensitive positions. The District may also require it
for other positions. The background check must be completed and results verified before beginning work.

B. Rehires: A background check is required for rehires separated longer than twelve months.

C. Active: All employees, volunteers, and contractors in safety sensitive positions are required to submit to a
background check every five years. Refusal to comply will be cause for refusal to be granted a new position
and/or termination of employment or removal from volunteer service.

D. Independent Contractor: Background checks shall be performed at the discretion of the District. For certain
contractual relationships, the Contractor shall be responsible for performing background checks on its
employees and for ensuring the suitability for employment in association with a District contract.

E. New Volunteers: A background check is required for all safety sensitive volunteer positions, including but

not limited to, youth sport coaches and other positions as deemed necessary by the District. The background

check must be completed and results verified before beginning volunteer service.

Returning Volunteers: Returning volunteers are required to have a background check every 12 months.

G. Applicants: Applicants ages 18 and older will be subject to a background check. An applicant’s offer may be
conditioned on the successful completion of a background check. Applicants must complete the background
check prior to their first day of work.

n

This process is conducted to verify the accuracy of the information provided by the candidate and determine
suitability for employment, contract, or participation.

All criminal background checks are conducted post-offer and information will be kept confidential. This information
cannot be used as a basis for denying employment unless the results are determined to be job-related and consistent
with business necessity. The District reserves the right to make the sole determination concerning any employment
decision arising out of the background check. Criminal background checks will generally not include credit check
information, nor will information bearing on an individual’s credit be used in making employment or volunteer
decisions, unless job-related and consistent with business necessity. Credit checks are only conducted when such
information is job-related and consistent with business necessity. Any credit checks will be conducted in accordance
with applicable law.

Disqualification: The District will take the following into consideration when determining placement of a job
candidates, independent contractors, and volunteers:

e The date of the conviction: If convicted, or if the individual pled nolo contende to criminal charges,
within the last seven years, the District will disqualify the individual. Dismissed cases or arrests
won’t automatically disqualify an individual. Criminal charges which are dismissed, pardoned, or
expunged from an individual’s criminal records will not automatically disqualify the individual.

e Evidence of rehabilitation and number of convictions: The length of time since the conviction and if
there has been more than one conviction will be considered in determining placement of a
volunteer. Generally, more than one conviction will disqualify a volunteer.

42|Page
5313874.2

102



e The type of conviction and how it relates to the position: Positions managing, working with, or

regularly interacting with minors will require stricter scrutiny of criminal convictions.
e Any information regarding the conviction that may be relevant to the position, in the District’s sole <«

discretion.

5.28 Public Health Emergency Whistleblower (PHEW) Policy

General Policy. The District intends to help provide a safe and healthy work environment for its employees and
encourages employees to bring any concerns to the company’s attention. The District will not discriminate, take
adverse action, or retaliate against employees for engaging in any of the following activities:

e Raising (in good faith) any reasonable concern about workplace violations of government health or safety
rules, or about an otherwise significant workplace threat to health or safety, related to a public health
emergency;

e Opposing any practice the worker reasonably believes is unlawful; or

e Making a charge, testifying, assisting, or participating in any manner in an investigation, proceeding, or
hearing as to any matter the worker reasonably believes to be unlawful.

Employees are not protected for communications (A) that are knowingly false or are made with reckless disregard
for the truth or falsity of the information, or (B) that share individual health information that is otherwise prohibited
from disclosure by state or federal law.

Employees’ Rights to Use Their Own Personal Protective Equipment (“PPE”). Employees are allowed
to voluntarily wear their own PPE, such as a mask, faceguard, or gloves, if the PPE:

a. provides more protection than equipment provided at the workplace;
b. is recommended by a government health agency (federal, state, or local); and
c. does not render the employee incapable of fulfilling their duties.

Procedure for Filing an Internal Complaint. An employee who is subjected to, or observes any discrimination,
adverse action, or retaliation related to a public health emergency or interference with the voluntary use of PPE
which the employee considers to be unlawful, should report such conduct in accordance with Section 3.5 of this
Handbook.

5.29 Content-Generating Artificial Intelligence Software Use Policy “
Content-generating artificial intelligence (CGAI) is rapidly expanding and easy to access, both at home and at work.+

[ Formatted: Space After: 0 pt

 Formatted: Heading 2, Right: 0"

[ Formatted: Space Before: 0 pt

This policy applies to the use of any third-party or publicly available CGAI tools. Currently, acceptable tools include
ChatGPT, Google Bard, Canva, Midjourney, or Microsoft Copilot that mimic human intelligence to generate
answers, work product, or perform certain tasks. You must inform your supervisor when you have used CGAI to
help perform a task. These limitations may change over time, and employees will be asked to review this policy at

least quarterly.

Unacceptable Uses. Do not use CGAI tools to make or help you make employment decisions about applicants or
employees, including recruitment, hiring, retention, promotions, transfers, performance monitoring, performance
appraisal, discipline, demotion, or terminations.

Do not upload or input any confidential, proprietary, or sensitive District information into any CGAI tool. Examples
include passwords and other credentials, protected health information, personnel material, information from
documents marked confidential, sensitive, or proprietary, or any other non-public District information that might
be harmful to the District or customers if disclosed. If you are unsure whether the information poses the risks
described, ask your supervisor.

43|Page
5313874.2

103



Do not upload or input any personal information (names, addresses, likenesses, etc.) about any person, employee,
resident, customer, vendor, independent contractor, or any other individual the District is engaged with into any
CGAI tool.

Do not represent work generated by a CGAI tool as being your own original work. If you are unsure of how to
disclose the use of CGAI, ask your supervisor.

Do not integrate any CGAI tool with internal District software without first receiving specific written permission
from HR or the District Manager.

Use Procedures. CGAI may assist with work output, but the use of CGAl is not a substitute for your judgment and
creativity. CGAIl software is only as good as the information it contains, and the information can be stale. ChatGPT
is currently using information from 2021, for example. When there is no information available in its store of data,
CGAI has been known to create false answers to satisfy the request. To avoid false information or information
that is stale, carefully verify all information, and if you do not know how to verify the information, ask your

supervisor.

Treat every bit of information you provide to a CGAI tool as if it will go viral on the Internet, attributed to you or
the District, regardless of the settings you have selected within the tool or the assurances made by the software.

Verify any and all responses from the CGAI software you use. The information must be accurate.

The output must be appropriate based on standards you apply when performing tasks for the Company. It cannot
be biased, and it cannot be a violation of any other individual or entity’s intellectual property, and it cannot violate
any individual’s privacy unlawfully.

Any output must be consistent with District policies and applicable laws. If you are not sure, ask your supervisor
for assistance.

44|Page
5313874.2

104



6.0 Leave

6.1 Funeral Leave

Regular full-time, variable full-time, and regular part-time employees are eligible for paid leave to attend the
funeral of an immediate family member. “Immediate family member” includes the employee's spouse, partner
in a civil union, parents, children, sisters, brothers, grandparents, grandchildren, mother- and father-in-law.
Regular full-time, variable full-time, and regular part-time employees are also eligible for paid leave to attend the
funeral of a near relative. "Near relative" include the employee's aunts, uncles, nieces, and nephews, and the
grandparents, brothers, sisters and other close relatives of the employee's spouse or partner in a civil union.

Variable part-time, seasonal, and variable temporary employees may be eligible for up to eight hours of paid leave
depending on average shift worked and schedule.

Regular Full- Variable Regular Variable Variable
Benefit Type Time Full-Time Part-Time Part-Time I Temporary

Depends on average schedule and shift

Bereavement Leave
worked

up to 24 hrs up to 18 hrs up to 12 hrs

Additional leave may be granted upon the approval of the District Manager—=ardManager and may be dependent
upon the employee's available PTO.

6.2 Jury Duty and Witness Leave

Jury Duty. If an employee is called for jury duty, the employee will be granted leave with pay, less the amount
of jury fees the employee receives. To qualify for jury duty leave, the employee must submit a copy of the
Summons to Serve to their supervisor as soon as the employee receives it. In addition, the employee must submit
proof of jury duty service to their supervisor after jury duty is completed. Employees must return to work
immediately when dismissed from jury duty or when the jury is not in session during each employee’s usual work
hours. The District will make no attempt to have employee jury service postponed except if necessary, to meet
the District's pressing business or operational needs.

Witness Leave. If an employee is subpoenaed to produce documents, provide deposition testimony, or appear
in court or arbitration on a District-related matter, the employee must immediately notify their supervisor and
the employee will be granted the leave necessary to comply with the subpoena. Actual time worked in preparing
for, and providing witness testimony, or producing required documents, while on witness leave on a District-
related matter will be treated as time actually worked for purposes of calculating FLSA overtime for non-exempt
employees. A non-exempt employee must receive prior approval from the District Manager or a Designee before
performing such work, and must record all such work on a District time card, which shall be reviewed and
approved by the District Manager or a Designee.

If an employee is subpoenaed to produce documents, provide deposition testimony, or appear in court or
arbitration on a non-District matter, the employee will be granted the leave necessary to comply with the
subpoena. An employee will be granted leave without pay, unless the employee’s supervisor approves use of
available PTO in advance; provided, however, that an exempt employee will be paid his/her normal salary in any
workweek in which he/she performs any work for the District. An employee must furnish a copy of the subpoena
to employee’s supervisor. An employee must return to work immediately upon being released from a witness
subpoena.

45|Page
5313874.2

105



6.3 Voting Leave

The District believes voting is an important responsibility we all assume as citizens. Under most circumstances, it
is possible for employees to vote either before or after work. If it is necessary, however, for an employee to arrive
late or leave work early to vote in an election, the employee should make arrangements with their supervisor no
later than the regularly scheduled workday prior to the Election Day on which the employee wants to vote. The
District will grant time off to vote in accordance with applicable law.

6.4 Administrative Leave

In addition to any other provision of this Handbook authorizing placing an employee on administrative leave, the
Board, the District Manager, or a Designee may place an employee on administrative leave for misconduct,
investigative purposes, or for any other reason it/he/she deems appropriate. Administrative leave shall be with
pay unless circumstances dictate otherwise. While on administrative leave, employees must not participate in
any non-social District duties or activities, unless otherwise directed by the Board, the District Manager, or a
Designee.

6.5 Military Leave

Leaves of absence for military duty and training will be granted to all employees in accordance with applicable
law. If an employee is called to active military duty or to reserve or National Guard training, or civil air patrol, or
if an employee volunteers for the same, the District would appreciate the employee submitting copies of the
military orders to their supervisor as soon as practicable. Employee eligibility for reinstatement after military duty
or training is determined in accordance with applicable law. Employee military leave of absence will be-withreceive
pay for the first 15-werkdaysthree weeks (at 8 hours per day) in a calendar year. Pursuant to a separate written
agreement, the amount of the employee’s pay will be offset by the amount of military pay the employee receives
for the same days for which paid leave was provided. The District will make payment as follows: the difference
between the employee’s regular earnings and the military earnings the employee receives while on duty (military
earnings consist of gross pay at the base rate before payroll deductions).

6.6 Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 ("FMLA")

The District complies with the FMLA and its implementing regulations, as may be amended from time to time.
Employee Notice of Rights and Responsibilities, issued by the U.S. Department of Labor, provides employees with
a general description of their FMLA rights and responsibilities. Please refer any questions, concerns or disputes
with this policy to the District Manager.

Type of Leave Covered. The birth of a child and to care for the newborn child within one year of birth; the
placement with the employee of a child for adoption or foster care and to care for the newly placed child within
one year of placement; to care for the employee’s spouse, child, or parent who has a serious health condition; a
serious health condition that makes the employee unable to perform the essential functions of his or her job; any
qualifying exigency arising out of the fact that the employee’s spouse, son, daughter, or parent is a covered
military member on “covered active duty;” or twenty-six workweeks of leave during a single 12-month period to
care for a covered servicemember with a serious injury or illness if the eligible employee is the servicemember’s
spouse, son, daughter, parent, or next of kin (military caregiver leave).

Amount of Leave. Leave includes 12 workweeks of leave in a 12-month period. If both spouses, or partners in
a civil union, work for the District and each wishes to take leave for the birth of a child, adoption or placement of
a child in foster care, or to care for a parent with a serious health condition, the spouses/partners may only take
a combined total of 12 weeks of leave. If both spouses/partners work for the District and each wishes to take leave
to care for a covered service member, the spouses/partners may only take a combined total of 26 weeks of leave.

46|Page
5313874.2

106



Procedure for Requesting FMLA Leave. To request FMLA leave, an employee must provide verbal or
written notice of the need for the leave to Bistrietthe District Manager. Within five business days after employeean
employee provides notice, the District will provide the employee with the Department of Labor (DOL) Notice of
Eligibility and Rights. When the need for theleaveleave is foreseeable, employees must provide the District with
at least 30 days' notice. When 30 days' notice is not possible, employees must provide notice as soon as
practicable and must comply with the District's usual and customary notice and procedural requirements for
requesting leave, absent unusual circumstances.

Designation of FMLA Leave. Upon receipt of the appropriate paperwork, the District will inform the
employee whether the employee is eligible for leave under the FMLA, any additional information required and
whether the leave will be designated as FMLA leave.

Employee Status and Benefits During FMLA Leave. PTO and all other District benefits that operate on an
accrual basis will continue to accrue during any portion of the FMLA leave to which paid time off applies;
butapplies but will not accrue during any portion of the FMLA leave that is unpaid including time when covered
by short-term disability. While an employee is on FMLA leave, the employee’s health, life insurance, and disability
benefits will continue at the same level and under the same conditions as if the employee had continued to work.
This means that if the employee is responsible to pay any portion of their health, life insurance, or disability
benefits while working, then the employee will be responsible to continue paying those portions of their health,
life insurance, or disability benefits while on FMLA leave. Likewise, while an employee is on FMLA leave, the
District will continue paying any portion of the employee’s health, life insurance, or disability benefits that it
otherwise would pay if the employee were working. If an employee chooses not to return to work for reasons
other than a continued serious health condition of the employee or the employee’s family member or a
circumstance beyond the employee’s control, the District will require the employee to reimburse the District for
any amount it paid for the employee’s health, life insurance, or disability premiums during the FMLA leave. For
any portion of the FMLA leave to which paid time off applies, the District will continue to make payroll deductions
to collect the employee’s share of the health, life insurance, or disability premiums. For any portion of the FMLA
leave that is unpaid, the employee must continue to make this payment directly to the District within the deadlines
established by the District at the beginning of the FMLA leave. If any payment owed by the employee is more
than 30 days late, the employee’s coverage may be dropped for the duration of the leave. The District will provide
15 days' notification before the employee’s loss of coverage.

Fitness For Duty. If an employee takes FMLA leave, the employee may be asked to provide a fitness for duty
clearance from a health care provider. This requirement will be included in the District’s response to the
employee's FMLA leave request, or when the District notifies the employee that it has elected to designate time
off taken by the employee as FMLA leave.

Use of Paid and Unpaid Leave. Generally speaking, an employee may apply Available PTO to any portion of
FMLA that he/she desires and the balance of FMLA leave (if any) will be unpaid. Similarly, where the State’s Family
and Medical Leave Insurance (FAMLI) applies to any leave that is also covered by the FMLA, the employee may

apply available PTO to supplement FAMLI benefits to receive their full regular rate of pay. During any unpaid leave,

Certification for the Employee’s Serious Health Condition or the Serious Health Condition of a
Family Member. The District will require certification for the employee’s serious health condition. The

47|Page
5313874.2

107



employee must respond to such a request within 15 days of the request or provide a reasonable explanation for
the delay. Failure to provide certification may result in a denial of continuation of leave. Medical certification will
be provided using the DOL Certification of Health Care Provider for Employee’s Serious Health Condition, or in the
case of leave for the serious health condition of a family member, the DOL Certification of Health Care Provider
for Family Member’s Serious Health Condition. The District may contact employee health care provider directly in
connection with an FMLA leave request for employee serious health condition, or the health care provider of
employee family member in connection with an FMLA leave request to care for a family member, for verification
or clarification purposes using a health care professional or the District Manager or his/her designee. The District
will not use the employee’s supervisor for this contact. Before the District makes this direct contact with the
health care provider, the employee will be agivergiven an opportunity to resolve any deficiencies in the medical
certification. In compliance with HIPAA Medical Privacy Rules, the District will obtain the employee’s permission
(or the family member's permission if the FMLA leave request is to care for the family member) for clarification of
individually identifiable health information. The District has the right to ask for a second opinion if it has reason
to doubt the certification. The District will pay for the employee (or the employee’s family member) to get a
certification from a second doctor, which the District will select. If necessary, to resolve a conflict between the
original certification and the second opinion, the District will require the opinion of a third doctor. The District
and the employee will mutually select the third doctor, and the District will pay for the opinion. This third opinion
will be considered final. The employee will be provisionally entitled to leave and benefits under the FMLA pending
the second and/or third opinions. The District may deny FMLA leave to an employee who refuses (or whose family
member refuses) to release relevant medical records to the health care provider designated to provide a second
or third opinion.

Certification of Qualifying Exigency Relating To, or Serious Injury or lIliness of a Covered Service
Member. The District will require certification of the qualifying exigency relating to, or the serious injury or illness
of, a Covered Service Member. The employee must respond to the request within 15 days of the request or
provide a reasonable explanation for the delay. Failure to provide certification may result in a denial of
continuation of leave. Certification of a qualifying exigency will be provided using the DOL Certification of
Qualifying Exigency for Military Family Leave. Certification of the Serious Injury or lliness of a Covered Service
Member will be provided using the DOL Certification for Serious Injury or lliness of Covered Service Member.

Recertification. The District may request recertification for the serious health condition of the employee or the
employee’s family member no more frequently than every 30 days and only when circumstances have changed
significantly, or if the District receives information casting doubt on the reason given for the absence, or if the
employee seeks an extension of his/her leave. Otherwise, the District may request recertification for the serious
health condition of the employee or the employee’s family member every six months in connection with an FMLA
absence. The District may provide the employee’s health care provider with the employee’s attendance records
and ask whether need for leave is consistent with the employee’s serious health condition.

Intent to Return to Work From FMLA Leave. The District may require an employee on FMLA leave to
report periodically on the employee’s status and intent to return to work.

Employee Status After FMLA Leave. Generally, an employee who takes FMLA leave will be able to return
to the same position or a position with equivalent status, pay, benefits and other employment terms. The position
will be the same or one which is virtually identical in terms of pay, benefits and working conditions. The District

48|Page
5313874.2

108



may choose to exempt certain key employees from this requirement and not return them to the same or similar
position.

6.7 Workers' Compensation Insurance

The District provides Workers' Compensation Insurance to all employees. If an employee is injured, infected or
becomes ill while performing work for, or activities on behalf of, the District, the employee must submit a verbal
or written report of injury or illness to their supervisor, manager, or District Manager within 10 days of the
occurrence. Failure to follow this procedure may jeopardize an employee’s right to workers' compensation
benefits. Questions regarding workers' compensation insurance claims should be directed to the HR Department.

Per Colorado State Law, the first three € (3) shifts of leave following an eligible work-related injury or illness are
not compensated. As a benefit for District employees, these first three (3) shifts of leave are paid by the District.
The District’s third-party Workers' Compensation administrator will coordinate compensation to employees for
eligible work-related injuries or illnesses per Colorado State law at two-thirds (2/3) of the employee’s normal
weekly wage up to a state maximum wage, which is adjusted annually for inflation. All Workers” Compensation
wages are tax-exempt and are paid directly to the employee without any payroll deductions. Because this payment
is mailed from an outside source, checks may be received on a different schedule than the District’s normal payroll
cycles. All cell phone stipends will be suspended during any period an employee is absent from work as a result of
a work-related injury or illness. Employees may supplement their wages from PTO, Comp Time, Sick Leaver, or
Banked Sick Leave, which will be received via normal District payroll processes. The injured employee must make
payment arrangements to cover the cost of their premium deductions for benefits such as health, dental, and
vision insurance. Payments will be arranged through HR.

The District has prepared the statutorily required list of treating physicians who are the District's designated
providers and will provide this list to an employee who is injured at work, and to any other employee upon request.
The District will provide the list within seven business days of when the District has notice of the injury. If an
emergency prevents the District from providing this list to an injured employee within that time, the list will be
provided as soon as the emergency ceases.

To assist in selecting a provider, an employee may request disclosure of ownership interest and employment
relationships from any of the designated providers. A form is available in the District's administrative office to
assist the employee in obtaining the information. A copy of any such request must be submitted to the District in
writing. An injured employee may submit a one-time notice to change the treating physician by choosing another
name from the list, provided that the notice to change is submitted within 90 days after the date of injury, but
before the employee reaches Maximum Medical Improvement. A form is available in the District's administrative
office. Nothing in this paragraph prohibits an employee from submitting a written request to change physicians
pursuant to C.R.S. 8-43-404(5)(A)(VI).

Whenever possible, the District will provide transitional duty assignments to employees injured on the job.
Transitional duty assignment may be outside the employee’s department and will confirm to any restriction
imposed by the employees approved treating physician.

6.8 Paid Time Off (PTO)

Generally. Paid Time Off ("PTO") is a program that consolidates and replaces the traditional vacation time,
personal leave, and sick leave policies for employees. PTO may be used for vacations, personal business, sick leave
purposes (as defined in Section 6.9 below), family emergencies, or other reasons as requested by an employee
and approved by their supervisor. Regular full-time, variable full-time, and regular part-time employees are
eligible for PTO as follows. Eligible employees will advance PTO Tiers on January 1% following their 4t full calendar

49|Page
5313874.2

109



years of employment with the District, regardless of their individual anniversary date. Such PTO includes any paid
sick leave required under the Colorado Healthy Families and Workplaces Act.

PTO Accrual Rates and Maximum Accrual Amounts. District employees accrue PTO each pay period. The
amount accrued depends on each employee’s years of service. The District permits employees to carry a maximum
amount of PTO (based on years of service). Once an employee reaches the maximum PTO amount, the employee
will not accrue any further PTO until the employee’s Available PTO falls below the maximum accrual amount. In
addition to the PTO accrued by an employee, supplemental paid sick leave may be made available during a public
health emergency (as specified in Section 6.10 below) in an amount based on the number of hours the employee
works or as dictated by the applicable mandate.

PTO Regular FT Variable FT Regular PT
Accrual Accrual Accrual
Per Max Per Max Per Max
Employment Annual  Pay PTO Annual  Pay PTO Annual Pay PTO
Year PTO Period Bank PTO Period Bank PTO Period Bank
1-4 168 6.46 228 126 4.85 171 84 3.23 114
5+ 208 8 268 156 6 201 104 4 134

Scheduling PTO. PTO is paid at the employee's regular hourly rate of pay and may be used in increments of
less than one full day for non-exempt employees. In general, employees may not use more than 10 days of PTO
at a time without prior approval from the District Manager or Director. Prior approval is not required to use PTO
for sick leave purposes. All employees, including exempt employees, must submit PTO requests through the
District's electronic timekeeping system. When PTO usage is foreseeable, PTO requests must be submitted at
least two weeks in advance. When feasible, PTO requests are granted, considering the District's business needs.
Timeliness in submitting PTO requests may determine priority in scheduling PTO. The District may require
reasonable documentation to verify that PTO is used for a permitted sick leave purpose if an employee uses PTO
or a sick leave purpose for four or more consecutive work days; documentation is not required to take PTO for
sick leave purposes.

Payment of Available PTO Upon Separation of Employment. Upon separation, employees will be paid
out for one half accrued and unused PTO. Any available supplemental sick leave, as discussed below, will be
forfeited.

Negative PTO. Under rare and emergency circumstances, employees who need to take more time off than their
accrued, available PTO balance can submit a request for negative PTO, up to a maximum of 24 hours. Negative
PTO must be approved by the District Manager and Human Resources department in advance of any time being
taken. The employee must also complete a Payroll Deduction Authorization Form which allows the District to
deduct any negative PTO balance from the employee’s final paycheck upon employment separation, which is
attached to this Handbook in the Appendix as Wage Deduction Required Agreement.

6.9 Sick Leave

Variable part-time, seasonal, and variable temporary employees are not eligible for PTO; however, these
classifications accrue one hour of paid sick leave for every 30 hours worked, up to a maximum of 48 hours per
year. An employee begins accruing paid sick leave when the employee's employment begins and may use paid
sick leave as it is accrued. Unused sick leave at the end of seasonal employment will be carried over for future

50|Page
5313874.2

110



years or seasons (if within six months of separation). Variable part-time employees may carry forward and use in
subsequent calendar years up to 48 hours of paid sick leave that is not used in the year in which it is accrued. A
maximum of 48 hours of paid sick leave, if accrued, is allowed for use in a year. A maximum of 48 hours of paid
sick leave may be banked at any point in time. Sick leave may only be used for scheduled shifts.

In the event an employee becomes eligible to accrue PTO by an employment classification change, sick leave
accrual will cease at the time of the classification change. Any accrued but unused sick leave balance will be
available for sick leave use, as outlined in this section, until such time the employee is scheduled to accrue a PTO
balance equal to the sick leave balance at the time of classification change. At that point, the remaining sick leave
accrued balance will be forfeited and the employee will transition strictly to use of PTO, which may be used for
Sick Leave.

Employees may use accrued paid sick leave to be absent from work for the following purposes (“sick leave
purposes”):

e The employee has a mental or physical iliness, injury, or health condition; needs a medical diagnosis, care,
or treatment related to such illness, injury, or condition; or needs to obtain preventive medical care;

e The employee needs to care for a family member who has a mental or physical iliness, injury, or health
condition; needs a medical diagnosis, care, or treatment related to such illness, injury, or condition; or
needs to obtain preventive medical care;

e The employee or family member has been the victim of domestic abuse, sexual assault, or harassment
and needs to be absent from work for purposes related to such crime; or

e A public official has ordered the closure of the school or place of care of the employee's child or of the
employee's place of business due to a public health emergency, necessitating the employee's absence
from work.

e Bereavement, or financial/legal needs after a death of a family member; or

e Due to inclement weather, power/heat/water loss, or other unexpected event, the employee must

a. evacuate their residence, or

ob. care for a family member whose school or place of care was closed.

In addition to the paid sick leave accrued by an employee, supplemental paid sick leave may be made available
during a public health emergency (as specified in Section 6.10 below) in an amount based on the number of
hours the employee works or as dictated by the applicable mandate.

Variable PT, Seasonal, and Variable

Temporary
Annual PTO Accrual Per 30
Hours Max Sick Bank
48 1 48

Reasonable Documentation. The District may require reasonable documentation to verify that sick leave is
used for a permitted sick leave purpose if an employee uses paid sick leave for four or more consecutive work
days; documentation is not required in order to take sick leave.

Notice. All employees must notify their direct supervisor of the need for sick leave as soon as practicable when
the need for sick leave is foreseeable.

51|Page
5313874.2

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), Font color:
Custom Color(RGB(40,41,36)), Pattern: Clear

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 11 pt, Font
color: Custom Color(RGB(40,41,36)), Pattern: Clear

{Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 11 pt, Not Bold,

Font color: Custom Color(RGB(40,41,36))

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 11 pt, Font
color: Custom Color(RGB(40,41,36))

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 11 pt, Font
color: Custom Color(RGB(40,41,36))

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 11 pt, Not Bold,
Font color: Custom Color(RGB(40,41,36))

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 11 pt, Font
color: Custom Color(RGB(40,41,36))

o o o JC L

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 2 + Numbering
Style: a, b, ¢, ... + Aligned at: 0.75" + Indent at: 1"

111



6.10 Supplemental Sick Leave During a Public Health Emergency

Employees Eligible for PTO. On the date a public health emergency is declared, each regular full-time,
variable full-time, and regular part-time employee will receive supplemental sick leave as necessary to ensure that
each employee has two weeks of Available Paid Leave. Full-time employees will receive 80 hours of supplemental
sick leave. Employees who work less than 40 hours a week will receive up to the greater of the average number
of hours the employee works over 2 weeks or the amount of time an employee is scheduled to work over a two-
week period.

Employees Eligible for Supplemental Sick Leave. On the date a public health emergency is declared, each
variable part-time, seasonal, and variable temporary employee’s sick leave will be automatically supplemented as
necessary to ensure that each line employee has 2 weeks of available supplemental sick leave. Employees who
work less than 40 hours a week will receive up to the greater of the average number of hours the employee works
over 2 weeks or the amount of time the employee is scheduled to work over a 2-week period. An employee’s
accrued sick leave counts toward the 2 weeks of supplemental sick leave.

Use of Supplemental Sick Leave. Supplemental sick leave and PTO may be used from the date a public health
emergency is declared until 4 weeks after the official termination or suspension of the public health emergency
for the following purposes:

A. An employee needs to self-isolate and care for oneself because the employee is diagnosed with,
experiencing symptoms of, or seeking preventative care for a communicable illness that is the cause of
the public health emergency;

B. An employee is seeking or obtaining a medical diagnosis, care, or treatment if experiencing symptoms of
a communicable iliness that is the cause of the public health emergency;

C. An employee needs to care for a family member who is self-isolating because the family member is
diagnosed with, experiencing symptoms of, or seeking preventative care for a communicable illness that
is the cause of the public health emergency;

D. An employee needs to care for a family member who needs medical diagnosis, care, or treatment if
experiencing symptoms of a communicable illness that is the cause of the public health emergency;

E. With regard to a communicable iliness that is the cause of the public health emergency, a local, state, or
federal public official or health authority having jurisdiction over the location of an employee’s place of
employment or the employer determines that the employee’s presence on the job or in the community
would jeopardize the health of others because of the employee’s exposure to the communicable illness
or because the employee is exhibiting symptoms of the communicable iliness, regardless of whether the
employee has been diagnosed with the communicable illness;

F. With regard to a communicable illness that is the cause of the public health emergency, an employee
needs to care for a family member after a local, state, or federal public official or health authority having
jurisdiction over the location of the family member’s place of employment or the employer determines
that the family member’s presence on the job or in the community would jeopardize the health of others
because of the family member’s exposure to the communicable iliness or because the family member is
exhibiting symptoms of the communicable illness, regardless of whether the family member has been
diagnosed with the communicable illness;

G. An employee needs to care for a child or other family member when the individual’s child care provider
is unavailable do to a public health emergency, or if the child’s or family member’s school or place of care
has been closed by a local, state, or federal public official or at the discretion of the school or place of care
due to a public health emergency, including if a school or place of care is physically closed but providing
instruction remotely; or

H. An employee is unable to work because the employee has a health condition that may increase
susceptibility to or risk of a communicable illness that is the cause of the public health emergency.

5313874.2 52|Page

112



6.11 Unpaid Leave

The District may, in the discretion of the District Manager and the employee's Department Director, grant any full-
time eligible employee unpaid leave only after the employee has exhausted all of his/her earned and carried-over
PTO, sick leave, if applicable, and other paid leave benefits. In determining whether to grant unpaid personal
leave, the District Manager and Director will consider the business needs of the District and whether the District
reasonably can accommodate the unpaid personal leave, and any other factors deemed relevant by the District
Manager and Director. If unpaid leave is granted, the employee is responsible for payment of health benefit
premiums. During this period, the employee will not accrue any PTO and will be responsible for paying the District
their benefit deductions, such as healthcare premiums.

6.12 Holiday Pay

Regular full-time, variable full-time, and regular part-time employees are entitled to ten paid holidays. Regular
full-time employees receive 80 hours annually (8 hours per holiday), variable full-time employees receive 60 hours
annually (6 hours per holiday), and regular part-time employees receive 40 hours annually (4 hours per holiday)
at their regular hourly rate paid holidays. Holiday pay is not counted as hours worked for purposes of calculating
overtime. Variable full-time and regular part-time employees not scheduled to work on a holiday may utilize their
paid holiday another day within the same pay period, or a separate pay period if approved in advance by the
District Manager or a director. Non-exempt employees (regular full-time, variable full-time, and regular part-time)
required to work on a holiday will be paid regular hours for the hours worked on the holiday, unless hours are
critical to operations as determined by the District Manager, which will result in time and a half pay as a premium
payment for working on the holiday. Employees may not utilize the equivalent of those holiday hours on another
day, within the same pay period, unless approved in advance by the District Manager or a director. Exempt
employees required to work on a holiday may flex for another day within the same pay period, unless approved
in advance by the District Manager or a director. Approval to work on a holiday must be approved in advance by
the District Manager or director. Any hours worked on the holiday will be counted as time actually worked for
purposes of calculating overtime, but the holiday premium payment is excluded from the regular rate for purposes
of calculating overtime. Any holiday hours not utilized at the end of the year will not carryover to future years.
Employees are not paid out for any unused holiday hours at the time of separation.

53|Page
5313874.2

113



7.0 Employee Benefits

The District may alter any of these benefit policies and programs at any time, in its sole discretion, subject to «
applicable law.,

7.1 Benefits

The District currently offers health, dental, and vision insurance as well as a plethora of other benefits for
employees. Benefits are available for eligible employees based on classification. Benefit programs are outlined on
the benefit table found in Section 7.9 below.

Eligibility. The District currently offers health, dental and vision insurance for eligible regular full-time and
variable full-time employees at the contribution amounts toward the premiums established by the Board. A copy
of the plan(s) is on file in the District's administration office. Coverage begins the first day of the month following
the employee’s first date of employment. In addition to themselves, employees may elect to cover their
spouse/domestic partner as well as dependent children.

Spouses may include those who are legally married and those who fit the definition of common-law spouse or civil
union. Dependent children may include the employee's unmarried, natural and/or legally adopted children, or
children for whom the employee has been granted legal guardianship. Except in certain circumstances, children must
be under the age of 26 regardless of marital, student status, or dependency upon the employee for support. An
employee loses his or her eligibility for coverage when one of the events listed below occurs:

e Employment ends;

e Employee changes from a benefit-eligible position to a non-benefits eligible position;

o Employee cancels his or her coverage; or

e |If applicable, the employee does not pay the associated portion of health premiums.

Coverage Changes. Employee coverage decisions will be in effect for the entire plan year unless an employee
have a change in status. A change in status occurs if:
e An employee marries, divorces, or files for a legal separation;
e An employee or an employee’s spouse gives birth, adopts a child or if there is a change in custody
agreements ofa child;
e Anemployee’s spouse or dependent(s) dies;
e An employee’s dependent child is no longer eligible for coverage due to age or marital status or student
status;
e Anemployee’s spouse has a change in employment, resulting in the gain or loss of insurance coverage; or
e An employee or an employee’s spouse loses coverage due to a change in employment
status/classification.

To make a change during the year, an employee must provide proof of change such as marriage license, birth
certificate, loss of coverage, etc. to the Finance Department within thirty (30) days of the qualifying event. If an
employee has no family status changes during the plan year, the employee still has one opportunity during which the
employee can change elected coverage for the upcoming plan year. This event is called Open Enrollment. Each year

54|Page
5313874.2

[ Formatted: Normal, Left

[Formatted: Font: Not Bold

114



employees will receive detailed information from Finaneethe Finance Department in advance of the Open Enroliment
period outlining the process employee may follow to make changes to employee coverage.

Retiree Health Insurance. Any benefit-eligible employee who is at least 50 years of age and has either a
minimum of ten years of continuous coverage accumulated with any CEBT group OR has been employed by the
District continuously for a minimum of fifteen years at the time of retirement is eligible to elect coverage in the
District's medical, dental, vision insurance plan at any coverage level provided by the plan (for example, individual,
individual + spouse, individual + child(ren), or individual + family). Any such election shall be made pursuant to the
election procedures, as such procedures may be amended by the District Board from time to time. Election for
coverage must occur at the end of employment.

The retired employee will be responsible te—payfor paying the entire premium cost of the plan as set by the
insurance carrier, plus a 2% District administrative fee. Such payment must be made by reimbursement to the
District pursuant to the payment procedures. Such procedures may be amended by the District Board from time
to time. Except as otherwise required by federal or state law, failure to make payments as directed and when due
will result in termination from the plan. At the end of the month that a retired employee becomes eligible for
Medicare or the receipt of retirement pension benefits from Colorado PERA, coverage on the District's medical
insurance plan will be terminated for the retired employee and the retired employee's spouse and dependents (if
elected). A retired employee who terminates coverage in the plan after enrolling, and outside the normal
provisions of COBRA, will no longer be eligible to participate in the plan.

7.2 Benefits Continuation (COBRA)

The federal Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA) gives employees and their qualified
beneficiaries the opportunity to continue health, prescription, and dental insurance coverage under the District Plan
for up to 18 months and possibly longer for certain individuals when a qualifying event would normally result in the
loss of eligibility. Some common qualifying events are resignation; termination of employment; death of an employee;
a reduction in an employee’s hours or a leave of absence; an employee’s divorce or legal separation; and a dependent
child no longer meeting eligibility requirements.

Under COBRA, the employee or dependent pays the full cost of insurance coverage at District group rates plus an
administration fee. An employee’s COBRA coverage will terminate automatically if the premium for the employee’s
continuation coverage is not paid by the due date and any applicable grace period for paying the premium has expired
without the past due premium being paid. Termination of COBRA coverage will be effective at the end of the last
month for which the full premium was paid before expiration of the grace period for that payment.

Upon separation, each eligible employee is provided with a written notice describing rights granted under COBRA;
this notice contains important information about the employee’s rights and obligations.

7.3 Flexible Spending Accounts

Flexible Spending Accounts (FSAs) are optional accounts that allow benefit eligible employees to have pre-tax
payroll deductions deferred into special reimbursement accounts, which can be used for uncovered medical
expenses and/or dependent care costs. Options for enrollment occur during the annual open enrollment period
each year or at the time of a qualifying event.

Under COBRA law, employees have the option to continue employee Medical Reimbursement and/or Dependent
Care Reimbursement account(s) for the remaining portion of the calendar year. If an employee would like to continue
their FSA, the employee must remit payments in the amount equal to the employee’s monthly payroll deduction using

5313874.2 55|Page

115



after-tax dollars. Additional details on continuing these accounts are contained in the COBRA information mailed to
employee upon separation of employment.

7.4 Life Insurance and Accidental Death & Dismemberment

Eligible employees are automatically enrolled in the District’s paid Life Insurance and Accidental Death and
Dismemberment (AD&D) plan. Eligible employees will receive coverage in the amount of two times the
employee’s base salary rounded up to the next $1,000 up to a maximum of $450,000. Reductions occur on the
following schedule: age 65 (40%), age 70 (65%), age 75 (75%), and age 80 (80%).

7.5 Short Term Disability (STD)
Short Term Disability will be eliminated from District coverage starting January 1, 2024 when the Family and
Medical Leave Insurance (FAMLI) program benefits begin. Regularful-timeand-variable full-time-employeesare

7.6 Long Term Disability
Regular full-time and variable full-time employees are eligible for long-term disability. Benefits include 60% of the
first $12,500 of pre-disability earnings, reduced by deductible income. The waiting period is 180 days.

7.7 Employee Recreational Benefits

Eligibility. Each of the employee recreational benefits provided in this Handbook are available to regular full-
time, variable full-time, and regular part-time employees, and their spouse and dependent children. "Dependent
children" means any son, stepson, daughter, stepdaughter, or eligible foster child of the employee. The Facility
Access and Fitness Class benefits are also available to variable part-time, variable temporary, and seasonal
employees during the season they are working; however, their spouses and dependent children are not eligible.

Facility Access. All eligible District employees and family may utilize the fitness center and aquatic facilities at
no cost during regular business hours. All eligible District employees and family may participate at no charge as a
"drop-in" participant in—for Community Center_fitness classes; however, they must register using required
registration processes. —altaguaticfacilities,and-thefithe com-activities-durin 0 i i

Recreation Program Registration and Participation. All eligible District employees and family may register
for any District-provided program or class, including specialty fitness classes, at a 20% discount off the District

56|Page
5313874.2

Formatted: Don't adjust space between Latin and Asian
text, Don't adjust space between Asian text and numbers

Formatted: Space After: 0 pt, Don't adjust space between
Latin and Asian text, Don't adjust space between Asian text

and numbers

116

|



resident rate or non-resident rate, as applicable depending on whether the eligible District employee erfamily
remberis a District resident or non-resident at the time of registration. Eligible District employees and family

must tellew—thesame—reg RO es—procedures,—and—deadinesas—areapplecable toallother b

i register using required registration processes.

Facility Rentals. All eligible District employees and family may rent any District rental facility, including Bradford
Room, Dakota Lodge, Shaffer Room, pools, and tennis courts, at a 20% discount off the regular rental rate charged
to District residents or non-residents, as applicable depending on whether the eligible District employee erfarmily
remberis a District resident or non-resident at the time of the rental. Eligible District employees and family must
pay the full damage deposit applicable to the rental facility or room and is subject to all rental rules, regulations,
and policies of the District.

Identification. District employees utilizing the recreation benefits provided in this Handbook must comply with
identification requirements established by administrative services, which may include presenting an ID card
and/or mobile bar code.

Modification. The Board may modify the recreational benefits provided in this Handbook at any time in its
discretion, subject to the requirements of applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules, regulations, and
ordinances.

Regular Full- Variable Regular Variable Variable
Benefit Type Time Full-Time Part-Time Part-Time I Temporary
KC Ranch Community Drop-in use free for employee and eligible Drop-in use free for employee during working
Center/Fitness spouse and dependent children season only
Aquatic Facility Use Drop-in use free for employee ?nd eligible Drop-in use free for employee during working
spouse and dependent children season only

Recreation Program

o
Registration Fees 20% Discount

Facility Rental Fees 20% Discount

7.8 Paid Family and Medical leave Insurance (FAMLI) Program

Paid milv—and-Med aave-ln nea AN 5F6

& ; : 7 -bFAMLI provides all Colorado workers
with access of up to twelve weeks of paid leave to take care of themselves or their family during life circumstances
such as birth, adoption, or foster care of a child, or taking care of themselves or a loved one with a serious health
condition. The amount of leave available within a year is capped at the-1212 weeks, or 16 for gestational parents
with complications. The eligibility requirement for someone to be able to take leave or become a covered
individual is having made $2,500 in wages within the first four of the last five completed calendar quarters
immediately preceding the first day of the benefit year (i.e., the 12-month period in which the employee makes a
claim for FAMLI benefits) or the last four completed calendar quarters immediately preceding the benefit year,
regardless of time worked or for which employer. Job protection is a separate benefit and does not apply to FAMLI
leave until someone has been with the employer 180 days.

The FAMLI Division pays the employee directly for the time they are out of work. For any portion of the FAMLI
leave to which paid time off applies, the District will continue to make payroll deductions to collect the employee’s
share of the health, life insurance, or disability premiums. For any portion of the FAMLI leave that is unpaid, the

S57|Page
5313874.2

117



employee must continue to make this payment directly to the District within the deadlines established by the
District at the beginning of the FAMLI leave. If any payment owed by the employee is more than 30 days late, the
employee’s coverage may be dropped for the duration of the leave. The District will provide 15 days' notification
before the employee’s loss of coverage.

Eligible employees are not required to exhaust or use any accrued sick, vacation, or other paid time off prior to or
while receiving FAMLI benefits (CRS 8-13.3 -510); however, FAMLI provides only partial wage replacement.
Although FAMLI provides partial wage replacement, employees are not entitled to receive full wage replacement
from the CDLE while receiving FAMLI benefits. As such, the District will provide employees with a wage
supplement agreement that will allow the District to use any unused accrued leave earned by the employee to
supplement FAMLI benefits to ensure the employee receives their full regular rate of pay while on FAMLI

leave.Based-on—-e AE ateregulations—whicharesubie S—sheaEe—En Bl R e P e e e ]

7.9 Seasonal Employee Scholarship Program

[Formatted: Font: Bold

The District has established an Employee Scholarship Program aimed at providing financial assistance for the «
educational development of seasonal employees. This program will award three (3) $500 scholarships annually
to eligible applicants.

Eligibility: «

e Employee Status: To be eligible for the Employee Scholarship program, applicants must be or have been «
employed as a Seasonal employee of the District the same calendar year of application.

e Length of Service: Applicants must have completed the entire summer season of continuous service with+
the District.

e Academic Pursuits: The scholarship is intended to support educational pursuits. Applicants must be
enrolled in a recognized educational institution, including accredited colleges, universities, vocational
schools, or similar programs.

Application Process:

| Formatted: Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

[ Formatted: Font: Bold
[ Formatted: Left, Space After: 8 pt

U

[Formatted: Font: Not Bold
{ Formatted: List Paragraph,Style 15,Style 34, Bulleted +

Level: 1 + Aligned at: 0.25" + Indent at: 0.5"
Formatted: Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

o )

Formatted: Font: Bold

e Interested and eligible employees must complete the official scholarship application form.

e The application must be submitted to the Human Resources department no later than the specified .«

deadline each year.
Selection Process: «

e Once the application has been reviewed for eligibility by the Human Resources department, it is sent to
the scholarship selection committee for review and consideration. Award decisions are made based on
established criteria.

Terms and Conditions:

- { Formatted: List Paragraph,Style 15,Style 34, Bulleted +

Level: 1 + Aligned at: 0.25" + Indent at: 0.5"

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

L J J

[Formatted: Font: Bold ]

e The scholarship is a one-time award and is not renewable.
e Recipients are required to fulfill their seasonal employment with no write-ups or corrective action.

The Distri - .

>

A

{ Formatted: List Paragraph,Style 15,Style 34, Bulleted +

58|Page
5313874.2

i [Formatted: Font: Bold
{ Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 11 pt, Bold, Font}

Level: 1 + Aligned at: 0.25" + Indent at: 0.5"

o

color: Auto

118



8.0 Corrective Action and Discipline

8.1 Corrective Action

Corrective actions are not discipline. A corrective action is intended to notify employees of conduct that is not in
conformance with the District’s rules or otherwise is inappropriate or deficient, so employees can promptly take
appropriate action to ensure the conduct does not occur again.

The District does not have a progressive or step-corrective action or discipline policy. The District will impose the
corrective action it deems appropriate under the specific facts and circumstances. In imposing a corrective action,
the District may consider any prior corrective action or disciplinary action imposed against an employee. While a
corrective action is not a disciplinary action, it can form the basis for a disciplinary action. In accordance with the
District’s policy against progressive discipline, the District has no obligation to take corrective action before taking
disciplinary action, up to and including termination.

A. Oral Corrective Actions. An oral corrective action may be imposed at any time by any supervisor. An oral
corrective action shall be documented by the supervisor issuing the oral corrective action by a written
note or memo placed in employee personnel file. A copy will be given to the employee.

B. Written Corrective Actions. A written corrective action may be imposed at any time by any supervisor.
Employees will be given a copy of the written corrective action. Employees must meet and discuss the
written corrective action with their supervisor and acknowledge in writing that they discussed the written
corrective action with their supervisor. The written corrective action and employee acknowledgement
shall be placed in the employee’s personnel file.

C. Corrective Action Requirements. A supervisor may impose any reasonable duty or condition upon an
employee that is reasonably designed to correct the deficient or inappropriate conduct, including, but not
limited to, prohibiting the employee from engaging in the misconduct again, probation and/or an action
plan.

D. Appealing Corrective Actions. An employee may appeal a corrective action to the District Manager.
Employee appeals must be submitted in writing to the District Manager within 5 calendar days of the
employee receiving the corrective action. Employee appeals must include a copy of the corrective action,
the reason(s) the employee disagrees with it and what the employee wants the District Manager to do.
The District Manager may investigate the corrective action. The District Manager shall issue a written
decision within 10 calendar days of receiving the appeal or as soon thereafter as practicable. A corrective
action and the District Manager’s decision cannot be appealed to the Board.

E. Corrective Actions by the District Manager. The District Manager may issue a corrective action to any
employee at any time, using the procedures for oral and written corrective actions in this section. The
District Manager’s corrective action cannot be appealed to the Board.

F. Board Corrective Actions. The Board has complete discretion to issue a corrective action to the District
Manager or any other employee at any time, using such procedures as it deems appropriate.

8.2 Discipline

At Will Employment; No Progressive Discipline. The District does not have a progressive or step-discipline
policy. All employees are “at will5-ar€” and may leave the District at any time. The District also may terminate an
employee at any time, for any or no reason, subject only to the requirements of applicable law.

When Discipline May Be Imposed. Discipline may be imposed for violating this Handbook or any other District
rule, any applicable law, or for unsatisfactory or deficient performance of duties. The following is a non-exclusive
list of the types of misconduct that may result in discipline:

A. Violation of this Handbook or any other District rule.

5313874.2 59|Page

119



QI

G mmo

- F

o

[

Unsatisfactory performance of one or more of an employee’s duties and responsibilities.

Direct or indirect insubordination, disrespect for or disobedience to a request, direction or order of a
supervisor or the District manager.

Violation of the District's anti-discrimination/harassment or workplace antiviolence policies.
Unauthorized release of information regarding the District, its employees, volunteers, or customers.
Unauthorized use or removal of District property, other employees or volunteers, or customers.
Carelessness, negligence, or misuse of District property, whether resulting in injury to employees,
volunteers, or other property.

Willful destruction of District property or the property of others.

Falsification of, or material omission from, an employment or appointment application or any other
District record.

Violation of the District's illegal drug and alcohol policy.

Unexcused absence or tardiness.

Leaving District Premises without prior permission of an employee’s supervisor. For example, if an
employee becomes ill while on duty, the employee must notify their supervisor before leaving.

. Violation of the District's smokeless tobacco and smoking policy.

Disorderly conduct, including, but not limited to, gambling, verbal abuse, fighting, engaging in any activity
that interferes with job performance, or any other employee’s or volunteer's performance on the job,
repeated use of abusive, obscene, indecent, or profane language.

Lack of courtesy to District guests or customers, or other employees or volunteers.

Violation of the District's Dress Code.

Falsification, destruction, or unauthorized use of District records, reports, or other data or information
belonging to the District.

Failure to report violations of safety policies and procedures.

Failure to use safety gear, clothing, or equipment properly.

Violation of the District's conflicts of interest and personal gain policies.

Unauthorized use of District funds and/or credit cards.

The foregoing is not a comprehensive list of the reasons for which an employee may be subject to disciplinary
action, up to and including termination. Again, violation of any provision of this Handbook or any other District
rule, any applicable law, or any verbal or oral instruction of a supervisor, may result in disciplinary action.

8.3 Discipline Procedure

An employee’s supervisor will determine the discipline to be recommended based upon the specific facts and
circumstances of the case, considering the employee’s prior work performance, including, but not limited to any
prior corrective actions or discipline. If, based upon all the facts and circumstances, the supervisor believes
discipline is warranted, the supervisor may recommend one or more of the following forms of discipline to the
District Manager or a Designee:

A.

IeomTmMmoN®

5313874.2

Probation;

Action Plan;
Suspension;

Suspension without pay;
Fine;

Leave Reduction;
Demotion; or
Termination.

60|Page

120



Exempt Employee Limitations. To comply with the FLSA "salary basis" requirements, the following limitations
apply to disciplinary actions against FLSA exempt employees:

A. A fine can be imposed against a FLSA exempt employee only for violations of a safety rule of major
significance. An exempt employee cannot be fined to reimburse the District for lost or damaged District
equipment or property;

B. A FLSA exempt administrative employee can be suspended without pay for more than one workweek (no
partial workweeks) for any act or omission forming a basis for discipline under this Handbook, any other
District rule, or applicable law; and

C. A FLSA exempt employee can be suspended without pay for one day or more (no partial days) for
violations of the District's anti-discrimination/anti-harassment policies or workplace anti-violence policy.

Notice of Recommended Discipline. The supervisor will provide the employee with a written Notice of
Recommended Discipline that contains:
A. a brief, reasonably specific statement of the employee’s wrongful conduct;
B. the provision(s) of this Handbook or other District rule or applicable law violated, or the employee’s
deficient or unsatisfactory performance of duties; and,
C. to the extent practicable, the time, date, and place where the alleged acts took place, and the names of
witnesses.
The Notice of Recommended Discipline will state a date and time at which the employee is required to meet with
the supervisor, which meeting will occur within five business days of the employee’s receipt of the Notice of
Recommended Discipline. If the supervisor cannot hold the meeting within the five-day period due to
unavailability, the meeting will occur with the employee as soon as practicable. Before this meeting, the employee
may submit a written response to the Notice of Recommended Discipline. The Notice of Recommended Discipline
may be given to the employee in person, emailed to the employee, or mailed to the residential address the
employee has provided to the District in accordance with this Handbook.

Employee Written Response. Employees may, but are not required to, submit a written response. If an
employee wishes to submit a written response, the employee must submit it to the supervisor at least 12 hours
before the employee meets with the supervisor to discuss the Notice of Recommended Discipline.

Supervisor’s Recommendations to the District Manager. After meeting with the employee and
considering the employee’s written response, if any, the supervisor may submit written recommendations of
discipline to the District Manager or may withdraw the disciplinary action.

District Manager's Decision on Recommendations Final. The District Manager will issue a written decision
on the supervisor’'s recommendations within 10 business days of receiving the recommendations, or as soon
thereafter as practical. The District Manager's decision is the final decision of the District for all purposes. Under
no circumstances shall an employee attempt to appeal a disciplinary action directly to the Board. Any attempt to
appeal a disciplinary action to the Board may result in the employee’s immediate termination.

Disciplinary Action by the District Manager. The District Manager may, at any time, commence disciplinary
action against any employee or volunteer. The District Manager will provide the employee with a Notice of
Recommended Discipline that contains the information set forth in this section. The employee shall meet with the
District Manager to discuss the discipline being considered. The employee may provide a written response as
provided above. The District Manager will issue his/her decision within 10 business days of his/her meeting with
the employee, or as soon thereafter as practicable. The District Manager's decision shall be the final decision of
the District for all purposes. Under no circumstances shall the employee attempt to appeal the District Manager's
decision to the Board. An attempt to appeal the District Manager's decision to the Board may result in the
employee’s immediate termination.

61|Page
5313874.2

121



Board Discipline of the District Manager or Other Employees/Volunteers. The Board may, in its sole
discretion, impose a disciplinary action against the District Manager or any other employee or volunteer. The
District Manager or other employee/volunteer is not entitled to receive progressive or step-discipline; nor does
any discipline imposed by the Board alter the District Manager’s or other employee's status as an at-will employee.
The Board will, to the extent practicable, in compliance with the Colorado Sunshine Law, and its ability to schedule
regular or special meetings, follow the procedures contained in this section. The District Manager or other
employee/volunteer and the Board will meet to discuss the discipline being considered. The District Manager or
other employee/volunteer may submit a written response, which shall be submitted to the Board at least 24 hours
before the meeting. The Board shall issue its final decision on the discipline as soon after the meeting as
reasonably practicable.

Termination Due to Job Elimination. The Board or the District Manager may terminate an employee because
of the elimination of the employee’s position. The Board or the District Manager will provide the employee with
a written Notice of Intent to Eliminate Position. The Notice will state the reason(s) for eliminating the position and
will state a date and time for the employee to meet with the Board or District Manager to discuss elimination of
the position. The employee may provide a written response at least 12 hours before the meeting to discuss
elimination of the position. As soon as practicable after the meeting, the Board or District Manager, as
appropriate, will issue a final decision on elimination of the position.

Termination for Reasons Other Than Discipline or Job Elimination. The Board or District Manager, on
its/his/her own initiative or on a supervisor’s recommendation, may terminate an employee for other than
discipline or job elimination, where the Board or District Manager finds the employee’s continued employment is
not in the best interests of the District, its employees/volunteers, and/or the citizens it serves, including the
employee’s goals and needs are inconsistent with the District’s goals and needs, the employee is not integrating
into the District’s work force, operations, or administrations, or the employee has attitude or behavioral problems
that, while perhaps not rising to a level requiring discipline, are not in the best interests of the District, its
employees/volunteers and/or the citizens it serves. In such circumstances the supervisor (if supervisor
recommendations are involved) and the District Manager will follow the procedures set forth in this Section 8.3.
The Board will, to the extent practicable, in compliance with the Colorado Sunshine Law, and its ability to schedule
regular or special meetings, follow the procedures contained in this section.

62|Page
5313874.2

122



9.0 Dispute Resolution

9.1 Dispute Resolution
Scope. This section does not apply to any aspect of any corrective action, disciplinary action or termination of
employment/service; any personnel decision relating to payroll, appointment, hiring, promotion, or performance
reviews;—erreviews; or any action a member perceives as illegal discrimination, harassment, or retaliation. Such
matters must be addressed in accordance with the policies and procedures, if available, outlined in the relevant
portions of this Handbook.

Informal Problem Resolution. You must first address the supervisor or other member with whom you have the
dispute and attempt to resolve the dispute directly. If the informal means of problem resolution are not
successful, you may utilize the dispute resolution procedures set forth below.

Dispute Resolution Procedures. After satisfying the Informal Problem Resolution section above, you may submit
a written dispute to the District Manager or, if the dispute involves the District Manager, to a Board member.

A. You must submit your written dispute within six business days of the issue or event that is the reason for
the dispute. The written dispute must be placed in a sealed envelope. If the dispute is being submitted to
the District Manager, the sealed envelope must be marked "Confidential Dispute Resolution for the
District Manager." If the dispute is being submitted to the Board, then the sealed envelope must be
marked "Confidential — Dispute Resolution for the Board." In either case, the sealed envelope must be
delivered to the administrative office.

B. The written dispute must, at a minimum, state the following:

e The date of the disputed issue or event, and the date you submitted the written dispute;

e Your name;

e Adescription of the dispute; how, when and where it arose; the parties involved; and, its present
status, including a description of the steps you took to resolve the dispute on an informal basis;

e All documents or other materials supporting your position; and

e The relief sought or a proposal for resolution of the dispute.

C. If the dispute is submitted to the District Manager, he/she may make such investigationan investigation
as he/she deems appropriate under the circumstances and issue a written decision as soon as possible.
The District Manager's decision is the final decision on the disputedispute, and you must not attempt to
appeal it to the Board.

If the dispute is submitted to the Board, it will take whatever action it deems appropriate given the circumstances,
which may include appointing a two-member committee or reviewing it as a Board. The Board or its Designee will
notify the District Manager of the dispute and give the District Manager the opportunity to provide a written
response. The Board or its designees may conduct such investigation as it deems appropriate under the
circumstances, including hiring an outside investigator. The Board will issue a written decision as soon as
practicable. The Board’s decision is final and may not be appealed.

63|Page
5313874.2

123



Appendix

64|Page
5313874.2

124



Benefit Table

b [ Formatted Table

[ Formatted Table

Regular Full- Variable Regular Variable Variable
Benefit Type Time Full-Time Part-Time Part-Time S i Temporary Notes
Summer
operational Substitutes or Seasonals include aquatics, parks
Hours per Week 20 30-36 20-29 19& season; employed on maintenance seasonals, and sum.me'r
below employed an as needed camp counselors (those not working in
less than basis other youth programs during the year)
26 weeks
1039 &
2
Annual Hours (52 weeks) 2080 1560-1923 1040-1559 below N/A N/A
Medical Insurance Eligible Eligible
Dental Insurance Eligible Eligible
Vision Insurance Eligible Eligible
Must be 50; retiree must have a
minimum of ten years of continuous
coverage accumulated with
Retiree Health Insurance Eligible Eligible any CEBT group OR retiree must have
been employed by the District
continuously for a minimum of fifteen
years
s T Disabit Eliai Ehiai
Long-Term Disability Eligible Eligible
Most employees become eligible to
Paid Family Medical take paid leave after they ha.ve.earned
See Note at least $2,500 in wages within the
Leave Insurance (FAMLI) M
State within the last four calendar
quarters. Contact HR for information.
Empl Assist:
mployee Assistance Eligible Eligible
Program
Group Life Insurance Eligible Eligible
Flexible Spending - e
Account Eligible Eligible
*Eligible if worked at least 1250 hrs in
FMLA Leave Eligible Eligible Eligible previous 12 months
N 10% District
1
401a Retirement Plan Match
9 9
6.2% District | 6.2% District GZA GZA 6.2% District
457 Plan Voluntary District District
Match Match Match
Match Match
Accrues per pay period; increases
Annual PTO Hours 168 126 84 following 4™ full calendar year of
employment
*Accrue 1 hour for every 30 hours
ick L * * *
Annual Sick Leave worked up to 48 hours
%-of FF-Hours-Worked 100% 75% 50% - - - admin-use-only
Comp Time Max 60 45 30
Hours may be used for: New Year's
Day, MLK Day, President's Day,
Annual Holiday Hours 80 60 40 Memorial Day, 4th of July, Labor Day,
Thanksgiving, Day after Thanksgiving,
Christmas Eve, and Christmas
Bereavement Leave up to 24 hrs up to 18 hrs up to 12 hrs Depends on average schedule and shift

worked

5313874.2

65|Page

125



FMLA Required Posting

66|Page
5313874.2

126



Your Employee Rights
Under the Family and
Medical Leave Act

What is FMLA leave?

The Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA} is a federal law that provides
eligible employees with job-protected leave for qualitying family and
medical reasons. The U.S. Department of Labor's Wage and Hour Division
(WHD) enforces the FMLA for most employees.

ig can take up to f FMLA leave
in 8 12-month period for
« The birth, adoption or foster placement of 8 child with you,
* Your serious mental or physical heaith condition that makes you
unable to work
+ To care for your spouse, child or parent with a serious mental o
physical health condition, and

. C of your
spouse, child or parent who is a military servicemember.

An eligible employoe who is the spouse, child, parent of next of kin of a
covered servicemember with a serious injury or iliness may take up to
26 workweeks of FMLA leave i 8 single 12-month period to care for the
servicemember.

You have the right to use FMLA leave in one block of time. When it is
medically necessary or otherwise permitted, you may take FMLA leave

or
working less hours each day or week, Read Fact Sheet #28Mc) for more
information.

FMLA leave is not paid leave, but you may choose, or be required by your

loyer, to use any employer-provided paid leave if your employer’s
ave policy covers the reason for which you need FMLA leave.

Am | eligible to take
FMLA leave?

ligible employee if all of the following apply:
« You work for a covered employer,

You are an

* You have worked for your employer at least 12 months,

* You have at least 1,250 hours of service for your employer during
the 12 months before your leave, and

* Your employer has at least 50 employees within 75 miles
of your work location.

Airline tlight crew employees have ditferent *hours of service”
requirements.

You work for a covered employer it one of the following applies:

* You work for that had at least
at least 20 workweeks in the current or previous calendar year,
* You work for public or or

= You work for a public agency, such as a local. state of federal
government agency. Most federal employees are covered by Title I
of the FMLA. administered by the Office of Personnel Management.

How do | request
FMLA leave?

Generally, to request FMLA leave you must

« Follow your employer's normal policies for requesting leave,
* Give notice at least 30 days before your need for FMLA leave, o
« It advance notice is not passible, give notice as soon as possible.

5313874.2

must g
Information to your employer 5o they can determine whether the leave
qualifies for FMLA protection. You must also inform your employer if
FMLA leave was previously taken or approved for the same reason
when requesting additional leave.

Your employer may request certification from a health care provides
10 verify medical leave and may request certification of a qualifying
exigency.

The FMLA does not affect any federal or state law prohibiting
discrimination or supersede any state o local law o collective bargaining
agreement that provides greater family or medical leave rights.

be sul in pursuit of direct
lawsuits regarding leave for their own serious health conditions. Most
federal and cartain congressional employees are also covered by the
law but are subject 1o tha jurisdiction of the U.S. Office of Personnel
Management or Congress.

What does my
employer need to do?

It you are eligible for FMLA leave. your employer m:

+ Allow you to take job-protected time off work for a qualitying reason,

Continue your group health plan coverage while you are on leave on

the same basis as if you had not taken leave, and

* Allow you to return to the same job. or a virtually identical job with
the same pay, benefits and other working conditions, including shift

and location, at the end of your leave.

Your employer cannot interfere with your FMLA rights or threaten or
punish you for exercising your rights under the law. For example, your
employer cannot retaliate against you for requesting FMLA leave or
cooperating with a WHD investigation.

After becoming aware that your need for leave is for a reason that may
aualify under the FMLA, your employer must confirm whether you are
eligible or not eligible for FMLA leave. If your employer determines that
you are eligible. your employer must notity you in writing:
+ About your FMLA ights and responsibilities, and
+ How much of your requested leave, if any, will be FMLA-protected
loave.

Where can | find more
information?

Coll 1-866-487-9243 or visit dol.gov/fmla 10 learn more.
It you believe your rights under the FMLA have been violated. you may

file a complaint with WHD or file a private lawsuit against your employer
in court. Scan the QR

WAGE AND HOUR DIVISION
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

67|Page

[ Field Code Changed

127



68|Page
5313874.2

128



Healthy Families and Workplaces Act Required Posting

69|Page
5313874.2

129



"QEGL-06E-888 / TFFS-STE-£0E ‘SN0 2)e)s Wspiepue)s 1oqe] P2 ‘1ol welloqeope.Io(od sINsHElS PUL SPILPULIS I0qeT Jo WL
112E1U02 ‘sMe] Joqe] JA0 Jo 3521 03 st syure[duiod 1o ‘wopvmLIoyur ‘suonsanb 10 ‘51221[s 10U PATLIAP AIOW SUE] ASITP JO SUOISIAA [[IF 107

“Aqenuue pasepdan pue “papasu se qsiSuy wer) 120 saSeniue] ur papraoad S13M.104 3J0WAT [JLA PATLYS ‘SINI0A 0} A[QISSaIDL L[ISLa ST )1 aTafpu pasedsip aq )snur 13)sod sTyL

TOTETIION A137es PUE M{EaY [ans 10] SIIUSE 3501 13e0]) “satouade qear qgnd [230] moy 10 (JHJ(I)) WSTHONATT Pie [[2aF] d1jqng Jo jusmeda( opetojo)) 3 mog (YHSO) 19 PE2H pue £31eg [suonednoag [e1apay
3 12T SPIITT “SIPI0 PUE “SI[NL “sME] £aes 10 [T IR0 12400 10T s20p 1] “(usmdmbs aansajord enostad pue SuLmo[qapsTia) (T+T-07 EH pue (aea] pred) O7-07 g5 “ssel ey avqnd 0e1dyIoM ODEIO[OT) 0AL SIZLETINONS 1|50 STYL

“seTpamRl Imsael-21d
Sumjsnen¥a 137 1Mod W Sk P aq AR 10 “sdn snominome o spmerdmToes se morstaT( A1 o] paytodat aq AR sTonE[OTY .

(A\FH ¥ VALIH Woq 1pun) STHOMY INIVIJINOD

‘qol 213 op 01 a[qrun 1ayIom 3 ST Jou S0P () PIE {[e30] 10 “3JEls TRISPA])
KouaBe wreay juenmuases ¢ Aq papuammodar st (7) ‘soepdizom s 3¢ papraoid ysmdmbs wemy wenaajoad aiow
saprrord (1) Idd 1 J1 (212 “sano(S prenSeey ‘Ysewn) F4q WAO SR Iram A[LIEJUR[oA 0] PAAO[[E 2q IS BYI0M Y

Toddd.) 1umdinh J 1103101 [CUosiag ULy IR0 ] 35 0 SIary s1asdoyy

PIE-poos W PUE S[qEU0SEAI SEM TLISIU0 T SE SUOT SE ‘WOSEAI 1T 10 Iajiom

50 HouIY TSRO Sl 10 I JOTTED [0S I NG TSIU0D Pale[l-Ay THJ § 19410M ¢ s5aappe Jou paau [edrowmd v
1NPTOD PAAST[-3A0QE N TILM 3IWIILIAT

10 ‘107 wmonerelar moqe Supessord 1o woneSusaam we w Sunedonaed ro Supsisse Suwimsa oo Susedde (7)
“peanp AQages 10 ey 2oepdIom JEIIETE € 10 “sa[n afes 10 [esT JSTnaA0E J0 suenefota aaedyIom moqe

“onqnd a1y 10 “aTRACE A1 ‘sraqIom 1o ‘Tedround sy o) dqETmIoym Smpnpm “suIaImed ajqenosear Smster (1)

“Aomaframms peay agnd e ‘o) pajepa1 pue “Smmp spoe Swrmopio] T M SIS 10 ‘JsuTeSE SRR O} [N METN 5TI]

IR IAW T IEAH JNqig SN SUONE[OT| AIaJeS I[EaH SIE[d 10 \y 35000y 01 SIfanyg T9qI0

(Jedronnd | e 1 s1o10enmos jmepuadspu 10 ssafordms) siaylom. pue (SI0100U0d Juspuadapm
¢ 152 J LM ssamsng & 1o safofdme we) spednmuad, e mg Csesdopdme,, pue  sredopdma ysul jou seaod mIHg -

SIDIIEDUS)) MAPUSdpu] UIELI3]) SH[J 's3340[dUI ] PUE sI3i0[duy [[¥ :25E1340)
yuaurdmby 2an23301g 25 3 swiduo) [IeaH 2derdyton ssaadxy o) sENT 190\
(e MAHA) AWV T YIANOTIA TLSIHA ADNIDYANA HUTVAH OI'Td0d FHL

“anea] Smsnstm 107 saousnbasnod 208y w2 saalojdury 11 1o sedopdma s ruw e 20 Jomres g N ML 10 3218k Jou
paan 12 fopdma mwe yraioout sT OTAnoe 13710 10 ‘sanbar yurepdures yay IH mire-poos apqenssear s saiojdua we Jy

TONE[OIA WAL H € Jo uogednsaam w sjstssesaerRdooa (1) 1o urepdue vy 46

B S3 () simSn yy, gi7 Smsrazexs m nostsd smome sjstsse 10 STIONM () ‘eaRs] Y JH SSE 10 spsanbar (1) oym
safopdms we “{q 31e3] Jo 3sn PIu arapmsim 10 sureSe aemeIar SIWIRMO 10 " e ‘g joumes 13dojdma wy .
*aaea] pred Surper wagu 5erasod qol 1o aatom mawaaepdar, v pug o) parmbar aq 3, ues sadopdms uy .

TUOTIE 35I2APE JO PULY ISTROUE 10 FULIJ UI JMsar ABTI JET) 2IW3sqe,, UL S¢ PAIUN0D 3q JOWOE) 24e3] preg

SSTY VA IH 4 30Ua13j1a)1] 10 Uoneielay

S3SLIE AL W)\ I 10F P21 J1p uaym 10 e 1ad soue pejssnbalaq few uonenmozu] 3ae3] IHJ
muemeddns Aue Surpnjour ‘Tead jgeusq JuRLMD A Sunmp pasn Apealfe (7) pue “asn 1oy A[qe[rea (1) aey ssaiojdms
aaa] pred 7o UMOTTE JUAIMS T JO MonEAmIop spracid sum srlojdmy sanbaa nodn paprioad aq ismwm spasaag .

“PIOOSI [ENPST [EQUAPGUCD E SE P2JES] 3q JSITI UOGETWLION TIN5 TOREILIONT 3pes 10 e PeR- Y IH
(s, &gy i 10) 5 a24opdma we moqe _ spreiep,, asorastp o) seakordma armbar jomres sradopdmy dovanng seiopdmy .

‘SURTIAI0NT JJNUTH-XT5 10 A[IMoT] I3 Ul 3aea] 25n ued seadojdms “Lorned 1ziopdms uo Surp ([ "3 [IEAWAII] «

Aousrogep s 2mo o3 sdep vanas 1se] e sakordwe 21 2alE (g) pue “(I9uc0s ST IRATRIYM)
uoneredas 10 jpom o) wmgar s sedordma s 10 mom p o Smamcar e Jo siep uaaes umpw safordum
a1 Amon () snm wioidms s mspgap monejmswmep s 3afsdurs me swaap {qemosear radopdws we JT .

“(uodar 2arod 10 apro Swmrensal e ©5+2) JuemmO0p TES9] B 10 ‘3A0QE (7) 10 (SIOTAISS 10[aYs 10 [eSa] Jo wmpord e mog
*5'7) aaoqe () 19pm Suni 1o weumoop € sapaond Lem salofdms U JUAMSSEIRT [LTIULD 10 *MESSE [ENIa5 ‘3snqe
JUSAUOP 0] PAje[al paau e 10} aaea] parmbai (raquam {pmey s saiojdma me 10) saiojdma me e JusmRIOp oF .
“Smmyrem mmo s 3adopdma st (7) astaisaiyo “esuadys pIppE INOTRLM PTE STIT) S]QETOSEAT T PSTTELG0
30 MED JUSTMIOP PUE PAAIEIAI alam S30LAIas Ji Iapraord ssdlAlss [EI005 10 MI[ESY B WON JUSUmOop € () -aptaoid
Arm safopdms we “paam pajefaa-yipean (5 I2quiaw srurey s 22 ojdws we 10) 5 2aiopdws we J0f 2ava] JUAWRIOP O .
*aAes] THJ 10§ pambal ag wed nonEITIMNIOP 0y (IUCOS 5T IRASITIM) f1om wolr Suneredss 10 om0 Surwman
1a)7e 11 apraoad mes saforduma me 58 noos s parmbal aq wed nq “aae3p pred aywy o) parmbar jow 5T woNEIMAUMING .
“(sdep TEPUSTED 100 PAIOM 2AET pmoM 32Lo7dma we qorgm wo sAep 21 sAEp YI0M JATNMIISWOI JIOTL 10 I00J 10]
waYe) sew aea] J1 Amo nosear Swripmenb v 1oy sew aves) jem wots o) woneymawmIep armbar wesy salopdws ny .
Zorpod e yans [ ouerdwoonon 1oy 2aa] pred {usp Jouweo mq “aaee]  s[qeaasarcy,, axmbar Lay 1 sogou apraond
pmors seafopdma mor op se Smum m_sempasond sjqeuosear 1dope Aem sralopdmy 2] QeI 10 DNON »
Te2d 30 pus £q ‘seafojdms juemo o) s2onou pajepdn spiaoad pue ‘simpsod parepdn Lerdstp (7) pue seomjod simemmaop
Supreoquo 1o we e on s3afopdme maw o sonou spuord (1) wnm srdopdmy csrsed pme 20noT WML .

BAEA] PANIIOE 210J2q anka] [emetmR[ddns asn fem puwe aAes] paniade Jo smoy gy o) dnwres [us ssafordme ‘gr1g v Smmgg
THJ 2T 01 30D S[QE[TEAETN 51 aIEd PII2 10 [00T3s 3somm 10 *(£)-([) L1052)e m {[rorey =10 Io prmya € 103 Smmed (f)
10 SSIUINL UE ans Jo ﬁn 10 03 A[IqQd=asns JSEIIUT ARTH JET} UOTIPLOD [H[E3T] € 0} NP jIoMm 0} 3|qeun Sm=q (f)
SEIUY[T e nu_._m.wo (area m...nnm..uﬁ Butpuou) area 10 JULTmERD ‘stsouserp € SwpRas (7)

‘amsodxa 0} anp UTN[IXa YoM To Sumerost-gras (1)

‘TH4 3 W ssau Sq aqgo p 10

PIA S, uu_”oﬁﬂm 317 70 212 Jo aceqd 10 [ootas 31 1o mum_mﬁaﬁ a1 pasora erargo aand e ‘FHg e ™ (§)
46 (7} 10 (1) A1053]ED W PaqLIZEAP TOTTPUOD B SWIIUAIANS 13qUI=T A[Ture] & sey  (£)

{SPRIN SA0LAIRS IR0 10 ‘53] “HOHEI0[A1 TR 0} SUIPLS] JUSTHSSEILY [PUITILIY 10 J[IPSSE [ENXRS ‘38NqE Jsmop (7)
“area sanuasard 1o stsouSerp Swpnpom ‘y1om siwanaad ey nenpued mesy 10 Kmbm ‘ssaun eosdyd 1o [emsme (1)

:5Paau [I[Ea1] 10 AJ3J¢5 SULUO[[0] J17 10J JAE3] PIILIOJE 350 UL saio[dumyg
L-€0TT |00 L 5 ¢ 9y wonasjolg 28y, s9s (-2 Ked {imoy-uou ‘smoy remZawn) suonems Jgads uo s[eep 104 .
“Tead TN ST 251 107 JAA0 SILLTED ABS] PINIIIL PASTUN Jo smot g o1 dfy »
aMTmTO3 SJIJaq YT A STIMp ‘aaea] 10] nonesuaduTes pwe [Enmae Jo 21k a1 jas Led pre smor mmiay .
spu2 FHJ 2 B syem  [Im (FHJ) LfHussrme mresy onqnd e m sardde snes] pepusmeiddns jo smoy gg o1 dp) «
TeaA B smoy] g4 03 dn 5 2aea] pAnioe, ) paijiom smor (¢ I2d 2483] pred Jo moy | wes saaiojdmy .

TALIH 13 1°pun 3A¢3] pred Ipiiodd 0 paimbar S.0¢ s3310[dWs G J563] JE€ (L0 sIaL0[dul] (S5E1940)

SHISNY 3aea Ped (. VAVIH:) 1OV SAIVIHOAN ¥ SATTINVA AHLTVAH FHL

L2qUAIA(T YIV3 JO Yaan ST 2]qUitDan

SIUSHELS 7y SPIBPUELS I0qET JO UOISIAIQ

. yawfojdurg pue zoge] P
aassod wou Gomuun pawpdnoq isnpy - I NIINGINOE AILDILOYUd ¥ “ONIMO T LLSTHM ‘TAVIT ATV 40105 7 @ Q

TT0T °T Alenuep aAndpgT

119150 S)IYSTY MM dMqnd »efdiiop operofo)

oavioiod

5313874.2

130



71|Page
5313874.2

131



Wage Deduction Required Agreement

("Employee") expressly agrees that the Ken-
Caryl Ranch Metropolitan Recreation and Park District (“District”) may reduce the Employee’s wages or
compensation for loans, advances, goods or services, and equipment or property the District provides the
Employee during the course of his or her employment by the District.

Without relieving the Employee from his or her obligation to return District money or property to the District upon
separation from employment, Employee acknowledges that the District may set off against Employee's final
paycheck the amount or value of the property he or she failed to return. Nothing in this agreement authorizes a
deduction below minimum wage.

This Agreement is not intended to be an employment contract and does not alter the Employee's at-will
employment status.

Employee

Date

72|Page
5313874.2

132



Employee Acknowledgement

1, the undersigned, hereby acknowledge and state that | have been provided with a copy of, and have read and
understand, the January 1, 2623-2024 Employee Handbook ("Handbook") of the Ken-Caryl Ranch Metropolitan
District ("District"), and that the Handbook and any subsequent amendments supersede all prior District rules,
policies, procedures and benefits dealing with similar subject matter.

| understand the District Board of Directors has the right to change the District rules, policies, procedures and benefits,
including any aspect of the Handbook, at any time without notice, subject only to applicable law.

| further understand the Handbook, as amended from time to time, applies to all District employees. | understand the
Handbook does not constitute an express or implied contract of employment. Notwithstanding any statement to the
contrary in the Handbook or any other District document (whether in electronic or paper form), or any statements
made by any District Director, employee, or agent, | understand District employees are employed on an "at will basis."
As a result, | understand that employees may terminate their employment with the District without notice at any
time. Similarly, the District may terminate an employee’s employment at any time with or without cause, subject only
to the requirements of applicable law.

By signing this Employee Acknowledgment, | further acknowledge that | have read the District’s policy for reporting
claims of alleged discrimination, harassment, and retaliation.

Name

Signature

Date

73|Page
5313874.2

133



2024 EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK

Ken-Caryl Ranch Metropolitan District

0O|Page

134



This page intentionally left blank.

1|Page

135



Table of Contents

IMPORTANT NOTICE ...ttt ettt eb e bt e s bt b e e s ket e ee e sk ke e b e eh b e e b s e e mbe s he e e mbe e eee e nbeeembenbeesnneenaas 6
FrOm the DISTIICT MBNAGET ... ..ceiieie ittt ettt ettt sttt e s ee s e seesbeeseeeaeste e eeeseeseeseeeneeseeseeentesaesreeneeane e 7
1.0 Definitions and General STATEMENTS ...........oi i 8
1.1 History and PUIPOSE OF DISTHICE..........uuiiiiiiii it e e e e e e e s e e st e e e e e e e e ennnes 8
1.2 EMployee COMMUNICATION .......coiiiiiiiiie e et e e e e e e e e e e e e s s e e et reeee e s e st b beeaeaeseeannnees 8
LB PEISONNEI FIlES......ceeeee ettt bt e et e et e e e e e e e e e sn e e e s 8
1.4 Release Of INFOMMIALION. .........oiii et et e e et e e e e e nneeeeenaes 9
1.5 Private Health INFOrMAtioN...........cooiiiiiiii e et 9
1.6 GENETAl DEFINITIONS ...ttt ettt et e b et ne e nan e e 9
1.7 Emergency Suspension of @ DISTHCE RUIE...........cuuiiiiir e ee e 12
1.8 AMENAIMENTS ...ttt ettt e e e e s e e e sttt e kbt e e e abn e e s e b e et e e e e e e nr e e e ea 12
1.9 No Contractual Rights - At Will EMPIOYMENT.........oooiiiii e e 12
1.10 The Board's Reservation of Power and AULNOFILY ...........ccouviiirieeie e ee e 12
IO BT =T = o 11 1 Y2 SRS 12
2.0 Employee Status and ClasSIfICALIONS ...........c.ooiiiir ettt s ere e s nne e e e 13
2.1 Employee Exempt and NON-EXEMPT STATUS ......cooiieiiiiee e 13
2.2 AdMINISErative ClasSITICATIONS. ...........iiiiiiie ittt ab e e e s re e e 13
KO 10T 0] (o) g LT g A o] [T TSRS PP 14
3.1 Equal EMPloyment OPPOrTUNITIES.......c..uvieeieeeeee i ettt e e e e s et e e e e e e e e s e e e e e e s e sentaareeeaeas 14
3.2 Harassment and Discrimination PronibIted............cc.uviiiiiiiiiiic e 14
3.3 Harassment and Discrimination Prevention PrOgram ...........oocuuvuiriiree e et ee e e e e e e e e eeeeeeeeees 14
3.4 SEXUAI HAISSIMENT. ...ttt ettt b ettt b e e e skt beeee e e e 14
3.5 NO APPArENT AULNOIITY. ... e e e e e e e e e s e st rraeee e s s e ereabareeaeas 15
3.6 Procedure for Reporting lllegal Harassment or DisCrimination..............cccvvvverer e iiieiie e 15
3.7 NO Sexual ACtIVILY ON DISTHCT PrEMISES ......ciiiieiiciieiieeeee et ettt e e e e s et e e e e s e e e eee e e e e e e ean sneeaeeaeaeeans 16
3.8 Pregnancy and Related Medical CONAITIONS ........c..uviiiiieieei et e e e e e e eeee s 16
3.9 Non-Discrimination Against and Accommodation of Individuals with Disabilities.............cc.c...cccnnvnen. 17
3.10 Accommodations of Religious BEHETS............ciiiiiiiiiie e e e 17
3.11 Workplace Anti-VioIENCE POLCY ...t e e e e st e e e e s s e e e aaeeeeees 17
3.12 Reporting Of CHIld ADUSE ........cooiieiiie ettt e e et e s e e e e s nnneeee e 18
3.13 Resignations and JOD SEParatioNS............coi it e s 18
3.14 RETEIENCE INQUITIES .. ee it ettt et e et e s e e e e e e e et e e e e e e e ss e e ata bt e e e s ae e s e s satsnbeeaeaeeeeeasantrnraeaeeas 19

K LSl o LT To =V aTo I = 0] 4 o] £ o] o SRR 19
2|Page

136



3.16 Limitations on Hiring or Promotion of Close RelatiVeS .......... ..o 20

3.17 Procedures for Employee ReqUESES 10 VOIUNTEET ..........coi ittt e 20
3.18 INClEMENT WEALNET POLICY ....evviieie ettt e e e e r e e e e e e e s e treraeaeeas 20
3.1 NUISING MOTNEIS ACT ... e e e e e e e e e e et e e e e ae e e s etbe b e e e eaeaseanntarreeaeaens 21
3.20 Outside or Additional EMPIOYMENT.........ooiii et e e e e e e e e e e e e e nenaeeeeeens 21
3.21 Youth Employment Provision and Driving Automobiles and TruckS. ..., 21
4.0 Compensation and WOTrK SChEAUIES...........ccvoiiec ettt be e srestaesreene s 23
4.1 AdjusStmMents 10 COMPENSALION ......cecieiii et e ee et e e e e e e s e e et e e e e e e s st st aeaeeeeae e e ansrnreeeeeas 23
4.2 WOTK SCNEAUIES ...ttt ettt et e es et e 23
4.3 RECONAING WOIK HOUFES ...ttt e ettt e e e e e e ea st e e e e e e e enteae e e e e e e e eannnnneeeeeens 23
4.4 NOIMAl PAY PrOCEAUIES. ... ettt e e e e e e ettt e e e e s e e et e et e e e e e e eesntee e eaeaee e santnnneeeeens 24
4.5 Overtime and COMPENSALONY TIME ......ooiiiiieiee e e e e e e e e e et e e e e e e s et e e e e s e e e at b eaeaeeeeannsareesaeaes 24
4.6 SEIVICE CAIIS......eiiieis ittt ekttt 25
4.7 Temporary UPGrate PaY...........uueeii oottt et e e e s et e e e e e e e s et et e e e e e e e e et areaeaaas 25
4.8 Pay for Required TrainiNg OF TrAVEI ..........eiiie et e e e et e e e e e e e e nee e 25
e g1 (0] 1 ST PP PP PP TTPPPRPPPTIS 26
4.10 Cell PRONE REIMBUISEIMENT ..ottt et e 26
4.11 EXPENSE REIMDUISEMENT.......ueiiiiie i ettt ee e s et e e e e et e e e e e e e s et e e e e e e e s e seatebbeeeeaesseanesaneeeeans 27
4.12 Mileage REIMDUISEMENT ... ...ttt e e et et e e e e e e et te e e e ae e e saneeneeeaeeesseannnnneeeeeens 27
4.13 Windfall ENMINALION PrOVISION. ........coiiiitiiiie ittt e e e 27
IO = 0T ] (0TI e oo [FTox PSR 29
5.1 Employee Responsibility to Comply with All Rules and Use Good Judgment ...........cccccceveveeiiiviviieneeennn. 29
5.2 C00E OF ELNICS ...ttt e et 29
5.3 OFff-DULY CONUUCT ... .ee et ettt ettt e e e e e ettt e e e e e e e s ntetteeeeee e s e e antnne e e aeeeeeeeananneeaeeeeens 29
5.4 Employees Charged with or Convicted of lllegal CoONAUCT.............ooooiiiiiiiii e 29
5.5 lllegal Drugs/Alcohol Free Workplace and Testing POIICY ............uvvveieeiiiii i 30
5.6 District's Right to Conduct Reasonable SEarChes ............ooiiiiiiiieiiie e e 31
I A - 1= 2 o] 1103 P EUROTPRPRPN 31
5.8 VBNICIES ...t et e et e e e e e 32
SR I o (0] 0= 4 PRSP P PP PPRTPPPTPPPN 34
5.10 Confidentiality and CONfliCtS OF INTEIEST........cociiiiee e e 34
5.11 Personal Gain Prohibited...........ccooiiiiiii s 35
5.12 Attendance and PUNCTUAITY ..........ooitiiiie e e e e e e e e e st rr e e e e e e s e ennenaeeeeeens 35
5.13 Ability to Perform Duties After lliness, Injury or Leave of ADSENCE...........cvevviiieieiiiiiiee e 35
3|Page

137



oI B =1 Yo (== Lo o 1Y/ =] L= TS 35

5.15 SMOKING @NA TODACCO USE .....eeeieieei ittt e e ettt e e e e s ettt e e e e e e e e s et e e e e e e e e ananneeeeeeeeas 36
5.16 Duty to Read Posted Items and Review VOICe Mall............ccuvuiiiieii i 36
5.17 COMIMUINICATION ...ttt ettt bt b ettt e s he e et e e et e skt e e be e e ein e e e nae s 36
5.18 Use of Cell Phones and Other AUdIO/VIAE0 DEVICES...........oeeiiiiiiieiiiiie et 37
5.19 SOIICTEATIONS ... ettt etttk e e e ettt e e bt e e e bt e e e aan et e e e s e e e e nre e e e nrne e e e 38
5.20 Online Publishing/Discussion, Letters to the Editor and Other Public Expressions of Opinion .............. 38
5.21 BOAIT CONTACT ...ttt ettt ekt bttt e st e b e e e e e e bt e e 39
5.22 SOCIAI MEAIAPOIICY ..ottt e e e e e e et e e e e e e s e s ettt e e e e e e e s e eteeraeaeeas 39
oI LY =T [ =T 1T 10 =SSP 40
5.24 DiStrict PUIChasing Card USE..........oiiuiuiie e e ee ettt ee e e ettt ee e e e e e ettt e e e e e e e e snte e e e aeeeseannnnaeeeeeens 40
5.25 DiSEIICt BUSINESS ACCOUNES ...ttt ittt etttk bttt b et e et e b e e 40
5.26 Personal Use of Equipment and Supplies Prohibited ...........cccvveiviviii i 40
5.27 BACKGrOUNG CRECKS ...ttt e e e e e e et e e s e e e s e s et e e e e e e e s ansntreraaaeeas 41
5.28 Public Health Emergency Whistleblower (PHEW) POIICY ...........ooiiiiiiiiiiiiicee e 42
5.29 Content-Generating Artificial Intelligence Software Use POICY ...........ooooiiiiiiieiiiiiie e 42
8.0 LBAVE.......eiii iR 44
B.L FUNEGIAI LEAVE ...t e ettt ae e bbbt e bt e e e e nae s 44
6.2 JUrY DULY and WITNESS LEAVE .....cceeeieeiieiie it ettt ettt e e e e e e e ettt e e e e e e e e ennntt e e e eeeeeeeantnnaeeaeeess 44
5.3 VOTING LEBAVE ... eeeeeeeee e ettt ettt e e oottt e e e e e e et et eeeee e e amttsteeeeeee e e e antnbaeeeeeeeeeaasansreneeeeeaens 45
6.4 AAMINISTIATIVE LEAVE .....eiiiiiie ettt ettt bt e in e e sk et e st e e e e snnbne e e e nnnneeennas 45
B.5 IMIITEAIY LEAVE ... eeviisiee ettt et e ettt e e e e e e et e e e e e e e e s ata b teeeeae e s e e satabaeeaeeeeeesntnneereeaeans 45
6.6 Family and Medical Leave ACt 0F 1993 ("FIMLA™) ...uuuriiiiiee ettt e e e e e e 45
6.7 Workers' COmMPENSAtION INSUIAINCE .........uuuiieeeeiseeitiiiieeeee e e e ettt eaeae s e s anteeeeeeeeeeseeaseneeeeeeaeseeannsnnneneeeeas 47
6.8 PaId TIME OFF (PTO).......eeeeeee ettt ee et ee et ee s ss e 48
8.9 SICK LBAVE ...ttt e b et 49
6.10 Supplemental Sick Leave During a Public Health EMErgency ........cceveiveiiciiiieiiee e cciciieee e 50
LT LU g1 oF= Vo =T -SSR 51
LG I I T T F= Y = PSSR OTRSPRR 52
7.0 EMPIOYEE BENETILS ...ttt ettt ettt et e et e m e st e e teseeeme e seenteeneesreeteenteeneeeeenee e 53
7L BNBTIES .ttt e 53
7.2 Benefits Continuation (COBRA) ......coi ittt et s e e e e e e e e s et e e e e e s e s aaaraeaeeae s 54
7.3 Flexible SPeNdiNg ACCOUNTS .......oii ittt et e e e e e e s e ettt e e ee e e e e et neeeaeeaeeeeananeneeeeeeas 54
7.4 Life Insurance and Accidental Death & DISMemMDEIMENT ..........c.ovviiiiiiier e 55
4|Page

138



7.5 Short Term DiSADIITY (STD)......eeeeeee et ettt et e e e e e e et e e e e e e e e nante e e e e e aee e eennenneeeeens 55

S Mo a0 R I=T 4 4 T Y- o 1 7SS 55
7.7 Employee Recreational BENETILS........c.uiiiiiie e e 55
7.8 Paid Family and Medical leave Insurance (FAMLI) Program ...........ccoioiiiiiirieeee e ciieiee e e e esiinivee e e 56
7.9 Seasonal Employee Scholarship Program..........ooo e e e e e eaeeeeas 56
8.0 Corrective ACtION and DISCIPHNE. .......ccuiiiiiiiee et 58
8.1 COMTECTIVE ACKION ...ttt ettt h e et e he bt e bbb e et e bt e e b e e e e e nae s 58
ST 1T ] L = PR OTPSPRP 58
8.3 DISCIPIING PIrOCEUUIE ...ttt e e e e e e et e e e e e e s et et e e e e ae e s e e satnbbeeaeeeeeesnsnteesaeaeaas 59
0.0 DISPULE RESOIULION ...ttt ettt sttt st tes et e s te et e ese e ste et es e sse e aeneeameeseenteaneesseeneeneeaneeseeneens 62
0.1 DISPULE RESOIULION. .....eiei et eee ettt ettt e e e e e ettt e e e e e e e e ane et e e e e e e e san smnaeteeeeeae e eannnnneeeeeens 62
FaY o] 0 1= o L G SO TSUUSPRS 63
BENETIT TADIE ... ettt 64

e I o [U T (=T 0Ty ] T PRSP SPPRR 65
Healthy Families and Workplaces Act ReqUIred POSTING .........ooouveiiiiriieii et e e 66
Wage Deduction Required AGIrEEIMENT ......... i it eeie ettt e e e e st e e e e e e s e ettt eeeaeeesentneeeaeaeeeeeananneees 67
EMPIoyee ACKNOWIEAGEMENT. .........co ittt e e e e e e e e s e e e e e e e s e ata b e e e eaesseasasnraeraraeeeeanes 68
5|Page

139



IMPORTANT NOTICE

This handbook sets forth the policies, procedures, and benefits for the Ken-Caryl Ranch Metropolitan District. The
District Board of Directors has the right to change this handbook at any time without notice. The policies,
procedures, and benefits contained in this handbook are current as of January 1, 2024 and supersede all prior
district policies, procedures, and benefits dealing with similar subject matter.

EACH DISTRICT EMPLOYEE IS AN “AT WILL” EMPLOYEE

This handbook applies to all employees. Employees of the District are “at-will,” meaning the District can terminate
employment at any time and for no reason. Similarly, employees may separate from employment at any time and
for no reason. This handbook does not continue an express or implied contract of employment. Notwithstanding
any statement to the contrary in this handbook, any representations contained in any District document (whether
in paper or electronic form), or any statement made by any District Board member, employee, agent, or
representative, any employee may be terminated at any time for any or no reason in the District’s sole discretion,
subject only to the requirements of applicable law.

6|Page

140



From the District Manager

Welcome to Ken-Caryl Ranch Metropolitan District! On behalf of our Board of Directors and the existing
team members, | would like to welcome you to an amazing group of creative, resilient, and remarkable
professionals. Our District is as unique as the skill sets of its team members. Our services, programs, and
facilities serve a community of approximately 14,000. We own nearly 900 acres of open space, maintain
over 100 acres of parkland, and operate three outdoor swimming pools, multiple tennis facilities, a
community center, hundreds of recreation programs, and much more! District employees are keenly
aware of their impact in the community and take their roles as leaders, stewards, and service providers
very seriously. We strive to protect precious resources, deliver efficient services, and adapt to the
community’s changing needs.

Our culture is built upon a phrase | use routinely and one that guides my work as a public servant:
continuous improvement. Continuous improvement is the act of always striving to make things better,
which guides us in our work every day. Continually improving how and what we do motivates us to
progress, learn, and evolve. It also makes the quality of life of 14,000 community members better. No
matter how small the improvement may be, our pursuit of excellence is an important objective in our
service to the community. The District is also guided by the 2023 — 2027 Strategic Plan. | encourage you
to familiarize yourself with its contents as it is your guiding document.

As you navigate your first few days and weeks with the District, please take time to ask questions of
other employees and myself. You will find that your workgroup is willing to share and are always
available to assist. Your success is our success!

Thank you for choosing to be part of Ken-Caryl Ranch Metropolitan District. We are confident that you
will be an amazing asset to our team. Welcome aboard!

Sincerely,
Traci Wieland, MPA
District Manager

Mission Statement
To strengthen Ken-Caryl Ranch quality of life and connections by
providing exceptional park, recreation, and outdoor educational experiences.

Core Values:

Respect, engagement, accountability, integrity, continuous improvement,
and building relationships

7|Page

141



1.0 Definitions and General Statements

1.1 History and Purpose of District

Ken-Caryl Ranch Metropolitan District, established in May 1988, is a quasi-municipal corporation and political
subdivision organized pursuant to the Colorado Special District Act to provide park and recreation services. The
District levies a tax on the assessed value of all property within its boundaries. Ken-Caryl Ranch Metropolitan
District is governed by a five-member Board of Directors elected by its citizens and serves approximately 14,000
residents within the boundaries of the District. The District works very closely with the Ken-Caryl Ranch Master
Association to serve the community in a unified and collaborative way.

Since the incorporation of the District, Ken-Caryl Ranch Metropolitan District has offered a wide range of park
recreation activities and facilities including Bradford Park, Community Park, Heirloom Park, North Ranch Park,
Ranch House Park, Saddlewood Park, Settlement Pond Park, Territory Park, the Community Center, three tennis
facilities, three outdoor aquatic facilities, 120 acres of greenbelts, and 19 miles of trails. The District also conducts
a broad program of recreation activities and special events for children and adults of all ages including school age
youth programming, wellness, preschool, and tennis.

1.2 Employee Communication

The District periodically communicates with employees on matters of common interest. These communications
may include, but are not limited to: letters mailed to the employee, bulletin board notices, email newsletters,
emails, surveys, GroupMe messages, meetings, electronic meetings, etc. Leadership strives to keep employees
informed of activities within their respective departments so that employees can perform their jobs with an
understanding of their relationship and importance to effective District-wide operations.

The District believes in an “open-door” policy that allows for communication and collaboration at all levels of the
organization. Employees are encouraged to discuss important matters with their supervisors first with problems
and inquiries concerning work being referred to the Department Director. The District Manager also welcomes
and encourages employee inquiries. If an employee is not satisfied after consulting the appropriate staff in his/her
own department and District Manager, they may utilize the dispute resolution procedure.

1.3 Personnel Files

A personnel file and a separate confidential file are maintained for each employee. Personnel files and confidential
files are keptin a locked, secure place and are kept as electronic documents as much as possible to which only the
District Manager and other authorized personnel have access for job-related purposes. Unauthorized personnel
are prohibited from reviewing the personnel files and confidential files. Employees may review their own
employee personnel file or confidential file in the presence of the District Manager or his/her designee at a time
established by the District Manager or his/her designee. No material may be removed from a personnel file or the
confidential file; provided, however, that authorized personnel may organize and transfer records between the
personnel file and the confidential file in the performance of their duties and where appropriate. This rule shall
not prohibit the disclosure of information in the employee's personnel file or confidential file when legally
required to do so.

In order to keep personnel records current, the Finance Department must be notified of any change in an
employee’s address, phone number, marital status, military status, any birth or death in any employee’s
immediate family, any change in the name or telephone number of the person to be notified in case of emergency,
any change in insurance or retirement plan beneficiary, or any other information needed to maintain accurate
records. Each employee is responsible for providing the District with records concerning any licenses or certificates

8|Page

142



required for the performance of his or her job, proof of insurance if receiving mileage reimbursement, proof of cell
phone coverage if receiving reimbursement, as well as any documents showing that education or training relevant
to employment has been completed.

1.4 Release of Information

The Colorado Open Records Act governs public access to District records, including personnel records. The home
address and telephone number, financial information and other information of a District employee maintained
because of the District-employee relationship may not be provided to the public without the consent of the
employee. Generally speaking, applications of pastand currentemployees, employment agreements, performance
ratings, and wages and salaries of District employees are public records and are subject to publicreview, subject
to certain requirements of applicable law.

Employees may examine their own personnel records by contacting the Finance Department. Employees may
authorize the release of specified personnel records by executing a written request designating the record(s) to
be released and the person or entity to which they may be released. No personal information on former or current
District employees shall be provided via telephone inquiries except to confirm or deny past or present
employment status and dates of employment. A copy of any written information sent to a third party concerning
a former or current employee may also be provided to that employee upon the employee’s written request. The
District may charge the employee for the cost of such records subject to applicable law.

1.5 Private Health Information

Information regarding the health of any District employee is generally personal to that employee unless the
employee voluntarily makes this information available to management or other staff members or such
information is readily observable.

Under some circumstances provided by law or applicable regulation, the District will receive individual health
information. When received by the District all private health information will be kept confidential and access to
such information will be provided to only those persons who have a legitimate need to know.

Any employee requesting sick leave, disability leave, or FMLA leave may be required to provide some health
information requested on the respective leave form. The District Manager, at the District’s option and subject to
applicable law, may request the employee to provide an appropriate certification from the employees’ medical
health careprovider.

1.6 General Definitions

Action Plan. The stages that may be followed when discipline is deemed necessary, or performance requires
improvement.

Applicable Law. A Federal, State, or local constitution, charter, law, rule, ordinance, code, or regulation that
applies directly or indirectly to the District and/or its directors, officers, employees, agents, or representatives.
At-Will Employment. This handbook applies to all employees. This handbook does not continue an express or
implied contract of employment. Notwithstanding any statement to the contrary in this handbook, any
representations contained in any district document (whether in paper or electronic form), or any statement made
by any district Board member, employee, agent or presentative, any employee may be terminated at any time for
any or no reason in the District’s sole discretion, subject only to the requirements of applicable law.

Board. The District's Board of Directors, which is made up of five elected officials, serves as the District's governing
body.

Business Day. Monday through Friday of every calendar week, not including holidays for which the District's
operations are closed.

9|Page

143



Communications Systems. The District's computer, telephone, internet and messaging systems, including but not
limited to, personal desktop and laptop computers, electronic media, servers, telephones, copy machines,
facsimiles, cell phones, radios, hand-held electronic devices, electronic storage devices, and the local area
network.

Comp Time. Under certain prescribed conditions and with Supervisor approval, employees may receive
compensatory time off, at a rate of not less than one and one-half hours for each overtime hour worked, instead
of cash overtime pay, in accordance with the policies outlined in this Handbook.

Corrective Action. Corrective action is intended to notify employee of conduct that is not in conformance with
the District’s rules or otherwise is inappropriate or deficient, so the employee can promptly take appropriate
action to ensure the conduct does not occur again. Corrective Actions are not discipline, although it can form the
basis for a disciplinary action.

Designee. An employee or other person to whom the Board or the District Manager has delegated or assigned a
specific duty, responsibility, or activity.

District. The legal entity known as the Ken-Caryl Ranch Metropolitan District, a political subdivision of the State
of Colorado.

District Manager. The District's District Manager, hired by, serving at the pleasure of, and acting under the
direction of, the Board.

District Premises. All buildings, offices, recreation facilities or areas, real property, parks, parking lots, places,
District vehicles, and equipment that the District owns, leases, manages or controls.

District Vehicle. All vehicles or other motorized machinery capable of movement that the District owns, leases or
controls.

Electronic Transmissions. All forms of electronic transmissions, including communications, that are created,
stored, received or sent on the District's communications systems (whether imbedded in software or otherwise),
including but not limited to, e-mail, text messages, instant messages, voicemails, access to internet websites, and
any other internet or electronic transmissions.

Employee(s). An individual hired by the District on a regular full-time, variable full-time, regular part-time,
variable part-time, seasonal, or variable temporary basis. The term "employee" does not include Board of
Directors, independent contractors, volunteers, or consultants.

Exempt Employee(s). An employee whose job assignments meet specific tests established by the federal Fair
Labor Standards Act (FLSA) and state law and who are exempt from minimum wage and/or overtime pay
requirements. These exemptions include administrative, executive/supervisor, and professional. Administrative
employees regularly exercise independent judgement and discretion in matters of significance and their primary
duty is non-manual in nature and directly related to management policies or general business operations.
Supervisory employees supervise the work of employees and have the authority to hire and fire, or effectively
recommend such action. Professional employees have knowledge of an advanced type in a field or science
customarily acquired by a prolonged course of specialized intellectual instruction and study. Exempt employees
are expected to work the hours necessary to satisfactorily complete the job duties and to be in the office and
available to employees and the public during normal business hours.

Family Member. An employee’s immediate family member including any person related by blood, marriage, civil
union, or adoption; a child to whom the employee stands in loco parentis or a person who stood in loco parentis
to the employee with the employee was a minor; or a person for whom the employee is responsible for providing
or arranging health- or safety-related care.

FLSA. The federal Fair Labor Standards Act, 29 U.S.C. § 201 et seq., and the federal regulations interpreting and
implementing the FLSA, 29 C.F.R., Part 500, et seq.

FMLA (Family Medical Leave Act). FMLA entitles eligible employees to take unpaid, job-protected leave in a
defined 12-month period for specified family and medical reasons. Under the FMLA, eligible employees are
entitled up to 480 hours of family medical leave.

Illegal Drug(s). Any substance that is illegal in the United States under any applicable law, or any substance defined
as a controlled substance in C.R.S. § 18-18-101, et seg. and/or the Controlled Substances Act, 21 U.S.C. 8 801, et

10|Page

144



seq., and the federal regulations interpreting and implementing the Controlled Substances Act, which is being
possessed, sold or used illegally. Marijuana, whether used for medical or recreational purposes, and psilocybin is
a controlled substance under Federal law and constitutes an illegal drug.

May. Optional; not required.

Must. Mandatory; required.

Non-Exempt Employee(s). Employees whose job positions do not meet FLSA or applicable regulations, and who are
not exempt from minimum wage and overtime pay requirements. Nonexempt employees are eligible to receive
overtime pay or Comp Time for hours worked more than 40 hours in a given workweek, or as otherwise required by
applicable law.

Paid Time Off (PTO). The amount of PTO that was earned by the employee in a previous year and carried over by
the employee to the current year pursuant to the District's PTO carry-over allowance.

Posts. Messages sent through or placed on Social Media websites by users, whether in the form of emails, "status
updates”, "wall" messages, tweets, diary entries, instant messages, blog entries, photographs, videos, etc.

Public Health Emergency. An act of bioterrorism, a pandemic influenza, or an epidemic caused by a novel and highly
fatal infections agent for which an emergency is declared by a federal, state, or local public health agency; a disaster
emergency is declared by the governor; or a highly infectious illness or agent with epidemic or pandemic potential for
which a disaster emergency is declared by the governor.

Regular Full-Time Employee. An employee scheduled to work between 37 and 40 hours per week on an annual basis.
Employee is eligible to receive full health care benefits and full benefits package.

Regular Part-Time Employee. An employee scheduled to work between 20 and 29 hours per week on an annual
basis. Regular Part-Time Employees are not eligible to receive health care benefits but are eligible to receive a
prorated benefits package.

Rule. A written or oral District rule, policy, practice, or procedure, whether or not physically incorporated into
this Handbook.

Safety Sensitive Position A position whose duties or use of dangerous or heavy equipment may require additional
considerations as outlined in this Handbook.

Seasonal Employee. An employee hired for a specific operational season, such as summer. There are no minimum
or maximum hours per week the employee may or shall work during the season. Seasonal employees are not
eligible to receive health care benefits but are eligible to receive a prorated benefits package.

Shall. Mandatory. Same as must. Contrast with “may”.

Social Media. Websites hosted by individuals or entities on which individuals and entities communicate by posting
information, sending emails and/or otherwise sharing data including, but not limited to, all forms of on-line
community activities, such as on-line social networks, message boards, conversation pages, photo sharing
websites, and chat rooms, Wikis such as Wikipedia and any other site where text can be posted, Facebook,
Snapchat, personal blogs (i.e., BlogSpot, CafePress, etc.), Photobucket, Flickr, Instagram, GroupMe, Twitter, Vine,
Yahoo, Google (including Google Docs, Gmail and other applications). This definition also applies to new forms of
communication that may arise the future.

Variable Full-Time Employee. An employee scheduled to work between 30 and 36 hours per week on an annual
basis. Variable Full-Time Employees are eligible to receive full health care benefits and a prorated benefits package.
Variable Part-Time Employee. An employee scheduled to work 19 or less hours per week on an annual basis.
Variable Part-Time Employees are not eligible to receive health care benefits but are eligible to receive a prorated
benefits package.

Variable Temporary Employee: An employee hired to work on an as-needed basis with no regular or reoccurring
work. Variable Temporary Employees are not eligible to receive health care benefits but are eligible to receive a
prorated benefits package.

Workweek. A period of seven consecutive days established by the Board for the purpose of calculating and paying
overtime to non-exempt employees in accordance with the FLSA. The District's workweek begins on Sunday at
12:01 a.m. and ends on the following Saturday at 12:00 midnight.

11|Page

145



1.7 Emergency Suspension of a District Rule

The Board, the District Manager or a Designee may suspend or modify any District rule, including any provision of
this Handbook, to meet the demands of an emergency, subject only to the requirements of applicable law.

1.8 Amendments

The Board may amend this Handbook any time in its sole discretion. Regardless whether an amendment is
physically incorporated into this Handbook, it is effective immediately upon adoption, unless the Board indicates
otherwise.

1.9 No Contractual Rights - At Will Employment

This Handbook does not constitute an express or implied employment contract with any employee.
Notwithstanding any statement to the contrary in this Handbook, any representations contained in any District
document (whether in paper or electronic form), or any statements made by any District Board member,
employee, representative or agent, any employee may be terminated at any time, with or without cause, subject
only to the requirements of applicable law.

1.10 The Board's Reservation of Power and Authority

Nothing in this Handbook shall constitute an irrevocable delegation of any express or implied power or authority
of the Board. The Board expressly reserves to itself all express and implied powers or authority vested in it by law.
The Board may at any time take any action required or permitted by this Handbook, including but not limited to
hiring, terminating, and imposing disciplinary action against the District Manager or any other employee.

1.11 Severability

If any part of this Handbook is held by judicial review to be invalid, every other part of this Handbook not
specifically held to be invalid shall continue in full force and effect.

12|Page

146



2.0 Employee Status and Classifications

2.1 Employee Exempt and Non-Exempt Status

Employees of the District are classified as either exempt or nonexempt under federal and state wage and hour laws,
and are further classified for administrative purposes, such as the administration of benefits like paid vacation or
holidays. These classifications do not determine eligibility for participation in the District’s group health plan.
Eligibility for participation in the District’s group health plan is governed by the terms of the plan documents as
well as applicable law. The following classifications are used throughout this Handbook.

Exempt and Non-Exempt Status

A.

Exempt Employees. An employee whose job assignments meet specific tests established by the federal
Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) and state law and who are exempt from minimum wage and/or overtime
pay requirements. These exemptions include administrative, executive/supervisor, and professional.
Administrative employees regularly exercise independent judgement and discretion in matters of
significance and their primary duty is non-manual in nature and directly related to management policies
or general business operations. Supervisory employees supervise the work of employees and have the
authority to hire and fire, or effectively recommend such action. Professional employees have knowledge
of an advanced type in a field or science customarily acquired by a prolonged course of specialized
intellectual instruction and study. Exempt employees are expected to work the hours necessary to
satisfactorily complete the job duties and to be in the office and available to employees and the public
during normal business hours.

Non-Exempt Employees. Employees whose job positions do not meet FLSA or applicable regulations, and
who are not exempt from minimum wage and overtime pay requirements. Nonexempt employees are eligible
to receive overtime pay or Comp Time for hours worked more than 40 hours in a given workweek, or as
otherwise required by applicable law.

2.2 Administrative Classifications
Employee Administrative Classifications

A.

B.

Regular Full-Time Employee. An employee scheduled to work 40 hours per week on an annual basis.
Employee is eligible to receive full health care benefits and full benefits package.

Variable Full-Time Employee. An employee scheduled to work between 30 and 36 hours per week on an
annual basis. Variable Full-Time Employees are eligible to receive full health care benefits and a prorated
benefits package.

Regular Part-Time Employee. An employee scheduled to work between 20 and 29 hours per week on an
annual basis. Regular Part-Time Employees are not eligible to receive health care benefits but are eligible
to receive a prorated benefits package.

Variable Part-Time Employee. An employee scheduled to work 19 or less hours per week on an annual
basis. Variable Part-Time Employees are not eligible to receive health care benefits but are eligible to
receive a prorated benefits package.

Seasonal Employee. An employee hired for a specific operational season, such as summer. There are no
minimum or maximum hours per week the employee may or shall work during the season. Seasonal
employees are not eligible to receive health care benefits but are eligible to receive a prorated benefits
package.

Variable Temporary Employee. An employee hired to work on an as-needed basis with no regular or
reoccurring work. Variable Temporary Employees are not eligible to receive health care benefits but are
eligible to receive a prorated benefits package.

13|Page

147



3.0 Employment Policies

3.1 Equal Employment Opportunities

The District provides equal employment opportunities to all employees without regard to race, hair texture, hair
type, protective hairstyles, color, religion, creed, national origin, ancestry, sex, gender, marital status, military
status, veteran status, age, physical or mental disability, pregnancy, sexual preference or orientation, gender
identity or expression, transgender status, genetic information, membership or non-membership in a labor
organization or other status in any other group protected by applicable law. This policy applies to all terms and
conditions of employment, including but not limited to hiring/appointment, transfer, promotion, demotion,
termination, benefits, lay-off, compensation and training. Employees are responsible for supporting these
objectives and implementing this policy. Employee must assist in promoting a workplace environment free of
illegal harassment or discrimination. No employee shall be coerced, intimidated, harassed or retaliated against
for reporting a violation of the policies stated in this section.

3.2 Harassment and Discrimination Prohibited
The District expressly prohibits any form of harassment or discrimination of an employee based on race, hair
texture, hair type, protective hairstyles, color, religion, creed, national origin, ancestry, sex, gender, sexual
preference or orientation, gender identity or expression, transgender status, genetic information, age, physical or
mental disability, pregnancy, military status, veteran status, marital status, or membership or non-membership in
a labor organization or status in any other group protected by applicable law. The District’s directors, officers,
supervisors, managers, and employees are prohibited from engaging in unlawful harassment or discrimination
while performing their duties or engaging in any District-related activity, including District-related activities
occurring off the District Premises. Harassment includes, but is not limited to, unwelcome conduct such as:

e Verbal, physical, or written abuse or threats.

o Offensive comments, slurs, jokes, or epithets.

o Displaying offensive materials, pictures, or objects.

¢ Unwanted sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, or other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual

nature.
e Bullying or cyberbullying.

3.3 Harassment and Discrimination Prevention Program
The District has established a comprehensive program designed to prevent harassment, discrimination, retaliation
and other unfair employment practices; deter future harassers; and protect employees from harassment. The
program’s objectives include:
e Preventing Harassment and Discrimination: The District is committed to creating a workplace free from
harassment and discrimination, fostering a culture of respect and inclusion.
o Deterrence of Harassment: The program aims to deter future harassers by setting clear expectations and
consequences for inappropriate behavior.
e Protection of Employees: The District prioritizes the protection of employees from harassment and
discrimination, ensuring their physical and emotional well-being.
e Annual Training: As part of this program, all Supervisors and Staff are required to undergo annual
harassment awareness and prevention training to raise awareness, promote understanding, and
emphasize the importance of preventing harassment and discrimination.

3.4 Sexual Harassment

The District prohibits sexual harassment. No one at the District, including directors, officers, managers,
supervisors, employees, customers, independent contractors, vendors or any other person, may make sexual

14|Page

148



advances or requests for sexual favors, or engage in any other verbal/physical conduct of a sexual or gender-based
nature, or based upon an individual's sexual orientation or transgender status where:
e Such advances, requests or conduct have the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an
employee's work performance or creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive work environment; or
e [tis obvious or implied that tolerating or submitting to the conduct is a condition of employment, or will
be used for the basis of any employment decision, including but not limited to, hiring, firing, performance
appraisals, salary, benefits, position, job transfers, promotions or any other decision affecting any term or
condition of employment with the District (all such conduct is defined in this policy as "sexual
harassment™).

An employee shall not be subjected to sexual requests or insulting behavior or language based on gender or sexual
orientation. An employee shall not be led to believe any employment opportunity or benefit will in any way
depend on his/her cooperation with sexual demands or that he/she must tolerate a sexually offensive
environment.

Employees must always conduct themselves in a professional and business-like manner and must refrain from
inappropriate sexual conduct that could lead to a claim of sexual harassment. Such conduct includes, but is not
limited to:

o Sexually implicit or explicit communications whether in written form (such as cartoons, posters, calendars,
magazines, publications, notes, letters, email, words or designs on clothing) or oral form (such as
comments, jokes, foul or obscene language of a sexual nature, gossiping or questions about another’s sex
life, or repeated unwanted requests for dates); and,

e Physical gestures and other non-verbal behavior (such as unwelcome touching, grabbing, fondling, kissing,
massaging, or brushing up against another's body).

Even "innocent” conduct may constitute sexual harassment. Regardless of an employee’s intent, conduct that a
reasonable person would find offensive may constitute sexual harassment and is prohibited.

3.5 No Apparent Authority

Regardless of title or position, no District employee, including but not limited to managers and supervisors, and
no District director has the authority (express, actual, apparent or implied) to harass or discriminate against an
employee or any other person. This policy applies while on the job or during any District-related activity.

3.6 Procedure for Reporting lllegal Harassment or Discrimination

Required Reporting. Employees must immediately report any unlawful harassment or discrimination to which
they are subjected, which they observe, or of which they are aware. Employees must report any unlawful
harassment or discrimination directly to supervisor, manager, Human Resources, or any trusted member of
management. If the supervisor is the subject of the complaint, employees should report the incident to the next
level of management., except that: (a) if the report involves the District Manager or Board member other than
the Board President, employees must report the harassment or discrimination to the Board President; and (b) if
the report involves the Board President, employees must report the harassment or discrimination to another
Board member. If the report concerns sexual harassment, employee may request that a person of the same
gender be provided to receive employee report.

Confidentiality. Information concerning a complaint of illegal harassment or discrimination will be treated as
confidentially as possible under the specific circumstances.

15|Page

149



Investigation. Once a report of harassment or discrimination is made, the District Manager or his/her Designee,
will promptly investigate it in a manner the District Manager or Designee deems appropriate. If the reportinvolves
the District Manager, the investigation will be conducted by a Board member committee, an outside human
resources consultant, or in such other manner as the Board deems appropriate in its sole discretion. If the report
involves a Board member, the investigation will be conducted by an outside human resources consultant or in
such other manner as the Board deems appropriate in its sole discretion.

Resolution. After the facts have been determined, the complaining party and the accused will be advised of the
results of the investigation. If the investigation substantiates the complaint, appropriate action will be taken
against those involved in the inappropriate conduct.

No Retaliation. An employee shall not be harassed, intimidated, or subjected to retaliation for reporting illegal
harassment or discrimination, or for cooperating with or participating in any investigation of illegal harassment or
discrimination. Employees must report retaliation in the same manner as a complaint of illegal harassment or
discrimination.

3.7 No Sexual Activity on District Premises

Sexual activity on District Premises or while performing any District duty or activity is prohibited, regardless
whether the sexual activity is consensual.

3.8 Pregnancy and Related Medical Conditions

The District treats pregnant employees the same as all other employees. Disabilities caused or contributed to by
pregnancy, childbirth, or related medical conditions, for all job-related purposes, shall be treated the same as
disabilities caused or contributed to by other medical conditions. As with any other employee, a pregnant
employee will be permitted to work if she can perform the essential functions of the job. If a pregnant employee’s
physician determines she is unable to perform the essential functions of the job, the District will treat the
employee in the same manner as it treats other temporarily disabled employees.

In order to ensure that a pregnant employee in a safety sensitive position is capable of performing the essential
functions of the job, and does not pose a risk to herself, the public or a co-worker in the performance of her duties,
the District will require a pregnant employee in a safety sensitive position to provide medical certification from
her physician, on a regular basis but no less than every 30 days (and may require it more frequently during the
later stages of pregnancy, to the extent permitted by applicable law), that the employee is capable of fully
performing the essential functions of the safety sensitive position. If at any time the pregnant employee's
physician advises the District that she is not capable of fully performing the essential functions of the job, the
District will treat the employee in the same manner as it treats other temporarily disabled employees. Further, if
at any time the District has an objective basis to believe the employee is not capable of fully performing the
essential functions of the safety sensitive position, the District may require the employee to submit to a fitness
for duty examination by the District's medical advisor. The employee may be required to submit a physician's
statement that she is fit for duty before returning to her safety sensitive position.

Upon request of a pregnant employee following the procedures outlined in Section 3.8 below, the District will

make all reasonable accommodations for health conditions related to pregnancy or physical recovery from
childbirth unless such accommodations would impose an undue burden on the District.

16|Page

150



3.9 Non-Discrimination Against and Accommodation of Individuals with Disabilities

Generally. In accordance with applicable law, the District will provide reasonable accommodation to a qualified
individual with a disability. If an employee believes they have been discriminated against or that the District has
failed to provide reasonable accommodation, that employee must file a complaint in accordance with Section 3.5,
above.

Procedure to Request Accommodation. If an employee believes they are a qualified individual with a
disability, the employee may make a written request for reasonable accommodation to the District Manager. If
necessary, and in accordance with the ADA, the District may also request information from the employee’s
physician, or its own provider, relating to the request for accommodation and limitations. The District Manager
or his/her designee will meet with the employee to discuss and identify the precise limitation(s) resulting from
the disability and the potential accommodation the District might make to help overcome those limitation(s). The
District Manager or a Designee (and, if necessary, other District representatives identified as having a need to
know) will determine the feasibility of the requested accommodation, considering various factors, including, but
not limited to, the nature and cost of the accommodation, the availability of tax credits and deductions, outside
funding, the District's overall financial resources and organization, and the accommodation's impact on District
operations, including its impact on other employees to perform their duties and the District's ability to conduct
its business and fulfill its purpose.

Retaliation Prohibited. An employee shall not be retaliated against as a result of reporting or cooperating in
the investigation of an alleged violation of any District rule or applicable law, including but not limited to the FLSA,
Title VII of the Civil Rights Act, the Americans With Disabilities Act (ADA), the Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA),
the Age Discrimination in Employment Act (ADEA), the Pregnancy Discrimination Act (PDA), the Colorado Anti-
Discrimination Act (CADA), the Healthy Families and Workplaces Act (HFWA), and the Public Health Emergency
Whistleblower Act (PHEW). If employee believes he/she has been retaliated against, employee must file a
complaint of retaliation in accordance with the procedures set forth in Section 3.5, above.

3.10 Accommodations of Religious Beliefs

The District will provide reasonable accommodations for those with sincerely held religious beliefs, observances,
or practices. In order to request religious accommodations, please contact your immediate supervisor [or another
supervisory employee]. The District is not required to provide the employee’s preferred accommodation, and both
parties must participate in the interactive process to determine what reasonable accommodations will allow the
employee to perform the essential functions of their position without undue burden on the District.

3.11 Workplace Anti-Violence Policy

The District's goal is to maintain a workplace free from intimidation, threats, and violence. This includes, but is
not limited to physically, psychologically or emotionally intimidating or threatening behavior, physical or verbal
mistreatment or injury, vandalism, sabotage, use of weapons, openly carrying weapons onto the District Premises
or during any District duty or activity, or any other act that in the District's opinion is inappropriate in the
workplace.

The use of District property, including but not limited to the District's communications systems, in a physically,
psychologically, or emotionally threatening, intimidating or violent manner is prohibited. All employees are
prohibited from bringing a weapon onto District Premises or possessing a weapon while performing any District
duty or activity, except for the following individuals: Law enforcement officials; and an individual authorized under
Colorado law to carry a concealed weapon in a public place. Under current Colorado law, the District cannot
prohibit an employee who possesses a valid concealed carry permit from carrying a concealed weapon in the
public portions of the District Premises; however, as an employer, the District can and does prohibit employees

17|Page

151



from carrying or storing a concealed weapon in any non-public portion of the District Premises. Further,
employees are hereby notified that carrying, storage or use of a concealed weapon in the performance of any
District duty or activity is expressly prohibited and not within the scope of employment. As such, if employees
carry, store, or use a concealed weapon while performing a District duty or activity, employees do so without
District authority and will be individually responsible for such actions. If employees intend to store or carry a
concealed weapon in a public portion of the District Premises, employees must provide the District Manager or a
Designee with a copy of a valid state permit before taking such action.

For purposes of this policy, a "weapon" shall include firearms of any type, whether loaded or unloaded, or any
other object or substance designed, or which the possessor intends to use, to inflict psychological or emotional
harm, bodily injury, or death upon another individual. The term "weapon" includes knives, except knives with a
blade less than 3 inches in length that employees routinely carry to assist them in performing their duties, unless
such a knife is brought onto the District Premises with the intent to cause psychological or emotional harm, bodily
injury, or death.

If an employee feels he or she has been subjected to workplace violence, has witnessed workplace violence, or
knows an individual who has engaged in workplace violence, that employee must immediately report it in
accordance with the reporting procedure set forth in Section 3.5. If there is an immediate threat to an employee’s
health/safety or the health/safety any other individual, or to District property, employees must immediately call
911. The District will investigate all reports of workplace violence and take such action as it deems appropriate.
Any employee who engages in workplace violence may be subjected to discipline, up to and including immediate
termination. The District also may report any incident of workplace violence to the appropriate law enforcement
agency. Retaliation against an employee for making or participating in the investigation of a complaint of
workplace violence is prohibited.

3.12 Reporting of Child Abuse

An employee who, in the course of performing his/her duties to the District, observes a child being subjected to
circumstances that reasonably indicate child abuse or neglect, or who otherwise has reasonable cause to believe
that a child has been subjected to abuse or neglect, shall immediately report the suspected child abuse or neglect
to their supervisor.

NOTHING IN THIS SECTION RELIEVES ANY EMPLOYEE WHO MAY BE A MANDATORY REPORTER BY VIRTUE OF THEIR
EMPLOYMENT OR POSITION OF HIS/HER OBLIGATION TO REPORT THE SUSPECTED CHILD ABUSE OR NEGLECT
DIRECTLY TO THE COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES OR LOCAL LAW ENFORCEMENT. AN EMPLOYEE
WHO IS BE A MANDATORY REPORTER BY VIRTUE OF OTHER EMPLOYMENT OR POSITION IS EXPECTED TO COMPLY
WITH HIS/HER MANDATORY REPORTING OBLIGATIONS.

An employee shall not be retaliated against for reporting suspected child abuse pursuant to this Section.

3.13 Resignations and Job Separations

Generally. When possible, employees are requested to provide advance written notice to their supervisor of an
employee’s intent to resign. The supervisor is responsible for immediately forwarding the original letter of
resignation to the Finance Department. If necessary or appropriate in the District Manager's discretion, the
employee may use any available PTO during the notice period.

Return of District Property - Failure to Return Reduces Final Paycheck. Employees must return all

District property, including keys, uniform items, logo apparel, purchasing card, computers, and District
identification materials, on or before their last day of work. By a separate written agreement, employees and

18|Page

152



volunteers who do not return District property must reimburse the District in the amount necessary to replace
the property. The District may take all appropriate action to recover any District property not returned on or
before an employee’s last day of work (or the value of such property), and all associated costs, including but not
limited to deducting the cost of such property from the employee’s final pay, subject to applicable law.

Final Pay. Final pay will be processed in accordance with the District's normal payroll procedures. Upon
separation, employees will be paid out for one half of their accrued and unused PTO. Banked sick leave, if any, will
be forfeited when an employee resigns or is terminated. The District may withhold the amount of outstanding
obligations (i.e. negative PTO, medical/dental coverage, education reimbursement, etc.) of the employee from his
or her paycheck, when appropriate and as permitted by law, unless the employee has made other arrangements
with the Finance Department.

Exit Procedures. An employee who has resigned, been terminated, or is retiring will be required to meet with
the District Manager, Department Director, or Designee to discuss various items relating to the separation of
employment, including but not limited to final pay and available PTO payout, provide the employee's current
address for mailing final pay and tax information, return all District property, and make arrangements for the
continuation of health benefits, if applicable.

3.14 Reference Inquiries

The District does not furnish open letters of recommendation or provide letters of reference addressed to "Whom
it May Concern”. In response to inquiries from prospective employers, the District will give only dates of
employment and verify the position(s) worked. The District will not answer any specific questions, nor will it give
references, with respect to former employees. If employees receive a call inquiring about a former employee,
they must refer it to the District Manager or Finance Department. The only exception to this policy are official
letters of experience required by the State of Colorado for childcare certification purposes.

3.15 Hiring and Promotion

The District hires and promotes individuals based upon their skills, experience, qualifications, attitude, and
aptitude for the position to be filled, regardless of whether they are District employees or outside candidates. All
qualified employees are potential candidates for hire or promotion to a new or vacant position. The District will
make reasonable efforts to announce, post, or otherwise make known all opportunities for promotion to all
current employees on the same day as external postings. Such announcements or postings must be made prior to
making a promotional decision. Postings shall include the hourly or salary compensation, or a range of the hourly
or salary compensation, for the position and a general description of all the benefits and other compensation that
will be offered to the person hired for the position. If an employee is hired or promoted to a position but is unable
to satisfactorily perform the duties of the position, the employee is not guaranteed an alternative position or
continued employment with the District. State law prohibits a District Director from also being a District employee.
Accordingly, employees must resign from their employment upon being elected to a District Director position. In
addition, a Director is not eligible for employment with the District, unless the Director resigns from his/her
elected position.

The Board has sole discretion in determining how to fill a vacancy in the District Manager position, including

whether to promote from within or solicit applicants from within and outside the District, and all rules with respect
to the promotion or hiring process, in accordance with applicable law.

19|Page

153



3.16 Limitations on Hiring or Promotion of Close Relatives
The District may decline to hire or promote, or may limit the hiring or promotion of, an individual or employee if
it would result in close relatives serving in supervisor/subordinate positions, and:
A. One would directly or indirectly exercise supervisory, appointment, dismissal, or disciplinary authority
over the other;
B. One would audit, verify, receive, or be entrusted with money received or handled by the other in the
course of employment; or
C. One would have access to the other's confidential information, including payroll and personnel records.

When employees become close relatives and their working relationship falls within this policy, one employee may
be required to transfer to another available position or to resign. If neither employee voluntarily transfers or
resigns, the District Manager may terminate or transfer one of the two employees, in his/her discretion. For
purposes of this section, “close relative™ means (i) natural or step-family relationships equal to or closer than first
cousin, including all descendants of the individual's grandparents; and (ii) an individual's spouse or partner in a
civil union, and anyone descended from that spouse's or partner's grandparents.

3.17 Procedures for Employee Requests to Volunteer

The procedures for employee requests to volunteer are intended to accommodate those employees who desire
to volunteer as District athletic coaches, at District events, or otherwise to fill volunteer positions available at the
District. An employee may voluntarily, and of his/her own free will and discretion, request to volunteer for the
District pursuant to these procedures. Employees are not required to request to volunteer, and the District does
not take any position with respect to whether an employee requests to volunteer. Rather, employees who request
to volunteer do so voluntarily, at their own discretion, and for their own benefit.

Pursuant to the federal Fair Labor Standards Act, employees will be considered for volunteer service only if the
duties of the volunteer service are different than the duties of the employee's paid position. Employee requests
to volunteer will be denied if the volunteer service involves the same types of duties as the employee's paid
position.

Employees who wish to request to volunteer must have the volunteer work approved the District Manager in
advance of the volunteer work. Volunteer requests will be reviewed on a case-by-case basis to determine: (a) the
actual duties and responsibilities performed by the employee in his/her paid position; (b) the actual duties and
responsibilities that would be performed as part of the requested volunteer service; and (c) whether the paid and
volunteer duties are the same or different type. District Manager or director will notify the requesting employee
whether the request to volunteer is approved or denied.

3.18 Inclement Weather Policy

The District is committed to a year-round operating schedule in pursuit of its mission to provide exceptional services
to our community. It is the intent of the District to remain open and adhere to full operations, when possible. However,
the District does not advise employees to take unwarranted risks when traveling to work in the event of inclement
weather. Employees should exercise their best judgment regarding road conditions and other safety concerns.

Under exceptional circumstances when the District officially closes or has modified work hours, the District will excuse
employees from work for all or a portion of the day. The District Manager will determine whether such time off is
paid, unpaid and/or employees may need to use available PTO for such time where the employee is not required to
work. If the District remains open, it is expected that staff work or utilize PTO to cover hours of the program closing.
Supervisors may approve work hours if the employee can work from home. It is anticipated that the need to excuse
any employee from work will be rare and that snowfall, other inclement weather, or emergencies will not normally

20/Page

154



be cause for an employee's absence. If the supervisor does excuse an employee, then pay for the time taken will come
from the employee's available PTO.

The designated contact(s) will inform the appropriate pre-determined website, email, social media, and phone system
contacts so that information regarding District facilities may be disseminated quickly to all concerned patrons. Youth
programs and preschool will follow the Jefferson County Public School Snow Day Policy. Employees are not paid for
inclement weather cancellations; however, eligible employees can use available PTO for hours not worked.

3.19 Nursing Mothers Act

The District will provide reasonable unpaid break time or allow an employee to use break time, meal time or both,
each day to allow the employee to express breast milk for her nursing child for up to two years after the child's
birth. The District will make reasonable efforts to provide a room or other location in close proximity to the work
area, other than a toilet stall, where an employee may express breast milk in privacy. An employee who desires
time in which to express milk is asked to make her request to her supervisor at least one week in advance of her
anticipated need. This notice period will allow adequate time to identify an appropriate space. Upon receipt of
the request, the supervisor must contact and coordinate with facilities.

3.20 Outside or Additional Employment

Employees may be employed by other entities or run a personal business outside of their employment with the
District. However, the District requires that an employee’s activities away from the job must not compromise the
District’s interest or adversely affect the employee’s job performance and ability to fulfill their responsibilities.
Employees are cautioned to carefully consider the demands that additional work activity will create before seeking
or accepting outside employment. Outside employment will not be considered an excuse for poor job performance,
absenteeism, tardiness, leaving early, or refusal to work overtime or different hours. If outside work activity does
cause or contribute to job-related problems, the employee may be asked to terminate the outside employment if
he/she wishes to remain with the District.

Any use of District property for outside employment is prohibited. Conducting business for outside employment or
an employee’s own personal business during their scheduled work hours is prohibited. This includes, but is not
limited to, use of District equipment such as cell phones, District vehicles, or purchasing any items under District
accounts with outside vendors.

3.21 Youth Employment Provision and Driving Automobiles and Trucks

DRIVING - Under 17-Years of Age. No employee under 17 years of age may drive a motor vehicle on public
roads as part of his or her job.

DRIVING - 17 Years of Age. Seventeen-year-olds may drive on public roadways as part of their employment,
but ONLY if all of the following requirements are met:

1. Thedriving is limited to daylight hours;

2. The 17-year-old holds a state license valid for the type of driving involved in the job performed,;

3. The 17-year-old has successfully completed a state approved driver education course and has no record of
any moving violations at the time of hire;

4. The driving does not involve towing of vehicles, route deliveries or route sales, transportation for hire of
property, goods, or passengers, urgent, time-sensitive deliveries, or the transporting at any one time of more
than three passengers, including the employees of the employer;

21|Page

155



5. The driving performed by the minor does not involve more than two trips away from the primary place of
employment in any single day for the purpose of delivering goods of the minor's employer to a customer
(except urgent, time-sensitive deliveries which are completely banned);

6. The driving performed by the minor does not involve more than two trips away from the primary place of

employment in any single day for the purpose of transporting passengers (other than the employees of the

employer);

The driving takes place within a thirty (30) mile radius of the place of employment;

The automobile or truck does not exceed 6,000 pounds gross vehicle weight;

9. The automobile or truck is equipped with a seat belt for the driver and any passengers and the employer has
instructed the youth that the seat belts must be used when driving the vehicle; and

10. The driving is only occasional and incidental to the 17-year-old's employment. This means that the youth may
spend no more than one-third of his or her workday and no more than 20 percent of his or her work time in
any workweek driving.

o N

All employees must comply with applicable traffic and driving laws, including by wearing a seatbelt and complying
with posted speed limits, while driving in the course of performance of their duties for the District. An employee’s
failure to comply with such traffic and driving laws, or engaging in reckless or intentional misbehavior, while driving
may preclude an employee’s ability to obtain workers’ compensation or other disability benefits if the employee is
involved in an accident while performing their duties for the District.

22|Page

156



4.0 Compensation and Work Schedules

4.1 Adjustments to Compensation

The District evaluates employee compensation as part of its annual budgeting process. Upon development of a
pay plan structure, each position will be assigned to an occupation group or job family based on similarity of work
functions. Also, each position is assigned a pay range that defines minimum and maximum rates of pay.

Pay ranges may be adjusted for various reasons, including but not limited to changes in market conditions,
minimum wage, or internal value of a position. Market value of a position is determined through survey(s) that
compare the District pay range(s) for selected positions to those of other employers in the market defined by the
District. Internal value is measured through a job evaluation process, which assesses the value of a position
relative to other District positions.

4.2 Work Schedules

Employees will work the schedules and hours established by their supervisor, manager, or the District Manager.
The District may change work schedules from time to time in its sole discretion to meet its business needs. The
District is not subject to the Colorado Wage Claims Act (“CWCA”) and has no legal obligation to provide breaks or
meal periods to any employee. Each department may decide, based upon its business needs, whether to provide
breaks and/or a bona fide meal period for employees. If provided, the meal period is unpaid for non-exempt
employees, unless the employee is required to remain "on duty" on the premises during the lunch period.

4.3 Recording Work Hours

General Policy. Non-exempt employees are responsible for submitting the employee’s time sheet to a
supervisor through the electronic timekeeping system on a biweekly basis for approval and submittal to payroll.
Full-time, non-exempt employee hours are rounded to the nearest quarter of an hour. If an employee is unable
to clock in or out because of a computer issue, accidental oversight, or the employee is at an off-site location, it is
the employee’s responsibility to notify his/her supervisor who will manually correct the issue. Non-exempt
employees are generally prohibited from performing work-related duties outside of their normal work schedule.
Non-exempt employees should limit performing work-related duties outside their normal work schedules to
emergency situations and should notify their immediate supervisor if the work causes them to go into overtime.
Work-related duties include checking and responding to emails, text messages and phone calls during off hours.

Discrepancies in Time Records. If employee believes there is a discrepancy between his/her personal records
and the electronic timekeeping system, he/she must immediately report this information to his/her supervisor.
Reports of discrepancies will be promptly investigated. If it is determined that an employee’s time sheet
incorrectly reflects the employee’s time worked, the employee’s pay will be promptly adjusted accordingly.

Falsification of Time Sheets or Other District Documents or Records Prohibited. Actual hours worked,
and PTO or other time off taken, must be recorded accurately by each non-exempt employee, and reported to
each employee’s supervisor or manager. Managers must verify all hours reported. Employees must not complete
the time sheet of any other employee. Falsification of any District document or record, including time sheets, is
prohibited, and may result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination.

Arrival and Departure Time. Employees should report to work no more than five minutes prior to their

scheduled starting time and stay no more than five minutes after their scheduled stopping time, without express,
prior authorization from his or her supervisor.

23|Page

157



4.4 Normal Pay Procedures

Pay Day. Employees will be paid every other Thursday for work performed in the prior work period. If the regular
pay day falls on a holiday, employee will be paid on the last day that the bank office is open for business before
the holiday.

Payroll Deductions. The District is required by law to make certain deductions from employee pay, including
deductions for Federal, State, and District taxes, Medicare, and ICMA contributions. In accordance with Section 7,
the District also will deduct the employee’s portion of the cost of health, dental and vision insurance premiums
from the paychecks of those employees who choose to participate in the District's health benefit program. Other
deductions can only be made upon an employee’s specific request and agreement. Payroll deductions also may
be made from an employee’s paycheck for court-ordered garnishments, or upon termination of an employee’s
employment pursuant to a separate written agreement with the District for certain items, including but not limited
to the failure to return District property or the repayment of unearned PTO that such employee used before that
employee earned it, in accordance with Section 6.

Direct Deposit. As a political subdivision of the State, the District is exempt from the requirement in the CWCA
of obtaining an employee's voluntary authorization for direct deposit. As a result, the District requires all
employees to participate in direct deposit as a condition of employment.

4.5 Overtime and Compensatory Time

Employees are expected to work scheduled and unscheduled hours as necessary to meet the District's services
needs and to maintain the District's efficient and effective administration and operation. Exempt employees are
required to work all hours necessary to satisfactorily perform their job; they are not entitled to, and do not receive,
overtime compensation, regardless of how many hours in a workday, or days or hours in a workweek, they work.

The fact that a non-exempt employee is asked or required to work additional hours does not mean such hours are
automatically overtime or comp time. Whether actual hours worked are overtime is determined by the detailed
regulations interpreting and implementing the FLSA. All non-exempt employees are prohibited from working
unscheduled hours, unless:
A. asupervisor or manager orders or asks employee to work the unscheduled hours; or,
B. an employee asks and receives prior approval from their supervisor or manager to work the unscheduled
hours.

Non-Exempt Employees. In general, a non-exempt employee will be paid overtime at 1% times his/her regular
hourly rate of pay for all hours actually worked in excess of 40 hours in a workweek. Mandatory employee
attendance at lectures, meetings, and training is counted as time actually worked for purposes of calculating
whether overtime wages are due. Meal periods, if provided, holidays, PTO, personal time, and any leave of
absence are not counted as time actually worked for purposes of calculating overtime. Overtime will be computed
on actual minutes worked, rounded to the smallest increment capable of being recorded by the District's
electronic timekeeping system. Overtime will normally be paid in the pay period in which it is earned. All overtime
must be pre-approved by a supervisor or manager. Employees who work unauthorized overtime may be subject
to discipline. The District may, in its sole discretion, provide for compensatory time off (“Comp Time™) for non-
exempt employees in lieu of overtime payment. For a non-exempt employee, one hour of overtime is converted
to 1% hours of Comp Time. (For example, an employee who works two hours of overtime would receive three
hours of Comp Time).The maximum amount of Comp Time that any employee may accrue is 60 hours for a regular
full-time employee, 45 hours for a variable full-time employee, and 30 hours for a regular part-time employee.
Anything in excess of these maximums will be paid out as overtime on the next pay period.

24|Page

158



Exempt Employees. Exempt employees are not required to fill out time sheets for days and hours worked and
do not receive overtime compensation. Exempt employees are responsible for working the days and hours
necessary to satisfactorily perform their duties and responsibilities. While the District supports flexible work
schedules and locations, all exempt employees are expected to work primarily at the District's office during normal
business hours to be readily available to constituents, customers, supervisors, and other employees.

Non-Exempt to Exempt. Non-exempt employees who are reclassified or promoted to an exempt position will
be paid for all unused compensatory time. Payment for the compensatory time will be at the regular rate earned
by the employee in their non-exempt position.

Upon Separation. Compensatory time earned but not used by non-exempt employees will be paid at the
employee’s regular hourly rate of pay upon separation.

Two Payrates. In the situation of an employee who works two different jobs at two different rates of pay, the
method of computing the regular rate of overtime will be the overtime rate for the job hours that resulted in the
employee earning overtime. Holidays and PTO are computed at the employee’s default department rate of pay.

4.6 Service Calls
The service call fees will be paid in a manner approved by the District.

4.7 Temporary Upgrade Pay

In situations where the Department Director has determined that a vacant or temporary position must be filled
in order to maintain operation of the department, and that the employee to be assigned will be temporarily
performing duties which require a higher level of skill than that required of the employee’s regular classification,
the Department Director may request, in writing, that the employee receive temporary upgrade pay.

Temporary upgrade pay is intended for upgrades lasting a minimum of two consecutive weeks. In cases where an
upgrade is ongoing, the Department Director will follow procedures to request a reclassification or a position
addition. Temporary upgrade to a vacant position will be limited to six (6) months, unless otherwise approved in
writing by the District Manager.

A request for temporary upgrade pay will be recommended by the supervisor, approved by the appropriate
Department Director, and reviewed by the District Manager.

Employees who are temporarily upgraded for at least one full pay period or 80 consecutive hours will be
compensated within the pay range of the higher level job class at the greater of the entry rate or their base rate
plus five to ten percent (5-10%) unless another rate is recommended by the Department Director and approved
by the District Manager due to extraordinary circumstances or performance of the upgraded employee. A
supervisor may recommend a rate less than five percent (5%) above the employee’s base rate, but not less than
the entry rate of the range. The hiring supervisor’s recommendation will require approval by the appropriate
Department Director and review by the District Manager.

4.8 Pay for Required Training or Travel

Training. A non-exempt employee who is required to attend training will be compensated for time in attendance
if the following are met: 1) the required training occurs during the employee’s regular working hours; 2) the
training is initiated and mandated by the employee’s supervisor or Department Director; and 3) the training is
directly related to the employee’s job.

25|Page

159



Time spent by non-exempt employees in voluntary training will not be considered hours worked. All of the
following must be met for the training to be considered voluntary: 1) attendance must occur outside the
employee’s regular working hours; 2) the employee is not required to attend as a condition of their employment;
3) the employee does not perform any productive work while attending; and 4) the training is not directly related
to the employee’s job or does not aid the employee in handling their present job. With the approval of the
supervisor and Department Director, voluntary training may occur during work hours or may be considered hours
worked.

If the training or continuing education is not directly job related, attendance at such training will not be considered
working time.

Travel Time. All time in travel by non-exempt employees as a passenger or driver to attend required training
will be considered work time regardless of when it occurs. Such travel time will include all time in travel to and
from training, but not time spent in traveling from home to ground transportation or the plane terminal or time
spent eating while traveling.

4.9 Uniforms

Required Uniforms. Designated employees are required to wear designated uniforms. Uniforms are not
allowed to be worn outside of work hours and are collected at the end of a season or upon separation.

Uniform Allowance. All designated personnel will be furnished with uniforms, clothing, clothing allowance, or
equipment in accordance with the regulations established by the District. All uniforms, clothing and equipment
are the property of the District and must be returned upon separation from employment. All designated Parks
and Facilities regular full-time, variable full-time, and regular part-time employees will receive a $200 allowance
to purchase boots. Allowance occurs upon hire and annually thereafter. All other classifications including seasonal
employees will receive a $50 allowance to purchase boots. Allowance occurs upon hire and annually thereafter.
Seasonal allowance occurs on or after August 1. Boots must be appropriate safety-related boots for job duties, as
determined by Supervisor. Options for boot purchase include:
e Employee personal credit card from a vendor of employee choice. Payroll reimbursement policies apply.
Employee is not reimbursed for taxes.
o Employee utilizes District purchasing card from a vendor of employee choice. Purchasing card policies
apply. Purchase must be tax exempt. Any amount over the maximum allowance will result in a payroll
deduction.

4.10 Cell Phone Reimbursement

Designated personnel will be paid reimbursement to cover the cost of the use of those employees’ personal cell
phones and service for District business. The reimbursement will be determined by the employee’s job duties in
relation to the need to access/communicate with the employee for work related reasons. The employee’s
Department Director will determine the amount of the reimbursement based on one of three categories of usage.
The reimbursement is intended to reimburse for a portion of the cost of equipment, accessories, and service. The
District will periodically review the reimbursement amounts considering the prevailing prices of voice and data
plans.

Because the employee’s cell phone does not belong to the District and the District is not paying for the entire cost

of the service, personal use is expected. The reimbursement is not taxed as income or considered earnings. The
employee is not required to track business usage; however, the employee will be required to provide a copy of

26|Page

160



their cell phone bill on an annual basis for purposes of verifying that the reimbursement does not exceed the total
cost of the employee’s cell phone service.

Employees receiving a reimbursement must maintain active cell phone service and agree to carry his/her cell
phone, keep it charged and operational as required by his/her department. Significant (non-de minimis) time
spent by FLSA non-exempt employees using electronic devices, including cell phones, for District businesses
outside of their regular work hours is considered compensable time worked and must be reported to and
approved by the employee’s supervisor.

An employee receiving a cell phone reimbursement agrees to use his/her cell phone in a safe and lawful manner.
Misuse of a cell phone will result in the revocation of the cell phone reimbursement and may subject an employee
to discipline.

Employees who are reimbursed for the business use of their personal cell phones have no reasonable expectation
of privacy in information or data related to the District or District business created, stored, sent, or received on
the cell phone pursuant to C.R.S. § 24-72-203. The District has the right to and may monitor the District Cell Phone
Information at any time, including without limitation voicemail, text messages, email, photographs, etc.

Access to District Data and/or Storage Systems. When personal cell phones are used to access District data
and/or systems, regardless of whether or not an employee is receiving a cell phone reimbursement, all data
transmitted from or to, or stored on the employee’s cell phone, is not privileged and may be subject to discovery
under the Colorado Open Records Act. Employees using personal cell phones for District business should ensure
that the phone is password or PIN protected and protect their phone from being lost or stolen.

4.11 Expense Reimbursement

Generally, District expenses should be paid for using a District issued purchasing card. In the rare event a
purchasing card cannot be utilized, expenses will be reimbursed by the District. These include those pre-approved
as reasonable and necessary to properly conduct District business. Employees request reimbursement by filing an
Expense Report with supporting receipts. Expense reports should be turned in within one week from the time the
expense is incurred.

4.12 Mileage Reimbursement

Employees authorized to travel by personal car for business purposes are reimbursed at the Internal Revenue
Service’s allowable rate per mile. Tolls and parking fees are also reimbursable. Travel advances may be authorized
when it is expected an employee may be incurring significant cash expenses. Employees request reimbursement
by filing a mileage reimbursement form on a monthly basis.

4.13 Windfall Elimination Provision

Employee earnings from this job are not covered under Social Security. The Windfall Elimination Provision (WEP)
is a provision in United States law that changes the way employee U.S. Social Security benefits are calculated.
WEP can reduce employees’ U.S. retirement or disability benefits if such employees receive a pension based
on work and did not pay U.S. Social Security taxes on those earnings. An employee’s noncovered pension may
affect the employee’s benefits as spouse or widow/widower.

If an employee receives a pension from a government job in which the employee did not pay Social Security

taxes, some or all of the employee’s Social Security spouse's, widow's, or widower's benefit may be offset due
to receipt of that pension.

27|Page

161



4.14 Holiday Observance
The District’s Administrative operations observe the following holidays:
o New Year’s Day (January 1st)
e Martin Luther King Day (Third Monday in January)
e Presidents’ Day (Third Monday in February)
e Memorial Day (Last Monday in May)
¢ Independence Day (July 4th)
e Labor Day (First Monday in September)
e Thanksgiving Day (Fourth Thursday in November)
e Day after Thanksgiving
o Christmas Eve (December 24th)
e Christmas Day (December 25th)

Some program areas or critical operations will occur on holidays. If a holiday falls on a Saturday or Sunday, it will
be observed either the Friday before or the Monday after.

4.15 Incentive/Bonus Pay

In support of the District’s mission to provide superior service to the community, the District may utilize incentive
pay programs to aid in recruitment and retention efforts. Eligibility is based on department and its specific needs.
To adopt an incentive pay policy, an employee’s direct supervisor must initiate an incentive policy request which
is approved by the Department Director and processed by Human Resources. The amount and form of incentive
pay will be determined by department on a case-by-case basis. Incentive awards will be subject to taxation in
accordance with federal and state regulations. This program may be modified or terminated at any time. Incentive
pay policies are adopted entirely at the discretion of the District Manager, and the program is not intended to be
a binding contract between employees and the District. Questions about incentive pay should be directed to the
employee’s supervisor or to human resources.

28|Page

162



5.0 Employee Conduct

5.1 Employee Responsibility to Comply with All Rules and Use Good Judgment

Employees are responsible for knowing and complying with this Handbook and demonstrating good judgment at
all times. If an employee has a question about a rule, the employee must ask their supervisor for clarification
before taking any action that could violate the rule.

If a rule applies, it must be followed. If there is no rule, an employee must ask their supervisor how to proceed, if
time permits. If time does not permit asking a supervisor, employees must use good judgment (i.e., "do what is
right and do it the right way."). A rule must not be applied to a situation in a manner that causes another District
rule or applicable law to be ignored or violated.

5.2 Code of Ethics

Ethics is defined as "standards of conduct and moral judgment in dealing with duties and obligations to the
community.” The following standards are in addition to, and not in derogation of, any standards of conduct or
code of ethics imposed by applicable law. Employees must:

A. Demonstrate the highest standards of personal integrity, truthfulness, honesty, and fortitude so as to
warrant public confidence and trust and serve in such a way as to not realize undue personal gain from
the performance of District duties.

B. Exercise whatever discretionary authority to promote the public good. Act always to serve the public
interest and show responsibility and restraint in the generation and use of power.

C. Manage and protect the District's property and assets.

D. Avoid any personal interest or activity that conflicts with their performance of District duties.

E. Serve customers, both internal and external, with respect, courtesy, honesty, and responsiveness,
recognizing that service to internal and external customers is beyond service to oneself.

F. Strive for excellence and competence, encouraging the professional development of co-workers.

G. Respect and protect the privileged information to which employees have access while performing District
duties.

H. Accept the responsibility to keep abreast of emerging issues and administer the public's business with
professional competence, fairness, impartiality, efficiency, and effectiveness.

I.  Demonstrate equality to all members of the public in dealing with the District business and issues.

5.3 Off-Duty Conduct

The District has the right to take appropriate action, including termination, in response to an employee’s off-duty
conduct that:
A. relates to a bona fide occupational requirement or is rationally related to the employee’s
employment/service activities and responsibilities; or
B. is necessary to avoid a conflict of interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest; or
C. isdamaging to the District.

5.4 Employees Charged with or Convicted of lllegal Conduct

Because of the employees' close and daily contact with members of the public, any employee who is charged with
or convicted of criminal conduct must report the charges to the District Manager prior to his/her next scheduled
shift, regardless of whether the conduct giving rise to the charges occurred while employee were on the job or
engaged in District business, or occurred off the job on personal time. The District will not take employment action
against an employee because the employee has been charged with or convicted of criminal conduct. Rather, the
District will consider the nature and seriousness of the offense, the relationship of the offense to the employee's

29|Page

163



job duties, the amount of time that has elapsed since the offense, and any other factors relevant to an internal
investigation the District may conduct into the charges or conviction to determine whether any employment
action is necessary.

5.5 lllegal Drugs/Alcohol Free Workplace and Testing Policy

Prohibited Illegal Drug/Alcohol Use and Restricted Prescription Drug Use. While performing any
District duty or activity, while on the District Premises, or while engaged in District business or activities off the
District Premises, employees are prohibited from:

e Buying, selling, soliciting to buy or sell, transporting, dispensing, manufacturing, promoting, possessing,
using or being under the influence of illegal drugs;

e Buying, selling, soliciting to buy or sell, transporting, dispensing, manufacturing, promoting, possessing,
or using illegal drug paraphernalia;

e Buying, selling, possessing, using or being under the influence of any amount or type of alcohol (including
medications or over-the-counter remedies containing alcohol).

o The foregoing illegal drugs/alcohol related conduct also is prohibited during non-working hours to the
extent that, in the District's opinion, it impairs the employee’s ability to perform the essential functions
of the employee’s job.

e Anprescription drug must only be brought on the District Premises by the person for whomiit is prescribed.
Prescription drugs must be used only in the manner, combination and quantity prescribed. Employees are
prohibited from using or being under the influence of a legal drug whose use can adversely affect the
employee’s ability to perform the essential functions of employee job. If, for medical reasons, employees
are required to take prescription or over-the-counter drugs that could affect the employee’s ability to
perform the employee’s duties, the employee must notify their supervisor immediately.

¢ Marijuana, whether used for medical or recreational purposes, and psilocybin is a controlled substance and
illegal under federal law. Medical or recreational marijuana will be treated the same as an illegal drug under
this policy.

Upon Hire/Promotion. The District has the right to perform pre-employment tests on all employees prior to
commencing work with the District.

Random Testing. The District has the right to perform random drug/alcohol tests on all employees in safety
positions.

Reasonable Suspicion Testing. Employees must submit to an illegal drugs and/or alcohol test when the District
has reasonable suspicion to believe an employee has used illegal drugs or alcohol in violation of the District's illegal
drug and alcohol policy. Reasonable suspicion exists when an employee’s appearance, behavior, speech, odors (of
breath), or other physical or mental symptoms indicate illegal drug or alcohol use.

All diagnostic drug screenings and alcohol tests based on reasonable suspicion must have the prior approval of
the District Manager or a Designee. If an employee is notified of reasonable suspicion to be tested, the employee
must be transported immediately to the District's designated illegal drugs/alcohol testing and screening service
provider.

If an employee fails or refuses to submit to an illegal drugs/alcohol test based upon reasonable suspicion, the
employee may be subject to discipline, up to and including termination. The employee will not be permitted to
transport themselves home or elsewhere. The District will allow the employee to call a friend or relative to pick
the employee up, or if no such friend or relative is available, the District will offer to have a District staff member

30|Page

164



transport the employee home. If the employee refuse these options and nonetheless attempt to transport
themselves, the District may contact law enforcement.

Positive Drug or Alcohol Test. A positive, confirmed drug or alcohol test or failure or refusal to submit to a
test may result in immediate termination even for a first offense.

Illegal Drugs or Alcohol Related Convictions - Duty to Notify District. As a condition of continued
employment, an employee must within 24 hours notify the District if the employee is convicted, or plead guilty or
no-contest, to an illegal drug or alcohol related charge. If an employee fails to so notify the District, the employee
may be subject to termination, up to and including immediate termination.

5.6 District's Right to Conduct Reasonable Searches

Employees are required, without further notice and upon the District's request, to submit to a search of any
District Vehicle or District Premises, such as a desk, locker or other container provided by the District. All spaces
on the District Premises or under the District's control remain subject to search even though employees use such
spaces or consider the space to be private. The District's communication systems and all information and data,
including electronic transmissions, on the District's communications systems, always remain District property.
Employees have no right to privacy to any information and data, including electronic transmissions, received, sent,
generated, or stored on the District's communications systems.

Employee refusal to submit to a search may result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination, or may
be considered by the District as a voluntary resignation. The District may contact appropriate law enforcement
authorities if it has reasonable suspicion to believe an employee may have illegal drugs or other illegal items on
the District Premises.

5.7 Safety Policy

It is the District's policy that the safety of its employees and the public is of chief importance. The prevention of
accidents and injuries takes precedence over expedience. In the conduct of the District's business, the District
strives to prevent accidents from occurring. The District requires that its employees, as a condition of
employment, comply with all applicable safety regulations as listed department specific safety plans.

The District Manager is the designated safety coordinator for the District and is the primary contact for safety-
related matters. All employees will receive an orientation to the safety policy and rules upon initial employment
and must immediately bring to the attention of their supervisor or manager any unsafe conditions or practices.
Supervisors will communicate these concerns to the District Manager or a Designee. The District will strive to
respond to these concerns within 24 hours.

Managers will be actively involved with employees in establishing and maintaining an effective safety program.
The District's safety coordinator, the District Manager, and other members of the District’s leadership team will
participate with ongoing safety and health program activities.

In addition to the other safety responsibilities identified in this section, the District is responsible for:
e Promoting a safe workplace;
e Providing safety and health education and training; and
¢ Annually reviewing and updating workplace safety rules.

In addition to the other safety responsibilities identified in this section, employees are responsible for:
e Reporting all unsafe conditions;
o Immediately reporting all work-related injuries;
e Wearing the required personal protective equipment; and

3l1|Page

165



e Following the District's safety rules.

5.8 Vehicles

If employees operate a District Vehicle or their own personal vehicles to conduct District business, they must obey
the following rules:

A. Used Only for District Business. District Vehicles may only be used for District business. Only authorized
employees or registered recreation program participants shall ride in a District Vehicle, or a personal
vehicle used to conduct District business, unless approved in advance by the District Manager or a
Designee.

B. Use of a Personal Vehicle. Any use of a personal vehicle to conduct District business also must be
preapproved by the District Manager.

C. Valid Driver's License. A valid Colorado driver’'s license, unrestricted except for corrected vision or other
restriction(s) that can reasonably be accommodated, is a condition of employment and continued
employment with the District for those employees whose job descriptions require use of a District vehicle
or use of a personal vehicle for District business.

D. Motor Vehicle Record. Motor vehicle records will be obtained for all potential new hires whose job
descriptions require use of a District vehicle or use of a personal vehicle for District business. No employee
will be hired with a major violation or a poor or borderline driving history. The District participates in a
program to continuously monitor all eligible employees’ motor vehicle records. Any existing employee
with an exception or activity will be reviewed to determine if remedial training or other actions are
necessary, including removal or restriction of driving responsibilities. MVRs will be made part of the
employee’s file. Definitions are included below, and all violations are scored for three years unless
otherwise noted:

1. Exception (Red); MVR Point Threshold of 15 or more points:
a) Any current invalid, suspended or expired license status (15 points)
b) Any drug or alcohol offense (DUI) in the past 5 years (15 points)
¢) Any non-drug or alcohol disqualifying offense (15 points)
d) Three or more violations of any type (violations groupings scored from 4-12 points in weight)
e) Two or more accidents
f) Two or more non-drug or alcohol severe violations (scored at 8 or 12 points; i.e.: reckless driving,
distracted driving)
2. Activity (Yellow); MVR Point Threshold of 1-14 points:
a) Current valid license status
b) Accidents (scored at 8 points)
c) Non-drug or alcohol low and medium severity violations (speeding, non-moving violations, and
standard moving violations like failure to yield)
d) Non-drug or alcohol severe violations (i.e.: reckless driving scored at 8 points)
3. Clear (Green); MVR Point Threshold of 0 points:
a) Zero violations over the past three years
b) Zero DUIs over the past five years

E. Driver Training and Intervention Programs. All employees benefit from frequent driver training. The
constant review of important defensive driving skills and best practices ensures that District employees
keep safe driving top of mind every time they get behind the wheel. The District supports this proactive
approach to reduce crashes and violations. If an employee operating a District Vehicle or their own
personal vehicles to conduct District business receives a violation, the employee will be assigned targeted

32|Page

166



training. This corrective training will be incident-based. Certain infractions may result in action such as
disqualification of driving abilities or other actions based on the position.
Insurance. In order to drive a personal vehicle for District business, employees must maintain insurance
as required by District’s insurance carrier on the vehicle and must annually provide a copy of their
insurance card to the Finance Department upon hire or annually. Personal auto insurance minimums are
as follows: $100,000 in liability coverage per person for bodily injury, including death caused to others;
$300,000 in total liability coverage for bodily, injury per accident; and property damage up to $100,000.
. Vehicle Inspections. Prior to and after operating a District vehicle or a personal vehicle to conduct District
business, employees must complete a pre- and post-damage checklist for both the interior and exterior
of the vehicle. Failure to complete a pre- and/or post-damage checklist may result in disciplinary action,
up to and including termination.
Obeying All Traffic Laws — Violations. All traffic laws must be strictly observed, including wearing seatbelts
and never driving a vehicle at a rate of speed greater than can be maintained with safety. All citations for
moving violations and any driver's license revocation, confiscation, or suspension must be reported to the
District Manager or a Designee immediately, regardless of when or where the citation occurred. Failure
to comply with this reporting requirement or being convicted or pleading no contest to a citation, may
result in discipline up to and including termination.
Cell Phones and Other Distractions. Employees shall not engage in distracting activities while operating a
District Vehicle or a personal vehicle to conduct District business, including but not limited to:

a) Using a cell phone to send or receive calls, text message, or engage in similar forms of data entry

or transmission;

b) Using a tablet, computer, or other electronic device;

c) Eating or drinking beverages; and,

d) Searching for objects out of sight, such as dropped items, coins, CDs, etc.
Ifitis necessary for an employee to engage in an activity that would otherwise distract the employee from
driving, the employee must safely stop, obeying all traffic laws, and complete the activity. After the
activity is completed, the employee may resume driving the vehicle.
Accidents. All accidents involving a District vehicle, or a personal vehicle used to conduct District business,
no matter how minor, must be reported immediately to the District Manager or a Designee. If the
accident occurred in a personal vehicle used to conduct District business, the employee is responsible for
reporting the accident to the employee’s personal insurance provider. If an employee is involved in a
moving accident with a District vehicle, or a personal vehicle used to conduct District business, and an
employee is cited in the accident or the District reasonably believes or suspects, in the determination of
the District Manager or a Designee, that the employee’s conduct may have contributed to the accident,
the employee must submit to an illegal drugs/alcohol test. Employees must be transported immediately
to the District's designated illegal drugs/alcohol testing and screening service provider. If an employee
fails or refuses to submit to a test, the employee may be subject to discipline, up to and including
termination.
No Unauthorized Passengers. Only authorized employees shall ride in a District Vehicle, unless approved
in advance by the District Manager or a Designee.
Drivers Under 18. No employee under 17 years of age may drive a motor vehicle on public roads as part
of his or her job. Seventeen-year-olds may drive on public roadways as part of their employment, but
ONLY if all of the following requirements are met:

a) The driving is limited to daylight hours;

b) The 17-year-old holds a state license valid for the type of driving involved in the job performed;

c) The 17-year-old has successfully completed a state approved driver education course and has no

record of any moving violations at the time of hire;

33|Page

167



d) The driving does not involve towing of vehicles, route deliveries or route sales, transportation
for hire of property, goods, or passengers, urgent, time-sensitive deliveries, or the transporting
at any one time of more than three passengers, including the employees of the employer;

e) The driving performed by the minor does not involve more than two trips away from the
primary place of employment in any single day for the purpose of delivering goods of the
minor's employer to a customer (except urgent, time-sensitive deliveries which are completely
banned);

f) The driving performed by the minor does not involve more than two trips away from the
primary place of employment in any single day for the purpose of transporting passengers
(other than the employees of the employer);

g) The driving takes place within a thirty (30) mile radius of the place of employment;

h) The automobile or truck does not exceed 6,000 pounds gross vehicle weight;

i) The automobile or truck is equipped with a seat belt for the driver and any passengers and the
employer has instructed the youth that the seat belts must be used when driving the vehicle;
and

J) Thedriving is only occasional and incidental to the 17-year-old's employment. This means that
the youth may spend no more than one-third of his or her workday and no more than 20
percent of his or her work time in any workweek driving.

5.9 Property

Care and Use of District Property. Employees are responsible for the reasonable care of all District property.
District property is to be used only for official District business, in an appropriate manner, and in accordance with
all applicable rules and operating procedures. Employees must not remove District property or the property of
any other employee without proper authorization. Any employee stealing District property or another employee's
property, or who abuses, misuses, damages, or destroys District property, shall be subject to discipline, up to and
including immediate termination. Employees must use District equipment, facilities, and tools only to perform
District duties. District equipment, facilities, and tools must not be used or loaned for any personal purpose.

Lost or Damaged Property. Loss of or damage to District property, including District vehicles, must be reported
immediately to an employee’s department head. A written report must be made to the District Manager by the
department head within 24 hours. Failure to comply with these reporting requirements may result in disciplinary
action, up to and including termination.

Personal Property. Employees are responsible for their own personal property while at work. The District is
not responsible for any loss or damage to vehicles or any other personal property of its employees.

5.10 Confidentiality and Conflicts of Interest

Employees must not disclose to any individual or entity outside the District any confidential information or use
confidential information for personal benefit. Confidential information includes, without limitation: competitive
bid data, personnel information, and information that would be against public interest or the interest of the
District, its employees, or the citizens it serves. Confidential information does not include public records within
the meaning of the Colorado Public (Open) Records Act.

Any employee engaged in outside business, employment, or other activities must not allow such activities to
conflict with his/her District employment. Employees are required to meet the same job performance and
scheduling expectations regardless of each employee’s outside activities. Employees must not use confidential
information learned through employment with the District to promote competitive outside activities. Employees

34|Page

168



must immediately disclose an outside conflict in writing to their supervisor. The District Manager, in his/her
discretion, shall determine what effect, if any, the conflict of interest will have on employee relationship with the
District. Upon the District Manager's order, an employee must immediately cease the outside activity(ies) that
create a conflict of interest.

5.11 Personal Gain Prohibited

Employees must not request or accept pay or other reward for services rendered as a District employee. Employee
must not accept any gifts or gratuity of $53 or more unless the gift or gratuity is reported to the District Manager,
who shall determine whether the employee may retain the gift or gratuity, or whether it should be turned over
to the District. Even if a gift is less than $53, employees must report it to the District Manager if the total amount
the employee receives from any one individual or entity in a year is $250. Employees must not engage in any
activity with any other state or local government official or employee that would violate Amendment 41 to the
Colorado Constitution.

5.12 Attendance and Punctuality

Employees must report for duty at the scheduled start time. If an employee will be absent, the employee must
notify their supervisor or manager at least two hours before their scheduled start time, unless the circumstances
do not permit advance notice to the supervisor or manager, in which case the employee must notify their
supervisor or manager as soon as the employee can. Employees must state the reason for and probable duration
of the absence. Absent satisfactory justification, if an employee fails to report for duty at the scheduled start time
without first notifying their supervisor, the employee will be subject to discipline, up to and including termination.

5.13 Ability to Perform Duties After lliness, Injury or Leave of Absence

The District Manager or a Designee, at his/her discretion, may require an employee who has been on leave for
four or more consecutive days as a result of illness, injury or other medical condition, to submit a doctor's
statement confirming the illness, injury or medical condition, and/or releasing the employee to return to work.
The District Manager or a Designee also may require the employee to complete a fitness for duty examination, at
the District's expense, to determine the employee’s ability to perform the essential functions of his/her position.

In addition to the above, the District has adopted separate return-to-work procedures for any employee returning
to work on modified duty following leave for four or more days as the result of an illness, injury, or other medical
condition. Specific information regarding the procedures for employees returning to work on modified duty are
available from the District Manager. Any employee anticipating returning to work on modified duty must contact
the District Manager prior to returning to work, and obtain the appropriate forms for submitting a doctor's
statement confirming the illness, injury, or other medical condition, releasing the employee to return to work,
and describing the proposed modified duty.

5.14 Dress Code and Hygiene

Hygiene. Employees are expected to maintain a professional, business-like appearance. A daily regimen of good
grooming and hygiene is expected of everyone. While at work, employees are required to be clean, dressed
appropriately, and free from offensive body odor.

Dress. Within reason, non-uniformed employees are allowed to use their own discretion with respect to their
work attire; however, all work attire must be neat, clean, in good taste, and appropriate to the employee's job
duties. Torn, soiled, frayed, or revealing clothing is not appropriate. All employees must wear footwear
appropriate to the employee's job duties. Closed-toed and closed-heeled shoes are required for all employees
other than lifeguards. Lifeguards may wear sandals appropriate to their duties, including Crocs and flip-flop shoes.

3B|Page

169



Jewelry must not be worn that would interfere with the operation of District tools or equipment, or that would
jeopardize employee safety or the safety of other District personnel.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, while engaged in District business or activities off the District Premises, employees
must wear District logo apparel, an official District nametag, or other attire identifying the employee as a District
employee. Employees are permitted, at their option, to wear District logo apparel while off-duty. However,
wearing logo apparel while off-duty places the employee in a position of great responsibility, as such employees
may be perceived as representing the District. If employees wear District logo apparel while off-duty, employees
are required to exercise good judgment and to comply with this Handbook.

Employees required to wear uniforms must wear a uniform during all work hours. Uniforms may not be worn
while off-duty. In addition to the above requirements, specific dress standards will be established in each
department, with the prior approval of the District Manager.

5.15 Smoking and Tobacco Use

In order to provide customers and employees with a tobacco-free environment, smoking and tobacco use is
prohibited in all District buildings and within 15 feet of any public entrance into a District building. This prohibition
also applies to any vaping product. Employees may smoke and use tobacco in outdoor areas beyond 15 feet of a
public entrance into a District building during approved breaks and meal periods, if breaks and meal periods are
provided; except that employees may not smoke or use tobacco in any outdoor area in the presence of a District
customer or visitor, or in any outdoor area frequented by District customers or visitors and where a District
customer or visitor may reasonably be expected to appear without notice.

District employees shall use common courtesy and cleanliness when smoking or using tobacco, including proper
disposal of cigarette butts and spit cups/containers.

5.16 Duty to Read Posted Items and Review Voice Malil

Employees are responsible for keeping apprised of information posted on, or sent through, the District's bulletin
boards, employee mailboxes, and e-mail network. Employees are responsible for reviewing employee voice malil
messages in a timely fashion.

5.17 Communication

General. Data and information, including electronic transmissions, created, stored, received, or sent on the
District's communication systems are District property, and are subject to review and inspection at any time.
Each department may establish, with approval of the District Manager, a policy for checking out communications
systems items, such as laptops, for those employees who have a need to take such items off the District Premises.
Communications systems items may be removed from the District Premises only in accordance with the applicable
department policy.

Software. The District has numerous licenses to utilize computer software. The license agreements contain
restrictions concerning the software use, duplication, and federal copyright protection. Each employee using the
District's communications systems assumes the following responsibilities:
A. Only software authorized or purchased by the District shall be used on a District computer.
B. Do not duplicate or reproduce District or vendor software and software manuals.
C. District software must not to be altered in any manner, including but not limited to, decompiling,
dissembling, cross-compiling, reverse engineering or drafting derivative works.
D. Computer software or documentation must not be removed from the District Premises without prior
approval from the District Manager or a Designee.

36|Page

170



E. Upon termination of employment, all computer software and manuals must be returned to the District.
F. Tampering with computer hardware or violating any of the preceding provisions is prohibited and may
result in disciplinary action up to and including termination.

Personal Use of District's Communication Systems. In general, the District's communications systems are
to be used only for District business. The District recognizes that the internet, voice mail and e-mail are commonly
used for personal convenience and communication. Accordingly, brief, and occasional personal use of the
District's communications systems, including e-mail and the internet, may be permitted so long as it is not
excessive or inappropriate, does not violate any other District policies, and does not result in expense to the
District. Use of the District's communications systems is a privilege; abuse of this privilege may result in its
revocation and will be handled by appropriate disciplinary action up to and including termination. Employees may
be held individually liable for claims or damages resulting from violations of this policy.

Personal use of the District's communications systems will be considered "excessive" if it interferes with the
performance of job duties, appropriate interactions with the public, employee responsiveness, or the availability
of the communications systems for District business. Applicable department policies also may establish rules
regarding excessive or inappropriate personal use of the District's communications systems, given the unique
needs and responsibilities of each department.

Prohibited Use. Employees must not use the District's communications systems for any inappropriate or illegal
activity, including but not limited to, accessing the internet through the District's computer system for the purpose
of accessing sexually oriented, pornographic, racial or similarly inappropriate websites, or sending, receiving, or
otherwise disseminating sexually oriented, racial or other inappropriate materials or information.

No Expectation of Privacy. Employees have no reasonable expectation of privacy in any District property,
including the District's communications systems and all data and information, including electronic transmissions,
created, stored, sent, or received on the District's communications systems. All data and information, including
electronic transmissions, created, stored, sent, or received on the District's communications systems (whether
imbedded in software or otherwise) are subject to review and inspection at any time. The District has the right
to, and may, monitor at any time employee use of the District's communications systems and employee electronic
transmissions. Pursuant to C.R.S. § 24-72-203, employees are advised that all electronic transmissions may be
deemed a public record and subject to disclosure under the Colorado Public (Open) Records Act.

5.18 Use of Cell Phones and Other Audio/Video Devices.

Personal Use of Cell Phones And Other Audio/Video Imaging/Recording Devices for Personal
Purposes Prohibited During Work Hours. As with use of internet, voicemail, and e-mail, the District
recognizes that cell phones are commonly used for personal convenience as well as communication. Brief and
occasional personal use of cell phones may be permitted so long as it is not excessive or inappropriate, does not
violate any other District policies, and does not disturb other District employees or patrons. Use of cell phones for
personal purposes while at work is a privilege; abuse of this privilege may result in its revocation and will be
handled by appropriate disciplinary action up to and including termination. Employees may be held individually
liable for claims or damages resulting from violations of this policy.

"Excessive" use of cell phones for personal purposes is as defined in Section 5.17 above. Applicable department
policies also may establish rules regarding excessive or inappropriate personal use of cell phones, given the unique
needs and responsibilities of each department. Using cell phones to access personal social media or networking
sites, to engage in personal or private chat rooms or instant messaging, or to sell or solicit products or services
unrelated to the District is limited to approved breaks and lunch periods, as is using cell phones to place or receive
calls or access audio files, except in emergencies. Any cell phone used to connect to the internet must connect to

37/Page

171



public Wi-Fi or personal hot spot and shall not be connected to the District's secured network. Lifeguards,
employees operating machinery, and other employees engaged in safety-sensitive duties, including being on-deck
at the pool for any reason, are prohibited from using cell phones for any purpose whatsoever while performing
the safety-sensitive duties.

Employees are prohibited from using audio/video imaging and/or recording devices for personal purposes during
work hours or while engaged in any District activity, including but not limited to camera phones, digital cameras,
camcorders, tape/digital recorders, or any other form of device capable of recording sound or generating an
image. Employees are prohibited at any time from possessing or using any audio/video imaging and/or recording
device of any kind in any locker room, restroom, changing room or any other area on the District Premises where
an employee, patron or other person would have a reasonable privacy expectation.

Use of Cell Phones to Conduct District Business. When using a cell phone to conduct District business or
engage in any activity on behalf of the District, employees must be considerate of other people while using the
cell phone, including but not limited to:

e avoid using the cell phone in the presence of other people whenever possible;

o keep the call as short as possible;

¢ do not discuss confidential information during the call that could be overheard by another person;

e donot speak in a loud voice or otherwise disturb other people; and,

e Use appropriate language.

Use of Audio/Video Imaging and/or Recording Devices to Conduct District Business. If employees are
using audio/video imaging and/or recording devices to conduct District business or engage in any activity on behalf
of the District, employees must limit such use to the District authorized duty or activity, and must comply with all
rules, instructions and orders of their supervisors regarding the use of such devices.

5.19 Solicitations

Solicitations and distribution of literature for any purpose are prohibited on the District Premises or while on duty,
unless approved in advance by the District Manager or a Designee. No employee shall be compelled to contribute
money to any political party, club, union, or association.

5.20 Online Publishing/Discussion, Letters to the Editor and Other Public Expressions of Opinion
Whether employees choose to create or participate in any form of online publishing or discussion, send a letter
to the editor, or engage in any other form of public expression of personal opinion (collectively, "public
expressions of opinion™) is each employee’s own decision; however, employees must be careful not to violate any
District rule, their duty of loyalty to the District or any other applicable law. In addition, employees may be
disciplined, up to and including termination, for:
A. Conducting activities related to public expressions of opinion during work hours or at any time using the
District's communications systems;
B. Representing any opinion or statement as the policy or view of the District, or its directors, officers,
employees, or representatives (unless it is required by the employee’s job description);
C. Making defamatory comments about the District, or its directors, officers, employees, vendors, customers,
or services; ofr,
D. Engaging in any hate speech, inciting violence, or making statements that would be viewed as
inappropriate and contrary to the employee’s position with the District;
E. Nothing in this section is intended to restrict or limit in any manner whatsoever employee constitutional or
common law right to comment upon matters of public concern, to the extent protected by, and consistent
with, applicable law.

38|Page

172



5.21 Board Contact

All issues an employee wishes to bring to the Board's attention shall be processed through the chain of command.
An employee shall not contact any Board member directly on any District matter relating in any manner to the
employee’s employment with the District. An employee may exercise his/her rights as a citizen to comment on
matters of public concern during the public comment portion of a Board meeting.

5.22 Social Media Policy

Before reading this policy, please read the definitions of "Posts" and "Social Media" contained in the Definitions
section of this Handbook. Employees should ask their supervisors or the District Manager if they have any
guestions regarding these definitions.

The District understands employees may maintain or contribute to Social Media and/or engage in Posts outside
of employment with the District and may periodically engage in Posts containing information about their
employment with the District or District activities on Social Media. If employees engage in such activities,
employees are required to exercise good judgment, and comply with this Handbook.

The District has the right to monitor and review Social Media Posts made by employees while on-duty and, from
time to time, those made while off-duty by employee as it deems as necessary and appropriate for the efficient
and effective administration and operation of the District. To that end, employees have no expectation of privacy
while using District-owned or District-leased equipment, even when employees are merely using the equipment to
access their personal email account or other Social Media. Pursuant to C.R.S. § 24-72-203, employees are advised
that Posts, e-mails, and text messages to/from District employees may be deemed public records and subject to
disclosure under the Colorado Public (Open) Records Act.

EMPLOYEE USE OF DISTRICT LEASED OR OWNED EQUIPMENT CONSTITUTES EMPLOYEE CONSENT FOR THE DISTRICT
TO MONITOR AND INTERCEPT EMPLOYEE COMMUNICATIONS WHILE IN TRANSIT, AFTER RECEIPT OR WHILE STORED
ONDISTRICT LEASED OR OWNED EQUIPMENT UNDER TITLE | AND Il OF THE ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS PRIVACY
ACT OF 1986.

Employees may not disclose confidential information of the District or its directors or employees, or confidential
information of third parties who have provided information to the District, including personnel information. In
maintaining or contributing to Social Media or engaging in Posts, employees must not use the District's name in
their identity (e.g., username, "handle" or screen name). Employees also must not speak as a representative of
the District or the Board, unless expressly authorized by the District.

Mutual respect and teamwork are essential to effective and efficient District administration and operation.
Employees must be courteous, respectful, and thoughtful about how the District and other employees may be
affected by Posts. Incomplete, inaccurate, inappropriate, threatening, harassing or poorly worded Posts may be
harmful to other employees, damage employee relationships, undermine the District's efforts to encourage
teamwork, violate this Handbook, and harm the District, which may result in disciplinary action up to and including
termination.

Employees bear full responsibility for information contained in their Posts and their Social Media. Employees must
make certain that their Posts are accurate and must correct any inaccurate statements they make. Employees
must not reference District directors, other employees, or District customers without obtaining their express
permission to do so. Most Social Media sites require that users, when they sign up, agree to abide by a Terms of
Service document. Employees are responsible for reading, knowing, and complying with the Terms of Service of
the Social Media sites they use. Stated simply, an employee’s decision to use a different medium does not excuse

39|Page

173



recklessness in public communication or limit the District's ability to regulate the employee’s Social Media and
Posts as it could any other communication. The District supports employees’ rights to engage in discourse about
matters of public concern, to discuss the terms and conditions of employment with the District and supports
employees’ First Amendment rights. However, the District prohibits actions that violate this policy, any other
District policy relating to social networking, Posts and Social Media, or any other form of public expression.

5.23 Media Inquiries

All media inquiries should be referred to the District Manager, Board of Director’s Chairperson, or the
Communications & Marketing Supervisor. In addition, these individuals must approve, in advance, all press releases,
publications, speeches, or other official declarations. Only designated agents are authorized spokespersons for the
District.

5.24 District Purchasing Card Use
A purchasing card may be issued to an employee based on position and identified need. All requests for an agency
purchasing card must be approved by a supervisor and should be submitted to the Finance Director. Purchasing
cards may be used only for approved business purposes. All purchasing card purchases must be for budgeted
expenditures. Unbudgeted items require pre-approval from the employee’s supervisor and may also require
Finance Director approval. Acceptable purchases include primarily:

e Materials and equipment required for normal and emergency operation of District business.

o Membership dues.

o Travel, training, and all associated expenses related to pre-approved District training

Unacceptable uses primarily include:

e Personal use. Employee should not use or permit the use of purchasing cards for personal items.

e (Cash advances, traveler's checks, or the use of ATM machines.

o Fuelfor personal vehicles. Reimbursement for District approved travel shall be made on an expense report
at the current mileage reimbursement rate.

e Merchandise, product, or service considered to be inappropriate use of District funds. Questions should
be directed to a supervisor in advance of the purchase.

e Purchases made by other individuals or staff. Cardholders are not allowed to "give out™ his/her purchasing
card or their purchasing card number to a different individual. Employees must personally run the charge
each time the card is presented. Only the employee whose name is embossed on the card may use the
card.

o The card is not to be issued to or used by contractors working for the District.

Under no circumstances should personal purchases be charged to a District purchasing card. Under no circumstances
should the District’s tax exemption number be used for personal purchases.

5.25 District Business Accounts
The District may hold business accounts or memberships to numerous vendors such as Costco, Sam’s Club, and
Amazon; however, these business memberships or accounts may not be utilized for personal purchases.

5.26 Personal Use of Equipment and Supplies Prohibited

The use of District equipment, supplies, or vehicles for personal use is prohibited. District property consists of, but
is not limited to, items such as power tools, hand tools, facility/shop areas, vehicles, computers, telephones,
cellular phones, copying machines, supplies, furniture, etc.

40|Page

174



5.27 Background Checks

The District conducts background checks on certain job candidates, independent contractors, and volunteers, which
may include a review of criminal history, DMV records, reference checks or other review as determined in the
discretion of the District.

When a background check is required by the District, employees must complete the District’s authorization forms.
Failure to timely complete authorization may result in discipline, up to and including termination, or rejection of an
application or job offer.

A. New Hires: A background check is required for all safety sensitive positions. The District may also require it
for other positions. The background check must be completed and results verified before beginning work.

B. Rehires: A background check is required for rehires separated longer than twelve months.

C. Active: All employees, volunteers, and contractors in safety sensitive positions are required to submit to a
background check every five years. Refusal to comply will be cause for refusal to be granted a new position
and/or termination of employment or removal from volunteer service.

D. Independent Contractor: Background checks shall be performed at the discretion of the District. For certain
contractual relationships, the Contractor shall be responsible for performing background checks on its
employees and for ensuring the suitability for employment in association with a District contract.

E. New Volunteers: A background check is required for all safety sensitive volunteer positions, including but
not limited to, youth sport coaches and other positions as deemed necessary by the District. The background
check must be completed and results verified before beginning volunteer service.

F. Returning Volunteers: Returning volunteers are required to have a background check every 12 months.

G. Applicants: Applicants ages 18 and older will be subject to a background check. An applicant’s offer may be
conditioned on the successful completion of a background check. Applicants must complete the background
check prior to their first day of work.

This process is conducted to verify the accuracy of the information provided by the candidate and determine
suitability for employment, contract, or participation.

All criminal background checks are conducted post-offer and information will be kept confidential. This information
cannot be used as a basis for denying employment unless the results are determined to be job-related and consistent
with business necessity. The District reserves the right to make the sole determination concerning any employment
decision arising out of the background check. Criminal background checks will generally not include credit check
information, nor will information bearing on an individual’s credit be used in making employment or volunteer
decisions, unless job-related and consistent with business necessity. Credit checks are only conducted when such
information is job-related and consistent with business necessity. Any credit checks will be conducted in accordance
with applicable law.

Disqualification: The District will take the following into consideration when determining placement of a job
candidates, independent contractors, and volunteers:
¢ The date of the conviction: If convicted, or if the individual pled nolo contende to criminal charges,
within the last seven years, the District will disqualify the individual. Dismissed cases or arrests
won’t automatically disqualify an individual. Criminal charges which are dismissed, pardoned, or
expunged from an individual’s criminal records will not automatically disqualify the individual.
e Evidence of rehabilitation and number of convictions: The length of time since the conviction and if
there has been more than one conviction will be considered in determining placement of a
volunteer. Generally, more than one conviction will disqualify a volunteer.

41|Page

175



¢ The type of conviction and how it relates to the position: Positions managing, working with, or
regularly interacting with minors will require stricter scrutiny of criminal convictions.

¢ Any information regarding the conviction that may be relevant to the position, is in the District’s
sole discretion.

5.28 Public Health Emergency Whistleblower (PHEW) Policy

General Policy. The District intends to help provide a safe and healthy work environment for its employees and
encourages employees to bring any concerns to the company’s attention. The District will not discriminate, take
adverse action, or retaliate against employees for engaging in any of the following activities:

e Raising (in good faith) any reasonable concern about workplace violations of government health or safety
rules, or about an otherwise significant workplace threat to health or safety, related to a public health
emergency;

e Opposing any practice the worker reasonably believes is unlawful; or

e Making a charge, testifying, assisting, or participating in any manner in an investigation, proceeding, or
hearing as to any matter the worker reasonably believes to be unlawful.

Employees are not protected for communications (A) that are knowingly false or are made with reckless disregard
for the truth or falsity of the information, or (B) that share individual health information that is otherwise prohibited
from disclosure by state or federal law.

Employees’ Rights to Use Their Own Personal Protective Equipment (“PPE”). Employees are allowed
to voluntarily wear their own PPE, such as a mask, faceguard, or gloves, if the PPE:

a. provides more protection than equipment provided at the workplace;
b. is recommended by a government health agency (federal, state, or local); and
C. does not render the employee incapable of fulfilling their duties.

Procedure for Filing an Internal Complaint. An employee who is subjected to, or observes any discrimination,
adverse action, or retaliation related to a public health emergency or interference with the voluntary use of PPE
which the employee considers to be unlawful, should report such conduct in accordance with Section 3.5 of this
Handbook.

5.29 Content-Generating Artificial Intelligence Software Use Policy

Content-generating artificial intelligence (CGAI) is rapidly expanding and easy to access, both at home and at work.
This policy applies to the use of any third-party or publicly available CGAI tools. Currently, acceptable tools include
ChatGPT, Google Bard, Canva, Midjourney, or Microsoft Copilot that mimic human intelligence to generate
answers, work product, or perform certain tasks. You must inform your supervisor when you have used CGAI to
help perform a task. These limitations may change over time, and employees will be asked to review this policy at
least quarterly.

Unacceptable Uses. Do not use CGAI tools to make or help you make employment decisions about applicants or
employees, including recruitment, hiring, retention, promotions, transfers, performance monitoring, performance
appraisal, discipline, demotion, or terminations.

Do not upload or input any confidential, proprietary, or sensitive District information into any CGAI tool. Examples
include passwords and other credentials, protected health information, personnel material, information from
documents marked confidential, sensitive, or proprietary, or any other non-public District information that might
be harmful to the District or customers if disclosed. If you are unsure whether the information poses the risks
described, ask your supervisor.

42|Page

176



Do not upload or input any personal information (names, addresses, likenesses, etc.) about any person, employee,
resident, customer, vendor, independent contractor, or any other individual the District is engaged with into any
CGAl tool.

Do not represent work generated by a CGAI tool as being your own original work. If you are unsure of how to
disclose the use of CGAI, ask your supervisor.

Do not integrate any CGAI tool with internal District software without first receiving specific written permission
from HR or the District Manager.

Use Procedures. CGAI may assist with work output, but the use of CGAl is not a substitute for your judgment and
creativity. CGAI software is only as good as the information it contains, and the information can be stale. ChatGPT
is currently using information from 2021, for example. When there is no information available in its store of data,
CGAI has been known to create false answers to satisfy the request. To avoid false information or information
that is stale, carefully verify all information, and if you do not know how to verify the information, ask your
supervisor.

Treat every bit of information you provide to a CGAI tool as if it will go viral on the Internet, attributed to you or
the District, regardless of the settings you have selected within the tool or the assurances made by the software.

Verify any and all responses from the CGAI software you use. The information must be accurate.

The output must be appropriate based on standards you apply when performing tasks for the Company. It cannot
be biased, and it cannot be a violation of any other individual or entity’s intellectual property, and it cannot violate
any individual’s privacy unlawfully.

Any output must be consistent with District policies and applicable laws. If you are not sure, ask your supervisor
for assistance.

43|Page

177



6.0 Leave

6.1 Funeral Leave

Regular full-time, variable full-time, and regular part-time employees are eligible for paid leave to attend the
funeral of an immediate family member. “Immediate family member” includes the employee's spouse, partner
in a civil union, parents, children, sisters, brothers, grandparents, grandchildren, mother- and father-in-law.
Regular full-time, variable full-time, and regular part-time employees are also eligible for paid leave to attend the
funeral of a near relative. "Near relative” includes the employee's aunts, uncles, nieces, and nephews, and the
grandparents, brothers, sisters and other close relatives of the employee's spouse or partner in a civil union.

Variable part-time, seasonal, and variable temporary employees may be eligible for up to eight hours of paid leave
depending on average shift worked and schedule.

Regular Full- Variable Regular Variable Variable
Benefit Type Time Full-Time Part-Time Part-Time Seasonal Temporary
Bereavement Leave up to 24 hrs up to 18 hrs up to 12 hrs Depends on ave\::gﬁ(zzhedule and shift

Additional leave may be granted upon the approval of the District Manager and may be dependent upon the
employee's available PTO.

6.2 Jury Duty and Witness Leave

Jury Duty. If an employee is called for jury duty, the employee will be granted leave with pay, less the amount
of jury fees the employee receives. To qualify for jury duty leave, the employee must submit a copy of the
Summons to Serve to their supervisor as soon as the employee receives it. In addition, the employee must submit
proof of jury duty service to their supervisor after jury duty is completed. Employees must return to work
immediately when dismissed from jury duty or when the jury is not in session during each employee’s usual work
hours. The District will make no attempt to have employee jury service postponed except if necessary, to meet
the District's pressing business or operational needs.

Witness Leave. If an employee is subpoenaed to produce documents, provide deposition testimony, or appear
in court or arbitration on a District-related matter, the employee must immediately notify their supervisor and
the employee will be granted the leave necessary to comply with the subpoena. Actual time worked in preparing
for, and providing witness testimony, or producing required documents, while on witness leave on a District-
related matter will be treated as time actually worked for purposes of calculating FLSA overtime for non-exempt
employees. A non-exempt employee must receive prior approval from the District Manager or a Designee before
performing such work, and must record all such work on a District timecard, which shall be reviewed and approved
by the District Manager or a Designee.

If an employee is subpoenaed to produce documents, provide deposition testimony, or appear in court or
arbitration on a non-District matter, the employee will be granted the leave necessary to comply with the
subpoena. An employee will be granted leave without pay, unless the employee’s supervisor approves use of
available PTO in advance; provided, however, that an exempt employee will be paid his/her normal salary in any
workweek in which he/she performs any work for the District. An employee must furnish a copy of the subpoena
to the employee’s supervisor. An employee must return to work immediately upon being released from a witness
subpoena.

44|Page

178



6.3 Voting Leave

The District believes voting is an important responsibility we all assume as citizens. Under most circumstances, it
is possible for employees to vote either before or after work. Ifitis necessary, however, for an employee to arrive
late or leave work early to vote in an election, the employee should make arrangements with their supervisor no
later than the regularly scheduled workday prior to the Election Day on which the employee wants to vote. The
District will grant time off to vote in accordance with applicable law.

6.4 Administrative Leave

In addition to any other provision of this Handbook authorizing placing an employee on administrative leave, the
Board, the District Manager, or a Designee may place an employee on administrative leave for misconduct,
investigative purposes, or for any other reason it/he/she deems appropriate. Administrative leave shall be with
pay unless circumstances dictate otherwise. While on administrative leave, employees must not participate in
any non-social District duties or activities, unless otherwise directed by the Board, the District Manager, or a
Designee.

6.5 Military Leave

Leaves of absence for military duty and training will be granted to all employees in accordance with applicable
law. If an employee is called to active military duty or to reserve or National Guard training, or civil air patrol, or
if an employee volunteers for the same, the District would appreciate the employee submitting copies of the
military orders to their supervisor as soon as practicable. Employee eligibility for reinstatement after military duty
or training is determined in accordance with applicable law. Employee military leave of absence will receive pay
for the first three weeks (at 8 hours per day) in a calendar year. Pursuant to a separate written agreement, the
amount of the employee’s pay will be offset by the amount of military pay the employee receives for the same
days for which paid leave was provided. The District will make payment as follows: the difference between the
employee’s regular earnings and the military earnings the employee receives while on duty (military earnings
consist of gross pay at the base rate before payroll deductions).

6.6 Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 ("FMLA")

The District complies with the FMLA and its implementing regulations, as may be amended from time to time.
Employee Notice of Rights and Responsibilities, issued by the U.S. Department of Labor, provides employees with
a general description of their FMLA rights and responsibilities. Please refer any questions, concerns or disputes
with this policy to the District Manager.

Type of Leave Covered. The birth of a child and to care for the newborn child within one year of birth; the
placement with the employee of a child for adoption or foster care and to care for the newly placed child within
one year of placement; to care for the employee’s spouse, child, or parent who has a serious health condition; a
serious health condition that makes the employee unable to perform the essential functions of his or her job; any
qualifying exigency arising out of the fact that the employee’s spouse, son, daughter, or parent is a covered
military member on “covered active duty;” or twenty-six workweeks of leave during a single 12-month period to
care for a covered servicemember with a serious injury or illness if the eligible employee is the servicemember’s
spouse, son, daughter, parent, or next of kin (military caregiver leave).

Amount of Leave. Leave includes 12 workweeks of leave in a 12-month period. If both spouses, or partners in
a civil union, work for the District and each wishes to take leave for the birth of a child, adoption or placement of
a child in foster care, or to care for a parent with a serious health condition, the spouses/partners may only take
a combined total of 12 weeks of leave. If both spouses/partners work for the District and each wish to take leave
to care for a covered service member, the spouses/partners may only take a combined total of 26 weeks of leave.

45|Page

179



Procedure for Requesting FMLA Leave. To request FMLA leave, an employee must provide verbal or
written notice of the need for the leave to the District Manager. Within five business days after an employee
provides notice, the District will provide the employee with the Department of Labor (DOL) Notice of Eligibility
and Rights. When the need for leave is foreseeable, employees must provide the District with at least 30 days'
notice. When 30 days' notice is not possible, employees must provide notice as soon as practicable and must
comply with the District's usual and customary notice and procedural requirements for requesting leave, absent
unusual circumstances.

Designation of FMLA Leave. Upon receipt of the appropriate paperwork, the District will inform the
employee whether the employee is eligible for leave under the FMLA, any additional information required and
whether the leave will be designated as FMLA leave.

Employee Status and Benefits During FMLA Leave. PTO and all other District benefits that operate on an
accrual basis will continue to accrue during any portion of the FMLA leave to which paid time off applies but will
not accrue during any portion of the FMLA leave that is unpaid including time when covered by short-term
disability. While an employee is on FMLA leave, the employee’s health, life insurance, and disability benefits will
continue at the same level and under the same conditions as if the employee had continued to work. This means
that if the employee is responsible to pay any portion of their health, life insurance, or disability benefits while
working, then the employee will be responsible to continue paying those portions of their health, life insurance,
or disability benefits while on FMLA leave. Likewise, while an employee is on FMLA leave, the District will continue
paying any portion of the employee’s health, life insurance, or disability benefits that it otherwise would pay if
the employee were working. If an employee chooses not to return to work for reasons other than a continued
serious health condition of the employee or the employee’s family member or a circumstance beyond the
employee’s control, the District will require the employee to reimburse the District for any amount it paid for the
employee’s health, life insurance, or disability premiums during the FMLA leave. For any portion of the FMLA leave
to which paid time off applies, the District will continue to make payroll deductions to collect the employee’s
share of the health, life insurance, or disability premiums. For any portion of the FMLA leave that is unpaid, the
employee must continue to make this payment directly to the District within the deadlines established by the
District at the beginning of the FMLA leave. If any payment owed by the employee is more than 30 days late, the
employee’s coverage may be dropped for the duration of the leave. The District will provide 15 days' notification
before the employee’s loss of coverage.

Fitness For Duty. If an employee takes FMLA leave, the employee may be asked to provide a fitness for duty
clearance from a health care provider. This requirement will be included in the District’s response to the
employee's FMLA leave request, or when the District notifies the employee that it has elected to designate time
off taken by the employee as FMLA leave.

Use of Paid and Unpaid Leave. Generally speaking, an employee may apply Available PTO to any portion of
FMLA that he/she desires and the balance of FMLA leave (if any) will be unpaid. Similarly, where the State’s Family
and Medical Leave Insurance (FAMLI) applies to any leave that is also covered by the FMLA, the employee may
apply available PTO to supplement FAMLI benefits to receive their full regular rate of pay. During any unpaid leave,
the employee will not accrue any PTO and will be responsible for paying the District their benefit deductions,
including healthcare premiums.

Certification for the Employee’s Serious Health Condition or the Serious Health Condition of a
Family Member. The District will require certification for the employee’s serious health condition. The
employee must respond to such a request within 15 days of the request or provide a reasonable explanation for
the delay. Failure to provide certification may result in a denial of continuation of leave. Medical certification will

46|Page

180



be provided using the DOL Certification of Health Care Provider for Employee’s Serious Health Condition, or in the
case of leave for the serious health condition of a family member, the DOL Certification of Health Care Provider
for Family Member’s Serious Health Condition. The District may contact employee health care provider directly in
connection with an FMLA leave request for employee serious health condition, or the health care provider of
employee family member in connection with an FMLA leave request to care for a family member, for verification
or clarification purposes using a health care professional or the District Manager or his/her designee. The District
will not use the employee’s supervisor for this contact. Before the District makes this direct contact with the
health care provider, the employee will be given an opportunity to resolve any deficiencies in the medical
certification. In compliance with HIPAA Medical Privacy Rules, the District will obtain the employee’s permission
(or the family member's permission if the FMLA leave request is to care for the family member) for clarification of
individually identifiable health information. The District has the right to ask for a second opinion if it has reason
to doubt the certification. The District will pay for the employee (or the employee’s family member) to get a
certification from a second doctor, which the District will select. If necessary, to resolve a conflict between the
original certification and the second opinion, the District will require the opinion of a third doctor. The District
and the employee will mutually select the third doctor, and the District will pay for the opinion. This third opinion
will be considered final. The employee will be provisionally entitled to leave and benefits under the FMLA pending
the second and/or third opinions. The District may deny FMLA leave to an employee who refuses (or whose family
member refuses) to release relevant medical records to the health care provider designated to provide a second
or third opinion.

Certification of Qualifying Exigency Relating To, or Serious Injury or Iliness of a Covered Service
Member. The District will require certification of the qualifying exigency relating to, or the serious injury or illness
of, a Covered Service Member. The employee must respond to the request within 15 days of the request or
provide a reasonable explanation for the delay. Failure to provide certification may result in a denial of
continuation of leave. Certification of a qualifying exigency will be provided using the DOL Certification of
Qualifying Exigency for Military Family Leave. Certification of the Serious Injury or lliness of a Covered Service
Member will be provided using the DOL Certification for Serious Injury or lliness of Covered Service Member.

Recertification. The District may request recertification for the serious health condition of the employee or the
employee’s family member no more frequently than every 30 days and only when circumstances have changed
significantly, or if the District receives information casting doubt on the reason given for the absence, or if the
employee seeks an extension of his/her leave. Otherwise, the District may request recertification for the serious
health condition of the employee or the employee’s family member every six months in connection with an FMLA
absence. The District may provide the employee’s health care provider with the employee’s attendance records
and ask whether need for leave is consistent with the employee’s serious health condition.

Intent to Return to Work From FMLA Leave. The District may require an employee on FMLA leave to
report periodically on the employee’s status and intent to return to work.

Employee Status After FMLA Leave. Generally, an employee who takes FMLA leave will be able to return
to the same position or a position with equivalent status, pay, benefits and other employment terms. The position
will be the same or one which is virtually identical in terms of pay, benefits and working conditions. The District
may choose to exempt certain key employees from this requirement and not return them to the same or similar
position.

6.7 Workers' Compensation Insurance

The District provides Workers' Compensation Insurance to all employees. If an employee is injured, infected or
becomes ill while performing work for, or activities on behalf of, the District, the employee must submit a verbal

47|Page

181



or written report of injury or illness to their supervisor, manager, or District Manager within 10 days of the
occurrence. Failure to follow this procedure may jeopardize an employee’s right to workers' compensation
benefits. Questions regarding workers' compensation insurance claims should be directed to the HR Department.

Per Colorado State Law, the first three (3) shifts of leave following an eligible work-related injury or illness are not
compensated. As a benefit for District employees, these first three (3) shifts of leave are paid by the District. The
District’s third-party Workers' Compensation administrator will coordinate compensation to employees for
eligible work-related injuries or illnesses per Colorado State law at two-thirds (2/3) of the employee’s normal
weekly wage up to a state maximum wage, which is adjusted annually for inflation. All Workers’ Compensation
wages are tax-exempt and are paid directly to the employee without any payroll deductions. Because this payment
is mailed from an outside source, checks may be received on a different schedule than the District’s normal payroll
cycles. All cell phone stipends will be suspended during any period an employee is absent from work as a result of
a work-related injury or illness. Employees may supplement their wages from PTO, Comp Time, Sick Leave, or
Banked Sick Leave, which will be received via normal District payroll processes. The injured employee must make
payment arrangements to cover the cost of their premium deductions for benefits such as health, dental, and
vision insurance. Payments will be arranged through HR.

The District has prepared the statutorily required list of treating physicians who are the District's designated
providers and will provide this list to an employee who is injured at work, and to any other employee upon request.
The District will provide the list within seven business days of when the District has notice of the injury. If an
emergency prevents the District from providing this list to an injured employee within that time, the list will be
provided as soon as the emergency ceases.

To assist in selecting a provider, an employee may request disclosure of ownership interest and employment
relationships from any of the designated providers. A form is available in the District's administrative office to
assist the employee in obtaining the information. A copy of any such request must be submitted to the District in
writing. Aninjured employee may submit a one-time notice to change the treating physician by choosing another
name from the list, provided that the notice to change is submitted within 90 days after the date of injury, but
before the employee reaches Maximum Medical Improvement. A form is available in the District's administrative
office. Nothing in this paragraph prohibits an employee from submitting a written request to change physicians
pursuant to C.R.S. 8-43-404(5)(A)(V).

Whenever possible, the District will provide transitional duty assignments to employees injured on the job.
Transitional duty assignment may be outside the employee’s department and will confirm to any restriction
imposed by the employees approved treating physician.

6.8 Paid Time Off (PTO)

Generally. Paid Time Off ("PTO") is a program that consolidates and replaces the traditional vacation time,
personal leave, and sick leave policies for employees. PTO may be used for vacations, personal business, sick leave
purposes (as defined in Section 6.9 below), family emergencies, or other reasons as requested by an employee
and approved by their supervisor. Regular full-time, variable full-time, and regular part-time employees are
eligible for PTO as follows. Eligible employees will advance PTO Tiers on January 1%t following their 4" full calendar
year of employment with the District, regardless of their individual anniversary date. Such PTO includes any paid
sick leave required under the Colorado Healthy Families and Workplaces Act.

PTO Accrual Rates and Maximum Accrual Amounts. District employees accrue PTO each pay period. The
amount accrued depends on each employee’s years of service. The District permits employees to carry a maximum
amount of PTO (based on years of service). Once an employee reaches the maximum PTO amount, the employee
will not accrue any further PTO until the employee’s Available PTO falls below the maximum accrual amount. In
addition to the PTO accrued by an employee, supplemental paid sick leave may be made available during a public

48|Page

182



health emergency (as specified in Section 6.10 below) in an amount based on the number of hours the employee
works or as dictated by the applicable mandate.

PTO Regular FT Variable FT Regular PT
Accrual Accrual Accrual
Per Max Per Max Per Max
Employment Annual  Pay PTO Annual Pay PTO Annual  Pay PTO
Year PTO Period Bank PTO Period Bank PTO Period Bank
1-4 168 6.46 228 126 4.85 171 84 3.23 114
5+ 208 8 268 156 6 201 104 4 134

Scheduling PTO. PTO is paid at the employee's regular hourly rate of pay and may be used in increments of
less than one full day for non-exempt employees. In general, employees may not use more than 10 days of PTO
at a time without prior approval from the District Manager or Director. Prior approval is not required to use PTO
for sick leave purposes. All employees, including exempt employees, must submit PTO requests through the
District's electronic timekeeping system. When PTO usage is foreseeable, PTO requests must be submitted at
least two weeks in advance. When feasible, PTO requests are granted, considering the District's business needs.
Timeliness in submitting PTO requests may determine priority in scheduling PTO. The District may require
reasonable documentation to verify that PTO is used for a permitted sick leave purpose if an employee uses PTO
or a sick leave purpose for four or more consecutive workdays; documentation is not required to take PTO for sick
leave purposes.

Payment of Available PTO Upon Separation of Employment. Upon separation, employees will be paid
out for one half accrued and unused PTO. Any available supplemental sick leave, as discussed below, will be
forfeited.

Negative PTO. Under rare and emergency circumstances, employees who need to take more time off than their
accrued, available PTO balance can submit a request for negative PTO, up to a maximum of 24 hours. Negative
PTO must be approved by the District Manager and Human Resources department in advance of any time being
taken. The employee must also complete a Payroll Deduction Authorization Form which allows the District to
deduct any negative PTO balance from the employee’s final paycheck upon employment separation, which is
attached to this Handbook in the Appendix as Wage Deduction Required Agreement.

6.9 Sick Leave

Variable part-time, seasonal, and variable temporary employees are not eligible for PTO; however, these
classifications accrue one hour of paid sick leave for every 30 hours worked, up to a maximum of 48 hours per
year. An employee begins accruing paid sick leave when the employee's employment begins and may use paid
sick leave as it is accrued. Unused sick leave at the end of seasonal employment will be carried over for future
years or seasons (if within six months of separation). Variable part-time employees may carry forward and use in
subsequent calendar years up to 48 hours of paid sick leave that is not used in the year in which it is accrued. A
maximum of 48 hours of paid sick leave, if accrued, is allowed for use in a year. A maximum of 48 hours of paid
sick leave may be banked at any point in time. Sick leave may only be used for scheduled shifts.

In the event an employee becomes eligible to accrue PTO by an employment classification change, sick leave
accrual will cease at the time of the classification change. Any accrued but unused sick leave balance will be
available for sick leave use, as outlined in this section, until such time the employee is scheduled to accrue a PTO
balance equal to the sick leave balance at the time of classification change. At that point, the remaining sick leave

49|Page

183



accrued balance will be forfeited and the employee will transition strictly to use of PTO, which may be used for
Sick Leave.

Employees may use accrued paid sick leave to be absent from work for the following purposes (“sick leave
purposes”):

e The employee has a mental or physical illness, injury, or health condition; needs a medical diagnosis, care,
or treatment related to such illness, injury, or condition; or needs to obtain preventive medical care;

e The employee needs to care for a family member who has a mental or physical illness, injury, or health
condition; needs a medical diagnosis, care, or treatment related to such illness, injury, or condition; or
needs to obtain preventive medical care;

e The employee or family member has been the victim of domestic abuse, sexual assault, or harassment
and needs to be absent from work for purposes related to such crime; or

e A public official has ordered the closure of the school or place of care of the employee’s child or of the
employee's place of business due to a public health emergency, necessitating the employee's absence
from work.

e Bereavement, or financial/legal needs after a death of a family member; or

e Due toinclement weather, power/heat/water loss, or other unexpected event, the employee must

a. evacuate their residence, or
b. care for a family member whose school or place of care was closed.

In addition to the paid sick leave accrued by an employee, supplemental paid sick leave may be made available
during a public health emergency (as specified in Section 6.10 below) in an amount based on the number of
hours the employee works or as dictated by the applicable mandate.

Variable PT, Seasonal, and Variable
Temporary

Annual PTO Accrual Per 30 '
Hours Max Sick Bank

| 48 | 1 | 48

Reasonable Documentation. The District may require reasonable documentation to verify that sick leave is
used for a permitted sick leave purpose if an employee uses paid sick leave for four or more consecutive workdays;
documentation is not required in order to take sick leave.

Notice. All employees must notify their direct supervisor of the need for sick leave as soon as practicable when
the need for sick leave is foreseeable.

6.10 Supplemental Sick Leave During a Public Health Emergency

Employees Eligible for PTO. On the date a public health emergency is declared, each regular full-time,
variable full-time, and regular part-time employee will receive supplemental sick leave as necessary to ensure that
each employee has two weeks of Available Paid Leave. Full-time employees will receive 80 hours of supplemental
sick leave. Employees who work less than 40 hours a week will receive up to the greater of the average number
of hours the employee works over 2 weeks or the amount of time an employee is scheduled to work over a two-
week period.

50|Page

184



Employees Eligible for Supplemental Sick Leave. On the date a public health emergency is declared, each
variable part-time, seasonal, and variable temporary employee’s sick leave will be automatically supplemented as
necessary to ensure that each line employee has 2 weeks of available supplemental sick leave. Employees who
work less than 40 hours a week will receive up to the greater of the average number of hours the employee works
over 2 weeks or the amount of time the employee is scheduled to work over a 2-week period. An employee’s
accrued sick leave counts toward the 2 weeks of supplemental sick leave.

Use of Supplemental Sick Leave. Supplemental sick leave and PTO may be used from the date a public health
emergency is declared until 4 weeks after the official termination or suspension of the public health emergency
for the following purposes:

A. An employee needs to self-isolate and care for oneself because the employee is diagnosed with,
experiencing symptoms of, or seeking preventative care for a communicable illness that is the cause of
the public health emergency;

B. Anemployee is seeking or obtaining a medical diagnosis, care, or treatment if experiencing symptoms of
a communicable illness that is the cause of the public health emergency;

C. An employee needs to care for a family member who is self-isolating because the family member is
diagnosed with, experiencing symptoms of, or seeking preventative care for a communicable illness that
is the cause of the public health emergency;

D. An employee needs to care for a family member who needs medical diagnosis, care, or treatment if
experiencing symptoms of a communicable illness that is the cause of the public health emergency;

E. With regard to a communicable illness that is the cause of the public health emergency, a local, state, or
federal public official or health authority having jurisdiction over the location of an employee’s place of
employment or the employer determines that the employee’s presence on the job or in the community
would jeopardize the health of others because of the employee’s exposure to the communicable illness
or because the employee is exhibiting symptoms of the communicable iliness, regardless of whether the
employee has been diagnosed with the communicable illness;

F.  With regard to a communicable illness that is the cause of the public health emergency, an employee
needs to care for a family member after a local, state, or federal public official or health authority having
jurisdiction over the location of the family member’s place of employment or the employer determines
that the family member’s presence on the job or in the community would jeopardize the health of others
because of the family member’s exposure to the communicable illness or because the family member is
exhibiting symptoms of the communicable illness, regardless of whether the family member has been
diagnosed with the communicable illness;

G. An employee needs to care for a child or other family member when the individual’s child care provider
is unavailable do to a public health emergency, or if the child’s or family member’s school or place of care
has been closed by a local, state, or federal public official or at the discretion of the school or place of care
due to a public health emergency, including if a school or place of care is physically closed but providing
instruction remotely; or

H. An employee is unable to work because the employee has a health condition that may increase
susceptibility to or risk of a communicable iliness that is the cause of the public health emergency.

6.11 Unpaid Leave

The District may, in the discretion of the District Manager and the employee's Department Director, grant any full-
time eligible employee unpaid leave only after the employee has exhausted all of his/her earned and carried-over
PTO, sick leave, if applicable, and other paid leave benefits. In determining whether to grant unpaid personal
leave, the District Manager and Director will consider the business needs of the District and whether the District
reasonably can accommodate the unpaid personal leave, and any other factors deemed relevant by the District

51|Page

185



Manager and Director. If unpaid leave is granted, the employee is responsible for payment of health benefit
premiums.

6.12 Holiday Pay

Regular full-time, variable full-time, and regular part-time employees are entitled to ten paid holidays. Regular
full-time employees receive 80 hours annually (8 hours per holiday), variable full-time employees receive 60 hours
annually (6 hours per holiday), and regular part-time employees receive 40 hours annually (4 hours per holiday)
at their regular hourly rate paid holidays. Holiday pay is not counted as hours worked for purposes of calculating
overtime. Variable full-time and regular part-time employees not scheduled to work on a holiday may utilize their
paid holiday another day within the same pay period, or a separate pay period if approved in advance by the
District Manager or a director. Non-exempt employees (regular full-time, variable full-time, and regular part-time)
required to work on a holiday will be paid regular hours for the hours worked on the holiday, unless hours are
critical to operations as determined by the District Manager, which will result in time and a half pay as a premium
payment for working on the holiday. Employees may not utilize the equivalent of those holiday hours on another
day, within the same pay period, unless approved in advance by the District Manager or a director. Exempt
employees required to work on a holiday may flex for another day within the same pay period, unless approved
in advance by the District Manager or a director. Approval to work on a holiday must be approved in advance by
the District Manager or director. Any hours worked on the holiday will be counted as time actually worked for
purposes of calculating overtime, but the holiday premium payment is excluded from the regular rate for purposes
of calculating overtime. Any holiday hours not utilized at the end of the year will not carryover to future years.
Employees are not paid out for any unused holiday hours at the time of separation.

52|Page

186



7.0 Employee Benefits

The District may alter any of these benefit policies and programs at any time, in its sole discretion, subject to
applicable law.

7.1 Benefits

The District currently offers health, dental, and vision insurance as well as a plethora of other benefits for
employees. Benefits are available for eligible employees based on classification. Benefit programs are outlined on
the benefit table found in Section 7.9 below.

Eligibility. The District currently offers health, dental and vision insurance for eligible regular full-time and
variable full-time employees at the contribution amounts toward the premiums established by the Board. A copy
of the plan(s) is on file in the District's administration office. Coverage begins the first day of the month following
the employee’s first date of employment. In addition to themselves, employees may elect to cover their
spouse/domestic partner as well as dependent children.

Spouses may include those who are legally married and those who fit the definition of common-law spouse or civil
union. Dependent children may include the employee's unmarried, natural and/or legally adopted children, or
children for whom the employee has been granted legal guardianship. Except in certain circumstances, children must
be under the age of 26 regardless of marital, student status, or dependency upon the employee for support. An
employee loses his or her eligibility for coverage when one of the events listed below occurs:

e Employment ends;

o Employee changes from a benefit-eligible position to a non-benefit eligible position;

e Employee cancels his or her coverage; or

o If applicable, the employee does not pay the associated portion of health premiums.

Coverage Changes. Employee coverage decisions will be in effect for the entire plan year unless an employee
has a change in status. A change in status occurs if:
o Anemployee marries, divorces, or files for a legal separation;
o An employee or an employee’s spouse gives birth, adopts a child or if there is a change in custody
agreements ofa child;
o Anemployee’s spouse or dependent(s) dies;
o Anemployee’s dependent child is no longer eligible for coverage due to age or marital status or student
status;
o An employee’s spouse has a change in employment, resulting in the gain or loss of insurance coverage;or
e An employee or an employee’s spouse loses coverage due to a change in employment
status/classification.

To make a change during the year, an employee must provide proof of change such as marriage license, birth
certificate, loss of coverage, etc. to the Finance Department within thirty (30) days of the qualifying event. If an
employee has no family status changes during the plan year, the employee still has one opportunity during which the
employee can change elected coverage for the upcoming plan year. This event is called Open Enrollment. Each year
employees will receive detailed information from the Finance Department in advance of the Open Enroliment period
outlining the process employee may follow to make changes to employee coverage.

Retiree Health Insurance. Any benefit-eligible employee who is at least 50 years of age and has either a
minimum of ten years of continuous coverage accumulated with any CEBT group OR has been employed by the

53|Page

187



District continuously for a minimum of fifteen years at the time of retirement is eligible to elect coverage in the
District's medical, dental, vision insurance plan at any coverage level provided by the plan (for example, individual,
individual + spouse, individual + child(ren), or individual + family). Any such election shall be made pursuant to the
election procedures, as such procedures may be amended by the District Board from time to time. Election for
coverage must occur at the end of employment.

The retired employee will be responsible for paying the entire premium cost of the plan as set by the insurance
carrier, plus a 2% District administrative fee. Such payment must be made by reimbursement to the District
pursuant to the payment procedures. Such procedures may be amended by the District Board from time to time.
Except as otherwise required by federal or state law, failure to make payments as directed and when due will
resultin termination from the plan. At the end of the month that a retired employee becomes eligible for Medicare
or the receipt of retirement pension benefits from Colorado PERA, coverage on the District's medical insurance
plan will be terminated for the retired employee and the retired employee's spouse and dependents (if elected).
A retired employee who terminates coverage in the plan after enrolling, and outside the normal provisions of
COBRA, will no longer be eligible to participate in the plan.

7.2 Benefits Continuation (COBRA)

The federal Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA) gives employees and their qualified
beneficiaries the opportunity to continue health, prescription, and dental insurance coverage under the District Plan
for up to 18 months and possibly longer for certain individuals when a qualifying event would normally result in the
loss of eligibility. Some common qualifying events are resignation; termination of employment; death of an employee;
a reduction in an employee’s hours or a leave of absence; an employee’s divorce or legal separation; and a dependent
child no longer meeting eligibility requirements.

Under COBRA, the employee or dependent pays the full cost of insurance coverage at District group rates plus an
administration fee. An employee’s COBRA coverage will terminate automatically if the premium for the employee’s
continuation coverage is not paid by the due date and any applicable grace period for paying the premium has expired
without the past due premium being paid. Termination of COBRA coverage will be effective at the end of the last
month for which the full premium was paid before expiration of the grace period for that payment.

Upon separation, each eligible employee is provided with a written notice describing rights granted under COBRA,;
this notice contains important information about the employee’s rights and obligations.

7.3 Flexible Spending Accounts

Flexible Spending Accounts (FSAs) are optional accounts that allow benefit eligible employees to have pre-tax
payroll deductions deferred into special reimbursement accounts, which can be used for uncovered medical
expenses and/or dependent care costs. Options for enrollment occur during the annual open enrollment period
each year or at the time of a qualifying event.

Under COBRA law, employees have the option to continue employee Medical Reimbursement and/or Dependent

Care Reimbursement account(s) for the remaining portion of the calendar year. If an employee would like to continue
their FSA, the employee must remit payments in the amount equal to the employee’s monthly payroll deduction using

54|Page

188



after-tax dollars. Additional details on continuing these accounts are contained in the COBRA information mailed to
employee upon separation of employment.

7.4 Life Insurance and Accidental Death & Dismemberment

Eligible employees are automatically enrolled in the District’s paid Life Insurance and Accidental Death and
Dismemberment (AD&D) plan. Eligible employees will receive coverage in the amount of two times the
employee’s base salary rounded up to the next $1,000 up to a maximum of $450,000. Reductions occur on the
following schedule: age 65 (40%), age 70 (65%), age 75 (75%), and age 80 (80%).

7.5 Short Term Disability (STD)

Short Term Disability will be eliminated from District coverage starting January 1, 2024 when the Family and
Medical Leave Insurance (FAMLI) program benefits begin.

7.6 Long Term Disability
Regular full-time and variable full-time employees are eligible for long-term disability. Benefits include 60% of the
first $12,500 of pre-disability earnings, reduced by deductible income. The waiting period is 180 days.

7.7 Employee Recreational Benefits

Eligibility. Each of the employee recreational benefits provided in this Handbook are available to regular full-
time, variable full-time, and regular part-time employees, and their spouse and dependent children. "Dependent
children” means any son, stepson, daughter, stepdaughter, or eligible foster child of the employee. The Facility
Access and Fitness Class benefits are also available to variable part-time, variable temporary, and seasonal
employees during the season they are working; however, their spouses and dependent children are not eligible.

Facility Access. All eligible District employees and family may utilize the fitness center and aquatic facilities at
no cost during regular business hours. All eligible District employees and family may participate at no charge as a
"drop-in" participant for Community Center fitness classes; however, they must register using required
registration processes.

Recreation Program Registration and Participation. All eligible District employees and family may register
for any District-provided program or class, including specialty fitness classes, at a 20% discount off the District
resident rate or non-resident rate, as applicable depending on whether the eligible District employee is a District
resident or non-resident at the time of registration. Eligible District employees and family must register using the
required registration processes.

Facility Rentals. All eligible District employees and family may rent any District rental facility, including Bradford
Room, Dakota Lodge, Shaffer Room, pools, and tennis courts, at a 20% discount off the regular rental rate charged
to District residents or non-residents, as applicable depending on whether the eligible District employee is a
District resident or non-resident at the time of the rental. Eligible District employees must pay the full damage
deposit applicable to the rental facility or room and is subject to all rental rules, regulations, and policies of the
District.

Identification. District employees utilizing the recreation benefits provided in this Handbook must comply with
identification requirements established by administrative services, which may include presenting an ID card
and/or mobile bar code.

55|Page

189



Modification. The Board may modify the recreational benefits provided in this Handbook at any time in its
discretion, subject to the requirements of applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules, regulations, and
ordinances.

Regular Full- Variable Regular Variable Variable
Benefit Type Time Full-Time Part-Time Part-Time Seasonal Temporary
KC Ranch Community Drop-in use free for employee and eligible Drop-in use free for employee during working
Center/Fitness spouse and dependent children season only
Aquatic Facility Use Drop-in use free for employee gnd eligible Drop-in use free for employee during working
spouse and dependent children season only

Recreation Program

o i
Registration Fees 20% Discount

Facility Rental Fees 20% Discount

7.8 Paid Family and Medical leave Insurance (FAMLI) Program

FAMLI provides all Colorado workers with access of up to twelve weeks of paid leave to take care of themselves
or their family during life circumstances such as birth, adoption, or foster care of a child, or taking care of
themselves or a loved one with a serious health condition. The amount of leave available within a year is capped
at 12 weeks, or 16 for gestational parents with complications. The eligibility requirement for someone to be able
to take leave or become a covered individual is having made $2,500 in wages within the first four of the last five
completed calendar quarters immediately preceding the first day of the benefit year (i.e., the 12-month period in
which the employee makes a claim for FAMLI benefits) or the last four completed calendar quarters immediately
preceding the benefit year, regardless of time worked or for which employer. Job protection is a separate benefit
and does not apply to FAMLI leave until someone has been with the employer 180 days.

The FAMLI Division pays the employee directly for the time they are out of work. For any portion of the FAMLI
leave to which paid time off applies, the District will continue to make payroll deductions to collect the employee’s
share of the health, life insurance, or disability premiums. For any portion of the FAMLI leave that is unpaid, the
employee must continue to make this payment directly to the District within the deadlines established by the
District at the beginning of the FAMLI leave. If any payment owed by the employee is more than 30 days late, the
employee’s coverage may be dropped for the duration of the leave. The District will provide 15 days' notification
before the employee’s loss of coverage.

Eligible employees are not required to exhaust or use any accrued sick, vacation, or other paid time off prior to or
while receiving FAMLI benefits (CRS 8-13.3 -510); however, FAMLI provides only partial wage replacement.
Although FAMLI provides partial wage replacement, employees are not entitled to receive full wage replacement
from the CDLE while receiving FAMLI benefits. As such, the District will provide employees with a wage
supplement agreement that will allow the District to use any unused accrued leave earned by the employee to
supplement FAMLI benefits to ensure the employee receives their full regular rate of pay while on FAMLI leave.

7.9 Seasonal Employee Scholarship Program

The District has established an Employee Scholarship Program aimed at providing financial assistance for the
educational development of seasonal employees. This program will award three (3) $500 scholarships annually
to eligible applicants.

56|Page

190



Eligibility:

o Employee Status: To be eligible for the Employee Scholarship program, applicants must be or have been
employed as a Seasonal employee of the District the same calendar year of application.

o Length of Service: Applicants must have completed the entire summer season of continuous service with
the District.

o Academic Pursuits: The scholarship is intended to support educational pursuits. Applicants must be
enrolled in a recognized educational institution, including accredited colleges, universities, vocational
schools, or similar programs.

Application Process:

¢ Interested and eligible employees must complete the official scholarship application form.

o The application must be submitted to the Human Resources department no later than the specified
deadline each year.

Selection Process:

o Once the application has been reviewed for eligibility by the Human Resources department, it is sent to
the scholarship selection committee for review and consideration. Award decisions are made based on
established criteria.

Terms and Conditions:
o The scholarship is a one-time award and is not renewable.
e Recipients are required to fulfill their seasonal employment with no write-ups or corrective action.

57|Page

191



8.0 Corrective Action and Discipline

8.1 Corrective Action

Corrective actions are not discipline. Corrective action is intended to notify employees of conduct that is not in
conformance with the District’s rules or otherwise is inappropriate or deficient, so employees can promptly take
appropriate action to ensure the conduct does not occur again.

The District does not have a progressive or step-corrective action or discipline policy. The District will impose the
corrective action it deems appropriate under the specific facts and circumstances. In imposing a corrective action,
the District may consider any prior corrective action or disciplinary action imposed against an employee. While a
corrective action is not a disciplinary action, it can form the basis for a disciplinary action. In accordance with the
District’s policy against progressive discipline, the District has no obligation to take corrective action before taking
disciplinary action, up to and including termination.

A. Oral Corrective Actions. An oral corrective action may be imposed at any time by any supervisor. An oral
corrective action shall be documented by the supervisor issuing the oral corrective action by a written
note or memo placed in employee personnel file. A copy will be given to the employee.

B. Written Corrective Actions. A written corrective action may be imposed at any time by any supervisor.
Employees will be given a copy of the written corrective action. Employees must meet and discuss the
written corrective action with their supervisor and acknowledge in writing that they discussed the written
corrective action with their supervisor. The written corrective action and employee acknowledgement
shall be placed in the employee’s personnel file.

C. Corrective Action Requirements. A supervisor may impose any reasonable duty or condition upon an
employee that is reasonably designed to correct the deficient or inappropriate conduct, including, but not
limited to, prohibiting the employee from engaging in the misconduct again, probation and/or an action
plan.

D. Appealing Corrective Actions. An employee may appeal a corrective action to the District Manager.
Employee appeals must be submitted in writing to the District Manager within 5 calendar days of the
employee receiving the corrective action. Employee appeals must include a copy of the corrective action,
the reason(s) the employee disagrees with it and what the employee wants the District Manager to do.
The District Manager may investigate the corrective action. The District Manager shall issue a written
decision within 10 calendar days of receiving the appeal or as soon thereafter as practicable. A corrective
action and the District Manager’s decision cannot be appealed to the Board.

E. Corrective Actions by the District Manager. The District Manager may issue a corrective action to any
employee at any time, using the procedures for oral and written corrective actions in this section. The
District Manager’s corrective action cannot be appealed to the Board.

F. Board Corrective Actions. The Board has complete discretion to issue a corrective action to the District
Manager or any other employee at any time, using such procedures as it deems appropriate.

8.2 Discipline

At Will Employment; No Progressive Discipline. The District does not have a progressive or step-discipline
policy. All employees are “at will” and may leave the District at any time. The District also may terminate an
employee at any time, for any or no reason, subject only to the requirements of applicable law.

When Discipline May Be Imposed. Discipline may be imposed for violating this Handbook or any other District
rule, any applicable law, or for unsatisfactory or deficient performance of duties. The following is a non-exclusive
list of the types of misconduct that may result in discipline:

A. Violation of this Handbook or any other District rule.

58|Page

192



O w

Ommo

- I

<

©mO

c 4w

Unsatisfactory performance of one or more of an employee’s duties and responsibilities.

Direct or indirect insubordination, disrespect for or disobedience to a request, direction or order of a
supervisor or the District manager.

Violation of the District's anti-discrimination/harassment or workplace antiviolence policies.
Unauthorized release of information regarding the District, its employees, volunteers, or customers.
Unauthorized use or removal of District property, other employees or volunteers, or customers.
Carelessness, negligence, or misuse of District property, whether resulting in injury to employees,
volunteers, or other property.

Willful destruction of District property or the property of others.

Falsification of, or material omission from, an employment or appointment application or any other
District record.

Violation of the District's illegal drug and alcohol policy.

Unexcused absence or tardiness.

Leaving District Premises without prior permission of an employee’s supervisor. For example, if an
employee becomes ill while on duty, the employee must notify their supervisor before leaving.

. Violation of the District's smokeless tobacco and smoking policy.

Disorderly conduct, including, but not limited to, gambling, verbal abuse, fighting, engaging in any activity
that interferes with job performance, or any other employee’s or volunteer's performance on the job,
repeated use of abusive, obscene, indecent, or profane language.

Lack of courtesy to District guests or customers, or other employees or volunteers.

Violation of the District's Dress Code.

Falsification, destruction, or unauthorized use of District records, reports, or other data or information
belonging to the District.

Failure to report violations of safety policies and procedures.

Failure to use safety gear, clothing, or equipment properly.

Violation of the District's conflicts of interest and personal gain policies.

Unauthorized use of District funds and/or credit cards.

The foregoing is not a comprehensive list of the reasons for which an employee may be subject to disciplinary
action, up to and including termination. Again, violation of any provision of this Handbook or any other District
rule, any applicable law, or any verbal or oral instruction of a supervisor, may result in disciplinary action.

8.3 Discipline Procedure

An employee’s supervisor will determine the discipline to be recommended based upon the specific facts and
circumstances of the case, considering the employee’s prior work performance, including, but not limited to any
prior corrective actions or discipline. If, based upon all the facts and circumstances, the supervisor believes
discipline is warranted, the supervisor may recommend one or more of the following forms of discipline to the
District Manager or a Designee:

ITOmMmMOOwx

Probation;

Action Plan;
Suspension;

Suspension without pay;
Fine;

Leave Reduction;
Demotion; or
Termination.

59|Page

193



Exempt Employee Limitations. To comply with the FLSA “salary basis" requirements, the following limitations
apply to disciplinary actions against FLSA exempt employees:

A. A fine can be imposed against a FLSA exempt employee only for violations of a safety rule of major
significance. An exempt employee cannot be fined to reimburse the District for lost or damaged District
equipment or property;

B. A FLSA exempt administrative employee can be suspended without pay for more than one workweek (no
partial workweeks) for any act or omission forming a basis for discipline under this Handbook, any other
District rule, or applicable law; and

C. A FLSA exempt employee can be suspended without pay for one day or more (no partial days) for
violations of the District's anti-discrimination/anti-harassment policies or workplace anti-violence policy.

Notice of Recommended Discipline. The supervisor will provide the employee with a written Notice of
Recommended Discipline that contains:
A. abrief, reasonably specific statement of the employee’s wrongful conduct;
B. the provision(s) of this Handbook or other District rule or applicable law violated, or the employee’s
deficient or unsatisfactory performance of duties; and,
C. to the extent practicable, the time, date, and place where the alleged acts took place, and the names of
witnesses.
The Notice of Recommended Discipline will state a date and time at which the employee is required to meet with
the supervisor, which meeting will occur within five business days of the employee’s receipt of the Notice of
Recommended Discipline. If the supervisor cannot hold the meeting within the five-day period due to
unavailability, the meeting will occur with the employee as soon as practicable. Before this meeting, the employee
may submit a written response to the Notice of Recommended Discipline. The Notice of Recommended Discipline
may be given to the employee in person, emailed to the employee, or mailed to the residential address the
employee has provided to the District in accordance with this Handbook.

Employee Written Response. Employees may, but are not required to, submit a written response. If an
employee wishes to submit a written response, the employee must submit it to the supervisor at least 12 hours
before the employee meets with the supervisor to discuss the Notice of Recommended Discipline.

Supervisor’s Recommendations to the District Manager. After meeting with the employee and
considering the employee’s written response, if any, the supervisor may submit written recommendations of
discipline to the District Manager or may withdraw the disciplinary action.

District Manager's Decision on Recommendations Final. The District Manager will issue a written decision
on the supervisor’s recommendations within 10 business days of receiving the recommendations, or as soon
thereafter as practical. The District Manager's decision is the final decision of the District for all purposes. Under
no circumstances shall an employee attempt to appeal a disciplinary action directly to the Board. Any attempt to
appeal a disciplinary action to the Board may result in the employee’s immediate termination.

Disciplinary Action by the District Manager. The District Manager may, at any time, commence disciplinary
action against any employee or volunteer. The District Manager will provide the employee with a Notice of
Recommended Discipline that contains the information set forth in this section. The employee shall meet with the
District Manager to discuss the discipline being considered. The employee may provide a written response as
provided above. The District Manager will issue his/her decision within 10 business days of his/her meeting with
the employee, or as soon thereafter as practicable. The District Manager's decision shall be the final decision of
the District for all purposes. Under no circumstances shall the employee attempt to appeal the District Manager's
decision to the Board. An attempt to appeal the District Manager's decision to the Board may result in the
employee’s immediate termination.

60|Page

194



Board Discipline of the District Manager or Other Employees/Volunteers. The Board may, in its sole
discretion, impose a disciplinary action against the District Manager or any other employee or volunteer. The
District Manager or other employee/volunteer is not entitled to receive progressive or step-discipline; nor does
any discipline imposed by the Board alter the District Manager’s or other employee's status as an at-will employee.
The Board will, to the extent practicable, in compliance with the Colorado Sunshine Law, and its ability to schedule
regular or special meetings, follow the procedures contained in this section. The District Manager or other
employee/volunteer and the Board will meet to discuss the discipline being considered. The District Manager or
other employee/volunteer may submit a written response, which shall be submitted to the Board at least 24 hours
before the meeting. The Board shall issue its final decision on the discipline as soon after the meeting as
reasonably practicable.

Termination Due to Job Elimination. The Board or the District Manager may terminate an employee because
of the elimination of the employee’s position. The Board or the District Manager will provide the employee with
a written Notice of Intent to Eliminate Position. The Notice will state the reason(s) for eliminating the position and
will state a date and time for the employee to meet with the Board or District Manager to discuss elimination of
the position. The employee may provide a written response at least 12 hours before the meeting to discuss
elimination of the position. As soon as practicable after the meeting, the Board or District Manager, as
appropriate, will issue a final decision on elimination of the position.

Termination for Reasons Other Than Discipline or Job Elimination. The Board or District Manager, on
its/his/her own initiative or on a supervisor’s recommendation, may terminate an employee for other than
discipline or job elimination, where the Board or District Manager finds the employee’s continued employment is
not in the best interests of the District, its employees/volunteers, and/or the citizens it serves, including the
employee’s goals and needs are inconsistent with the District’s goals and needs, the employee is not integrating
into the District’s work force, operations, or administrations, or the employee has attitude or behavioral problems
that, while perhaps not rising to a level requiring discipline, are not in the best interests of the District, its
employees/volunteers and/or the citizens it serves. In such circumstances the supervisor (if supervisor
recommendations are involved) and the District Manager will follow the procedures set forth in this Section 8.3.
The Board will, to the extent practicable, in compliance with the Colorado Sunshine Law, and its ability to schedule
regular or special meetings, follow the procedures contained in this section.

61|Page

195



9.0 Dispute Resolution

9.1 Dispute Resolution

Scope. This section does not apply to any aspect of any corrective action, disciplinary action or termination of
employment/service; any personnel decision relating to payroll, appointment, hiring, promotion, or performance
reviews; or any action amember perceives as illegal discrimination, harassment, or retaliation. Such matters must
be addressed in accordance with the policies and procedures, if available, outlined in the relevant portions of this
Handbook.

Informal Problem Resolution. You must first address the supervisor or other member with whom you have the
dispute and attempt to resolve the dispute directly. If the informal means of problem resolution are not
successful, you may utilize the dispute resolution procedures set forth below.

Dispute Resolution Procedures. After satisfying the Informal Problem Resolution section above, you may submit
a written dispute to the District Manager or, if the dispute involves the District Manager, to a Board member.

A. You must submit your written dispute within six business days of the issue or event that is the reason for
the dispute. The written dispute must be placed in a sealed envelope. If the dispute is being submitted to
the District Manager, the sealed envelope must be marked "Confidential Dispute Resolution for the
District Manager." If the dispute is being submitted to the Board, then the sealed envelope must be
marked "Confidential — Dispute Resolution for the Board." In either case, the sealed envelope must be
delivered to the administrative office.

B. The written dispute must, at a minimum, state the following:

o The date of the disputed issue or event, and the date you submitted the written dispute;

e Your name;

o Adescription of the dispute; how, when and where it arose; the parties involved; and, its present
status, including a description of the steps you took to resolve the dispute on an informal basis;

o All documents or other materials supporting your position; and

o The relief sought or a proposal for resolution of the dispute.

C. If the dispute is submitted to the District Manager, he/she may make such an investigation as he/she
deems appropriate under the circumstances and issue a written decision as soon as possible. The District
Manager's decision is the final decision on the dispute, and you must not attempt to appeal it to the Board.

If the dispute is submitted to the Board, it will take whatever action it deems appropriate given the circumstances,
which may include appointing a two-member committee or reviewing it as a Board. The Board or its Designee will
notify the District Manager of the dispute and give the District Manager the opportunity to provide a written
response. The Board or its designees may conduct such investigation as it deems appropriate under the
circumstances, including hiring an outside investigator. The Board will issue a written decision as soon as
practicable. The Board’s decision is final and may not be appealed.

62|Page

196



Appendix

63|Page

197



Benefit Table

Regular Full- Variable Regular Variable Variable
Benefit Type Time Full-Time Part-Time Part-Time Seasonal Temporary Notes
Summer
operational Substitutes or Seasonals include aquatics, parks
Hours per Week 40 30-36 20-29 19& season; employed on maintenance seasonals, and summer
below employed an as needed camp counselors (those not working in
less than basis other youth programs during the year)
26 weeks
1039 &
Annual Hours (52 weeks) 2080 1560-1923 | 1040-1559 | below N/A N/A
Medical Insurance Eligible Eligible
Dental Insurance Eligible Eligible
Vision Insurance Eligible Eligible
Must be 50; retiree must have a
minimum of ten years of continuous
coverage accumulated with
Retiree Health Insurance Eligible Eligible any CEBT group OR retiree must have
been employed by the District
continuously for a minimum of fifteen
years
Long-Term Disability Eligible Eligible
Most employees become eligible to
. . . take paid leave after they have earned
E:;C\'/gTrT;ﬂ)r/a,\::edl(ﬁMLl) See Note at least $2,500 in wages within the
State within the last four calendar
guarters. Contact HR for information.
Employee Assistance Eligible Eligible
Program
Group Life Insurance Eligible Eligible
Flexible Spending - _
Account Eligible Eligible
el .
EMLA Leave Eligible Eligible *Eligible Eligible if Wo'rked at least 1250 hrsin
previous 12 months
. 10% District
401a Retirement Plan Match
_ - 6.2% 6.2% _
0, 0, 0,
457 Plan Voluntary 62(;;';:”“ 62(;;';:”“ District District 6'2,\/;;'5;”“
Match Match
Accrues per pay period; increases
Annual PTO Hours 168 126 84 following 4t full calendar year of
employment
*
Annual Sick Leave - - - Accrue 1 hour for every 30 hours
worked up to 48 hours
Comp Time Max 60 45 30
Hours may be used for: New Year's
Day, MLK Day, President's Day,
Annual Holiday Hours 80 60 40 Memorial Day, 4th of July, Labor Day,
Thanksgiving, Day after Thanksgiving,
Christmas Eve, and Christmas
Bereavement Leave up to 24 hrs up to 18 hrs up to 12 hrs Depends on ave\:\?ogrtla(zghedule and shift

64|Page

198




FMLA Required Posting

Your Employee Rights
Under the Family and
Medical Leave Act

What is FMLA leave?

Tha Famely and Medical Leses Act (FMLAL is a {edersl Lew That provides
sligitle amployoos with jeb-prabscied leave 1or gubleying Tamily and
madical repaong The UG Department of Labors Wags and Hour Divigicn
MYHD enforces the FMLA for most employees

Eligible smnployees can take up ie 12 werkweaks of FMLA lexo
in & 12-enon b paiad for.

T i, BeOpian oF fostir plicamant of &ohid with yo

Yeoud Gariou manLal o plyiesal hisith comdnnn That makil you
unable to work,

Tocara for your spouse. child or panend with a serious mental or
pfrysical haalth condition, and

= Certainqualifying reasons related bo the foressgn deploymant of your
i, Chid OF DA enE whi i & MIlITARY SEnaCeerseriin

An eligbds employes who s the spouse. cheld, parend oo nesc of kinod &
ctrriiid Servobmmbier with b Jersc injuey of dlnis ey Ll up 1o
26 workweeks of FMLA leave in 8 sngle 12-month period 1o care Tor the
SR Mk,

igeud Pl BF iR 13 uded FRULA liainw in &b Block of i, Whan il g
madicaly necessary of otherwise permitied. vou may take FRLA leaee
intermitiemily in separate blocks of time, or &0 8 reduced scheduls by
working less Boors sach day or week, Read Fact Sheed #2848 dor morg
information.

FMLA Lt o8 fiof pabd Lidva, Bt you miny chooss, o ba fegured by your
employe. B wii any employer-proaded pakd beave if your employers
paid baawe policy oovers the reason for wihech yous need FMLA e,

Am | eligible to take
FMLA leave?

e ari e aligible employes it all af th fellowsg sety
Yo wirk for o covered Employe,
= ¥ou hawe worked for your emploper a1 least 12 montba,
= You have at least 1,250 hours of pervice for yous employer dunng
thet 12 enzentha b one your Leave, s
Yiodst furreplingdt bt o1 lanar SO emplogees within 75 miles
of yout wirk lotabtion,

Abrling Msght orew employees have differend “houns of serace”
AU BTN
et weole P & cevarad amployer il e of 1he following saplie

® Yo s $00 B i bl dereloyer thad Fad ot least B0 employees during
8 it B0 weirkwsistig in Tha) Curment o privioul CRlandar i,

* Yo wrd for an slemantary o public or priaate secendary pehesl, o

= Wouwerk for a public agency. such o8 8 local, sLate or Tederal
Ecwarmment agency. kiost federsl empioyees ane covered by Titke 11
ol vl FRELA, pddmindbirad by the OMNce of Parionngl Managamant

How do | request
FMLA leave?

Genarally, to requert FRLA laxne you mult
* Follow your smgployers normal polickes for requesting leave,
* (i notice ot loast 30 diys before your need Tor FIALA bee, or
= I advincs notion it ot DoRsble. give nolce & §e0n &1 polaible

Wou de ik kave 1o share 8 medizal diagnesis but must provide encugh
InSTEanice 10 your employer 50 thay can determing whalFar 1B leiroe
cualities fior FMLA profecton You misst stss inform your smployer if
FMLA laave wir previsuily taken o spproved o0 B Sam raaion
wihisn reguesting additional leve.

i dmpl may et Tearm @ hadlth cltg pronidir
1o werity medical lerm ard may regusst centification of o quatiying
IRy,

T FMLA dosiri it @il arry Techival or alate Linw prohibiting

dscrimination or supersede any stase of local L o collective baganing
Sgrepmin TRat providis graater Tamily of madical laee rghls

State emplopaet may Be subject 16 Ciin limilaticed o il of dirgst
Lewsints regading laave Poor thes o 000i0us haalth conditons. Most
Tipcyral and Conash congriiaibns] emalcvoet and alid cormbred By the
lw beut ane subject to Ehe jurisdection of the US. Odfce of Persorrel
Mpnagemeni o Congress

What does my
employer need to do?

M ywoua are aligibla for FMLA laave, your smployer must

& Allorar oo 10 Tk pob- PRODSc i Tirme o weaeth fad i Guabiliying (odages,
Cosfilinud your group hasith slan e o age whilt you oie on b on
Eha mame basis ot i you kad not taken leave, and
Bl ey e N EELTE B Thi S8 joh, oF & virtuslly adeetical ol wnth
the same pay. benafis and olher working condiétions, including sht
nnd locasiom, i this and ol your g,

-

-

Wour employer caneot inferfere with your FMILA rights or threaten or
Eruniesh wous RO QuedCIBing Yo rghis under th L For grimels, your
empicyer cannot relaliale agaest you for nequesbing FRILA beave or
cooparating with & WHD evestigation

AR e Bebtorrang awdi e TRAE your feiid 108 Didve i for 8 oadadeeh That may
ualdty wrder tha FRILA. your ssployer passt confiem whathar you are
wligiisle o mog eligibls for FRALA ik, 1 yoisr emplogsr determings that
wins i lig e,y amployer musd notify you in writing

* About your FMLA rgnis and respontibdities, and

* Hiow much of your requastad i, it sy will be FMLA-pretected
leavn

Where can | find more
information?

Coll 1-B6E-48T-0243 o vied dolgov/imla ba learn mers

 yous beeliarve yorur rights wnder tha FMLA have been violsted, you may
fils & complam with WHD of fibe 8 privale Linesus BEReSL your employer
n cowt. Scan the GR code to learn about cur WHD complaint process

WALE AMD HOUR DRVISION
LNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LARDR

65|Page

199



Healthy Families and Workplaces Act Required Posting

9£6L-06£-888 / THFS-STE-£0€ ‘sn°0d'eis D spaepueds 1oqe] [P ‘105" ME[I0qE[OPL.IO[0) ‘SINSNEIG PUL SPILPULIS J0qeT JO UOISIAI(Q
112LIU0 ‘sate] J0qe] 13130 10 353 0) se syurejdurod 1o ‘uonvurroyur ‘suonsanb 10 ‘$122ys 10y PaILIAP 10T ‘SUE] IS JO SUOISIAA [[Nf 10
‘{[renuue pasefdar pue ‘papaau se YSI[SUF ULy} 137)0 sasensue] ul papraoad ‘SI33.I0A JJOUWAT [HIAL PATLYS ‘SIINI0A 0 I[QISSIIIL A[ISLI ST JT 2137 pasefdsip aq jsnur 13)sod sy

“uogeuwoyur 33yes pue [M{eAY YIS 103 satdouade 350y} J0eju0)) “satouade yreay dnqnd [edo] wog 10 ‘(FHJJD) ULWUONAUT PUE PeIH dMqng Jo justmreda operoo)) AP WO (YHSO) 1V PeaH pue £ayes [euonednad( rerepay
31 19puN SUPN[OUT ‘SISPIO PuE ‘SIMI ‘save] £J3Jes 10 P[eY IO 12402 J0u s30p J] “(usmdmba 2andj01d euostad pue Sumo[qIpsTYM) STHI-0T GH Pue (2aea] pred) ¢O7-07 GS “sme] Preay orjqnd 20e[d{10M OPEIO[0;) 0A\) SIZLIETWIUNS 13)50g STYL

‘s3Tpamal ymsmey-axd
Sunsneyxa 13 uMod I se PI[Y 3q Lew 10 ‘sdy snowuoue 10 syuTedmod se UOISIALJ 3@ 03 paprodar aq Lewr suone[oLy

(A\THJ ¥ VA\IH 130q 19pun) STHOM INIVIIINOD

"qol a1 0p 01 J[qeun IYI0M I LW J0U S0P (£) PUE “([eI0] 10 “3}eS ‘TeIpay)
Kouade wreay Jusmmwanos e £q papuammodar st (7) ‘depdyrom a1 e papraord jusmdmbs wer wondajoxd rowm
sapuroxd (1) Fdd 21 J1 (232 “sa40[3 ‘prenSaoe] “Ysew) JJq WMO I Jeam S[LIEIUN[OA O} PAMO[[E 2q ISNW IYIOM ¥ »
T Add.,) Jusmdinb§ 31193101 [CU05.19g UM() I3 ] 35]) 03 SISTY S5 10\
“[ATE3-po03 UI PUE J[qRUOSEAI SEM WIDUOD A Se SUOT SE ‘UOSeal Jerp 10§ IYIoM
A 25uw3y uouow 19RO e} 10 A JOUUED [[US I INQ TWADUOD Pje[al- N\ THJ 5, JYI0M © ssa1ppe jou paau [eduud v «
* JONPUOD PAAST[-2A0QE A I UG I
10 ‘103 wonerpe}al noqe Surpaddord 10 wonednsaawr we wr Supedonaed to ‘Suysisse Surusay o Suisodde (7)
‘yeary £ages 10 @reay oerdyIom JuedgIuSts € 10 ‘sa[ru AJages 10 eI JuAWIAA0S JO suone[ora aoe[dyIom Jnoqe
“onqnd 21 10 ‘JusnmIaA0S A ‘srayrom 1o ‘Tedrouud i o) A[ewoyw SwpnW ‘SwIIU0D J[qeuosear Sunster (1)
:£>uagewa preay orqnd € ‘0} pajear pue ‘Surmp s3oe SULMO[[OF A WA AU 10 JsuTeSe JIeId1 0 AR STI] »

'l —u&unuﬂ © JB SI0}0eRUOd Euvg&ovs 10 s3afopdwma) _ s1ay1om  pue ﬁﬂouuwunou Eovn&uvn_
¢ 1583 38 M ssamsnq € Jo 1afojdwa we) sjednpunid,, e ing  ‘seafojdma,, pue srafojdwma,, jsul jou s12400 WWIHJ «

yuwawrdmb 241323)0.1g 35) 3 SWIDUO)) [I[EIH 8«_.“7_ T0A\ SS9 &Au 0) m:_wqm JIYI0A\
(A\THI) AVT ITANOTITTLSTHAN ADNTOYANT HITVIH OI'TdNd IHL

"aAea] Sursnst 10§ saouanbasuod 0ey uw> saafordwy 1t 105 3aLojdwa A 153w o0 Jouued Inq I Jueis 10 e Jou
paau 12fordwa we Joa1s00u1 ST OLADIE 12130 10 ‘ysanbax Yurepdwod v\ IH Prej-poos ‘qenosear s, 2asopdura uwe jy .«

A YM\AH © 30 uonest dooa (f) 1o Jurejdwmod Yy IH

e sy (§) mﬁwﬁ VM IH Swstrexs m noﬂon_ I210UE S)SISSE 10 STIoJuT () oﬁo— VMIH saye 1o spsanbar (1) joym

safojdma we ‘{q AL JO ISN PLU AILINUL 10 JsuIeSe ALTLIAT STUIANO J0 ‘WAL 31y Jouned talojdwa uy .

AUT TT SSTSSE

*aaed] pred Sunje) waya a5er2100 qol a0  1ayrom yuawadeydar, e puy o) paxmbax aq ) ued 3asopdu uy .
“WONOR JSIAPE JO PULY IOUE 10 SULY UT JMsa1 LeW Je IUISqE,, WE ST PAIUNOD 3q JOUWE) 1] pred «

SISTY VALJH [P 30Ua135131u] 10 uoneneisy

T

*SaSUE AALI[ WY\ JH 10 PaU A UM 10 yuom 12d 20U0 P 2q Lew wor yuy “aae3] JHd
reuemarddns Lwe Surpnpout ‘reas jgauaq Jua1md @ Sutmp pasn Lpearpe (7) pwe ‘asn 107 J[qe[reae (1) 2aey seafojdwa
2ae3] pred Jo Junowe JuaLmd 3 Jo uonejuawmoop aprroxd ysnm s1afojdwy ysanbax nodn paprioad aq ysnur sp10dy .

"PIOJ3I [BIIPIW [ERUIPYUOD € SE PJLa] 3q ISNTI UORRWLIOFUT YoNs ‘wonewoyut 3ayes 10 [eay pajefal-yA\ IH
(s Aqmey ;o 10) s 324ojdwma we ynoqe _ s[reIap,, 3s0[astp 0} saafojdma armbar jouwes srafopdmy “HHeanrg sodmy .
"SJUSTAIIUT JNUTMW-XTS 10 {[MOY 132 UT 3Ae[ asn ued saafojdma “Aorjod 12ojdma uo Surpuadag “asn [eawawaiduy «

“£oustdgap a1 amd 03 skep uaaas Jsea] Je sakordma a1 413 (g) pue ‘(13UWC0S ST 1A A)
uoneredas 10 jrom 0} wmyar s fojdma a 10 oI d0p A Suraedar e Jo sep uasds unpin afodum
ap Aguou () isnm 1afojdwa 3 Jusndgap uonwvIWIWNIOP s 3io[dwd we swadp L[jqenosear raslojdwd we Jy .
“(u0daz 2a170d 10 19pI10 SUTUTERSAI € *°5°2) JUSWMOOP [eS3] € 10 ‘2A0QE (T) 10 (SIOLAIIS IA)[Ys 10 [e33] Jo 1eprrord e woxm
'5'2) anoqe (1) 19pmm Sunum 10 Juaumdop e -apraoxd {ew 3a£ojdw? we ‘JuIUISSEILT [LUTWLL 10 J[MESSE [ENXIS ‘snqe
JUSIWOP 0} PAAL[T PIIW ¢ 10§ aea] paxmbar (aquawm srurey s,330jdws we 10) 3aLojdwa we Jey JudWNIOP O] .

‘Bunum umo s 32fodwa a (7) asiasaio ‘asuadxa pappe JNOPIM PUE WD I[QEUOSEII UT PAUTEIQO
3Q UWeD JUIWNOOP PUE PIAIDAI 1AM SIDWAISS I 19ptaoid SIOTALSS [B100S 10 [[ESY B WOX Juaumodop € () :apraoxd
Lew 2afojdwa we ‘padu pajepar-mjeay (s, Jaquiaw sprurey s 250jdwa ue 10) s 2lojdura we 10§ 1L JUIWNIOP O]

*3Av3] JHJ 10§ paambai 3q wed wone wIWNIOP 0y (I3U00S ST IAANIMM) Jom woxy Suneredas 10 ypom 0} Surunyar
137e 31 apraoad wed aafordma we se woos se parmbar aq wed mq ‘daed] pred ayws 03 paxmbai jou s wonEIWIWMIO( .
“(sAep repuaqed Jou ‘payiom aey pmom 32Lojdwa we yorgm wo s{ep 27) sAep JI0A 2ADNIISTWOD 210U 10 INOJ 10]
uaye) sem e J1 S[uo woseax Suriyenb v 10§ seam aaea jey woys 0 woneImawmMOp ambar wed sasopdws wy .
“£or0d e yons mra aouerdwosuou 107 aaea] pred Luap jouwued Inq ‘a3  3[qeaasaroy,, ammbar L3 J1 2ogou apraoxd
pmoys saafodma moy o} se Sugum m _ sampadoxd aqenosear, dope Lem s1afojdmy “aaed] [qea3sao),, 10§ 2dBOY «
‘1834 30 pua £q ‘saafopdma yua1md 0} saonou pajepdn apraoxd pue ‘s1apsod pajepdn Ledstp (7) pue ‘satdrjod/sjuammoop
Surpreoquo 1o we 1a3e] ou saafopdws mau o3 3ogou apoxd (1) snm srafojdmy sisod pue dBou WNLIY .

"3AR3[ PANUIIIE 210J3q 2Ae3] [ejuawmaddns asn Lew pue aea] panIdde Jo smoy g 03 dn wrea [us seafojdwa ‘FH4 € Smmg
"JHJ 7 03 3N J[QE[TEABUN ST 3Ied P 10 [00YIS 3s0YM 10 “(¢)-(1) L1083)ed ur A[rurey 1330 1o P[TYo € 107 Suured (§)

10 ‘SSIUT We YONs JO YSU I0 0} AN[IqRAIISNS SLIIIUT ABTH JeT UORIPUOD TRE € 03 NP IoM 0} [qeun 5uwaq (¢)

‘SSUYT UE YINS JO (ared 2anuasaxd Surpnpour) ared 10 Jusnmean ‘stsouserp € Suryess (7)

‘JHJ AP U ST QRO 1) JO ST p 10 dwss

A

0} 2np UOTST[IX YIom 1o Sumerost-ys ()

“PITYD $, 39! Ao_aﬂo 31 Jo ared Jo 2deyd 10 [00Yds Y} 10 ooﬁ&ﬂo A 3 pasod Terrgo ongnd e ‘FHJ e W ()

40 3(7) 10 (1) A103382 UT P2qQUIDSIP UORIPUOD B SUTdULIAdXS Iaquuaty Afrare] € seq (§)

5PN SIDLAIRS IO 10 ‘Te33] “‘Woned0[aI ‘Peay 0} SUMPEI] JUSMWSSLILY [PUTIILID 10 JMESSE [BNXas ‘3snqe 2usamop (7)
‘ared aaguaaard 10 stsouserp Swpnpout “yrom sjuasald Jey wonIpuod ey 0 ‘Amim ‘ssaup rearsdyd 1o ryusme (1)

:Spastl I[LaY] 10 1J3JE5 SULMO[[0] 1) 10] IACI| PINIIIE 350 UL sIsro[dui ]

L-€0TT YOO L °S'€ Ay uondajolg a8ey 39s ‘(02 ‘Ked Aimoy-uou ‘smoy remSarn) suonenyts dg12ds w0 S[TeIap 104 «
“Tea£ JX3U 1 5N 10§ 12A0 SILLIED IARI[ PANIIE PIsnum Jo smoy gt 03 d) «

“MUYUOD SJPuUQ Yy Surmp ‘3ae3] 10§ uonesuadmod pue [enrdde 3o el 3 s Led pue smoy rem3dy .

"Spu? JHJ AP I2YE sYRM ¢ [ (FHJ) Lousdems preay orgnd e w sardde aaes] yusmaiddns jo smoy og 03 dp) «
‘Te2A B smoy g4 0} dn °(_2AB3[ PN, ) pjIom smoy (¢ Iad 2ae3] pred Jo moy | wrea saAopdwy .

YA\JH 31 19pun 31¢a] pied 3piaodd 0 paiimbai 3¢ $33A0[d W3 9 ISE3] I¢ PN SIaL0[dui] 98E1910)

SHUSRY 24T pred (. VA\IH-) LOV SADVIIIOA ® SATTINVA AHLTVAH FHL

J2QUIIA(T 1OV JO Y IST 2]GDIIDAD
Jajsod mau SApnuup papdn aq 1Snpy

1707 ‘T Atenuep 3An3yg

SINSNHE)S B SPIBPUR)S .I0qeT JO UOISIAI
INANGINOT FAILDILOYd ¥ ‘ONIMOTIATLSIHM ‘FAVIT AIVd
119)S04 S)YSRY PRI AMqng 1e[diioa ope.iojo)

@O

Judwhodury pue xoqe]
Jo yuaunredaq

oaviyoiod

66|Page

200



Wage Deduction Required Agreement

("Employee") expressly agrees that the Ken-
Caryl Ranch Metropolitan Recreation and Park District (“District”) may reduce the Employee’s wages or
compensation for loans, advances, goods or services, and equipment or property the District provides the
Employee during the course of his or her employment by the District.

Without relieving the Employee from his or her obligation to return District money or property to the District upon
separation from employment, Employee acknowledges that the District may set off against Employee's final
paycheck the amount or value of the property he or she failed to return. Nothing in this agreement authorizes a
deduction below minimum wage.

This Agreement is not intended to be an employment contract and does not alter the Employee's at-will
employment status.

Employee

Date

67|Page

201



Employee Acknowledgement

[, the undersigned, hereby acknowledge and state that | have been provided with a copy of, and have read and
understand, the January 1, 2024 Employee Handbook ("Handbook™) of the Ken-Caryl Ranch Metropolitan District
("District"), and that the Handbook and any subsequent amendments supersede all prior District rules, policies,
procedures and benefits dealing with similar subject matter.

I understand the District Board of Directors has the right to change the District rules, policies, procedures and benefits,
including any aspect of the Handbook, at any time without notice, subject only to applicable law.

[ further understand the Handbook, as amended from time to time, applies to all District employees. | understand the
Handbook does not constitute an express or implied contract of employment. Notwithstanding any statement to the
contrary in the Handbook or any other District document (whether in electronic or paper form), or any statements
made by any District Director, employee, or agent, | understand District employees are employed on an "at will basis."
As a result, | understand that employees may terminate their employment with the District without notice at any
time. Similarly, the District may terminate an employee’s employment at any time with or without cause, subject only
to the requirements of applicable law.

By signing this Employee Acknowledgment, | further acknowledge that | have read the District’s policy for reporting
claims of alleged discrimination, harassment, and retaliation.

Name

Signature

Date

68|Page

202



Resolution No. 23-107

RESOLUTION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
KEN CARYL RANCH METROPOLITAN DISTRICT

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE 2024 KEN-CARYL RANCH METROPOLITAN
DISTRICT EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK

WHEREAS, the Ken-Caryl Ranch Metropolitan District ("District") is a political
subdivision of the State of Colorado, organized pursuant to C.R.S. § 32-1-101, et seq. ("Special
District Act");

WHEREAS, the District has developed an employee Handbook to establish personnel
policies and procedures for its employees and District Board of Directors adopted a new Employee
Handbook in December of 2020 with an effective date of January 1, 2021; and

WHEREAS, the District recognizes that the Employee Handbook should be reviewed
periodically to ensure its policies are current.

NOW, THEREFORE, be it hereby resolved by the Ken-Caryl Ranch Metropolitan District Board
of Directors the 2024 Employee Handbook is approved on December 12, 2023 with an effective
date of January 1, 2024:

ADOPTED this 12" day of December 2023.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
KEN-CARYL RANCH METROPOLITAN DISTRICT

3654297.1

203



Ken-Caryl Ranch Metropolitan District
Agenda Item Executive Summary

Agenda Item: Reciprocal Employee Benefits Policy

Meeting Date: December 12, 2023

Executive Summary:

The District and Master Association require formalization of the historical practice of providing reciprocal
employee benefits. The topic was to be discussed at the November 2023 Joint Study Session; however,
the meeting was cancelled due to lack of agenda items, so each Board is addressing the issue individually.
The Master Association approved the reciprocal benefits at its November Board meeting, and the District
is scheduled to do so at its December meeting. For future years, staff will include a discussion of reciprocal
benefits as part of a fall Joint Study Session to receive input for inclusion into respective budgets, and
recommends a review of this policy be included in the annual budget process so it can be approved for
the following calendar year once it has been formally recognized and approved by each organization.

Current Utilization

Year to date total usage for Master Association employees utilizing District benefits was five recreation
program uses and one Community Center pass for an estimated cost of $400. Year to date total usage
for District employees utilizing Master Association open space bracelets is 44 individuals.

Reciprocal Employee Benefits from District to Master Association

Eligibility. Each of the reciprocal recreational benefits provided are available to regular full-time, variable
full-time, and regular part-time employees, and their spouse and dependent children. "Dependent
children” means any son, stepson, daughter, stepdaughter, or eligible foster child of the employee. The
Facility Access and Fitness Class benefits are also available to variable part-time, variable temporary, and
seasonal employees during the season they are working; however, their spouses and dependent children
are not eligible.

Facility Access. All eligible Master Association employees and family may utilize the fitness center and
aquatic facilities at no cost during regular business hours. All eligible Master Association employees and
family may participate at no charge as a "drop-in" participant for Community Center fitness classes;
however, they must register using required registration processes.

Recreation Program Registration and Participation. All eligible Master Association employees and family
may register for any District-provided program or class, including specialty fitness classes, at a 20%
discount off the District resident rate or non-resident rate, as applicable depending on whether the
eligible Master Association employee is a District resident or non-resident at the time of registration.
Eligible Master Association employees and family must register using the required registration processes.

Facility Rentals. All eligible Master Association employees and family may rent any District rental facility,
including Bradford Room, Dakota Lodge, Shaffer Room, pools, and tennis courts, at a 20% discount off the
regular rental rate charged to District residents or non-residents, as applicable depending on whether the
eligible Master Association employee is a District resident or non-resident at the time of the rental. Eligible
Master Association employees must pay the full damage deposit applicable to the rental facility or room
and is subject to all rental rules, regulations, and policies of the District.

DMS1\09898\09999\5330855.v1-12/7/23

204



Identification. Master Association employees utilizing the reciprocal recreation benefits must comply with
identification requirements established by administrative services, which may include presenting an ID
card and/or mobile bar code.

Modification. The District Board may modify the reciprocal recreational benefits at any time in its
discretion, subject to the requirements of applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules, regulations, and
ordinances.

Regular Full- Variable Regular Variable Variable
Benefit Type Time Full-Time Part-Time Part-Time Seasonal Temporary
KC Ranch Community Drop-in use free for eligible employee, Drop-in use free for eligible employee during
Center/Fitness spouse, and dependent children working season only
Aquatic Facility Use Drop-in use free for eligible employee, Drop-in use free for eligible employee during
spouse, and dependent children working season only

Recreation Program

.
Registration Fees 20% Discount

Facility Rental Fees 20% Discount

Reciprocal Employee Benefits from Master Association for District
Eligibility. The open space benefit is available to all classifications of District employees. Dependents or family
members are not eligible.

Facility Access. All eligible District employees will receive one open space bracelet during the season within
which they work.

Identification. Employees utilizing the reciprocal Master Association benefits must comply with identification
requirements established by administrative services, which may include presenting an ID card and/or mobile
bar code.

Madification. The Master Association Board may modify the reciprocal Master Association benefits at any time
in its discretion, subject to the requirements of applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules, regulations, and
ordinances.

DMS1\09898\09999\5330855.v1-12/7/23

205



Ken-Caryl Ranch Metropolitan District
Agenda Item Executive Summary

Agenda Item: Records Retention Policy Update
Meeting Date: December 12, 2023

Executive Summary:

By statute, all Colorado local governments are required to adopt a records retention and destruction schedule
(called a "records schedule™ in this executive summary) in the template form prepared and approved by the
Colorado State Archivist; however, the State Archivist may (and routinely does) approve local amendments to
its template records schedule. Once adopted and approved, the records schedule guides a public agency's
records retention practices and serves as legal authorization to destroy records once their retention period has
expired. The District adopted the State Archivist's records schedule in 2009 and received State Archivist
approval for the same. A local government may, but is not required to, update its records schedule from time
to time.

Over the years, the State Archivist's records schedule has gone by different titles. Currently, it is referred to as
a "Records Management Manual". The State Archivist’s current template special district records management
manual is available on its website, and contains 17 schedules for all types of special districts including fire
protection, water and sanitation, metropolitan, and other special districts. For purposes of the Ken-Caryl Ranch
Metropolitan District, there are numerous record types and schedules contained within the template records
schedule that do not pertain to the District’s business.

The Board has proposed updating the District's records schedule to be in line with the State Archivist's most
current versions. There are three options to move forward with an update to the District’s records schedule:

1. The quickest, least expensive, and less refined option is for the Board to approve the State’s template
records schedule knowing there will be many record types and schedules that do not apply to District
business. This process would require approximately two hours of legal assistance ($710). An Approval
Request Form must be completed and returned to the State for review and approval of the State
Archivist.

2. The slowest, most expensive, and most refined option is for the Board to eliminate all sections of the
State’s schedule that do not apply to District business and possibly identify areas of the State’s schedule
for local amendments to meet District business needs. This process would require approximately 15
hours of legal assistance ($5,325). An Approval Request Form including all local amendments must be
completed and returned to the State for review and approval of the State Archivist.

3. The option in between the previous options would be for the Board to identify targeted areas for
revision within the State’s template schedule. This option’s cost and hours estimate is dependent upon
the number of areas required for revision and cannot be estimated without further information. An
Approval Request Form including the local amendments in the targeted areas must be completed and
returned to the State for review and approval of the State Archivist.

Staff and legal counsel are requesting direction from the Board in order to move forward with the process.

DMS1\09898\09999\5330763.v1-12/6/23

206



Ken-Caryl Ranch Metropolitan District
Agenda Item Executive Summary

Agenda Item: Community Planning Committee (CPC) Appointment Process

Meeting Date: December 12, 2023

Executive Summary:

The Community Planning Committee (CPC) is a joint committee with the Master Association. The Committee
currently has seven members that are seeking reappointment (listed below). Two applications were received
for appointment consideration (see attached applications). This information was reviewed by the Board
Presidents, Board representatives, and staff who make the following recommendations for appointments:

Chris Figge

Meg Hollingsworth
John Hamilton

Brian Lee

Kristin Potts

Rilla Reinsma

Jerry Palmer

Ashley Verville — new
Sandy Rinow - hew

A motion is included in the Action Items section of the agenda. The Master Association will be considering
the same appointments at its meeting on December 19, 2023.

5032562.v1

207



KEN-CARYL RANCH | i e
MASTER ASSOCIATION | 305.079.17

info@kcranch.org
ken-carylranch.org

Community Planning Committee — 2024

Ashley Verville:

Name
Ashley Verville
Resident Since (Year)
2020

Street Address

Phone

Email

Which committee are you applying for? (If you wish to apply for multiple committees, please submit a
separate form for each committee.)

Community Planning Committee (7 openings)

Have you previously served on any Ken-Caryl Ranch committees, task forces or boards?
No

Why do you want to serve on this committee?

| think community participation in issues surrounding our neighborhood, community and collective quality of
life is hugely important. Every Ken Caryl committee and community effort - big and small - should include the

208



voices and perspective of a range of community members and residents to ensure it can come up with
innovative and fresh solutions and meet the needs of the most residents.

How can you contribute to this committee? How can you help it achieve its goals?

In my professional career, | have experience in community relations and outreach and familiarity with land use
and planning efforts. | would like to use that expertise in my personal and community life as a member of the
Community Planning Committee. | would like to better understand the short- and long-term goals of the
committee and how they will impact the quality of life for Ken Caryl residents.

What are your qualifications for serving on this committee?

I am a Colorado native and resident of Ken Caryl for 3+ years. As a relatively new member to the community
and a mother to two young children, | share a passion with many others for continuing to make our community
the best it can be for current and future families. | am a communications professional and believe | can bring
my professional experience and personal passion for community engagement to this committee and our
community.

Name

Sandy Rinow

Resident Since (Year)

1978

Street Address

Phone

Email

Which committee are you applying for? (If you wish to apply for multiple committees, please submit a
separate form for each committee.)

Community Planning Committee (7 openings)

Have you previously served on any Ken-Caryl Ranch committees, task forces or boards?

209



Yes
If yes, which ones?

Fence task force
Violations committee

Why do you want to serve on this committee?

| feel | have a lot to offer. Working as a human resource manager for 29 years I. Feel | have great
communication skills along with leadership skills and daily worked with employees serving as a liaison
between them and supervisors | feel | have a lot to offer as far as past history on the ranch. | feel as though
we have a lot to work on concerning how the ranch operated in the past and where we are today

How can you contribute to this committee? How can you help it achieve its goals?

Hopefully by communicating with other members showing respect with other opinions but expecting the same
from others

What are your qualifications for serving on this committee?

Past experiences.
Future needs and why they are important to all ranch members. Taking into account ALL ranch residents not
just certain interest groups. Find out what all residents think. Not just the vocal ones. Communicate with

everyone

210



	Ken-Caryl Ranch Metropolitan District Board of Directors Agenda
	Item V.a - 20231018 MD Regular Board Meeting Minutes.docx
	Item VI.a - 20231130 KCRMD Balance Sheet.pdf
	Item VI.a - 20230101-20231130 KCRMD Budget To Actual.pdf
	Item VI.a - 20230101-20231130 KCRMD Accounts Payable Analysis for the year.pdf
	Item VI.c - 2023 Capital Tracking Sheets USE THIS ONE.pdf
	Item VII.a - 2024 Budget Narrative with Excel.pdf
	Item VIII.a - 20231212 Agenda Item Copier Lease.docx
	Item VIII.b - 20231212 Agenda Item Audit Letter of Engagement.docx
	Item VIII.b - 20231108 Letter of Engagement - Haynie & Co - KC Ranch.pdf
	Item VIII.c - 20231212 Agenda Item Employee Handbook.docx
	Item VIII.c - 2024 KCRMD Handbook - Redlined Version (ISPP revisions) (5313874).pdf
	Item VIII.c - 2024 KCRMD Handbook - Final.docx
	Item VIII.c - 20231212 MD 23-107 Resolution Adopting 2024 Employee Handbook.docx
	Item VIII.d - 20231212 Agenda item reciprocal employee benefits.docx
	Item VIII.e - 20231212 Agenda Item Records Retention.docx
	Item VIII.f - 20231212 Agenda Item CPC.docx
	Item VIII.f - Community Planning Committee Applications 2024.docx



